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MEASUREMENT AND APPORTIONMENT OF THE WATERS OF
o THE ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS, e

INTERNATIONAL JOINT COMMISSION,
Ottawa, Canada, May 3, 1920. °

The Commission met at 10 o’clock a. m.

Present: C. A. Magrath (chairman for Canada), H. A. Powell, K.
C., Str William Hearst. O. Gardner (chairman for the United States),
Clarence D. Clark. , ]

Lawrence J. Burpee, secretary of the Commission for Canada.

Aplpearances :

Col. C. S. MacInnes, K. C., counsel for the Dominion of Canada, for
the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan, the Western Canada
Irrigation Association, and the Cypress Hills Water-Users
Association.

Hon. George Turner, counsel for the United States Government.

Mr. Will R, King, chief counsel for the United States Reclamation
Service, with Mr. W. J. Egleston, of Helena, Mont., district counsel
for the United States Reclamation Service. ‘

Mr. W. N. Tilley, K. C., with Mr. G. A. Walker of Calgary, for the
Canadian Pacific Igailwa Co. ‘

Hon. Thomas J. Walsh, United States Senator from Montana.

Mr. A. P. Davis, director of the United States Reclamation
Service, Washiniton, D.C.

Mr. E. F. Drake, director, Reclamation Service of Canada, Ottawa.

Mr. C. S. Heidel, hydrographer, engineer’s office, State of Montana.
o Mr. R. J. Burley, 1rrigation engineer, Department of the Interior,

ttawa.

Mr. C. H. Atwood, Water Power Branch, Department of the Inte-
rior, Ottaws.

Mr. Benjamin "E. Jones, hydraulic engineer, Land Classification
Board, United States Geological Survey.

Mr. Magrath presided.

Mr. MaGrATH. Gentlemen, it is my intention to make a very short
statement to you as to the object of this meeting, but before doing
so I may say that a request has come from Senator Walsh, who is
-coming by train and will not arrive here until noon. Senator Walsh
would like that the argument be not gone on with until he arrives.
We will, however, open the meeting this morning, and we will decide
then as to the action we will take, which doubtless will be, unless there
are very strong reasons to the contrary, that we shall adjourn until
this afternoon. , ‘

~ It may not be amiss for me to briefly recite what has taken place in
connection with ‘the division of the waters of the St. Mary and Milk
Rivers as required by Article VI of the treaty of 1909.

In accordance with the custom of the Commission that was followed
for some time, namely, that two of its members—one from each
country—be assigned to keep in intimate touch with each question
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that came before it, Messrs. Powell and Gardner were named a com-
mittee for that purpose in connection with this question. They
visited the location in the season of 1914 and finding that there was
a difference of opinion on the part of interested parties as to the
waters that were to be taken into account, they recommended that
there should be a public hearing in order to give all interests an
opportunity to ut%efore the Commission their views respecting the
interpretation of Article VI. The recommendation of the committee
was adopted and a hearing was later on held in St. Paul, commencing
May 24, 1915. At this hearing testimony was presented and argu-
ments made by counsel for the various interests.

The date for the filing of briefs and other documents was at a
later meeting extended to September 10, 1915, and such documents
were duly ﬁFed on behalf of the. Governments of the United States
and Canada and the Canadian Pacific Railway Co. At the Wash-
infilton meeting of the Commission in Agril, 1917, Judfge King, on
behalf of the I%nited States Reclamation Service, made formal appli-
cation for a reargument. The request was granted and the case was
again taken up at Detroit, commencing May 15, 1917, all interests
being duly notified of that meeting. ‘

In accordance with permission obtained at Detroit, the Canadian
Pacific Railway Co. filed a printed reply brief and argument. At the
Detroit hearing, Mr. Wyvell, on behalf of the United States, requested
further time for an argument in order that the Attorney General of
the United States might have an opportunity of submitting the views
of his Government to the Commission. On October 15, 1917, the
Attorney General wrote that he had reached the conclusion that no
further discussion on his part was necessary.

On November 7, 1917, the Secretary of gtate of the United States
wrote the Commission to the effect that whatever conclusion was
reached by the Commission in the St. Mary and Milk Rivers matter
would not be regarded by his Government as binding upon it, in so far
as it undertook to interpret Article VI. This letter was referred to a
committee consisting of Mr. Tawney and Mr. Mignault, who on
February 4, 1918, submitted the dratt of an answer to the letter of
the Secretary of State. This reply was adopted and sent under
date of February 13, 1918. Under date of April 18, 1918, the Sec-
retary of State wrote the Commission that he was unable to discern
in the discussion presented in the commission’s letter of February
13, 1918, sufficient cause for altering his views.

The letter of the Secretary of State of November 7, 1917, was
transmitted to the Canadian Government through the British
Embassy, and the views of that Government in regard to the right
of the Commission to interpret ‘Article VI were embodied in an order
in council dated March 11, 1918, On November 11,1919, the United
States Secretary of State wrote the Commission explaining that the
intention of his letter of November 7, 1917, was to reserve so far as
the United States Government was concerned, any question of inter-
national right that might be involved, but that his Government had
no intention to preclude the Commission from exercising its func-
tions as a purely administrative body in determining what waters it
should under Article VI measure and apportion.

Meanwhile, the Commission lost two of its members, first by the
resignation of Mr. Mignault, who was-appointed to the Supreme Court.
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of Canada in October, 1918, and by the death of Mr. Tawney in
June, 1919. In March, 1920, the chairman for the United States
wired me stating that Senator Clark—who succeeded the late Mr.
'Fawney—considered that a reargument was desirable. At the meet-
irn%lof the Commission in Washington on April 7 last, it was decided
to have the question of the interpretation of Article VI reargued, and
and the place and date fixed was in this office in Ottawa to-day.

Now, gentlemen, in view of the request of Senator Walsh, I think
we should adjourn until this afternoon. -

Mr. Lawrence J. Burpee, secretary, read a list of the parties in
interest on the Canadian side, to whom notices of the meeting had
been sent.
. Mr. Burpee stated that similar notices had been sent by Mr.
Kluttz, secretary for the United States, to the parties in interest on
the United States side.

Mr. Crark. I have received the following telegram from Senator
Walsh, which might be placed on'the recor(%:

NEw Yorx, N. Y., May 2, 1920.

Hon. C. D. Crark, ]
Chateaw Laurier (or care Secretary, International Joint Commission), Oflauwa,
Ontarie.

Delayed ship. Arriving Ottawa noon Monday. Kindly ask necessary delay.
: T.J. WausH,

_Mr. MagraTH. My colleague, Mr. Powell, has just drawn my atten-
tion to the absence of one of the members of the Commission; you
have a‘letter, Mr. Burpee, bearing on that. )

Mr. Burpee read a communication from Gov. Glenn, which stated:

In many respects I have improved in health but have now a case of Iumbago, and

a8 I heard the argument in St. Mary and Milk Rivers twice, I will not come to Ottawa
but will join you at Sault Ste, Marie,

Mr. TurNER. On behalf of the United States, we would be glad to
have the Commission accede to the request of Senstor W&IS%. He
represents the interests of the people of Montana, and we would be
glad indeed to have him here, so that he may hear all the argument.

Mr. PowerL. What about the absence of Gov. Glenn?

Mr. Turxer. I think, sir, we might proceed with this argument at
this present, time as ordered. Gov. Glenn, at a later period, after
reading the argument, can make up a quorum for the determination
of the question.

Mr. WiLr R. Kina. As representing the legal end of the Recla-
mation Service of the United States, I would prefer to have Senator
Walsh present, and so 1 will be glad to have the case adjourned until
-this afternoon. As to Gov. Glenn, we waive his absence. Although
we regret that he is not with us, we are willing to proceed as if he
were present. _

Mr. MacratH. All the testimony that has been presented in this
case, and every word that had been uttered by way of argument, has
been printed. The reason of this meeting is because two members
of the Commission were not present at the hearings that were pre-
viously held. We now find that there is one member of the Com-
mission who is not present here to-day and it seems to me that it is
a question that the Commission should take into consideration in
executive session as to the desirability of proceeding with this case
how, in view of the reason that was advanceg for holding this meeting.
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" Mr.‘Torner. I believe it lias been the practice of the Commission
to ‘consider a majority of the commission as constituting a querum
for all purposes except the actual making of a decision.

““Mr. MACINNES. As to ‘the request for adjournment on behalf of’
Senator Walsh, I may say that we would be very glad to-accede to
that postponement if it meets with the favor of the Commission. As
to the absence of Gov. Glenn, one of the members of the Commission,
I would submit that that is rather a matter for the Commission itself
to decide, inasmuch as this reargument was requested, as we under-
stand, by the Commission for ‘the purpose of reaching a decision.
As to that, it seems to me we would be bound by any conclusion
that the Commission may reach.

Mr. Burege. There is 8 question as to the filing of the diplomatic
correspondence that was put in at the St. Paul hearing. I took that
matter up with the Washington office and I also made a request of
the Director of the Reclamation Service here. Mr. Drake has put in
certified copies of all documents that were filed by Col. Maclnnes.
I have had a message from Mr. Kluttz that he had taken up the
matter with Mr. Wyvell’s office, which is in daily touch with the
department, and it was understood that certified copies were to be
put in on the United States side.

Mr. CLarx. Were they not published in the record ?

Mr. Burree. The documents were published, but we have not on
file the certified copies in the office.

Mr. PoweLL. I move adjournment until half-past 2 o’clock this
afternoon. '

The Commission adjourned until half-past 2 o’clock this afternoon,
when the Hon. Senator Walsh was in attendance.

Mr. MagraTi. We will be very pleased, Senator Walsh, to hear
your argument.

Mr. Tur~NER. There is some question about the order of argument.
My idea was that as there will be several arguments on each side that
we should alternate. Inasmuch as Canada closed the argument on a
former occasion, I think that counsel for Canada might open the
argument to-day. I believe that Col. MacInnes and Mr. Tilley are
the only counsel to argue on the Canadian side, and my suggestion is
that one of them should open the case, that he should be followed by
Senator Walsh and Judge King, and that I as representative of the
United States would close the argument. Col. MacInnes, whom I
have consulted, thinks that the United States should open the argu-
ment, and inasmuch as we can not agree we leave it to the Commis-
sion to determine. ) .

Mr. MacInNgs. Mr. Tilley and I came here to-day in the expecta-
tion that the same practice would be followed as before, that the
United States would open the case and that we could then deal with
it, and if there should be any matters requiring reply, the procedure
of the Commission we understood would be to let either side reply to
any points that might seem to require to be further dealt with. We
are dealing with this matter, as I understand, with the idea of getting
everything before the Commission in the way of argument and ex-

lanation. So far as closing the argument is concerned, Senator

rner is not quite correctly informed as to that—at the St. Paul
hearing I understand that Canada did conclude, but at Detroit it
was the other way. I submit, in further argument in favor of my
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contention, that the view of the Canadian side as you know is that
this Commission is dealing with an article of the treaty which we sub-
mit is quite clear in its terms, and that the water should be measured
and dealt with in accordance with these terms. It would seem to
me that one would get a more intelligent dealing with the matter
if the difficulties which are said to exist could be presented clearly
before the Commission, and then later Canada Woufd have the right
to reply. We, of course, are not dealing with this matter tech-
nically in any sense, but with a view of getting all the light possible
upon it. Mr. Tilley and I have come here in that view, and in the
expectation that the case on the part of the United States would be
presented in part, if not in whole, at the opening of the session.

Mr. TurNER. Canadaisinsisting on the literal reading of the treaty
which would include all tributaries. And the contention of the
United Statesis that the word *‘ tributaries’”’ must be limited. Ihave
some experience in international tribunals, and I must say that the
course I now suggest has been that which has been invariably fol-
lowed. We think it a fair proposition that Canada should take the
opening, inasmuch as we assumed that burden at a former hearing.

Senator WaLsu. I shall be quite willing to introduce the argument
if that is deemed to be desirable. Then, that of course will give us
the privilege of having Senator Turner to close.

Mr. TurNER. Since Senator Walsh has expressed himself as ready
to %10 on, that of course meets the difficulty. The United States can
be heard from at the end of the argument.

Mr. TicLey. I do not know what Senator Turner means by saying
that we are to hear from the United States at the end of the argument.

Mr. Tur~NER. Let the argument alternate between the two parties.

Mr. TiLLey. My submission is that the United States should say
what they have to say in opening, that the counsel for the United
States can say what they have to say, and then Mr. MacInnes and
I can state what we have tosay. Of course, so far as I am concerned,
I have no objection to anything that is really reply being said by
either side. There seems to be no difficulty about that, but cer-
tainly we are entitled to hear from Senator Turner, on behalf of the
United States. The United States is really asking for this rehearing.

Mr. Crarxk. I was going to say, Mr. Chairman, that the statement
just now made by counsel is not exactly correct. The request for
the rehearing came from me personally, as a member of the Commis-
sion, without reference to the particular interest which the United
States might have in the rehearing or what interest Canada might
have. I did try to familiarize myself as far as I could with this long
record, but I felt that my judgment would be enlightened, as a
member of the Commission, if I could receive the argument right off
the bat. I therefore made a request to the Commission for this
rehearing. My request has no bearing whatever upon the attitude
of the United States or upon the attitude of Canada; I want to make
that explanation.

Mr. TiLiey. That would not detract from what I say, that we
should have the full view of the United States presented to this
commission before we are called upon to say what we have to say,
without any objection on our part to a reply if there is anything
that really needs reply, either by one or by both. I submit that we
are entitled to have the full view of the United States presented, so
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that we maPr deal with it and so that we may not have to deal with
it piecemeal.

r. TurNER. We are subject to the wishes of the Commission as
to the order of the argument. If we open the argument and two of
our legal representatives speak on it, certainly the other side will be
very well informed of the position of the United States by the time
the final argument is made. It is strictly conformable to the prac-
tice before the courts that the parties opening should have the con-
cluding argument.

Mr. Kiva. I take it that the purpose of the Commission is to get
what information it can to enable the Commission to reach the proper
conclusion. I think the proper way to present the case is for counsel
to alternate. I assume that Senator Walsh will be able to cover the
whole case, and that little will remain for me to add to what he has
said. But when counsel on the other side address the Commission -
there may be some things that it may be necessary to reply to. It
therefore strikes me that the proper procedure is for counsel to
alternate.

Mr. Tirey. If the proposal is that Mr. King shall follow Senator
Walsh, then alternation is not so bad, but we do not want alternation
on the principle of the other side having three counsel and we having
onlly two. If the two on the American side will go first, alternation
will be satisfactory.

Mr. MAGRATH. %efore we are through with Senator Walsh possibly
it will be time to adjourn, and then the Commission can take up this
matter of procedure.

ARGUMENT OF HON. THOMAS J. WALSH, UNITED STATES
© SENATOR FROM MONTANA.

Senator WaLsH. Gentlemen, I am indebted to your courtesy for
holding your proceedings in abeyance until this afternoon that I
might appear Eefore you in this matter, which is of such momentous
concern to the people of my State. I am gratified to recall at this
time that the question of the jurisdiction of the Commission, which
was raised in previous presentations of the matter, has been removed,
as 1 understand, by a letter recently addressed to the Commission
by the Secretary of State. It may be recalled by those Commis-
sioners who sat at the last-hearing that I then expressed my want of
concurrence in the objection that was raised to the jurisdiction of
the Commission. It occurred to me that there could be no serious
question on that score, and I found no difficulty whatever in convinc-
ing the Secretary of State of the soundness of that position. Indeed,
he disclaimed any knowledge of the question and any responsibility
for its having been raised. It is particularly gratifying at this time
because the necessity for a speedy determination of this very impor-
tant question grows more and more imperative. Indeed, the condi-
tions which have prevailed in the Northwest during the last three
years have increased its importance and the need for a speed
decision. Those have been years of extreme drought, covering all
the region affected both in the State of Montana and the adjacent
Provinces of Saskatchewan and Alberta. Last year was a period of
extraordinary drought, perhaps without record m the history of our
State, and brought home to our people more than ever tﬁye great
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importance and value of water for purposes of irrigation. As it now
is, enterprise in the way of development of new lands and preparin
them for irrigation is, to a certain degree at least, at a standstill.
In the neighborhood of Chinook, for instance, it is contemplated to
establish an irrigation district embracing a large area of the land in
that region to be watered by the water from the Milk River, both
from its natural flow as well as the augmentation from storage works
already constructed. That work contemplates the expenditure of a
very large amount of money for the leveling of the land and the other
preliminaries to the appropriate and economic use of water for irri-
gation, but until those interested know exactly or as nearly as they
can know exactly what water is available, evidently enterprise 1s
halted. I hope, therefore, that the matter may be taken up by the
‘Commission while it is fresh and a conclusion arrived at, if one is
possible.

Inasmuch as there are two members of the Commission who were
not here before, I shall proceed to consider the matter as one of
first impression. The rivers in controversy are the Milk River and
the St. Mary River, both of them rising in the State of Montana.
They are indicated on the map here, which, unfortunately, is so
small as not to be of very much advantage. Both these rivers have
their source in the Rocky Mountains, near their summits, in the
neighborhood of the Glacier National Park. The St. Mary River
flows almost directly north, emptying the two St. Mary Lakes, cross-
ing the boundary hine, and eventua%ly finds its way into the Belly
River, from there into Saskatchewan, and from Saskatchewan to
Lake Winnipeg. The Milk River has its source in the same region.
Indeed, the headwaters of the two streams may be said to mingle.
‘The Milk River flows in a northeasterly direction across the Canadian
boundary and through the Canadian Provinces for a distance of 100
miles or thereabouts, when it turns to the south and again comes into
the State of Montana, emptying into the Missouri River in the east-
ern portion of the State. ’};he Government of the United States is
prosecuting a great work of reclamation which contemplates the use
of the waters, or of a portion of the waters, of both these streams,
and has constructed a canal 17 miles long, connecting the St. Mary
with the Milk River, so that through it the waters of the St. Mary
may be thrown into the Milk and carried through Canadian territory
-down into the region through which the lower Milk courses, where the
water is to be used. Prior, however, to the initiation of that work,
enterprising Canadians had taken out a ditch just above the inter-
national line, from the St. Mary River for the irrigation of a large
tract of land in that locality, and when the Government of the United
‘States entered upon the work of creating a great storage basin in
the St. Mary River with the evident purpose of taking that water
from the St. Mary and throwing it into the Milk River, and carrying
it down to the eastern part of the State for use there, the Canadians
naturally protested. :

Again, settlers in the State of Montana had settled along tributaries
of the Milk River in the eastern part of the State and in the central
portion of the State in the neighborhood of Havre, and had taken out
wrrigation ditches. Other settlers on the Canadian side took out
ditches claimed to be inferior in right if there were no international
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boundary line there, or at least being limited in time, and were pro-
ceeding to take the water from these tributaries to the detriment and
depredation of the settlers on the American side, who claimed to be
entitled to have that water come down uninterrupted in its flow. So
the controversy arose upon both sides of the line, the Canadians pro-
testing against storage of the St. Mary upon the American side and
the‘ American settlers protesting against the diversion of the tribu-
taries of the Milk River on the other side. That resulted in the exe-
cution of the treaty which is the subject of the inquiry. The treaty
of 1909 touches quite & number of subjects. The controversy con-
cerning the Milk River and the St. Mary is dealt with in Article VI
of the treaty which reads as follows:

VI. The high contracting parties agree that the St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their
tributaries (in the State of Montana and the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan)
are to be treated as one stream for the purposes of irrigation and power, and the waters
thereof shall be apportioned equally between the two countries, but in making such
equal apportionment more than half may be taken from one river and less than half
irom the other by either country so as to afford a more beneficial use to each. It is
further agreed that in the division of such waters during the irrigation season, between
the Ist of April and 31st of October, inclusive, annually, the United States is entitled
to a prior appropriation of 300 cubic feet per second of the waters of the Milk River,
or so much of such amount as constitutes three-fourths of its natural flow, and that
Canada is entitled to a prior appropriation of 500 cubic {eet per second of the flow of
gt. Mary River, or so much of such amount as constitutes three-fourths of its natural

ow. '

The channel of the Milk River in Canada may be used at the convenience of the:
United States for the conveyance, while passing through Uanadian territory, of waters
diverted from the St. Mary River. The provisions of Article IT of this treaty shall
apply to any injury resulting to property in Canada from the conveyance of such waters
through the Milk River. -

The measurement and apportionment of the water to be used by each country
shall from time to time be made jointly by the proverly constituted reclamation
officers of the United States and the properly constituted irrigation officers of His
Majesty under the direction of the International Joint Commission.

That is what presents this controversy. The duty of measuring
and apportioning the water in accordance with the terms of this treaty
devolves upon this commission. In the effort to discharge their duty
the question arises concerning the construction of the treaty which it
})ecomes necessary that the Commission should solve before it can go-

urther.

It is contended on the part of the Canadians, as I interpret their
claim, either that the water must be measured at the mouths of these
rivers, respectively—the Milk River away down in the eastern part
of Montana, and the St. Mary where it has its confluence with the
Belly River—or that by some other process the amount of water
in each of these rivers, exclusive of their tributaries, is to be deter-
mined, and then the amount of water in each and every single and
separate tributary of the two rivers is to be measured and the aggre-
gate arrived at in that way, and then of that each is to have one-half.

The American contention, on the other band, is that the treaty
contemplated simply the division and distribution of those waters
which may be used 1n either country, and must be measured simply
at the points of diversion in each country, or else at the international
boundary line. The contention made by the Canadian Government
in that behalf is perhaps accurately expressed in the brief presented
by my learned friend, Col. MacInnes, from which I quote. On in-
troductory page lx, after quoting as follows from Article VI:
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The high contracting parties agree that the St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their
tributaries (in the State of Montana and the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan)
are to be treated as one stream for the purposes of irrigation and power, and the waters

thereof shall be apportioned equally between the two countries.

He goes on and asks:

What is the meaning of the above language in connection with the measurement of
the total amount to be apportioned between the two countries? Ascertain thid total
by meagurement of all the waters involved, and it will be found that there is no sub-
stantial difficulty in apportioning to cach country its share of such total at suitable
points, and in the measurement of the constituent parts of guch share at the places
where the same are received.

The language is both general and clear. There is no exception of, or limitation to,
any part of cither river. There is no exception of, or limitaticn to, any tributary of
either river.

Why, therefore, should there be any difficulty? The difliculty arises from the fact
that a contention has been raised on behalf of the United States that the only waters
to he measured, for this or any other purpose, are the waters in the two rivers and in the
tributaries thereof which flow across the international boundary, to the exclusion of the
waters in the other portions of the rivers and their tributaries, and to the exclusion of
the waters in any other tributaries thereof. ’

The result of such a contention would largely decrease the amount of Canada’s
share, because it would decrease the amount of the total to be apportioned; and on the
other hand, the United States would have a claim to such a share of the waters of the
8t. Mary River as would seriously affect valid Canadian rights on that river and the
development.of the irrigable arcas in Canada, and would be contrary to the express
terms of the treaty and to the governing idea of ““ heneficial use.” No support of this
contention on behalf of the United States can be found within the four corners of the
article itself, upon which the direction to be given by your honorahle commission must
be based. The contention is, therefore, self-answered.

As to that, I shall address myself direct, but I want now to invite
your attention again to this paragraph:

Why therefore should there be any difficulty? The difliculty arises from the fact
that a contention has been raised on behalf of the United States that the only waters
to be measured, for this or any other purpose, are the waters in the two rivers and in
the tributaries thereof which flow across the international boundary.

In one of his many criticisms of the construction given by the
Supreme Court of the United States to the Constitution and the
powers of Congress under the Constitution, Jefferson once referred
to Gen. Marshall’s “twistifications.” Now, that is not a “twistifica-
tion,” but it approaches to one. It contemplates that the matter
had been entirely settled, or at least accepted, and then in some way
or other the Government of the United States suddenly introduced
this kind of contention. I have not been able to find in the record
anything that would support that idea. Indeed, Mr. Commissioners,
the fact about the matter is, we shall show later, that both parties
to the controversy proceeded for years after this treaty was made, in
apparent complete acceptance of the view of the matter which we
are now presenting. So that the contention, at least as we view the
matter—new in its character and novel-—was raised by the Canadian
Government and authorities, not by those of the United States. 1
shall advert to that later; but no effort was made at any time to
establish measuring stations at the mouths of either of these rivers,
or along any of the branches or tributaries of any of them, except those
which crossed the international boundary line and except at or near
the international crossings, and at the diversion works on the St.
Mary River. As I shall contend later, that was a practical construc-
tion of this matter given to the treaty by both parties to it.
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Again, this brief says:

No support of this contention on behalf of the United States can be found within the
four corners of the article itself, upon which the direction to be given by your honorable
commission must be based.

The language is both general and clear. There is no exeeption of, or lmitation to,
a.nﬁ part of either river. There is no exception of, or limitation to, any tributary of
either river. '

Now, if the commission please, we can not assent to that at all.
On the contrary, our contention is that the language of the treaty is
perfectly plain and perfectly plain in support of our contention; and
that you do not need to go beyond the four corners of that treaty
to arrive at the conclusion which we insist is the correct one in the
interpretation of the treaty. I read:

There is no exception of, or limitation to, any tributary of either river.

But that is not the case, for the treaty reads:

The high contracting parties agree that the St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their
tributaries (in the State of Montana and the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan).

Not all tributaries of these rivers, but only those tributaries in
Montana and Alberta and Saskatchewan. Of course, the contention
as stated here clearly conveys the idea that the treaty reads as though
this qualifying language were not in it at all; as though it read:

The high contracting parties agree that the St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their
tributaries are to be treated as ¢éne stream for the purposes of irrigation and power.

We contend that the very plain meaning of this is that it is only
those tributaries which at one and the same time are in Montana and
in Alberta or Saskatchewan, and the waters of the river that at the
same time may be diverted and utilized either in Montana or in
Alberta and Saskatchewan. Otherwise, this important language has
no meaning whatever. Every lawyer member of the Commission,
~as well, I am sure, as those who are not of our profession, will appre-
ciate the importance of the rule of construction that every word m a
treaty, every phrase in a treaty, is to be given some meaning, some
significance.” The contention, 1 submit in all candor, made by *the
Canadian Government in that regard is just what the construction
would necessarily be if this qualifying language were not there at all.

Now, it will be observed by a reference to the map that there are
a vast number of tributaries of the Milk River, and no inconsiderable
number of the tributaries of the Belly River, which are not at all
international in their character. That is particularly the case with
the Milk River. Here is the international boundary line [indicating
on the map] and the great region occupied by the Sweet Grass Hills
in Teton County in.my State; these streams, flowing down here, are
not of an international character at all. The great region of the
Bear Paw Mountains, to which I point now, and all the regions south
of the Milk River—here are tributaries which contribute a large
amount of water, but are not international in character, and in rela-
tion to which no controversy has ever arisen. It is contended that
all these rivers must be taken into consideration and that you are
to ascertain the amount of water in the Milk River away down here,
the mouth in the eastern part of the State, and by some means or
other you are to go back to the international boundary line, divide
that by two, and give to the Canadians one-half of the total amount
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as found down here at the mouth. I shall advert to that contention
later, because it is such an unreasonable contention, one impossible
of application, that it must be dismissed without reference to any
other considerations whatever.

Now, a treaty is a contract between two nations, and bears a ver
close analogy, if it is not in every important particular identical, witK
8 contract between two individuals. The rules of construction, at
least, are quite similar, if they are not generally applicable. Of
course, we are obliged to ascertain, if we can, what the parties to this
treaty meant; what the intention was; what they intended to do;
how they had it in their minds that this water could be divided and
apportioned. We must endeavor at all times to get at the intention
that they desired to express. In arriving at the intention which they
had in tgeir minds, the language which they used becomes, of course,
of first importance, so it is contended upon the part of the Canadian
Government that it is perfectly plain tﬁat it means what they say;
and we contend that it is perfectly plain that it means what we say,
as I have pointed out, that it is not all the rivers, or all the tributaries,
but only those that are in Montana, on the one hand, and in Alberta
or Saskatchewan, on the other, that are referred to.

Now, the language here is rather peculiar. You see, there are two
“ands” there: “In the State on Montana ‘and’ the Provinces of
Alberta ‘and’ Saskatchewan.” I believe there is no tributary—at
least none has been directed to my attention—which is at one and
the same time in Montana and in both the Provinces. But there are
many of the tributaries which are at one and the same time in Mon-
tana and in one or other of the Provinces. When the treaty was in

rocess of drafting, this expressgn was used, as I shall show you a
ittle later on: In alarge number of the drafts, at least three or four,
the word “Saskatchewan’” was omitted and it read: “In the State
of Montana and the Province of Alberta.” When they were about
to frame the final draft, evidently the attention of some of the
Canadian authorities was called to the fact that some of the tribu-
taries came from Saskatchewan into Montana, and they simply put
in the words “and Saskatchewan’; so that the construction 1s not
materially changed. I have no doubt that the negotiators intended
to refer to those tributaries which are at one and the same time in
Montana and also in either Alberta or Saskatchewan. That is, it
should be ‘“in Montana and Saskatchewan,” or “in Montana and Al-
berta.”” But if that contention, Mr. Commissioners, is not clear from
the language of the treaty itself, I assert, as I did when last before the
Commission, that if we enter upon a consideration of the negotiations
which led up to this treaty as it finally took form, and follow the
operation of the minds of those who were the authors of it, as the
proceedings progressed from day to day and from month to month,
1t seems to me the conclusion 1s entirely irresistible that they had
not in mind and did not intend to provide for the distribution of
these waters upon any basis except an equal division of the waters
that flowed across the international boundary line—that is to say,
the waters that were available for irrigation upon either side of the
international boundary line.

But it may be said that a tribunal or a court may never resort to
extraneous circumstances, and particularly to prior negotiations lead-
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ing up-to a treaty or a contract, unless there is some ambiguity or
wncertainty about the contract, or about the langdage of the contract,
which would be expla;ined by attendant circunistances. But if that
were the rule, Mr. Commissioners, I think I have already pointed out
t0 you what evéryone must admit is a clear ambiguity in the language
of this treaty. At least, we say that it means this thing, and counsel
upon the other side says it means quite a different thing. They say
they give no consideration whatever to the language: ‘“In the State
of Montana and the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan.”
Possibly they contend that that is mere language of identification,
not language of qualification. If so, then there is ambiguity or ob-
scurity about -the treaty which would permit under any rule the
introduetion of the prior negotiations. :

Mr. PoweLL. May I interrupt you, Senator Walsh? I wish to call
your attention to a particular change of verbiage. You referred to
the change which was made by the addition of the words ‘“and Sas-
katchewan.” There is an additional change—youn may not deem it
important, and I do not say that I attach much significance to it -
either. The language in the old one—meaning by *““old one’’ the
preceding copy or draft-—was “St. Mary and Milk Rivers in the State
of Montana and the Province of Alberta, and their tributaries.”
‘“Tributaries’’ is unlimited. Then, in the adopted copy, the word
““tributaries’”’ comes in for any limitation there is in to .the rivers
themselves, as well.”

Senator WarLsH. [ recall that very well.

Mr. PowrrL. I merely direct your attention to that; you may not
attach any importance to it.

Senator Warsa. Well, I did not ¢ensider it of importance in con-
nection with the idea which I am endeavoring now to put forward.

Mr. PowrLL. You may at some later stage.

Senator WaLsH. It is often the case, Mr. Commissioners, that a
contract which seems perfectly plain on its face becomes one of
doubt and ambiguity when attention is paid to the circumstances
under which it has been negotiated; and then the negotiations be~
come exceedingly important for the purpose of illustration. I was at
one time the president of a company which carried on agriculture on
a very large scale and sheep grazing in the State of Montana. We
raised something like 100,000 bushels of oats annually, and we had
our thrashing done at, we will say, 8 cents a bushel. Now, the law
of Montana expressly provides that 32 pounds of oats shall be a
bushel; but our oats weighed exceedingly heavy, even going as high
a8 42 pounds to the bushel of measure, and rarely amounting to less
than 40 pounds. So, after a long course of dealing with the thrashers,
the measure box was set to tip up at 40 pounds to, the bushel;
whenever 40 pounds came in it dumped; that was a bushel, and we
were obliged to pay 8 cents for the service to that extent. Well now,
the high cost of living, we will assume, comes along, and the thrasher
writes us a letter in which he says that he is in such a situation that
he can not thrash this year at a lower rate than 12 cents a bushel, and
we accept his proposition. Then he proceeds to bill us upon the
basis of 32 pounds to the bushel, and very naturally we protest. We
direct attention to the long course of dealings between us under
which 40 pounds of our oats was to constitute a bushel; and un-
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doubtedly the contract between us would be construed in the light
of our past transactions. Likewise, under the statute of our State,
a ton is fixed at 2,000 pounds, but I have been buying my coal for
many years on the basis of the long ton, 2,240 poundz. If, therefore,
the man who has been furnishing my coal seeks to charge me on the
basis of 2,000 pounds to the ton, obviously I point to preceding nego-
tiations for the purpose of indicating that a ton in this particu%ar
case shall be 2,240 pounds, not 2,000 pounds.

Mr. PoweLL. And there has been an even more striking case in
that of the hundredweight, which is 112 pounds.

Senator Warsa. Quite so. So that it often becomes necessary to
resort to the attendant circumstances and prior negotiations with
the parties, and the negotiations leading up to the particular con-
tract for the purpose of interpreting what the parties meant, even
though the language itself may, on its face, have no obscurity or
ambiguity whatever. But I believe, if your Honors please, that in
the presentation of this matter, upon the authorities of the decisions
of the Supreme Court of the United States, as well as upon English
authorities, the negotiations that led up to the treaty are, I think,
clearly appropriate for the consideration of the Commission. I do not
understand that there is any serious dispute as to that position.

As I attach special importance to these negotiations in arriving at
a just conclusion as to what the treaty ineans, at the risk of bein
somewhat tedious to the older members of the Commission, I shal
take the liberty to refer at some considerable length to them.

I have referred to the origin of the controversy which is before us,
but the origin really antedated the period of which I spoke. With
very commendable foresight, the Canadian authorities, even before
any controversy took practical form, suggested to the authorities at
Washington the advisability of some arrangement concerning these
waters which passed from one country to the other, in anticipation
of difficulties that might arise. In the month of January, 1896, an
order was passed by the governor in council and transmitted through
the proper diplomatic c%xannels to the authorities at Washington.
This order, which I quote from page 56 of the proceedings of May
24-28, 1915, recited:

On a report dated 13th December, 1895; from the minister of the interior statin,
that a2 resolution was passed by the International Irrigation Congress of the Unite
States at its meeting at Albuquerque, N. Mex., in September, 1895, asking ‘‘for the
appointment of an international commission to act in conjunction with the authori-
ties of Mexico and Canada in adjudicating the conflicting rights which have arisen,
ormay hereafter arise, on streams of an international character.”

Streams of an international character.

The minister observes that a glance at the map attached hereto of the Province of
Manitoba and of the Northwest Territories will show that in the western portion of the
American Continent, situated adjacent to the 49th parallel, within which water can be
applied to land by irrigation processes, quite a number of important streams arise
within the boundaries of Canada and flow south to the United States, and vice versa,
and he (the minister) is satisfied that it would be in the highest and best interests of
both countries that in respect of such streams the suggestion of the irrigation conven-
tion should be acted upon.

The minister therefore recommends that Her Majesty’s ambassador at Washington
be requested to inform the Government of the United States that the Government
will be glad to cooperate, by the appointment of an international commission or other-
wise, as may be agreed upon, with the authorities of Mexico and the United States,
with the object of regulating the use, for purposes of irrigation, of the waters of streams

which have their origin in one of the countries named and subsequently flow through
the territory of another.
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The minister further recommends that Her Majesty’s ambassador at Washington be
toquested to ascertain at as early date as possible the views of the Government of the
United States in regard to this matter, so that if requisite an appropriation and any
necessary legislation to give effect to the arrangement arrived at may be obtained at
the forthcoming session of the Parliament of Canada.

Mr. PoweLL. What is the date of that?

Senator WarsH. January 8, 1896. The order concludes:

The committee advise that your excellency be moved to forward a certified copy of
this minute to Her Majesty’s amhassador at Washington.

Now, as this is the initial communication with respect to the
matter, and you will observe that it is not attempting to concern
itself with any water or with any streams whatever except those
that are international in character, that rise in one country and
flow across the boundary line into the other, I shall undertake to
show you by following this correspondence from its beginning to its
termination, that no other idea ever entered the mind of anyone who
was ever concerned in this transaction.

The reply of Sir -Julian Pauncefote to the Governor General is
found on page 57; I read from it only the following:

Mr. Olney does not lack interest in this important subject, yet from the information
in the department’s possession he can only regret his inability, agreeably to your
courteous request, to give expression to the views of his Government upon the subject
at the present time.

Mr. PowgLr. What is the date of that, please?

Senator WaLsa. March 27, 1896; it is the reply to the communi-
cation of January 8. The matter then apparently remained in
abeyance until the 27th of October, 1902, when another order in
council was transmitted, a copy of which appears at page 58. This
order is rather lengthy. It recites the physical conditions, and that
kind of thing, with which I need not trouble the Commission at this
time, and it concludes as follows: ‘

The committee advise that the Governor General be moved to forward a copy of
this minute to His Majesty’s ambassador at Washingtom with a request that he will
communicate to the Government of the United States the objections of Canada to the
proposed irrigation works, and will express the hope that the flow of the St. Mary
River into Canada shall not be interfered with.

The substance of this I indicated to you before; it was in the
nature of a protest against the diversion by the United States of the
waters of the St. Mary River. You will observe that this was in
1902, the year when our reclamation act was passed. But even
prior to the passage of our reclamation act—1I think as early as 1900—
the Geological Survey had made some surveys and entered upon
some work looking to the development of this irrigation project.

Mr. PowerL. That order, you say, deals exclusively with inter-
national streams ¢

Senator WaLsH. There is no part of this order in council, which T
have noted, Mr. Commissioner, which speaks of international streams.
This, I may say, is confined practically to a protest against the diver-
sion of the waters of the St. Mary River at the complaint of the
~ settlers under the project of the Canadian Northwest Co., which was

prosécuting the work on the other side of the boundary line.

Mr, PowgLL. Then, instead of dealing with international streams
exclusively, it deals exclusively with particular international streams ¢

Senator WarsaH. Practically so; yes, sir.
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Mr. CLark. The St. Mary River?

Senator WarLsH. The St. Mary River. The reply of the American
Government to this communication was made through one of the
representatives of the Canadian Government at Washington, Mr.
Herbert. His reply is to be found on page 60. He says:

I have received your note No. 45 of the 29th ultimo relative to the proposed diver-
sion of the waters of the St. Mary River in the State of Montana, eastward into the
Milk River, in which you quote the opinion of the Director of the United States
Geological Survey to the effect that the contemplated works are of such a nature as
to be inoffensive to any Canadian interests.

I feel some regret at the contents of this communication, especially in view of the
consideration which was shown in the analogous case of the complaint of certain
inhabitants of Idaho * * *,

That is of comparatively little significance. But the subject
receives further consideration in a letter from Mr. Hay, Secretary of
State, dated February 19, which is found on pages 60 and 61. In
so far as it refers simply to the particular contention, it is of very
little significance here. The condition is again considered in a
memorandum which was apparently attached to a letter from Mr,
Hay of February 19, 1903, Eut the general subject was considered
in a dispatch from Mr. Hay to the British Minister, under date of
December 30, 1904, which will be found at page 62. To this I
desire to invite your special attention, because it again canvasses
the rights and wrongs, merits and demerits of the contentions with
reference to the St. Mary River. But the thing that I wish to call
particular attention to is that in this letter Mr. Hga apparently meets
the desires twice expressed by the Canadian Government, for a
meeting for the purpose of adjusting the entire controversy. The
letter concludes:

Owing to the critical situation of the settlers in the Milk River Vallay, in the State
of Montana, and the desire of the Canadian Northwest Irrigation Co. to utilize its
canal as soon as possible, an early understanding is important. I have therefore
the honor to suggest a conference between the representatives of the Government of
the United States and representatives of the Canadian Government for the purpose of
reaching an agreement in respect to the disposition of the waters of the Milk and
St. Mary Rivers.

I invite your attention to the next document introduced which is
a report of the privy council, of June 7, 1905, found on page 63, and
which seeins to me to be of some particular importance. I read:

The committee of the privy council have had under consideration a dispatch dated
January 2, 1905, from His Majesty’s ambassador at Washington, transmitting a copy of
a letter from the Secretary of State of the United States relative to a diversion of water
from Milk River.

The committee have also had under consideration a dispatch, dated January 9,
1905, from His Majesty’s ambassador at Washington, transmitting a copy of a letter
from Mr. Charles D). Walcott, Director of the United States Reclamation Service,
expressing the desire to obtain data respecting the flow of the Milk River and of the
8t. Mary River and the allotment of such waters by the Dominion authorities.

The minister of the interior, to whom the said dispatches were referred, observes
with respect to the conditions existing in the State of Montana and the districts of
Alberta and Assiniboia along the Milk River, to which the honorable the Secretary
of State refers, it is manifestly in the interests of both countries that the waters of the
8t. Mary and Milk Rivers should be conserved for the beneficial use of the owners
of agricultural and ranch lands through which these rivers flow, and that the Canadian
Government should join in an arrangement with the United States Government for
the purpose of attaining this end, due regard being had to the protection of vested
rights in conformity with the laws concerning the right to use of water as recognized
in both countries.

. 57208—21- 2
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That brought from Secretary Root a communication which be-
comes of more than usual importance. It is dated June 15, 1907,
and is to be found on page 65 of the record. I read: ‘

ExceLLeNcy: With a view to bringing to a determination the questions so long dis-
cussed relating to the use of the waters of the St. Mary River and the Milk River,
which flow across the forty-ninth parallel boundary between the United States and
Canada, I beg to offer the following suggestions for a basis of a treaty for the equitable
apportionment of those waters.

_ Those are the waters with which Mr. Root proposed to deal: That
is to say, the waters of the St. Mary and Milk Rivers which flow
across the forty-ninth parallel boundary between the United States
and Canada. With those that were entirely in the one countxg or
entirely in the other he obviously had no purpose whatever to deal
He says: .

I beg to offer the following suggestions for a basis of a treaty for the equitable appor-
tionment of those waters: :

Itis hereby agreed hetween the Governments of the United States and Great Britain
that the waters of the Milk River and the St. Mary River and their tributaries shall
be apportioned in perpetuity for use in the two countries according to the following
stipulations and agreements:

1. That for the purposes of this agreement the 8t. Mary River and the Milk River and
their tributaries, which are now separate and indegendent river systems, shall be
treated as though they were the waterways of a single drainage system.

Now, there you find the genesis of the provision in the treaty to the
effect that they are to be considered as one system:
2. That the water available for irrigation from these two river systems throughout

the period from March 1 to SBeptember 30 of each year, both dates included, shall be
apportioned to each of the two countries from day to day in equal amounts.

From day to day the water available in the streams—that is, those
which cross the forty-ninth parallel—are to be divided equally during
the irrigation period from March 1 to September 30.

3. That the failure of either country to fully utilize the right hereby agreed upon to
one-half of the available water during the period specified in paragraph 2 shall not be
regarded as adding to or diminishing the rights of the other country.

4. That during the period of each year not specified in paragraph 2 the United
States may divert or hold back in storage reservoirs any portion of the natural flow of
St. Mary River, and Canada may divert any portion of the natural flow of Milk River,
in neither case to interfere with existing rights. ) ..

5. That the apportionment of water hereby agreed upon during the period specified
in paragraph 2 shall be determined in the following manner: The share to which the
United States is entitled shall be the total of the following items:

1 do not follow that part of the letter, because it was objected to
by the Canadians. But the point I want to invite your attention to
is that Mr. Root’s proposal was to divide the waters equally. He
proposed a plan by which the water should be divided equally, and
the Canadian minister acceded to that principle, but insisted that the
way Mr. Root proposed to divide the water equally would not bring
about that result.

I want to call your attention, however, to paragraph 11 of this
letter, because it ﬁecame somewhat important afterwards:

11. The term ‘‘natural flow,”’ as used herein, is to be understood as the flow of the
river system in question which would pass the point or points specified if no artificial
‘structure had been placed in the stream channel and if no water had been diverted

" from or turned into it. Such natural flow shall be determined by the commission
provided for in paragraph 14.
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- Now, this is answered by an order in council which is found at
page 67, under date of March 2, 1908; I have indicated the character
of that. There is a paragraph on page 68 to which I desire to call
attention:

That the Dominion of Canada is desirous of reaching a settlement of the matter
and-would suggest that, in order to arrive at a fair and reasonable arrangement, the
Government of the United States should appoint a representative to confer with a
repregentative to be appointed by the Government of the Dominion to consider a
basis of agreement which may be submitted to the respective Governments,

It is quite apparent that the attempt to transact this business at
long range, by communications through the privy council which went
to the ambassador to Washington, and so on, was not satisfactory,
and it was proposed that each Government appoint a representative,
and that these representatives should confer and endeavor to arrive
at a solution of the difficult problems in that way. That brought out
a letter from the Secretary of State, to Mr. Bryce, ambassador, which
will be found at page 77 of the record, as follows:

ApRrL 9, 1908,

ExceLruncy: Referring to your note of the 10th ultimo, by which you convey to
this department the suggestion of the Canadian Government that the United States
Government appoint a representative to confer with a representative to be nominated
by the Canadian Government with the object of considering the basis of an agreement
to be submitted to their respective Governments with respect to the question of the
diversion of the waters of the Milk and St. Mary Rivers, {)have the honor to inform
you that Mr. ¥. H. Newell, the Director of the Reclamation Service, has been desig-
nated to meet the representative.

Mr. Bryce, apparently acting under authority of the Canadian
Government, and upon their su§gestion, in a letter acknowledging
receipt of this under date of April 10, found on the same page, says:

I have just received a communication from the administrator of the Dominion of
Canada stating that Mr. W. F, King, chief astronomer of the Dominion, has been
appointed the representative of the Canadian Government for the same purpose.

Mr. King is expected to arrive in Washington within a week.

Thereafter we follow the negotiations between Mr. Newell, on the
one part, and Mr. King, upon the other. At that time Sir George
Gibbons was associated in some way or another with the negotia-
tions—in just exactlgr what capacity 1 am not fully advised; I suppose
as legal advisor and counselor to Mr. King. Anyway, there is in-
troduced into the record, found at page 81, under date of April 27,
1908, a proposition made by Sir George-Gibbons as a basis of the
treaty. I read from the bottom of the page referred to, as follows:

It is recognized that the prI%posal o

Mr. PoweLL. That is Mr. King’s Iproposmon, is it not?.

Senator Warsa. Yes; so it is. 1 quote from the preceding para-
graph: |

¢ In view of the large area of arid lands situated in the basins of St. Mary and Milk
Rivers, on both sides of the international boundary line, for the development of which
irrigation is a vital necessity, it is thought that an agreement whereby all available
water shall be utilized for the conversion of the present desert wastes to the fertility
of irrigated fields to the advantage of both countries, is in the very highest degree
desirable. Such agreement, it is believed, to secure acceptance by the people of both
countries, and to igulﬁll its purpose of obviating all possible future contentions, can
best be based upon the principle of equal sharing of benefits to be derived from these
international rivers, due regard being had to existing rights. .
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So you will observe that the principle proposed by Mr. Root is
entirely accepted by Mr. King, that there should be an equal sharing
of the {)eneﬁts of these waters.

Sir Wirriam Hearst. Was not one a proposal that there should
‘be an equal sharing-of the waters and the other a proposal that there
should be an equal share of the benefits derived therefrom? Was
there not a distinction as to that?

Senator Warsu. It may be that they had these things in their
minds, but it occurs to me that the general principle was

Sir WiLrtam Hearst. I think you will see that developed in a later
communication from Dr. King.

Senator WaLsa. I quote further from Mr. King’s letter of April
27, 1908:

It is recognized that the proposal of the Secretary of State has been framed with the
intention that these principles, which seem equitable, shall govern in the settlement
of the question. This is manifested in the following provisions with others of similar
tenor:

1. During the summer months the waters of the rivers are to be apportioned to each
of the two countries, from dayv to day, in equal amounts.

2. During the winter months the United States may store the waters of St. Mary
River and Canada may store those of Milk River.

3. That vested interests in both countries shall be protected.

Then, he objects to that and urges that there is more water in the
St. Mary, for storage in the winter time, than there is in the Milk
River, and that the details proposed by Mr. Root would not work
out the result which would be in conformity with the principle which
he announces. In other words, he did not object to the general
principle; he objected to the plan under which that result was to be
achieved. ’ '

Then, under date of May 1, 1908, Mr. King, who apparently was in
Washington at that time, addressed a communication to Mr. Newell,
which is to be found at page 83. In his letter he sets out his conten-
tions with respect to these matters, and submits a proposition which
will be found in the letter at page 84. He says:

1 accordingly submit for your consideration the following pro;)osal:

That the United States shall be entitled to all the water of St. Mary River at the
dam site of St. Mary Reservoir, for storage during the months of January, February,
March, November, and December in each year.

That Canada shall be entitled to divert from the natural flow of St. Mary River
1,400 cubic feet per second during the remaining months.

That the excess flow of St. Mary River during the last-mentioned period above
1,400 second-feet shall be divided equally between the two countries.

That the United States shall be entitled to all the water of Milk River during the
months of January, February, March, August, September, October, November, and
Pecember of each year.

That Canada shall be entitled to divert from the natural flow of Milk River to the
resent capacity of the Canadian Milk River Canal, agreed upon as being 330 second-
eet, during the months of April, May, June, and July in each year, subject to the rights

of appropriation from the Milk River within the territory of the United States, as exist-
ig% at the date of the Canadian Company’s appropriation on Miik River (Oct. 28,
1902), and now being judicially determined by the courts of Montana.

_ That the natural flow in the Milk River during the months of Aﬁril, May, June, and
July in each {ear in excess of the amount of 330 second-feet, together with the amount
required as above by the appropriations in the lower valley, shall be divided equally
bétween thie two countries,

I invite your attention particularly to this proposition made by
Mr. King, because there was an effort made to divide the water by
giving one or the other party the larger share of the water during
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certain months; the Americans to have the larger share of the Milk
River during the irrigation season, and the Canadians to have the
larger share of the St. Mary River during the irrigation season; the
Americans to have the larger share of the St. Mary during the winter,
or during the storage months, and the Canadians to have the larger
share of the Milk River during the winter season, the storage months.
But, as you will find later, that proposal was abandoned as imprac-
ticable; they were not able to agree upon how the division was to be
made. Of course, each country wanted the water in the irrigation
season rather than in the storage season. o

Then passed several communications of no particular importance,
as I view the matter, when Mr. Newell submitted a rather complete
statement of the entire controversy, and some observations in rela-
tion to the thing. That is found on page 85. I shall not take time
to read it all; much of it is historical in character. I ask you, how-
ever, to follow me in what he says at page 88, “Plan of 1905.”

The principal feature of the plan of November 11, 1905 (sent to Hon. James Bryce
June 15, 1907), is the equal division of available waters. To define or regulate this
distribution certain rules are suggested; these are subsidiary to the general scheme
of equal share. This is regarded as extremely liberal, as nearly all the waters arise
in the United States. In return for protection of an equal share of the flow the United
States suggests that Canada give safe conduct down Milk River for the share of stored
water falling to the United States. Unfortunately, the privy council minute of
March 2, 1908, seems to indicate that Canada is not satisfied with this proposition
based on equality. It is not believed that any proposal to give Canada more than
half the water can be entertained, although the details as to how this half may be
ascertained are open to discussion.

You will observe what was in Mr. Newell’s mind, that the idea of
awarding Canada, under the terms of the treaty, anything more than
one-half of the water available was not to be entertained at all. He
gOGS on:

The fact that the Dominion Government took upon itself the determination as to
how the waters should be used without consulting the United States and that it has
attempted to dispose of the waters of Milk River which rise in the United States and
pass through a part of Canada, has aroused a very deep feeling. This is steadily
aggravated by the fact that Canada is permitting the tributaries of Milk River to be
diverted, namely, West Fork or Willow (reek, North Fork or Battle Creek, French-
man Creek or White Water, and Rock Creek, in spite of the fact that these waters
have been appropriated under the laws of Montana and already put to beneficial use.

Mr. Crark. These streams all cross the boundary line ?
Senator WarsH. These are all streams that cross the boundary
line.
_Mr. TurNer. You will notice that in the very first paragraph of
his memorandum, Mr. Newell speaks of these as international waters.
Senator WarsH. He says:
The following notes have been prepared to review the fundamentals and to facili-
tate discussion leading to a clearer understanding of the problems presented by the

international features of the St. Mary and Milk Rivers in northern Montana and
southern Alberta.

Well, Mr. Newell concludes his communication by submitting a
counter proposal, which is found at the bottom of page 90.

Sir WiLrtam HeArst. Are there any other tributaries than those
mentioned, and which you have just read to us, that the United
States claim should be taken into consideration ? :

Senator Warsu. The United States claims that every tributary,
large and small, sir, which crosses——
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Sir Wirrzam Hearst. But are there any others of importance
than those which have been mentioned ?

Senator Warsa. I do not believe there are any of very great
importance. ‘ :

ir WitLiam Hrarst. From a reading of the record, I could not
find-any others. . That is what I wanted to be clear about.

Senator Warsu. Here is the North Fork [indicating on mas){. Here
is Frenchman River and here is Cottonwood Creek; I think that is
not mentioned. This is Battle Creek; that crosses the line. Lodge
Creek is not mentioned there; it crosses the line; Lodge Creek is not
of very considerable importance.

Sir WiLLiam HEARST. Are these all in Saskatchewan, or are they
in Alberta?

- Senator WaLsH. Lodge Creek is in Alberta and Frenchman Creek
and Cottonwood Creek and the North Fork are in Saskatchewan.

Mr. Newell makes this counter proposal.

Referring back to proposal No. 2, it is assumed that the Canadian St. Mary Canal
has now a capacity of, say, 385 second-feet of water, which it is putting to beneficial
use. Calling this 409 second-feet, this may be considered a prior appropriation which
is now earned. Let this amount be conceded, and after this is assured let the United
States have an equal amount. Then Canada take, say, 200 or 400 second-feet more,
and the United States an equal amount, and so on until the available flow is absorbed,
by recognizing the rights first of Canada and then of the United States to an equal
amount. This will protect the prior ri%ht_s in Canada in the same way that proposal
5 protects thoge on Milk River in the United States.

Thus we see the start of the proposal to give to Canada priority in
the St. Mary’s water and to the United States a priority in the water
of the Milk River.

Mr. PoweLL. That idea is broached before, but in different lan-
guage. That is meant by “ vested rights.”

Senator WavLsu. “Do not disturb vested rights.”” That was found
also in Mr. Root’s communication. ,

Now, I call your attention to the reply of Mr. King to that, which
will be found on page 91, especially to the concluding portion of it.
He says:

The principle of equal sharing of benefits, with compensation by quantity of water,
suggested by the undersigned, doubtless has a disadvantage in depending for its
application upon agreement as to details.

That refers to the attempt to divide the waters bﬁ months, so as
to have the benefits shared equally in that way. Then he goes on:

A principle which is free from this objection and is, moreover, a simple one, is that
of equal division of water on the boundary streams (each country providing for its
existing interests out of its share of the water)-

That is, dividing the thing equally, and you will observe that he
says, ‘“ the boundary streams.”

ow, ‘““boundary streams’’ really means, I suppose, those streams
which form the boundary, like the Niagara River, but undoubtedly
the words ‘“boundary streams’ as used here must mean the streams
which cross the boundary line. These were the streams that Mr.
King had in mind. He had not in mind any other streams; he had
not in mind any other tributaries at all, because his language is per-
fectly plain with respect to that. I quote further from page 92:

Mr. Newell appears to prefer this principle, though he does not state definitely that
he accepts it as a guiding one, and some of his suggested amendments to the proposal
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of May 1 do not accurately accord with it. A similar objection lies against the draft
treaty, which purported to be based upon the principle of equal division, but in its
details did not well provide for carrying it out in practice.

Mr. MacInngs. Surely that paragraph which you have just read,
“A principle which is free from this objection,” is shown to be an
alternative to the proposition contained in the paragraph—which I
gx&n 119‘0 sure that you read—beginning with the words, “The central
idea.

Senator WarLsu. Well, that is the statement which he makes, “a
principle which is free from this objection.” There is no trouble
about details now at all; just a flat proposition to divide the water
equally—whatever water there is available in the boundary streams.

Sir WiLiiam Hrarsr. Is that not an entirely new principle which
he is suggesting? He refers to “a principle which is free from this
objection”—free from the objections to the proposals which they
had been discussing before.

Senator WarLsu. It had been proposed to utilize the waters by
dividing them so that the storage season should have one division,
and the irrigation season another—and a division should be made
upon a different line. Now, there is introduced into the record
another important document, being a draft by Mr. Campbell.

Mr. CLARK. Who is Mr. Campbell ?

Senator WarsH. That has never been made entirely clear.

Mr. MacraTH. He was an official of the Canadian Irrigation
Department.

enator Warsu. He submitted the following draft, which is found
on page 93:

In all such streams which cross the international boundary, the waters of which are
used for irrigation, each country shall be entitled to the use of half the total natural
flow ag ascertained by measurement at the point or points where such streams cross
the international boundary.

Now, you can not get away from that position. Mr. Campbell
was not introducing any new idea about this matter. As I shall
show you later on, he was just endeavoring to concentrate and to
codify the ideas that had been advanced from time to time in rela-
tion to this matter and to put them in the form of a draft. He really
was not advancing any new ideas of his own; he was not proposing
something that nobody had ever thought of before, and that had not
been a matter of discussion. He was simply following along the
accepted lines, and, wherever diversities of mind had existed, to settle
- these by a draft made in this way. He was merely expressing what
all had expressed before, without the particularity which he deemed
it advisable to observe, in order that controversy might be obviated.

Sir WirLiam HeEarsT. You contend, then, that the previous nego-
tiations referred not to the St. Mary and Milk Rivers but to all
streams?

Senator Warsa. Of course, the St. Mary and Milk Rivers were the
only ones that were in mind.

ir WirLiam HearsT. But is there not a clear change of proposi-
tion here to deal with all streams that cross the international boundary
angwhere?

enator WaLsH. Although Mr. Campbell does use general language,
I should saﬁr that the Milk River and the St. Mary River were the
subject of the negotiations. Although the language might have been
general, it was restricted by that.
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Sir WiLriam Hrarst. Your contention is that “all streams’
simply means the St. Mary River and the Milk River?

Senator WaLss. Yes, sir; and their tributaries.

Mr. Powrrr. “Tributaries” is there by necessary implication.
_ Senator WavLsH. Certainly. A tributary is a stream, and the
stream crosses the international boundary lne.

Mr. PowgLr. Then it is put beyond all question by the definition
of natural flow which follows the paragraph that you have read:

‘“Natural flow” means the flow of each river system from all its sources which would
pass the point or points indicated herein.

Senator Warsu. I wanted to call attention to that, because it is
not original with Mr. Campbell; he takes it from the draft originally
made by Mr. Root. He adopts the very language of Mr. Root’s
draft, in which “natural flow” is defined. Let us go back to that.
I read {rom Mr. Root’s draft on page 65:

The term “‘natural flow” as used herein is to be understood as the flow of the river
system in question which would pass the point or points specified if no artificial
structure had been placed in the stream channel and if no water had been diverted
from or turned into it. Such natural flow shall be determined by the commission
provided for in paragraph 14.

The point I am making is that Mr. Campbell has just picked up
the various suggestions in the drafts that have gone before and has
endeavored to put them in a form which would be acceptable.

I read further from Mr. Campbell’s draft: ‘

“Natural flow” means the flow of each river system from all its sources which would

ass the point or points indicated herein if no artificial obstruction had been placed
in the stream or any of its tributaries or sources and if no water had been diverted
from or added to the flow before reaching the point or points indicated.

(2) The determination of the natural flow, the measurement of the water to be
shared, the method of delivery or distribution of the share of each country, the regu-
lation of the carriage of stored water, and any and all other matters relating to the
distribution of water used for irrigation from streams which cross the international
boundary shall, in so far as they affect the interests of both countries, be subject to
the control and regulation of the commission.

Now, I do not find in the record, if your honors please, any protest
on the part of the Canadian authorities that they would not stand
for that at all or that that was not in entire conformity with their
ideas of what should be done. It is accepted as in entire conformity
with the negotiations as they have so far progressed.

Mr. MacInNes. That is, Mr. Campbell’s letter?

Senator WaLsH. Yes. '

Mr. MacInnes. There is nothing whatever said in that letter as to
prior appropriations.

Senator WarLsn. I did not mean to say that Mr. Campbell’s draft
included every suggestion that had ever been made. 1 am contend-
ing that he picked up propositions which had theretofore been ad-
vanced and put together those which he thought ought to go together
to make up an agreement. He was not advancing any new and inde-
pendent and theretofore unthought of ideas; he was simply following
out the lines which had been theretofore pursued.

Then, paragraph 5 of Mr. Campbell’s draft says:

5. The failure of either country to fully exercise the right agreed upon to have the
total natural flow of streams which cross the international boundary or the use by

either country of more than its share shall not add to or diminish the right of-either
country.
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That is also from Mr. Root’s draft. On the very same day Mr.
Newell made a draft, which is found on the same page:

DeceMBER 29, 1908.

That the waters of each stream flowing across the international boundary shall be
divided equally in quantity as nearly as practicable between the two countries;
that is to say, the waters of St. Mary River and its tributaries crossing the international
boundary shall bé measured as they cross the boundary and an equal amount appor-
tioned to each country, due allowance being made for the quantity stored above the
point of measurement in reservoir or reservoirs constructed by the United States;
also the waters of the north and south branches of Milk River shall be measured
where they cross from the United States into Canada, and the main Milk River and
its tributaries measured where they cross from Canada into the United States, allow-
ance being made for any water diverted or stored in either country before reaching
the points of measurement.

Mr. PowerL. That draft of Campbell’s has always been a great
source of trouble to me. It is headed “Draft by R. H. Campbell,”
but I have been in doubt whether it is not simply taken by Campbell
from Root’s views. You see, if that were a proposition coming from
the Canadian side, it almost looks as if the United States should have
jumped at it, because it does just exactly what they had been advo-
cating.

Sir WirLiam Hearst. Oh, no; it provides for no prior appropri-
ations, the very thing the United States were insisting on.

Mr. CLark. Were we not informed that certified copies of the
‘Canadian records had been furnished to the Commission ?

Mr. PowEeLL. Yes.

Mr. CLark. Would that not appear in those?

Mr. PoweLL. I am speaking 0¥lt from the Canadian aspect.

Mr. Crark. I was wondering whether we could not identify that in
some way from the records.

Mr. PowrLL. Canada is the gainer by-the prior appropriations,
because she would have three-quarters of the waters of these streams
as a prior appropriation. I have always been of the opinion that
this proposal is simply a kind of embodiment or compend of Mr. Root’s
views, with some modifications. Otherwise, if 1 had been in Mr.
Newell’s position, I would have jumped at that proposition.

Mr. MaclnNes. Mr. Campbelf’s memorandum of December 29 is
an elaboration, as it would seem clear from the records, of the alterna-
tive principles suggested in the latter communication of Mr. King
on the preceding page, beginning:

A principle which is free from this objection, and is, moreover, a simple one, is that
of equal division of water on the boundary streams—
as distinct from the propositions which he had been discussing with
Mr. Newell, whieh are set out in the previous paragraph on the same
page: ‘ '

The central idea of the proposal of May 1, 1908, was a balancing of benefits and
concessions while making provision for existing appropriations.

It goes on to say:

To this was added the right to the United States to use the channel of Milk River
through Canada for the passage of their share of the water of St. Mary River.

Now, not having been able to agree on that, Dr. King suggested a
clear-cut proposal with nothing else attached to it as to prior appro-
priations, and as to any right to use the channel, etc., and that is
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embodied at greater length in Mr. Campbell’s document, which does:
not, I submit, correspond with Mr. Root’s document at all, but with
the simple proposal suggested by Dr. King at the end of his letter.
__Senator ;ﬁArLﬂgl,Ihat,, art of it seems to be not at all improbable,
Mr. King having stated the general principle which in his judgment.
ought to control. Mr. Campbell, ﬁis solicitor, makes this draft,
picking up the ideas which theretofore had not met ¥ith any par-
ticular opposition, and making the distribution equal as provided in
the first section. But my point is that Mr. King did not protest
against the act of his solicitor in confining the waters exclusively to
those which crossed the international boundary line.

Sir WirLiam Hearst. No; because Dr. King had suggested it.

Senator WarLsa. Had suggested it himself. You will observe that.
he says: -

A principle which is free from this objection and is, moreover, a simple one is that
of equal division of water on the boundary streams.

Mr. Crark. “Each country providing for its existing interests out
of its share of the water.”

Senator Warsa. Each taking half. ,

Sir WiLrLiam HEaRrsT. That was in the proposal by Dr. King?

Mr. Crark. Yes.

Senator WaLsH. Now, to return to Mr. Newell’s draft; I have read
the first paragraph.

Mr. PowgLL. }%’Vas that really a proposition from King or was it
merely an observation? I have regarded that remark as an observa-
tion made by King that if you are going into this complicated arrange--
ment, you would bring about the result in a much simpler way by
merely dividing the water. Because, if you take that as a proposi-
tion from King, it gives away the Canadian contention there.

Mr. MacInxgs. Oh, no.

Mr. Davis. In the next paragraph Mr. King says that Mr. Newell
appears to prefer this principle.

r. PoweLL. What is. bothering me is this, that the proposition
here made is more advantageous to Canada than what has worked
out eventually. Whoever accepted that on behalf of the United
States would be hoisting himself with his own petard.

Sir WiLLiam HeaRsT. But last year Canada did not get a drop of
water out of the Milk River. It would have under this proposal.

Mr. PoweLL. But there was no water there to get.

Senator WarLsa. Mr. Newell evidently did prefer the principle,
because he adopted exactly the same thing in his draft of December 29.

Sir WiLLiam Hearst. Oh, no; he comes back to prior appropria-
tions, which Dr. King and Mr. Campbell wanted to fet away from.

Senator WarLsu. 1 am speaking of the draft of December 29, in
which he says:

That the waters of each stream flowing across the international boundary shall be
divided equally in quantity as nearly as practicable between the two countries; that
is to say, the waters of St. Mary River and its tributaries crossing the international
boundary shall be measured as they cross the boundary and an equal amount appor-
tioned to each country, due allowance being made for the quantity stored above the
point of measurement in reservoir or reservoirs constructed by the United States;
also the waters of the north and south branches of Milk River shall be measured where
they cross from the United States into Canada, and the main Milk River and its
tributaries measured where they cross from Canada into the United States, allowances

being made for any water diverted or stored in either country before reaching the points
of measurement.
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However, that is a matter of no particular significance, because
there is no controversy concerning priority at all; the controversy is
touching the waters which they hac} in mind.

Sir Wirriam Hearsr. But there is a clear change in Mr. Newell’s
suggestion from the two to which we have just been addressing
ourselves.

Senator Warsa. In what respect ?

Sir WirLiam HEArsT. In that he specifically requires prior appro-
priations, whereas the one you have just been reading, from Mr.
Campbell, says that cach country is to take care of its priorities out
of its own share. ,

Senator WaLsH. You mean, ‘“‘allowance being made for any water
diverted or stored in either country before reaching the points of
measurement’’ ¢

Sir Wirrtam Hrearst. At page 94, Mr. Newell says:

A priority to the right to the use of a portion of the water of St. Mary River shall
be recognized.

Senator Warsu. I was about to read that.

Sir WiLLiam HEARsT. He is coming back to an insistence upon
priorities.

Senator WarsH. I read:

A priority to the right to the use of a portion of the water of St. Mary River shall be
recognized as appertaining to Canada to the amount of 400 second-feet, the amount
now put to beneficial use: and thus, in the event of the natural flow of St. Mary River
at the international boundary being less than double this amount—namely, 800 second-
feet—then the United States shall waive for the time being its claim to the full equality
of the natural flow during the irrigation reason. as above defined, and rhall permit a
full flow of 400 second-feet to pass the boundary, providing this is furniched by the
stream in ite natural condition; that is to say, water ehall not be allowed to increase
in anv reservoir or reservoirs constructed by the United States, but the entire natural
flow shall be allowed to pass without storage or diversion through the reservoirs without
accumulation therein until the stream yields at the international boundary 400 second-
feet, but the United States does not assume any obligation to maintain this priority
of 400 second-feet by means of water previously stored.

On the Milk River also, there shall be recognized as existing a priority in the United
States to an extent of 359 second-feet of the natural flow of Milk River, and this
amount of the natural flow shall be allowed to pass from Canada into the United
States without diminution of the natural flow of the stream during the irrigating
season, when the river and its tributaries yields this quantity or a less amount.
Canada assumes no obligation to supply any natural deficiency in Milk River to
maintain 359 second-feet, but shall divert no water when the flow falls below this
amount,

After the priorities above described have been provided for, each country chall be
germitted to divert water in excess of the priorities to an amount not exceeding one-

alf of the natural flow of the streams.

Then follows the draft from Mr. Gibbons, with his letter of Decem-
ber 31, at the bottom of page 94:

It is agreed that for the use of irrigation the St. Mary and Milk Rivers (in the
State of Montana and the Province of Alberta) and their tributaries are to be treated
as one stream, and the total amount that can be diverted from the two for such pur-
poses is to be distributed so that each country shall have the right to one half of the
whole, but in the distribution more may be taken from one stream and less from the
other by each country, so as to afford a more beneficial use to each.

Now, we find the language “in the State of Montana and the
Province of Alberta.” Two things are to be noted: First, that
Saskatchewan is not included in that descriptive or qualifying lan-
guage, and, second, that that qualifying language comes after the
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word “rivers,” not after the word “tributaries,” as it is in the com-
pleted draft. ) .

Mr. Crark. Might not another object of that be to identify the
St. Mary River in this particular locality, as distinguished from
St. Mary River in other localities ? )

Senator Watsn. There would seem to be no oceasion for that at all,
because if that were the case, it would read, “St. Mary River in the
State of Montana.” There may be some other St. Mary River, but
there is no other Milk River. Clearly, it is not language of identifica~
tion; it is language of qualification. This draft says:

It is agreed that for the use of irrigation the St, Mary and Milk Rivers (in the
State of Montana and the Province of Alberta) and their tributaries are to be treated
as one stream, and the total amount that can be diverted from the two for such pur-
pose i3 to be di«tributed so that each cousitry shall have the right to one-half of the
whole. but in the distribution more may be taken from one stream and less from the
other by each country, so as to afford a more beneficial use to each.

Mr. Gibbons does not describe these waters in his draft as streams
that cross the boundary. IHe does not go into details with respect
to their being measured where the streams cross the boundary. Who
is there that can doubt for a single moment that the streams that
Gibbons was talking about and the division which he contemplated
making were the same streams, the same divisions, that were con-
templated, both in the draft of Mr. Campbell and the draft of Mr.
Newell ¢ )

Sir Wirriam Hearst. Senator Walsh, if that draft had become
the treaty, you would still be making the argument that you are
making to-day? )

Senator Warsn. Exactly. Even if the qualifying language “in
the State of Montana and the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatche-
wan’’ were not in here at all, then the construction of the treaty
would be restricted and confined by the very matter that was under
consideration and by the course of the negotiations between the
parties.

Finally, we come to the draft by Mr. Gibbons, at the bottom of
page 96, submitted sometime between January 1 and January 9, 1909:

Arrticte VI, It is agreed that for the use of irrigation the St. Mary and Milk
Rivers (in the State of Montana and the Province of Alberta) and their tributaries are
to be treated as one stream, and the total amount that can be diverted from the two
for such purpose is to be distributed so that each country shall have the right to one-
half of the whole, but in the distribution more may be taken from one stream and less
from the other by each country so as to afford a more beneficial use to each.

It is agreed that there exists on the part of (*anada the right to a prior appropriation
of 360 second-feet of the flow of St. Mary River during the irrigation season between
the 1st of April and the 31st of October, inclusive, annually, and that there erists a
similar right on the part of the United States to a prior appropriation of 360 second-feet
of the flow of Milk River during the said irrigation season.

‘Then there are paragraphs referring to the use of the channel of the
Milk River, and to the measurement of the water to be used by each
country. . o

Now, another proposition comes from Mr. Anderson: “Original
draft, C. P. A.,” undoubtedly refers to a draft of Mr. Anderson,
solicitor for the United States. I read from page 97:

Arricue V1. It is agreed that each country shall have the exclusive right to one-
half of the natural flow of the St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their tributaries, the
amount thereof to be determined at the pointy of storage and diversion and at the
boundary by measurements made jointly by the properly constituted reclamation
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and irrigation officers on either side of the boundary; and the channel of Milk River
in Canada may be used at the convenience of the United States for the conveyance,
without interference—

Again we find this specific language introduced, the last is a tele-
gram which suggests some changes in the entire treaty, none of which
are important except those afiecting Arficle VI. The telegram is
from Mr. Gibbons to Mr. Anderson and appears at page 97. I shall
read that part of it which relates to Article VI:

ArticLe VI, Say “Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan—"'
That change was made.

change name of the commission, leaving out the words “of the United States and
Canada”; instead of ““other rivers,”’ say ‘‘the St. Mary River.”

Mr. CrLark. I noticed from a reading of the record that quite a bit
was said about the insertion of the word “Saskatchewan.” "It occurs
to me that an explanation of that might be that these tiver systems
had only been considered as far east as the point where the Milk
River crosses into the United States. That far the Province of
Saskatchewan entered into it in nowise. It was thereafter thought of
that there were certain large tributaries coming down from the north
through Saskatchewan, which also should be made the subject matter
of this treaty.

Senator WaLsH. It is not unlikely that their minds were directed to
the main river, and that the tributaries perha%s had been in a way
lost sight of, until the matter occurred to somebody.

Mr. Crark. That simply occurs to me as a possible reason.

Senator WarLsu. That 1s not at all unlike{) . So I submit that
during the entire course of these negotiations the idea now advanced
by the Canadian Government was never even intimated upon either
side. No one was contemplating the division of any waters what-
ever except those waters which cross the international boundary line,
and no measurements anywhere were to be taken except at the inter-
national crossings.

Then, I repeat what was said before, that when the parties went to
work to execute the treaty, they themselves gave to it a particular
construction by proceeding to establish measuring stations at the
international crossings, at the diversion and storage points, and
nowhere else. No one ever thought of going down an(F‘ measuring
those tributaries which flow up north from the Bear Paw Mountains.
Nobody ever thought of establishing a measuring station upon Peoples
Creek, which rises in the Bear Paw Mountain district and flows into
the Fort Belknap Indian Reservation, where there are large areas that
are irrigated. Nobody had in mind the idea of establishing a meas-
uring station down at the mouth of the Milk River. They did not
proceed in that way at all, because they did not understand that the
treaty required anything of the kind or permitted anything of the
kind, or that the Commission had any power to establish stations at
these points to determine anything about the value of water in that
section. The practical construction given to a contract by the
Earties who are required to put it into execution is always regarded

y the courts as a most persuasive consideration in determining what
was the intention of the parties at the time the contract was entered -
mto. : ,
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Mr. PowgLL. That is on the ground of contemporaneous construc-
tion ? :

Senator Warsa. Contemporaneous construction; yes.

Mr. PoweLL. In Mr. Gibbons’s draft reference is made to the ““right
to a_prior_apperriation of 360 second-feet of the flow of St. Mary

River during ~the -irrigation season.” Now, as a matter of fact,
Senator, it is very rarely indeed that there are 360 feet there to get
hold of during the irrigation season. The amount is away down
below that.

Senator WarsH. That is quite true. I think that in any ordinary
season 360 second-feet would more than exhaust the capacity of the
river.

Mr. MagraTtH. What would be the object, Senator Walsh, of Mr.
Gibbons’s request for the inclusion of the Saskatchewan tributaries,
if he felt that the waters that were under consideration were only
those which. crossed the boundary? I can not see what advantage
would accrue to Canada by wiring to Washington to include “Sas-
katchewan tributaries.”

Senator WarsH. My idea about it was that possibly it was thought
that unless the Saskatchewan tributaries were included it might be
contended that they fell without the scope of the treaty. In that
event controversies would still go on between the appropriators in
respect of those Saskatchewan tributaries in Canada and appropriators
in the United States. The matter would then have to become the
subject of another and separate treaty. Mr. Gibbons wanted that to
be settled at the same time and included in the same arrangement.

Mr. MagraTH. I would imagine that the telegram would come from
the other side, because the contention would amount to giving up an
interest in Canadian waters for the benefit of Montana users.

Senator WaLss. It would be giving up, of course, waters which
rise in Canada and allowing them to go down to Montana users, but
if the Saskatchewan tributaries were left out of the treaty they would
still be the subject of negotiations. He recognized at once that if
mention of them was left out of the treaty and the Saskatchewan
settlers endeavored to divert all of the water of the Saskatchewan
tributaries, of course the settlers in Montana would protest and the
same course would have to be gone over again and another treaty
‘negotiated adjusting the disposition of these waters, but probably
on practically the same lines as this. That is my idea of what moved
him to include the Province of Saskatchewan.

Mr. PoweLr. This, too, may have been a controlling feature with
him: Canada was on record as a supporter of this position: That
in the case of water taking its rise in one country and flowing into
another, the lower riparian State has the right to the flow in its
natural condition, without diminution of its quantity or injury to
quality. We had planted ourselves in that position as a matter of
international law. If therefore, the reference was left out alto-
%ether, the United States might claim the whole of the water that

owed down these streams. Of course this is all speculation as to
what he had in mind.

Sir Wirriam Hearst. Your view, then, is that the United States
was not interested in having these tributaries included ?

Senator WaLsH. Undoubtedly it was. You will recall that settlers
in Montana on these tributaries coming from Canada had protested



ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS, 31

against the diversion of the waters of these tributaries in Canada,
and that was one of the very things which brought about this treaty.
Sir WiLrtam HearsT. But they would not have been included but
for this telegram——
Senator Warsu. The tributaries coming from Alberta would have

been.

Sir WirLiam Hearst. But the main ones were from Saskatchewan.

Senator WaLsa. Well, I do not know whether the main ones were.
Frenchman Creek is the largest.

Mr. PowerL. The United States’ contention, as set forth by Senator
‘Carter and followed by your jurists, was this: The United States
had the right by virtue of sovereignty to control such participation
in these waters as took place on its own territory. Canada, on the
other hand, said in effect to the United States: “When you get to-
gether all the tributaries that flow north, we get the benefit of that -
decision reversed.” In other words, the United States would be
forced to base its claim on Canada’s contention, and Canada, reserving
to itself the right to use the waters of these tributaries for the purposes
of irrigation, would have to adopt the United States’ contention. In
view of that, possibly they were attempting to settle the whole
controversy by the one document.

Senator WALsH. I have very diligently searched the records for the

urpose of ascertaining what part the representatives from our State
Ead in the negotiations, but I have never been able to find any
record of any such participation.

Mr. PowkLL. -1 do not know whether Mr. Carter had any precedent,
but that was his view.

Senator Warsu. I have hitherto been unable to ascertain what part
they took in the negotiations.

F};nally, I submit to the Commission that it is utterly impossible,
upon any basis of justice, or even of reason, to do in this matter what
is asked by the Canadian authorities, namely, to go down to the
mouth of the Milk River, ascertain the total amount of water that is
flowing in the river at the mouth, divide that by 2, and then come
back to the international boundary line and give Canada one-half of
the amount which is found at the mouth. Why, Canada would get
it all; at all times she would get it all. There would not be anything
for us. She would even invade our storage waters to get that result.

Mr. Commissioners, nothing of the kind 1s permissible at all. When
you are talking about irrigation and about dividing the waters of
these streams, you are talking about dividing the waters of the
streams at the point at which they are available for purposes of
irrigation, not somewhere else. If I were here in the city of Ottawa,
endeavoring to promote an irrigation project in my State, to take out
the waters of the Missouri River for the purpose of irrigating a large
tract of land in that State and some one asked me how much water
there is in the Missouri River, and I should tell him the amount of
water there is in the Missouri River at St. Louis, for the purpose of
irrigating lands in the State of Montana, I would be subject to arrest
for obtaining money under false pretenses. Of course wilen he asked
me how much water there was in the Missouri River he meant how
“much water is there in the Missouri River at the point at which you
propose to divert. And so, if your honors please, when it is provided
that the water of these streams is to be divided equally it means the
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water in the streams at the place at which you purpose diverting the
waters. You may not go away down the stream, determine the
amount of water there, and then divide that by 2 and give to both
partics the amount there found, because that is impossible. There
1s not, of course, any such quantity of water there.

Learned counsel for the Canadian Government submitted a brief
in which he has endeavored to compute the amount of water in the
Milk River. At page 48 of his brief he states that the Milk River
at the eastern crossing carries 100,000 acre-feet——

Mr. PoweLL. What does thut mean in second-feet ? .

Senator WaLsH. I can not say, but I suppose that means all the
water '

Mr. Davis. It depends on the length of time involved.

Mr. PoweLr. Well, say during the irrigation season.

Mr. Davis. I could compute it in my head in a few minutes.
Two acre-feet every 24 hours, running for 100 days, would mean 200
acre-feet.

Mr. PowgLL. Divide 100,000 acre-feet by 200 and you get——

Mr. Davis. Five hundred second-feet. That would be 1,000 acre-
feet per day. One hundred days is about the length of the irriga-
tion season in Montana.

Senator Warsa. That means, I take it, that during the entire
season there flows by the Milk River crossing enough water to cover
100,000 acres during the irrigation season to the depth of 1 foot.

Now, in the same computation we are advised that the Milk River
and tributaries, below the eastern crossing up to Hinsdale, or Van-
dalia, flows 350,000 acre-feet. That makes 450,000 acre-feet alto-
%ether in the river, one-half of which is 225,000 acre-feet which

anada would be entitled to at the eastern crossing, whereas the-
entire amount that flows through the whole year around amounts to
only 100,000 acre-feet. So that the proposal is that we give Canada
everything that flows past the eastern crossing the whole year
around and give her, in addition, 75,000 acre-feet that we store in the
storage basin at St. Marys. That is what you are asked to do, on the
basis of the figures that are given here. Of course, you are not
going to do it. There is no disposition, I am sure, upon the part of
any commissioner to make any such distribution or to imagine for a
moment that that was the purpose contemplated when this contract
was made.

Mr. Magrata. Would you kindly repeat that? You contend that
if the Canadian contention prevails you will get absolutely no water
in the Milk River at the eastern crossing. And what did you say
further ?

Senator WaLsu. Here are the figures. The Milk River flows at the
eastern crossing 100,000 acre-feet. According to the brief filed by
counsel for the Government of Canada, the Milk River and tribu-
taries below the eastern crossing up to Hinsdale, or Vandalia, flow
350,000 &cre-feet annually. So that the flow of the entire river—
that which accumulates in its upper stretches and that which accu-
mulates in its lower stretch-—amounts to 450,000 acre-feet, and the
contention is that Canada is entitled to one-half of that, 225,000
acre-feet, in her territory, which is at the eastern crossing. In other
words, you may take out of the river at the eastern crossing 225,000
acre-feot, while the natural flow is enly 100,000 acre-feet, so that you
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take out 125,000 acre-feet of the stored water, in order to make up
your entire quota at the eastern crossing.

Sir WirLrLiam HearsT. That is not the result, Senator Walsh, as I
understand it, from reading the reports of engineers for the last two
years. :

Senator WarLsu. Well, the computation is here. I do not know
what it is based upon.

Sir Wicriam HeARsT. I understand you make the statement that
the effect of the Canadian contention would be that the United
States would get nothing from the river and would still be indebted
to Canada ?

Senator WALsH. On the basis of Mr. MacInnes’s figures.

Mr. MacInnges. They were prepared, of course, by the engineers,
Mr. Commissioner.

Senator WarsH. It does not make any difference whether you
accept these figure or not; you can see that the result must neces-
sarily be so every year. That is, if you ascertain the amount of
water there is at the mouth of the Milk River, being the entire accu-
mulation of all these tributaries, divide that in two, then go away
up the stream 200 miles and attempt to divert one-half the amount
that you have down at the mouth, you are going to exhaust that
stream. There is no question about that; it does not make an
difference whether the season is dry or wet. The specific figures
merely use for the purpose of illustration, but anybody can see that
under that contention Canada gets the entire water of tﬁe Milk River.

Mr. PoweLL. You would have the 500 second-feet prior appro-
priation.

Sir WiLLiam Hearst, I understood that the United States, in the
ractical working out of the thing, got every drop of water from the
ilk River and some from the St. l\%ary. .

Mr. MacInnes. Exactly.

Sir WiLLiam HEARST. i’ may be wrong as to that.

Senator WaLsH. The United States has, of course, a priority to the
extent of three-quarters of the stream up to the 500 feet. But I was
going to say in conclusion, if you please, Mr. Commissioners, that
wherever you measure the stream, there, of course, the water must
be taken out. If you are to measure the water at the mouth of the
Milk River, and if there are any means whatever by which Canada
can get her water there, then she is entitled to one-half of that water.
That would be reasonable enough. The point I make is that wher-
ever you compute the amount of water in the stream, that is the
place where diversion must occur. Of course, it never was contem-

lated that Canada should go down here within American territory
or the purpose of diverting her waters. How can you contend that
you can go to the mouth of the Milk River for the purpose of com-
puting the amount of, water there is there, and then go back 200
miles up the stream for the purpose of diverting it into Canadian
territory ? I repeat, if you measure the water at any point in the
stream, it is at that point that you must make the diversion. If,
under the terms of the treaty, you can not make the diversion at that
point, it follows, of necessity, that that is not the point at which the
measurement must be made. '

57208—21——3
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Mr. PowELL. Just at that point, are you not confusing—I am only
asking the question—two things, one the theoretical marshaling of
the water, which is entirely independent of where you make the

_diversion, and the other the physical diversion that you make? It

1s not necessary, is it, that you make the physical diversion at any-
one particular point ?

Senator WarLsn. Perhaps, stated in another way, it might be said
that 1t is a mere method of computation as to the amount of the water
which vou can divert.

Mr. PowgLL. Exactly; that is the other view.

Senator WarLsu. But it amounts to the same thing, because we
are forbidden to take computations down at the mouth of the river,
with a view to determining the amount that could be, or that should
be, diverted 200 miles up the river. That would be entirely un-
reasonable. That anybody should think of going there for the pur-
pose of computation 1s utterly beside the question. You might just
as well say we will determine the amount of water there is at the
mouth of the Marias River and then divide that by two, in order to
arrive at the amount of water to be diverted into Canadian territory.
There is no reason why one should be taken as a basis of computa-~
tion more than the other. I submit, then, that with regard to the
plain language of the treaty, you can consider only those streams and
tributaries that are at one and the same time in the State of Montana
and in either Saskatchewan and Alberta. In other words, the
language of the treaty itself is the basis of our contention with respect
to the matter.

Secondly, having regard to the negotiations of the parties, no
other conc}lrusion can justly or reasonably be arrived at than that the

arties intended to divide only the water that flowed across the
international boundary line, and that those were to be divided
equally in amount as they flowed across the international boundary
line, priorities alone excepted. Thirdly, the parties themselves gave
a practical construction to the treaty by establishing measuring
stations at the places at which the¥1 were constructed, and fourth,
it is utterly impossible to carry out the contention that is urged here,
gl fact it would be unreasonable—indeed absurd—to attempt to

0 S0.

Mr. PoweLL. You are speaking of contemporaneous exposition or
construction. Here is a note on the treaty, made, I think, immedi-
ately after it was passed, by Mr. King, the astronomer from Canada,
in which he puts forward this very view, rather detracting from your
principle of contemporaneous construction. o

Senator WavrsH. I failed to note that, Mr. Commissioner.

Mr. PoweLL. That is in the record, is it not—Mr. King’s memo-
randum on the treaty ?

Mr. Turner. 1 myself failed to note it. ] o
Sir Wirriam HearsT. It is in the official documents; it is not in
the record. :

Mr. PowgrL. I know I read it somewhere.

Senator WarLsu. I have no recollection of having seen it.

1 thank you, Mr. Commissioners, most cordially.

(The Commission adjourned at 5 p. m., to meet to-morrow morn-
ing at 10 o’clock.)
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Orrawa, May 4, 1920.

. The Commission resumed this morning at 10 a. m.

Mr. MagraTH. Now, gentlemen, we will proceed with the re-

argunaent of the St. Mary and Milk Rivers case.
*  Mr. GarpNER. Mr. Chairman, in order to remove any misappre-
hension that may exist with respect to the reargument of this case,
I want to say that this meeting is being held entirely on the initiative
of the Commission, and that no other agency or influence has had
anything whatever to do with the matter. I think the attorney for
the United States will bear me out in saying that he knew nothing
about any contemplated hearing until he was notified that a date
had been fixed.

Mr. Turngr. That is so.

Mr. MagraTa. I am quite satisfied that the Canadian members
are not under the impression that this hearing is the outcome of any
representations made by the Government of the United States. The
first intimation we had of this meeting was at Buffalo, when a member
of the United States section stated that he understood there was to
be a reargument of this case. Then the matter came forward as I
exg}ained yesterday.

r. TurNER. The first suggestion of this hearing was at a meeting
of the Commission in New York, when an order was made that as
soon as the personnel of the Commission was completed this case and
the application from the New York & Ontario Power Co. would be
taken up at the first meeting in Ottawa. I presumed, therefore,
that the matter would be set down for hearing in this city.

Mr. MagraTH. As the question has been opened up, I may say that
the first intimation I had of this reargument was a,t%uﬁa,lo in March
last, when a statement was made that a request had been received from
the settlers in the Lower Milk River Valley suggesting that as there
were two new members of the Commission, it would be desirable to
have the case reargued. I do not think any reargument was con-
sidered at any previous meeting because the case had already been
argued twice. owever, that is a matter of no moment now, as the
Commission is pleased to have the question thoroughly thrashed out.

Mr. King, will you proceed. .

Mr. King. The statement I refer to is by Mr. William Howard
Taft, ex-President of the United States, and as it coincides with the
views which I have expressed heretofore, I would like to have it
entered in the record.

Mr. TurngR. If you can make that part of your argument, I pre-
sume it may go in, '

" Mr. MacInNgs. I submit that that would depend on whether it is
material which is in the nature of argument, or whether it is somethin
in the nature of evidence. Of course, in the latter case it woul
require an answer, and should have been dealt with when this case
was being heard, and not during argument.

Mr. King. Mr. Chairman, all I have to say in reply is that this
article was printed before I made my argument at the previous hear-
ing, but I had not read it. It coincides with my views on the author-
ity of the United States to enter into a treaty which might conflict
with the Constitution. That is to say, I take the position now, and I
took it before, that in interpreting a treaty entered into by the United
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States we must take into consideration the fact that the Government
would not enter into any treaty that is an open violation of the Con-
stitution. Mr. Taft, in a lecture to the Columbia University, laid
down certain principles to the effect that the Government of the
United States could not enter into a treaty that could not be revised
by a majority of Congress. In other words, he laid down the prin-
ciple that Congress could enact a law which would abrogate or amend
a treaty, and the fact that Congress has that power should be taken
into consideration in determining what the United States intended
to do when it entered into,a treaty with the Government of Canada.
Therefore, I want to cite that as I would cite a decision of the Supreme
Court of the United States, and I refer to it for that purpose only.
Mr. MagraTH. Go ahead, then, Mr. King.

.

ARGUMENT BY MR. WILL R. KING, COUNSEL FOR THE REC-
LAMATION SERVICE OF THE UNITED STATES.

Mr. King. I think Senator Walsh covered this subject fully, and
that it is unnecessary for me to add anything to his argument.

When we take into consideration the treaty-making rights of the
United States, we must also consider that it can not be presumed that
the Government would perform an act which it has no power to per-
form under the Constitution. Senator Walsh stated the facts to this
honorable Commission, and he presented them as to a jury. But
when we get back to the real proposition, we must take into consider-
ation the authority upon which the Government of the United States
may act. o

Mr. MacraTH. Excuse me a moment, Judge, in view of what you
have said, I see no reason why you should not read the document.

Mr. King. Now, having the same high regard for Mr. Taft as Mr.
Commissioner Powell has for Alexander Hamilton, I want to read what
Mr. Taft had to say on the fundamental ;irinmples upon which we are
now to consider this treaty. This article appeared in the Literary
Digest of last month, and proceeds as follows:

Under oyr Constitution the treaty-making power is much more important than
under the constitution of any other country, according to Mr. Taft, who points out that
in so far as its provisions are to operate a treaty of the United States is “‘a law in the
Um'te% States exactly as a statute of Congress is & law in the United States,’”” and he
proceeds:

‘“A treaty operates both as a binding contract with a foreign nation and as municipal
law. As a contract binding upon both parties, it can not be made to lose its obligation
by a refusal of either cotmtry to perform it. Itisthusbroken, but the party injured b
the breach has in international law a right to damages from the party breaking it. If
COongress passes a statute inconsistent with the treaty, while it breaks the treaty it
repeals it a8 municipal law. It does not relieve the Nation from its moral and inter-
national obligation to make ﬁOOd the breach by damages or otherwise, but it does
change the'law which binds the officers, citizens, and others within the governmental
jurisdiction of the United States to'comply not with the treaty, but with the law which
abrogated it. This was the effect of the decision of the Supreme Court in the Chinege
cases. Under our treaty with China certain classes of Chinese were entitled to come:
into the country. Congress desired to exclude many of the classes thus entitled and
passed a law doing so. The law broke the treaty, but the immigration officers, the
courts, -and &l persons within the territorial jurisdiction of the United States were
ohliged to conform to the act of Oongress, and to exclude those Chinese who had the
right to come in under the treaty, but were forbidden teo do so by the subsequent law.”

That is to say, it requires two-thirds of the Senate and the Presi-
dent to make a treaty, but a majority of both Houses of Congress:
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can repeal that treaty so far as it is inconsistent with the Constitution.
I remember when I argued this matter two and a half years ago the
members of this Commission were much surprised at my statement
that_we could make a treaty by two-thirds of the Senate, and yet
we could repeal it by an act of Congress.

Now then, what has that to do with this case? And I see that
question in the exgesswns of some honorable members of this Com-
migsion. It has this to do with this treaty: That we can make a
treaty between our twofiovernments, and yet the next day Congress
can repeal that treaty. That goes to the question of what was
intended by the treaty-making power of the Government of the
United States. It maﬁ be asked: What does intent have to do with
the case? I answer, that it goes to the interpretation of this treaty;
in other words, we have to ascertain what was intended by this
treaty.

I do not want to again go into the facts that were discussed so
thoroughly by Senator Walsh when he covered that question, for I
am assuming that this honorable tribunal appreciated what he said
yesterday when discussing those facts. I am trying to deal with
the fundamental principles which govern the treaty-making body
that made this treaty. .

Now, what power had that treaty-making body? A stream can
not rise higher than its source. Viscount Bryce, in his well-known
work on the American Commonwealth, discusses the Constitution of
the United States as distinguished from the British constitution.
And I want to impress u%on'your honors that Viscount Bryce is one
of our greatest living authorities on the subject. He states:

In England and in many other modern States there is no difference in the authority
between one statute and another. All are made by the legislature; all can be changed
i)f/ the logislature. What are called in England constitutional statutes, such as

agna Charta, the Bill of Rights, the Act of Settlement, the Acts. of Union with
Scotland and Ireland, are merely ordinary laws which could be reﬁealed by Par-
liament at any moment in exactly the same way as it can repeal a highway act or
lower the duty on tobacco. The habit has grown up of speaking of the British consti-
tution as if it were a fixed and definite thing. But there is in England no such thing
a8 a constitution apart from the rest of the law; there is merely a mass of law, consisting
partly of statutes and partly of decided cases, and accepted usages, in conformity
with which the government of the country is carried on from day to day, but which is
being constantly modified by fresh statutes and cases. The same thing existed in
ancient Rome, and everywhere in Europe a century ago. It is, so to speak, the
gnatural,” and used to be the normal condition of things in all countries, free or

espotic, .

The condition of America is wholly different. There the name ‘' Constitution”
designates the particular instrument adopted in 1788, amended in some points since,
which is the foundation of the National Government. This Constitution was ratified
and made binding not by Congress, but by the people acting through conventions
assembled in the thirteen States which then composed the Confederation. It created
a legislature of two Houses; but that legislature, which we call Congress, has no power
to alter it in the smallest particular. That which the people have enacted, the people
only can alter or repeal.

Viscount Bryce there demonstrates that our system of making
laws is entirely different from that of England. And I would like to
call the attention of this honorable Commission to that fact, for the
reason that I want to impress upon your honors something which can
not be ignored; that the United States has a different system of law
makm% from that of any other country in the world. Canada or
Great Britain can amend their laws from day to day; but we can not
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amend the Constitution of the United States without conforming to
the requirements of that Constitution.

I will give a concrete illustration. It might be said: We can elect
three Senators for any State. But that can not be done, unless we
amend the Constitution by a three-fourths vote of our State legis-
latures. And, conversely, we can not deprive any State of its
Wresentation of two Senators without the consent of that State.

e can not take away the representation yhich a State is entitled
to under the Constitution, even though we get the consent of 47
States of the Union.

It may be asked: What bearing has that upon this question? In
my view it has this bearing, that we must keep in mind that the
treaty-making power of the United States Government is not in-
tended to violate any provision of thie Constitution. Under that
treaty-making power we can not, for instance, transfer any State to
Canada, nor can we transfer to Canada the right of any citizen of the
United States. I see from the expression of the various honorable
members of this Commission, that they think otherwise; but they
are wrong. y

As Senator Walsh said yesterday, you can not take the property
of Montana and transfer it to Canada. It follows that since the
treaty-making power is presumed to comply with the Constitution,
and i1s not presumed to perpetrate any fraud upon its own Govern-
ment, that in interpreting this treaty your honors have to consider
certain things. You will have to take into consideration that the
Government of the United States never intended to give to Canada
any of the property of the State of Montana, because our Govern-
ment never intended to violate the Constitution. I hope I have
made myself clear.

I might elaborate that argument by stating that our Government
could not say: We will take the water of these tributaries below the
line and divide it with Canada. They could no more do that than
attempt to divide the water of the Gull of Mexico with Canada. And
it would be equally as preposterous as for them to attempt to divide
with this country the waters of the Atlantic Ocean. The very
absurdity of such attempts demonstrates the fallacy of the conten-
tion of counsel representing the Government of Canada.

Now, Mr. Chairman, pardon me when I say that I can not quite
understand why the United States Government should be required
on this oecasion to state its proposition in advance of the contention
of our Canadian friends. do not in any way question the good
intentions of everyone concerned, but, as I say, I can not quite under-
stand the position. The contention of Canada, carried to its logical
conclusion, amounts to taking the waters of the Gulf of Mexico and
of the Atlantic Ocean, measuring their volume by acre-feet, and
saying, we will divide it equally between the United States and
Canada. I do not think sugh an argument was intended to be put
forward, but that is what it amounts to. If we are going to argue
this case as a It})urely technical literal proposition, an§ say that the
tributaries of these two streams shall be divided equally between the
two countries, then, gentlemen, let us proceed on that basis. What
does it mean? It simply means that the United States will not get
any water, with the requt that the area to be irrigated would remain
perpetually dry.
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Taking the ordinary rules of construction, will any man argue that
such a condition of affairs was intended by the treaty between the
two countries? I say no. As Senator Walsh demonstrated yester-
day, that was never the intention of either party to the treaty. It
mgl) be contended by counsel for the Government of Canada that
the treaty must be taken and construed as a whole. Well, if we
construe the treaty according to the rules of construction, what do
we find? The only conclusion that can be reached is that the treaty
is nothing more nor less than a contract. It must be construed so
that every word shall be given some meaning. In other words, we
must construe that treaty so that it means something, not that it
means nothing.

What was the purpose for which the treaty was entered into?

Mr. PoweLL. Before you take up that branch, Judge King, allow
me to put a question. oes not your argument, when pushed to its
logical conclusion, go further than you intend? If the United States,
according to your view, owns the water absolutely in the St. Mar
River, would not the whole treaty, so far as the St. Mary and MilK
Rivers are concerned, be absolutely unconstitutional ?

Mr. Kine. I do not quite catch your point. :

Mr. PoweLL. If the %nited States, by virtue of its being the source
of the St. Mary River, owned the water in that river, what right
would the United States have to hand one-half of that river over to
Canada, if your argument be correct? What distinction is there in
p{)inciple between the Milk River below and the St. Mary River
above?

Mr. Kine. Well, your honor, as I said yesterday, I was asking
Senator Walsh on the quiet as to what was the international law on
the point. Assume that we could dig a canal and take all the water,
what is the international law on that subject? His answer was
something like this: International law is nothing more than justice
and equity. So that when you come to figure that out it is a matter
of justice and equity between nations. Senator Walsh criticized
me somewhat, and probably justly, for some insinuation in my
former argument where I intimated that we might take all the water
regardless of the wishes of Canada. But I did not mean that. I
meant that so far as international law is concerned we could take all
the water of the St. Mary River and divert it to the Gulf of Mexico;
but, as a matter of international law, we must admit that equity
would prevent us from taking such action. We could spend $10,000,-
000 to $20,000,000, as Mr. Roosevelt suggested, and divert that
water to our side of the line; but, of course, we will not do so, and it
was never intended that we should do so. I do not know whether
I have answered the question put to me by the honorable commis-
sioner.

Mr. PoweLL. The United States, by the Ashburton or Webster
treaty, took away a certain portion of the Aroostook territory from
the State of Maine.

Mr. King. Mr. Commissioner Gardner consented to that.

Mr. PoweLr. He was not in active politics at the time.

Mr. GARDNER. I was settling an international controversy that
was unsettled.

Mr. King. If it had not been for men of the type of Commissioner
Gardner we would not have been able to do it.
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When we get down to the real meat of the coconut it is a question
of equity between nations.

Mr. PoweLL. All right.

Mr. King. And when we get down to that we are on the basis of
international law, as Senator Walsh advised me yesterday.

I am afraid I am wandering away from the subject. Getting back
to my argument, what I wanted to make clear was that we must
keep in mind what we can do under our Constitution, and that is a
matter of what was intended to be done by the treaty-making power
of this country. If under our Constitution we can not make a treaty
with you to take away the water rights of the citizens of the State
of Montana, then it should be very clear that it was never intended
we would do so.

I want to make one further remark in this connection. So far as
the Reclamation Service of the United States is concerned, which
service I assume to represent, there is quite a distinction between
representing that service and the private rights of the citizens in
Montana. Since we can not take away the property of the citizens
of that State and give it to Canada, 1t must be assumed that the
treaty-making power never intended to give that property away.

But take the Reclamation Service of the United States. hat
does it do in the performance of its functions? In our sovereign
capacity we can not take away the property of one person and give
it to another. We merely represent the citizens on the south side
of the divide. We go into Montana, or Wyoming, or any other State,
and we simply say, we are going to build you a reclamation service.
We do not pretend to take away the property of anyone; we simply
say, we are acting as a quasi agent, and we will build you this service,
for which you will pay the bill. That is all there is to it.

By the way, let me divert from my argument for a minute and say
something upon which the Senator from Montana and I do not quite
agree. e disagree, of course, good naturedly. I do not quite agree
with a member of the Commission, who I see is listening very atten-
tively to me; I do not quite agree with a good many people. The
fact 1s, the more people that disagree with me the better I like it,
because then I think they have some respect for me. I do not agree
that the State of Montana, the State of Wyoming, or any other State
owns the waters that fall on the watersheds. That matter is now
pending before the Supreme Court of the United States. But it does
not make any difference whether we agree or not, we reach the same
conclusion in this case. However, for fear of being misunderstood,
I desire to mention that.

As I say, I do not agree that the State of Montana owns the waters
that fall on its watersheds, nor do I agree that the State of Wyoming
owns the waters that fall on its watershed. Representative Mondell
argued at one time that Wyoming owned all the waters that fell on
its watershed, and some flippant oung person remarked: ‘“Then,
if that is the case, the citizens of Wyoming are liable for damages in
not being able to control their waters, because they go down into
Nebraska and wash away the farms.” '

To me it is the most absurd proposition imaginable to assert that
State lines cut any figure. But if I were representing certain local
water associations I can quite appreciate that I might submit such an
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argument. Of course, I would be an advocate instead of a judge. I
do not want to be understood now as saying that I think that is the
law. The point reminds me of the attitude of a darkey soldier down
on the border line of Mexico two or three years ago. On being asked
if he was going to invade Mexico, he replied, ¢ Wge will simply invade
nothing.” “\%’ell, are you going to cross the line?” he was next
asked. ‘““No,” he answered decisively, “we will just take up the line
and keep it in front of us all the time.”

But to get back to the point. Suppose that all the States west of
the Mississippi were merged into one State, and we forgot the present
border lines, would those border lines cut any figure? The Supreme
‘Court of the United States has that question under consideration at
the present time, and I hope they will decide it some time during my
lifetime. :

The main point I wish to impress on this honorable commission is
that the Government of the United States in making a treaty is pre-
sumed to act along reasonable lines; it is presumed to pursue a course
that does not violate the Constitution. That being so, the Govern-
ment of the United States in entering into this treaty must say that
it did not intend to violate the Constitution.

In that connection I take it that the contention of counsel for the
Canadian Government will rely largely upon Article VI of the Con-
stitution, which reads: )

This Constitution, and the Laws of the United States which shall be made in Pur-
suance thereof; and all Treaties made, or which shall be made, under the Authority
of the United States, shall be the supreme Law of the Land; and the Judges in every
State shall be bound thereby, anything in the Constitution or Laws of any State to
the Contrary notwithstanding.

In that connection I want to emphasize what Senator Walsh said
yesterday, that in construing that article you should construe it as

ou would any contract. You should construe it, as has been urged
Ky some of the most eminent writers on the subject, so that every
expression shall be made effective. To do that, you construe the
entire Constitution; you do not construe merely one paragraph or
one article or word.

Every word must be given its full effect. Are you going to say,
gentlemen, “ We will just take the word ‘ tributaries,” whether those
tributaries are in Montana or Saskatchewan, whether they are here
or there.” It was strongly emphasized in the argument that the
expression occurs in the treaty, “The tributaries in the United States
and Saskatchewan.” That word “and’ can not be changed into
“or.”” They must be the tributaries that flow into the United States
and into Canada, for unless they do both they are not the tributaries
that were considered by this treaty. When you construe the treaty
in that light, and when you follow the ordinary rules of construction,
you must say that “and’’ means in both countries.

Now, gentlemen, I feel that I have taken up a great deal of time.
As I intimated at the opening, I rather think that I ought to have had
permission to follow one of the Canadian representatives, but in any
event I will abide by the result, and therefore I will close my argu-
ment by expressing my thanks to you for the kind attention with
which you have listened to me, gentlemen.
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ARGUMENT BY HON. GEORGE TURNER, COUNSEL FOR THE
UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT.

Mr. TurnNer. Mr. Chairman and gentlemen of the Commission, I
am here as the legal representative of the United States to assist
the Commission, if I can, in the task of construing Article VI of the
treaty of 1909.

I regret very much having the necessity, at the outset, of dis-
agreeing with my friend and associate counsel in this case, the
Senator from Montana. He made a statement in opening that the
United States had withdrawn the protest made to the Commission
by Secretary Lansing. In that he was in error. The United States
merely explained that protest—explained that it was not intended
to dprevent the commission from proceeding as an administrative
body to determine what waters were brought within the purview of
its duties under Article VI, but rather that it was Intended as a
caveat against the power and authority of the Commission upon a
hearing instituted by the commission itself to make a decision which
Would%)e binding upon the two countries as a res judicata.

The Senator also said that he was glad that the protest had been
withdrawn because he thought it was unfounded. Now, I have
thought over the matter and 1 have come to the conclusion that the
‘protest was a proper one for two purposes: First, for the purpose of
preventing a misunderstanding between the two countries arising
out of the argument of counsel in the process of construing Article
VI; and also as a necessary caveat against having it said in future,
if perchance the occasion should arise for any controversy about it,
that the United States had concluded itself by coming here and
ar%uing the matter without filing a caveat.

want to offer some observations in support of the protest of
Secretary Lansing, and if my remarks on the subject proceed to
some length, I shall find justification for it'in the character of this
commission as an instrument of peace and amity, and good under-
standing between two great kindll)'ed peoples, and in the imperative
necessity, if the influence of the Commission for good is not to be
impaired, of having it understood that each of the countries in its
dealings with the other, by and through the Commission, is proceed-
ing at all times in the best of good faith and with a just regard for
the interests of the other country as provided for in the stipulations.
of the treaty of 1909. Now, the fact that the duties of the Commission
under Article VI relate to the apportionment and division of certain
prescribed waters imposes the necessity upon the Commission of
fixing and determining the particular waters described. That
involves a process of construing Article VI, and that involves the
application of legal principles, and also the application of trained
and disciplined reason and judgment. But notwithstanding that, I
think the protest of Secretary Lansing, understood as I have ex-
lained it, is defensible both from the standpoint of propriety and
rom the standpoint of legal sufficiency.

It will be admitted on the other side, I have no doubt, that out-
side of the task of construing Article VI, the duties of the Commis-
sion with reference to the apportionment and division of the waters
are strictly administrative. Now, in construing Article VI, the
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Commission is simply reading its mandate, and in doing that, inas-
much as this is not a hearing upon issues framed, and nasmuch as
the apfearance of counsel here 1s a mere matter of courtesy on the
part of the Commission, I say that in construing this mandate, as
wellas in the performance ot its duties, which the construction of
the mandate points out to the Commission, it is acting in a minis-
terial capacity. It is, I believe, familiar law in the United States,
in England, and in Canada as well, that an administrative officer or
body shall be kept within the bounds of his mandate by the writ of
mandamus and In proper cases by injunctions. Inasmuch as both
those processes are attacking the action of a commission collaterally,
it can not be that in reading its mandate, however difficult that may
be, it is proceeding in a judicial capacity; because it is equally
familiar law in all three countries that we can only attack a judicial
decision directly—that is, by appeal, writ of error, or, in case of
inferior judiciafr tribunals and boards exercising a quasi-judicial
ﬁower, by the writ of certiorari. The sheriff of a county every time

e levies a writ of execution must construe the writ and the law
back of the writ to determine whether he is justified in levying the
writ; yet he will be compelled to proceed by mandamus if he makes
a mistake in his construction, and may be enjoined in equity if he
is proceeding when he ought not to be proceeding under the writ.
Every time a taxing officer is required to act he must construe the
law to determine what property is brought within the purview of his
duties as a taxing officer; yet he also, in the performance of that
duty, is amenable to the writ of mandate if he misconstrues the
authority conferred upon him by the law.

The same thing is true of a public disbursing officer; he must con-
strue the law authorizin% the disbursement every time he is called
upon to make it; yet if he declines to make it he will be compelled
by the courts to make it, if he ought to make it, and if he is proceedin
to make the disbursement when he ought not, he will be restraine
by a court of equity. I imagine it will not be contended that in
these cases the officer is proceeding from first to last in other than
an administrative capacity. Many other illustrations of the prin-
ciple might be brought forward if it were necessary. In short, an
administrative officer or body is compelled to construe to itself and
for itself what it is that the law requires it to do; that is an abso-
lutely necessary prerequisite to any action whatever upon its part.
Now, if the statute prescribing its duties is plain and clear and obvi-
ous and perspicuous, all it has to do is to read the statutes and pro-
ceed accordingly. In that case nobody would say that it was pro-
ceeding at any time other than in an administrative capacity. But
if the statute be doubtful and obscure and of difficult interpretation,
does that change the situation at all? Manifestly not, it seems to
me. It can not be that the determination of the question of what is
judicial and what administrative is to be made to depend upon
the difficulty of the ratiocinative process gone through with in each
particular case. Therefore, while it is sometimes difficult for an
administrative body to construe its mandate, the test is not whether
a greater or less degree of reasoning is required in the process, but
the process having been perfected, whether the duties that are de-
volved as a result of that are or are not administrative in character.
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An administrative officer is presumed to be able to read his title
clear. But that is not a conclusive presumption, because, as I have
said, if he reads his title darkly and wrongly he will be controlled
by the courts and will beliable in all sorts of ways to the process of the
courts. An individual injured by his action may have gis action for
damages, and the public, to the extent that it is interested, may have
a mandamus to compel action, if action is erroneously delayed, or
to stay action when action is erroneously taken.

Now, this Commission is an international body. There are no
courts in either country with power to control or revise its action.

" That, however, does not change the character of its action under

Article VI. That is still administrative, and since there is no power
in the courts to intervene, it must be left to each country to dissent
or agree, as it may or may not conceive that the action taken is or
is not in conformity to {aw. Therefore when the United States
became aware of the fact that the Commission was proceeding upon
its own motion to consider whether it ought not to include, for the
purpose of the apportionment and division of the waters of the Milk .
and St. Mary Rivers and their tributaries, certain intrastate waters
having their rise and flow wholly within the State of Montana, it was
an act of courtesy to the Commission and an act of good will and good
feeling toward the Canadian Government that it let it be known in
the outset that it did not consider these waters as coming within the
purview of the treaty or as committed to the Commission for appor-
tionment and division, and that it could not consent to be bound if
the Commission took a contrary view of the subject.

We would have an entirely different situation if the Commission
were considering this matter under a submission made to it by both
of the countries under Article X of the treaty. Under such a sub-
mission both countries consent to be bound, and the decision of the
Commission, when made, would be re judicata between the two
countries.

But to continue for a moment longer. If it be assumed that the
Commission is proceeding here strictly in a judicial capacity, I do not
think the situation is materially changed, so far as tﬁc propriety of
the protest of Secretary Lansing is concerned. There is one thing
that every court must do in every case brought before it, and that is
to determine whether the subject matter of the litigation has been
committed to it by law for determination. These questions are
sometimes close and difficult, but if the court makes a mistake its
determination is a mere “ Brutum fulmen.” The litigant cast in the
action need not consider himself bound and may contest the judg-
ment which is recovered in such an action whenever and wherever
it is attempted to be enforced. He may have an injunction against
a levy of execution to satisfy the judgment, or he may let his prop-

‘erty go to sale under the execution and recover it back from the pur-

chaser on the ground that the judgment of the court is absolutely
null and void and binds nobody. Tﬁe jurisdiction of this Commission
is found in the treaty which created it. If it exceeds its jurisdiction,
if it draws to itself a subject matter not in truth and in fact commit-
ted to it by the treaty, its decision upon it is no more binding than
& similar decision made by a court concerning a matter not com-
mitted to it for determination. To state a case In point: Suppose the
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Commission should find in the St. Mary River or Milk River an island
so situated that it was doubtful to which one of the two countries
it belonged and should go on and adjudicate that it belonged to one
country or the other. Would that have any binding effect upon
either country? Manifestly not, because that is not a subject mat-
ter committed to the Commission for determination.

.To take a case more nearly in point: Suppose there was a stream
crossing the international boundary in the vicinity of the waters here
in controversy, and which, by reason of some more convenient catch-
basin did not connect with either one of these rivers. Suppose the
Commission from some mistaken view of its duty under tﬂe treaty
should conclude that these waters were committed to it for appor-
tionment and division, and should go on and attempt to divide them
accordingly; would its act in that case bind either one of the coun-
tries? Manifestly not, because that particular stream would be
neither the St. Mary River, nor the Mﬁk River, nor a tributary of
either one of these rivers, This last illustration is on all fours, as I
conceive it, with the case at bar. 1f, as the United States contends,
these intrastate tributaries lying wholly in the State of Montana,
are not within the true intent and purpose of this treaty, then they
are not within the purview of the treaty and are not committed to
this Commission for division and apportionment. If the Commission
should take a contrary view, upon the contention of the United
States it would draw to itself a subject matter not committed to it
for determination by the treaty. That is not to say, however, that
the Commission shaﬁ not go on and consider and determine the mat-
ter. Tt must do so, as I said in the first instance, just as the courts
must determine upon all these questions submitted to them by the
laws under which they act, but it does so subject to the limitation
which is applied to the courts, that if it makes a mistake its action
is not binding upon either one of the two countries.

This matter of protesting the jurisdiction is not unknown to these
international tribunals. Possibly the most conspicuous instance of
it was that of the protest made by Great Britain in the Geneva arbi-
tration, which was a submission to an arbitration tribunal sitting at
Geneva, Switzerland, of the question of the responsibility of Great
Britain for the escape of the Confederate cruisers during the Civil
War, and, if responsibility was found against Great Britain, of the
assessment of damage to be paid to the United States therefor.
When the case of the United States was delivered to Great Britain it
was discovered that the United States had claimed not only the
necessarily direct damages for the loss of vessels at the hands of
these Confederate cruisers, but also several hundred million dollars
for indirect damages in the prolongation of the war and in the neces-
sary accession of the Navy in order to combat the efforts of these
Confederate cruisers. Great Britain filed her protest that the in-
direct damages were not within the submission made to the Com-
mission, and she declared in that protest that she would not proceed
with the arbitration unless the United States filed a disclaimer to any
right to these indirect damages. The arbitration only proceeded
after the United States had filed the disclaimer which Great Britain
insisted on. '

Now, I proceed without further preliminary remarks——
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Mr. PowerL. May 1 sum up your argument, Senator? If I cor-
rectly express your position, you concede that this Commission has
thrown upon it the duty to determine just what waters they are to
divide, but while that is thrown upon the Commission, its adjudica-
tion, if I may use the term, is not final?

Mr. Tur~ER. Not final as between the two countries.

Mr. PowrLL. As between the two countries ?

Mr. TurNER. Yes, sir. :

Mr. PowsLL. Just as a court of limited jurisdiction can have its
judgment attacked in a collateral suit on the ground of want of
jurisdiction ¢

Mr. Tur~vER. Yes, sir.

Mr. PowgLL. I think that would cover the whole case, would it not ¢

Mr. TurNER. Yes; I think so. ,

Mr. PowgLL. A case particularly applicable, I think, would be the
case of a submission to an arbitration; if the arbitrators go beyond
the scope of the submission, their decision pro tanto, is bad.

Mr. Turner. That principle has been applied, I believe, in all
international arbitrations. .

Mr. PoweLL. And arbitrations as well that are not international.

Mr. TurNER. It has not been infrequent that arbitration tribunals
have mistaken the extent of the authority conferred upon them, and
have run foul of that principle. :

I now proceed to the merits of this case. Learned counsel for the
Dominion of Canada took the position in his argument at St. Paul,
and also in the argument at Detroit, that a treaty or statute or con-
tract which was clear and definite in its terms was not susceptible
of construction; that extraneous evidence could not be received to
explain its terms; that it must be enforced according to the strict
sense found within the four corners of the instrument. To the first
branch of that proposition, correctly understood, I do not take any
objection. That which does not need interpretation can not be
interpreted, which simply means that you can not fritter away the
plain, manifest meaning of words by far-fetched, fanciful reasonings
and deductions. Indeed, it has been doubted in England whether
this rule amounts to anything more than a counsel of caution against
indulgence in these far—%;tched and fanciful conclusions. In the case
re Jodrell, 44 Chancery Division, page 590, Lord Justice Bowen
doubted whether this rule that was appealed to in that case was
really a canon of construction. He said he thought it was more a
counsel of caution. That was the case of the construction of a will
in which the testator had named various relatives and given them
beguests, and some of them were relatives on the legitimate side,
and some of them were illegitimate relatives. Then he devised the
rest and residue of his estate to his wife for life, with a clause that at
her death the property of this life estate of his wife should be divided
equally among his relatives, theretofore mentioned, and the propo-
sition was taken that the people with the bar sinister were not rela-
tives in the sense of law. Numerous English authorities are recited
sustaining that proposition. The question was whether or not this
term “‘relative” was to be construed strictly, or whether it was to be
construed liberally to include those who were relatives by blood as
well as those who were relatives in law. Lord Justice Bowen said,
il summing up:

*
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It seems to me that the only weight one can give to such language—

That is the language about following the plain meaning of the
instrument—

ig to treat it not so much as a canon of construction as a counsel of caution, to warn
vou in dealing with such cases not to give way to guesses or mere speculation as to
the possibilities of an intention, but to act only on such evidence as can lead a reason-
able Tian to a distinct conclusion. But 1 protest that as soon as you see upon the will,
read by the light of such extrinsic circumstances as you may survey, what the true
construction is, and what the true intention expressed by the testator is, then your
journey is performed.

But whether it be considered a canon of construction or a counsel
of caution, I agree that you must not in construing an instrument,
the meaning of which is plain and manifest, undertake. to depart
from its terms by mere guesses, or far-fetched reasoning, or fanciful
conclusions. To his second proposition, that you are ever confined
in any case to the literal sense found within the four corners of any
instrument, I have to dissent, and insist on the contrary that the
subject matter, the surrounding circumstances, the intention and
purpose of the parties, if it can be gathered from the instrument and
the surrounding circumstances and the subject matter, may be looked
to by the court called upon to administer such an instrument even
where there is no obscurity in the language; that the court may
enlarge or limit the meaning of words when' that is necessary to be
done in order to effectuate the true intent and purpose of the parties
to the instrument. )

My learned friend referred to a particular section of Vattel, in
making the contention in his former argument. If you take Vattel,
and even any of the other authors on international law, and read
what they say upon this subject of the interpretation of treaties, you
will find that this particular canon upon which counsel relies is
given but a very small scope. For instance, take the opening dis-
cussion by Vattel on the.interpretation of treaties, and you see from
the principles laid down that this canon must have a very limited
meaning. Reading from page 244, section 262, of Vattel on the Law
of Nations:

If the ideas of men were always distinct and perfectly determinate—if, for the
expression of those ideas, they had none but proper words, no terms but such as were
clear, precise, and susceptible only of one sense—there would never be any difficulty
in discovering their meaning in the words by which they intended to express it;
nothing more would be necessary than to understand the language. But, even on
this supposition, the art of interpretation would still not be useless. In concessions,
conventions, and treaties, in all contracts, as well as in the laws, it is impossible to
foresee and point out all the particular cases that may arise; we decree, we ordain,
we agree upon certain things, and express them in general terms; and, though all the
expressions of a treaty should be perfectly clear, plain, and determinate, the true
interpretation would still consist in making, in all the é)a:rticula.r cases that present
themselves, a just application of what has been decreed in a general manner. Dut
this is not all—conjectures vary, and produce new kinds of cases, that can not be
brought within the terms of the treaty or the law, except by inferences drawn from the
general views of the confracting parties, or of ‘the legislature. Between different
clauses, there will be found contradictions and, inconsistencies, real or apparent;
and the question is, to reconcile such clauses and point out the path to be pursued.
But the case is much worse if we consider that fraud seeks to take advantage even of
the imperfection of language, and ‘‘that men designedly throw obscurity and
ambiguity into their treaties, in order to be provided with a pretence for eluding
them upon occasion.”’

You can see from this statement of Vattel concerning the manner
in which these difficulties arise in the interpretation of treaties, that



48 ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS.

this canon of construction can not have a very wide application, and
I call attention particularly to that part which deals with the im-
possibility of the writers of treaties being able to anticipate all the
contingencies to which their words may apply. Consequently, as
the author says, they frequently use general words which apply to
situations they never had in mind at the time the treaty was written.

Vattel lays down the general rule of interpretation here, and I
want to read it to the Commission—probably I might assume that the
Commission knows this—but I wish to apply what this distinguished
author says to the particular facts of this case a little later. At
section 217 the author says (pp. 247-248):

Let us now enter into the particular rules on which the interpretation ought to be
formed, in order to be just and fair. Since the sole object of the lawful interpretation
of a deed ought to be the discovery of the thoughts of the author or authors of that
deed—whenever we meet with any obscurity in it we are to consider what probably
were the ideas of those who drew up the deed, and to interpret it accordingly. This
is the general rule for all interpretations. It particularly serves to ascertain the mean-
ing of particular expressions whose signification is not sufficiently determinate. Pur-
suant to this rule, we should take those expressions in their utmost latitude, when it
seems probable that the person speaking had in contemplation everything which, in
that extensive sense, they are capable of designating; and, on the other hand, we ought
to restrict their meaning, if the author appears to have confined his idea to what they
comprehend in their more limited signification. et us suppose that a husband has
bequeathed to his wife all his money. It isrequired to know whather this expression
means only his ready money, or whether it extends also to that which is lent out, and
is due on notes and other securities. If the wife is poor—if she was beloved of her
husband—if the amount of the ready money be inconsiderable, and the value of the
other property greatly superior to that of the money both in specie and in paper—
there is evetg reason to presume that the husband meant to bequeath to her as well the
money due him a8 that actually contained in his coffers. On the other hand, if the
woman be rich—and if the amount of the ready specie be very considerable, and the
money due greatly exceeds in value all the other property—the probability is that the
husband meant to bequeath to his wife his ready money only.

By the same rule, we are to interpret a clause in the utmost latitude that the strict
and appropriate meaning of the words will admit, if it appears that the author had

_in view everything which that strict and appropriate meaning comprehends; but we
must interpret it in & more limited sense when it appears probable that the author of
the clause did not mean to extend it to everything which the strict propriety of the
terms might be made to include. As, for instance, a father, who has an only son, be-
queaths to the daughter of his friend all his jewels. He has a sword enriched with
diamonds, given him by a sovereign prince. In this case it is certainly very improb-~
able that the testator had any intention of making over that honorable badge of dis-
tinction to a family of aliens. That sword, therefore, together with the jewels with
which it is ornamented, must be excepted from the legacy, and the meaning of the
words restricted to his other jewels.

I read this for the purpose of showing that the mind of the legal
tribunal does not stop when it looks at the four corners of an instru-
ment; it is then as active as ever to bring into play all the implica-
tions which are apparent, to see whether the words used were used in
a literal sense, or were used in another sense, and these implications
are ?erfectly Vproper to be looked to in cases of that kind. Proceed-
ing further, Vattel says: The headnote is: “We ought to reject every
interpretation that leads to an absurdity.”

Every interpretation that leads to an absurdity ought to be rejected; or, in other
words, we should not give to any piece a meaning from which any absurd consequences
would follow, but just interpret it in such a manner as to avoid absurdity.

I have here Baron Phillimore’s work on international law, Volume
II, third edition, in which he discusses the construction of treaties—
not so fully as Vattel, but he has a section on the particular idea that
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was last advanced by Vattel. I shall read section 81, page 109.
Phillimore classifies the different kinds of interpretation as authentic,
usual, grammatical, logical, and historical. The authentic is where
you refer to some exposition of the treaty by the two nations them-
selves. The usual is where they have put a contemporaneous con-
struction upon the treaty by their joint action. The grammatical
is simply a dissertation on the philological meaning of the words.
The logical is bringing into play all the logical inferences growing
out of the situation and’ circumstances, as applicable to the language
of the treaty and construing it in connection therewith. And the
historical is a resort to the history of the negotiations to fix what the
parties meant. He closes, under the head of both logical and his-
torical construction, with a discussion of impropriety in the use of
language, language which expresses more or less than the parties
intended to express. I read from section 81: '

Under the second branch of logical interpretation, we have to consider cases of
doubt arising from the impropriety of the expression employed; that is to say, cases
in which the expression does convey a meaning, and abstractly considered, an unam-
biguous meaning, but one which, when the circumstances are considered. evidently
does not convey the meaning intended by the author or authors of the instrument
in which it occurs.

In such cases. is the word or the intention to prevail? It must be answered. that
ag the only function of the word is to express the intention, to sacrifice the latter
to the former is to prefer the means to the end. The Roman jurists justly said of
laws. “Non hoc est, verbum earum tenere, sed vim ac potestatem;” and not less
justly of contracts, “In conventionibus contrahentium voluntatem potius, quam
verba spectari placuit.”

Cases of this character exhibit a much less varied form than those in which the
doubt arises from the uncertainty of the expression.

The impropriety of the words to express the meaning arises, when the words convey
more or less than the meaning of the person using them. In the former case the
impropriety of the expression is rectified by a narrowing or restrictive interpreta-
tion (interpretatio restrictiva), in the latter by a widening or extensive interpreta-
tion (interpretatio extensiva). .

The object of both kinds of interpretation is identical, namely. to bring the ex-
Fression in unison with the thought; and the necessity and justification of both is
ounded upon the hypothesis, that the thought is as demonstrably clear as the
expression is evidently improper. Although, therefore, this kind of interpretation
has been ranged under the class designated as logical, it manifestly is also of an
historical character, necessitating a recurrence to the record of the facts which pre-
ceded or accompanied the formation of the treaty; and here again we must have
fecourse to the general rules of interpretation which have been already laid down

He refers there, of course, to the rule that you must not depart
from the plain manifest rule, unless there are grounds plainly show-
ing in the transaction to justify it.

r. PowrrL. I call your attention to Hall, who is the most
authoritative text-book writer on international law of modern times.
Hall lays down a very distinct and definite series of propositions
relating to the subject.

Mr. Tur~ner. I have read Hall on the subject, and I do not under- °
stand that Hall takes any different position from the other authors.
His language as to following the plain: meaning of the treatf' is to
be understood just as the language of Vattel and Baron Phillimore
is to be understood. In fact, if your honor has read the full dis-
cussion in Hall, you will remember that he referred to the treaty
between France and England providing for the demolition of the
fort at Dunkirk, which commanded the English Channel. The
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French King while demolishing Dunkirk was proceeding to build
another and more extensive fortification at 2 leagues distance,
which would have commanded the Channel better than the Dunkirk
fortifications. England protested that the spirit of the treaty was
that there should be no fortifications commanding the Inglish
Channel and that that was what they had agreed to demolish Dun-
kirk for, and that therefore the spirit of the treaty rather than the
literal words must prevail. And  Hall says that that view was
coincided in by both Kings upon the principle that where the situa-
tion requires it the natural sense of the words rather than the literal
sense has to be taken, when both senses do not agree.

Mr. PoweLL. That is, if there are two constructions of a treaty,
one of which leads to an absurdity, that construction must be taken
which does not lead to absurdity.

Mr. TurNER. Yes, sir; you dre presumed to take the natural and
reasonable meaning of the words, rather than the literal meaning,
where one can see that it would lead to conclusions that were never
intended.

There was not any evidence in that case of the Dunkirk forti-
fications—just an implication. Because they had agreed to demolish
the Dunkirk fortifications, the implication was that that was done
in order that France might not be able thereafter to command the
English Channel. That is just the character of the implications
which we insist are to be drawn in this case in order to give this
treaty a reasonable meaning, and one within the purpose which
must be reasonably imputed to the two countries.

I have here a list of cases in England and the United States upon
this subject. I shall not read them, but I should be glad to hand
them to the Commission. ‘

Mr. PowgrL. Have you the case of Stradling ». Morgan (1 Plowden,,
199) ¢ This was a case decided in the sixteenth century, I believe.

Mr. TurnNer. I direct the attention of the Commission to the
language of the Supreme Court of the. United States in the case of
McKee v. United States (164 U. S. 20). These rules of construc-
tion apply to the interpretation of statutes, as well as of contracts,
and treaties. We go back to the terms of the civil law for all our
rules of construction, which are equally applicable to contracts,
treaties, and statutes, with one exception: That in treaties and con-
tracts you must look for the intention of both Earties, whereas in
the case of statutes, you have to look only for the intention of the
legislatures. In the case which I have mentioned, the Supreme
Court of the United States says:

It is the duty of the court to ascertain the meaning of the legislature from the words
usged in the statute and the subject matter to which 1t relates, and to restrain its opera-
. tion within narrower limits than its words import if the court is satisfied that the
litéral meaning of the language would extend to cases which the legislature never
designed to embrace in it.

I cite also the case of River Wear Commissioners v. Adamson, Law
Reports (1 Q. B. Division, 546), where it was said:

It accords with Tord Coke’s rule and a rational sense of what is suitable to ascertain
what were the circumstances with reference to which the words of the statute were
used and what was the object appearing from thoge circumstances which the legis-
lature had in view. -
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of them, in the irrigation of their lands; therefore, that each country
was vitally interested in securing to itself its fair share of the waters.
Now, manifestly, without attempting at this time to assume any-
thing extraneous, the two rivers which were to be divided by this
treaty were international waters, in the sense that T have suggested;
and, manifestly, the purpose of the two countries was to divide these
waters evenly between themselves. That is not only a necessary
implication; the treaty itself provides for the equal division of these
waters. Then there is added the word “tributaries” to the descrip-
tion of the waters to be divided. Now, what was the reason for
the addition of the word “tributaries” ? Vattel, in another section
of his work, says that when you can find a reason for the use of a
word or expression you have a certain key to the meaning of the
word or expression. Now, it seems to me, that the reason for the
inclusion of this word ‘“ tributaries” is very plain. The negotiators
saw, on looking over a map of these rivers and their tributaries, that
one country, unless restrained by the treaty, might seriously impair
the flow of one of these rivers by monopolizing to itself the tribu-
taries of that river arising within its own borders and flowing into
that river within its own borders, and might thereby prevent the
other country from having its half of these waters as the treaty con-
templated that it should have—its half of their natural flow. They
saw also that there were tributaries arising in the other country and
flowing" across the border before joining the main stream-—them-
selves international streams—which the other country might wholly
monopolize unless restrained by the wording of the treaty. There-
fore, instead of writing the waters to be divided as ‘“the waters of
the St. Mary and Milk Rivers,” the drafters of the treaty wrote it
“the waters of the St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their tributaries
in the State of Montana and the Provinces of Alberta and Sas-
katchewan.”

Now, I say, that is the only plausible reason that can be found for
attaching the -word ‘“tributaries” to the description of the waters to
be divided. I defy any man to lay this treaty down upon a map in
which the waters of these two rivers and their tributaries are deline-
ated and find any other logical reason for the inclusion of the tribu-
taries in the description of the waters to be divided. There we have
the reason for the inclusion of these tributaries, and the word must
be circumscribed within the reason. The reason was to prevent the
diversion of these tributary waters from the principal streams, which
might have been done by the two countries but for the restraining
words. With this reason in mind, it is wholly and utterly impossible
to apply the word ‘‘tributaries” to these tributaries away down in
southern Montana which have no common character at all, which
Canada never claimed, and which it would be utterly impossible for
Canada to make any use of if she had ever claimed them. But our
friends on the other side reject this logical conclusion and say that
this word “ tributaries,’”’ inserted in the treaty by the makers of the
treaty for the reason which I have indicated, must be read literall
on this old canon of construction which they pick up out of Vattel.
If that contention be permitted to prevail, there will be brought into
this treaty, for the division of international water, waters that have
no international character, waters that belong wholly to the United
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And in Queen v. Clarence (I.. R. 22, Q. B., 23), Lord Coleridge said:

If apparent logical construction leads to results which it is impossible to believe
those who framed it contemplated, and from which one’s own judgment recoils, there
is good reason for helieving that such cases can not be within the true construction
of the statute.

Now, I want to go forward and consider whether the consequences
that would flow from the acceptance of the Canadian contention are
admissible consequences within the rule as laid down by inter-
national writers and by the courts. In doing that, I want to avoid,
for the time being, the historical evidences m the case and to con-
sider the matter purely by the light of the subject matter, the sur-
rounding circumstances, and the wording of the treaty.

Senator Walsh yesterday pointed out in considerable detail, so as
to prevent me from having the necessity of following him in that
respect, the particular waters that were mvolved here. I may say,
in short, that there are two rivers which cross the international
boundary from one country to the other, and their tributaries, and
that in the main they are waters that may be said to be intérnational
or quasi international. Now, I agree with what Col. MacInnes said
in his arguments, that it is not accurate to call these waters inter-
national waters, because international law has never given such
waters an international status. T believe that within the strict law
of nations the United States might have monopolized all these waters
without committing any offense against international law, if it had
been deaf to the claims of a generous international comity. Yet
inasmuch as the waters flow from one country to the other and can
be made valuable to both countries, a just comity and a decent regard
for the offices of good neighborhood require that they be dealt with
from the standpoint of the respective interests of the two countries.
In that sense it is not inappropriate to call them ‘international
waters’” and in what I have to say on the subject 1 shall refer to
them hereafter as international waters. ’

Now, there are a few inferences that we can draw as we go along.
One of them is that neither country was interested in, or can be
presumed to have expected to get, any waters flowing wholly in the
other country; neither could have expected to get any benefit from
waters flowing wholly in the other country. They must both be
presumed to have been interested in waters that were common to
them, and which, by reason of that fact, possessed this quasi-inter-
national character, and were capable and suceptible of actual physical
division between them if each was permitted to have its share of the
natural flow.

Another implication which I think the Commission ought to con-
sider is that inasmuch as the waters rise in the United States and
might have been monopolized by the United States, without com-
mitting any offense against international law, this treaty was based
on a generous comity between the countries; therefore, neither nation
can be presumed to have intended to get, or to have thought that it
was going to get, any more than its fair share of the waters.

Another fact which we see growing out of the subject matter, is
that the countries on either side of the international boundary in
the vicinity of these waters is such that either country might ulti-
mately use all the waters of these streams, if permitted to have all
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States, waters that Canada has no claim to either under the rules of
international law or under any generous principle of comity; waters
which, in fact, Canada never made any claim to and which it is
impossible for Canada to make any beneficial use of if it ever had
made any such claim and that claim had beenr admitted and allowed
by the United States. I say that any such result is preposterous
and absurd and at once opens up every avenue of construction per-
missible under any of the canons of construction laid down by the
courts and by international writers.

The one-sidedness and great inequality in the bargain made between
the United States and England with reference to these waters, if
the Canadian contention prevail, is brought out vividly when we
consider the extent of these Montana tributaries which it is thus
sought to bring within the purview of the treaty under the canon of
construction to which counsel on the other side refers.

Mr. PoweLL. Senator Turner, I cite this case of Stradling v. Mor-
gan, to which T have referred. I would like gentlemen on the other
side to discuss it, and while you are on your feet you also might as
well do so, if you think fit. This case was decided in the sixteenth
century; it has for the last 25 years been before the House of Lords,
and the decision there has met with unqualified approval. To my
mind this decision is the most philosophical discussion of this point
I have found, and I have had to delve into this matter a great deal.
It says: o

From which cases it appears that the sages of the law heretofore have construed
statutes quite contrary to the letter in some principles, and those statutes which com-
prehend all things in the letter they have expounded to extend but to some things,
and those which generally prohibit all people from doing such an act they have inter-
f)reted to permit some people to do it, and those which include every person in the
etter they have adjudged to reach some persons only, which expositions have always
been founded upon the intent of the legislature, which they have collected some-
times by considering the cause and necessity of making the act, sometimes by com-
paring one part of the act with another, and sometimes by foreign circumstances.  So
that they have ever been guided by the intent of the legislature, which they have
always taken according to the necessity of the matter and according to that which is
consonant to good reason and good discretion.

Mr. TurNER. It seems to me to be an excellent statement; it is
entirely in consonance with what I have read in books on interna-
tional law and with the cases which I have cited.

Mr. PoweLL. The only comment I have ever seen on this—and I
have been through all the English cases; at one time I had to pre-
pare a brief of 100 pages on this very question—emphasizes the point
that if the words of the legislature were so plain that you could not
get over them, absurd as they might be, you had to abide by them.

Mr. Turner. Well, I do not understand that that is the general
doctrine.

Mr. PowgLL. That is the general English doctrine.

Mr. TurnEr. No matter how plain the words are, if I understand
the doctrine, if they lead to an absurd or impossible consequence,
considered humanly, then you may resort to any of the canons of
con(sltruction for the purpose of seeing in what sense the words were
used. .

Mr. PowsLL. The strongest expression of that doctrine in modern
law is given by Lord Esher in the case of Plumstead Board of Works
v. Spackman (English Law Reports, Q. B. Div., 13). The legisla-
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ture, in literal terms, had said that a man was to pull down a house
on his own property and pay the cost of tearing it down in the public
interest, though he had violated no law. Lord Esher said that in a
case of that kind it is the duty of the court to strive with all the intel-
lect that he has and all the force of his soul to put & construction upon
the act which does not lead to such an absurd and improper and un-
just conclusion. But if the words of the act leave no room for escape
as to their meaning, we must abide by them.

Mr. TurnEr. Now, sir, I want to show the Commission from the
evidence in the case here what these tributaries are which it is sought
to bring within the purview of the treaty and to charge to the United
States as a part of its share of these international waters. I refer
first to Mr. King’s table, put in at the Detroit hearing, as to the extent
of these intrastate tributaries of the Milk River. 1 quote from page
61:

All United States run-off into Milk River wholly in Montana:

Above Havre. . ... . e 105, 000
Lost River. ... . i e 2, 960
- 102, 100
Havre to Malta, 151,600 —86,600... ... ... ..ot eeean 65, 000
Malta to Hinsdale. ... ... ..o .. i 298, 106
Cottonwood Coulee..... . ... ... ... .. ... 7,700
Frenchman River....... ... .. . ... .. ... ... 48, 900
Rock Creek headwaters. .. ... i veeetiiieinenenn- 4,700 . 61,360
236,740
Below Hinsdale. ... o e 72, 400
017 476, 240

Making six intra state Montana tributaries that flow into the
Milk River, with a total run-off of 476,240 feet. Now, Mr. Com-
missioners, it will be seen when we look at the testimony in the case
that this estimate is well within bounds. Mr. Peters, at the St. Paul
hearing, page 163, says:

The totals for the St. Mary are 735,000 at Kimball. The total at the mouth would be
807,000 acre-feet, 'The total of the flow of the Milk River at its eastern crossing, plus
the flow of the northern tributaries at their respective crossings, is from 310,000
acre-foet to 330,000 acre-feet. In giving the flow of the Milk River { gave it as'from
120,000 to 140,000 acre-feet.

That is a little larger than the amount given by Mr. King as the
flow of the Milk River.

Mr. CLark. Senator, I do not understand that. At the St. Paul
hearing, page 163, Mr. Peters says that the total flow of the Milk
River at eastern crossing, plus the flow of the northern tributaries
at their respective crossings, is from 310,000 to 330,000 acre-feet.
That means from the northern tributaries east from the crossing, as
I understand it ?

Mr. TurNER. Yes, sir.

Mr. CLarx: Then he says;

In giving the flow of the Milk River I gave it as from 120,000 to 140,000 acre-feet.

Now, I do not reconcile those two statements.

Mr. Tur~er. He gives the flow of the tributaries as 189,000 acre-

feet, and the total flow of the river and those tribytaries as 330,000,
which would make about 140,000 feet as the flow of the Milk River.
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Sir WiLriam Hearst. He means, Senator Clark, I think, that the
total flow of the Milk River and its tributaries, crossing the inter-
national boundary, is from 310,000 to 330,000 acre-feet; but if the
Milk River proper is——

Mr. TurNgr. I quote from Mr. Peters’ testimony, page 168, of
the St. Paul hearing: '

1 would like to complete the estimates I was giving of these stream flows, by add-
ing that to get our estimate of the annual flow of Milk River at its mouth there should
be added the canal diversions, estimated at 38,000 acre-feet, making the total average
annual flow of the Milk River at its mouth 732,000 acre-feet. 1 would further add
that our estimate of the amount of water available for irrigation in St. Mary River
has been baged on estimates at Kimball and amounts to 735,000 acre-fect. [ would
add also that our estimate of the amount of water available for irrigation on the Milk
River hafs been based on the measurements made at Hinsdale and amounts to 660,-
000 acre-feet.

Now, if there be 735,000 acre-feet flowing at the mouth of the
Milk River and there is to be deducted from it the flow of the northern
tributaries crossing the boundary and the natural flow of 89,900 feet
of the Milk River proper at the crossings, that would leave in the
neighborhood of the amount of water claimed by Mr. King in this
table—450,000 acre-feet.

But, may it please the Commission, Mr. Peters’ estimate did not,
nor did the estimate of Mr. King in this table, take into consideration
the innumerable tributaries flowing from the Little Rocky Mountains,
the Bear Paw Mountains, and the Sweet Grass Hills, which had
been taken out by locators and diverted, and which never reached
the Milk River and so were never measured among the waters of the
Milk River, yet which, within the meaning of this term, if the con-
tention of Canada prevails, are tributaries of the Milk River to be
considered in this division. Now, Mr. Newell says about these tribu-
taries, at page 207 of the St. Paul hearing:

It should be understood that the run-off at Hinsdale is considered to re pregent
the whole discharge recorded of the river from the area in Canada and the United
States, and does not include the amount diverted at higher points.

And further:

Above Dodson, the water requirements under valid rights initiated prior to Novem-
ber 2, 1903, on the following-named creeks tributary to Milk River exceed the prob-
able mean annual run-off: il’ud, Savoy, Wayne, Thirty Mile, Foggy, Upper Beaver,
Box Elder, Clear, and Snake. The remaining tributaries above Dodson afford a
suﬁplus over the requirements under such prior rights at flood periods for a few days
only.

We get from Mr. Newell the sources, then, of these uncounted
tributaries. But we get an idea of the extent from what Mr. Sands
said about them. At page 213, Mr. Sands said:

At that time the treaty, I believe, was under consideration. I have also been over
very many of the tributaries and know considerable about the irrigation of the small
ditches throughout this entire territory. I would say that it would be impossible to
determine what is the flow of these streams, because these streams rise very suddenly
and fall very suddenly. Very many of them are only dry coulees. The water flows
for only a few hours, so it would be practically impossible to determine what the
flow is. This is one reason why we supposed that no account would be taken ‘of the
flow of water in any of the tributary streams in the Milk River that did not flow through
Canada. This would be, as I'said, so practically impossible that we never conceived
that there could be any idea of attempting to measure the streams in the United
States or determine what their flow was. It has been suggested that you could measure
the streams at their mouths, but to determine what their fiow is you would have to
know what is taken out above, for in time the tributary streams could take all the
water that flows in.
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Now, I turn to page 214:

Therefore, if the interpretation of the treaty as contended for by my Canadian
friend should be accepted, it would require the determination of the quantity of
water that flows through these small tributary ditches, hundreds of them. It would
be impossible.

He says, “hundreds of them.” Mr. Newell said in his testimony
that there were 2,320 of these locations upon the reaches of the
watershed of the Bear Paw Mountains, the Little Rockies, and the
Sweet Grass Hills. Mr. Bien, at a later date, fixed the amount of
water diverted in these little streams at, I believe, 573 second-feet,
which Mr. Powell rather hastily figured out, along with the other
waters of the Milk River, at 1,500,000 acre-feet. s

Mr. MacIxnes. Where is any statement of that kind made by
Mr. Newell to be found? :

Mr. TurnEer. I could not turn to it at the moment, but it is here
somewhere; he fixed the number of the locations by private settlers
on these lands at'2,320, I think. If it is desired, I will endeavor to
find the statement and give the page to my learned friend when I
have an opportunity to do so.

Now, let me go a little further with Mr. Sands’s testimony, page 217:

I know there are appropriations which are dependent quite largely from streams
flowing from the south. It is suggested by one witness, | do not know but that even
one of our own witnesses said, that the strears from the north and south are practically
the same. Well, gentlemen, from my own knowledge, I know they are not.” The
streams from the south flow from the Bear Paw Mountains, which is quite a distinct
chain of mountains, north into the Milk River. The Little Rockies are also a very
pronounced and rugged mountain chain, but they are not so long as the Bear Paws.
The Sweet Grass Hills compare well with the Cypress Hills in Canada, hut the waters
from the Bear Paw Mountains constitute a very large portion of the water that flows
into the Milk River, much larger than anything that comes in from the north, and the
streams are very much steadier as the mountains have snow upon them until quite
late in the season. The rainfall seems to be much heavier, especially in the Bear Paw
Mountains, and there are many living streams from that source, whereas the streams
from the north are nearly atl intermittent and usually dry up when the weather gets
dry late in the summer. ’

And again at pages 258 and 259:

Andin the fifth place I state that it is apparent from the testimony which has been
adduced here that if the construction contended for by the Canadians is true, we will
have to turn the Milk River and run it up hill and back to Canada.

Mr, Mransuwr. T do not think the commission would attempt to do that. -

Mr. Sanps. And yet that seems to be the contention of the Canadians. T will take
that proposition first. .

The testimony here shows that the Milk River and the St. Mary deliver at their
mouth practically the rame amount of water, without taking into consideration the
streams which flow from the Bear Paw Mountains, the Little Rocky Mountains, and
all that territory south of the Milk Riverin the United States, That was the testimeny
of Mr. Peters and of the witnesses, that the two streams were practically the same,
when they congidered the amot nt that 1s measured at the mouth and the amount that
is taken out along the Milk River. I believe it includes a small amount taken out
by two ditches in Battle Creek which deliver water on the Milk River lands. Now,
understand me, the testimony here shows that if there iz a very large area south of the
Milk River,.that its tributaries have %ecn appropriated years ago, and T want to say
that this is the most highly developed portion of northeastern Montana to-day; that
is, the land that slopes from the Bear Faw Mountains to the north. The Bear Paw
Mountains is a string of mountains 60 miles long, and from it flow streams that run the
year round in almost every season, They are big streams, and by reason of the fact
that the rainfull in the mountain regions is very much heavier than to the north,
where there are no mountains, the water that comes from the Bear Paw Mountains is
almost one-half of the water that flows into the Milk River in its natural condition.
1 have been there and I know what T am talking about. There are flowing from the
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Upper Bear Paw Mountains, commencing on the west, the Big Sandy, Box Elder,
which is a branch of Big Sandy, the Beaver (reek, which alone, in my estimation,
flows as much water as either Battle Creek or I'renchman in its natural condition,
We have two Box Elders flowing into the Bear Paw Mountains, There is Clerk Creek,
on which there i3 g high state of development, and there are thousands of acres irri-
gated from that stream. Tt is so highlv developed by reservoirs and irrigation ditches
that there is seldom at present any of the waters of that stream that reach the Milk
River, but in its natural condition a very large volume of water flowed into the Milk
River, even better than Lodge Creek and pcrhaps equal to Battle Creek, because it
flowed a steady stream. Such being the condition, these waters having been elimi-
nated from the figures submitted by the engineers here, it would appear that Milk
River is a stream at least once and a half as lurge as the St. Mary, and that in order to
make an equal division of the waters we must furnish the (anadians with large volumes
of water from the Milk River, a larger volume than could possibly flow past the canals
in (anada from the Milk River. Istated the fact that if a division must be made on the
basis here stated the (anadians would take all of the waters that flow down the Milk
River, all of the waters that flow across the international houndary line, as berne out
by the paper which bas been submitted here by the engineers. II you go over it
you will see that we would bave to deliver back to Canada from the Milk River a
portion of the waters of the Milk River and have ncne of the waters of the St. Mary.

Mr. Peters says that the average flow, taking the data they bave of the Milk River,
is 735,000 acre-feet per annum. The annual flow of the St. Mary River is 807,000
acre-feet per annum in the average. There is a slight difference in favor of the St.
Mary River there, Concede that much. This takes into consideration 38,000 acres
of waters which had been diverted prior to reaching the mouth of the Milk River.
That is included in the 735,000, but that iz all that is inclided. They do not include
the waters of the Bear Paw slone, which 1 say to you will exceed a good deal more than
one-quarter, or nearly one-half, of the waters that would naturally flow into the Milk
River, and which bave not been taken into consideration at all. Therefore, it is
clearly apparent—don’t you catch my point, Mr. Mignault—it is clearly apparent
from the figures taken that the Milk River is much the larger stream, I say cne and a
half times, and 1 think I say it advisedly, the size of 8t, Mary. If that is the case,
there would be no purpose in the United States taking the waters of the St. Mary
and bringing them over into the Milk River, because they would have to he delivered
back in order to make an equal division,

 Now, Mr. Sands is familiar with all the country about which he is
talking here, and his statement stands upon the same basis as the
statement of any other gentlemen in this case. Besides, it does not
require any testimony for this Commission to understand the situation
in that country. It is a matter of which the courts may take judicial
notice, and of which the Commission must take judicial notice; the
Commission must inform itself, in any way that it pleases, of every
ph;Fsica.l and geographical fact bearing upon the case.
The Commission took recess for luncheon until 2,30 p. m.

AFTER RECESS.

Mr. TurNERr. Col. MacInnes asked as to the page on which 1 found
the statement 'of Mr. Newell that there were 2,332 water rights
negotiated on the watershed of the Little Rocky Mountains, the
Fort Belknap Mountains, and the Sweet Grass Hills. You will find
that statement made on pages 194 and 195 of the St. Paul hearing,
‘but it is not quite what I said it to be. Mr. Newell states there are
that number south of the international boundary in Montana, but
from the statement of Mr. Sands I should judge that the greater part
of them were on the Bear Paw Mountains, and the watershed of the
Bear Paw, and the Sweet Grass Hills. When the noon recess oc-
curred, I was finishing the statement of Mr. Sands on the subject
of the amount of the water. At page 260 Mr. Sands continues:

That provision of the treaty is absolutely nugatory if you take into consideration
the physical faets which have been presented to you. )
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Mr. MacInnes. Read further; read Mr. Powell’s question.
Mr. TurNER (reading):

Mr. PowsLr. Your contention is plain if the facts bear it out.

Mr. Sanps. The hydrographs and the testimony here bear me out.

Mr. Powernn. That will be for us to look into.
~ Mr. MicNavLr. So far as the facts are concerned, I am not yet convinced.

UMY GLENN . You say that these ventlemen did not take into consideraticn the water
you are speaking of south of tt e line, what vou call the Bear Paw water?

Mr. SaNvs. Yes; the rivers from the Bear Paw Range.

Mr. GLEnN. And you say if vou take these waters, which they did not take into
consideration, plus the waters in the Mitk River that they did take into consideration,
the two combined would be more than the amount of water in the St. Marv River?

Mr. Sanps. Yes, sir: by nearly ore-half, If vou lock at the map, that will be more
apparent. It was st ted by Mr. Newell that the basin of the Milk River is bounded
by the Sweet Grass Hills on the south, then by the Bear Paw Range, then by the
Little Rockies. It is bounded on the north only by the Cypress Hills. The Cypress
Hills do not compare in size with the Sweet Grass Hills, and mostly all of tt e flow from
the Sweet Grass IHills flows over into the Marias River, or into the Milk River, exclu-
sively on American scil. Coming next to the Bear Paw, the mountains there are as
high as 6,500 feet. It isa large mountain range, and from that large streams flow into
the Milk River in the United Stater, and from that there is the highest state of devel-
opment in that section of the State. These lands have been developed as early as
1890. Thev were the first lands develcred. They were develored even before those
in the Milk River Valler, and all of these streams have ditches and numerous reser-
voirs are built there.

Mr. Powrrn, What acreage is there?

Mr. Saxps. 1 should say it far exceeds the area in the Milk River Valley.

Mr. Powrir. Fifty thousand acres?

Mr. Sanps. It would exceed 100;000. I think there are 150,000 acres of land in the
Bear Paw and Little Rockies, all in American territory and all south of Milk River.

Neither did these figures take into consideration the flow of streams from the north,
other than the one stream mentioned, namely, the Battle ('reek. They did not take
into consideration the irrigation from the West Fork of Lodge Creek, as you call it.
The Lodge Creek irrigation in the United States i very large. They did not take into
consideration tha irrigation from Parallel Creek, which is large; they did net take into
consideration large streams along the way. o I tell you frankly, I do not believe if
you measure the Mitk River that the figures there given are more than two-thirds of
the entire flow. :

Mr.MagraTH, What, in your opinien, is the acreage that is irrigated on these
ptreams in Montana, which flow from the north into the Milk River?

Mr. Sanps. The North Chinogk Trrigation Associaticn is probably one of t e largest
and I think they have approximately 6,000 acres. Then there are numerous small
frrigation projects. :

I suggested this morning, and I believe on legal grounds it is well
founded, that it is the duty of this Commission to find any possible
fact existing as a physical fact in connection with these waters. It

is their duty to do so whether anyone has said anything about it or

not. If a suggestion is made by anyone which the Commission can

know to be in accordance with the facts, they should act upon it.

I now cell attention to Mr. Bien’s statement which is to be found
at page 299 of the St. Paul record. Mr. Maclnnes was speaking and
the following oceurred:

Mr. GLeENN: ‘Mr. Sands made the statement this morning that the Milk River and
the Bear Paw River combined would exceed all the water in the St. Mary River.

Mr. MacInngs. I have been informed by Mr, Burley 'that that is not correct; that,
as 2 matter of fact, the figures which the Canadian engineers present as being the lower
éﬂilk. River Valley waters are larger, according to the United States Reclamation

aetvice, ’

Mr. Bien. 1 thinkitbat condd be made clear by a brief statement. Mr. Sands stated
that these tributaries in the Bear Paw country were not measured, and that very little
of that water ever came to Milk River.  Consequently, it does not show in otir records
a8 being measured, because the wator has never been in the Milk River to-be mensured.
That is where he took issue with me thismorning., 1 wag notaware thatgo.much water
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bad been used on these tributaries. We have in the record the statement of Mr.
Newell, which is the result of an examination of each of these tributaries, examiring
the ditches now constructed and in use and the lands which are under irrigaticn.
I have here a summary of that, which shows that the total valid appropriaticn from

thio streams in that Bear Paw tountry, very Tittle water of Which gees into the Milk
River, is 797 second-feet.  We can not put that in as measurement, but I simply
quote it in conne~tion with Mr. Sands's statement that a very large proporticn of the
water falling within the Milk River drainage basin in the United States, and south of
thie main river, has not been measured and has not been accounted for in any of the
figures that have been presented.

Mr. Pownrt. The total you make is about one million and a half?

I presume the reference there is to 1,500,000 acre-feet.

It may be safely said in view of this that the Montana tributaries
flow at least 500,000 acre-feet beyond any question.

Now, what is the total flow of the two rivers and their tributaries
outside of that? The St. Mary River, at the boundary, according
to Mr. Stevens, flows 720,000 acre-feet; the Milk River, at the eastern
crossing, according to Mr. Stevens, flows 89,900 second-feet. And
the Canadian tributaries of the Milk River, according to Mr. Peters’
statement, page 163 of the St. Paul record, amount to 189,000 acre-
feet, making a total of 998,900 acre-feet.

Now, sir, it will be seen that these Montana tributaries flow one-
third of the waters of the international tributaries and the Montana
tributaries combined, and if you throw all these waters into a hodge-
podge and divide them evenly, Canada will get three-fourths of the
international water, and the United States will get one-fourth,
leaving it to make up the other 500,600 feet, to which it is entitled,
out of these various Montana waters, waters to which Canada has
never made any claim, and whieh it would be impossible for Canada
to use beneficially, even if any claim of that kind had ever been made
and recognized.

We get perhaps & more vivid view of the effect of this proposed
construction of 513 treaty by our Canadian friends when we consider
the nature of these two rivers and their river systems. The St.
Mary River, which furnishes the bulk of the water for Canada, is a
stream that is fed from the glaciers of the Rocky Mountains. The
flow is steady, regular, and dependable, commencing with-a mini-
mum at the advent of spring and increasing gradually to a maximum
in the middle of summer, and then decreasing gradually during. the
fall months until the advent of winter again brings its minimum flow.
The waters are easily controlled for the purposes of irrigation, and
all of them, except the extreme peak of the waters, during the
maximum flow in the middle of summer, may be applied beneficially
to the lands in Canada. C

The Milk River on the other hand and all of its tributaries, both
those flowing from Canadian source and those flowing from Montana
source, if they are to be included, are flood streams receiving their
flow from the rainfall on the low hills and plains which form this
watershed. These floods flow off rapidly, are of extraordinary
amount when they do flow, and because of their rapidity of flood,
according to the testimony of Mr. Newell, it is impossible to impound
more than a very small quantity of the flood water, of the Milk
River and its drainage basin.

It is impossible to put these flood waters to any beneficial use.
They are of no benefit to either country unless it be to Canada in
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having these useless waters rising and flowing wholly in the United
States computed as part of the waters that are to be divided between
the two countries, tEereby largely increasing the dependable flow of
waters which Canada is to receive under this treaty. Now, gentle-~

men of the Commission, when you consider the peculiar character
and idiosyncracies of these two rivers and their tributary systems,
it will be seen that the United States has practically contracted itself
out of court, so far as the dependable waters of these two streams
are concerned, if the contention of Canada be permitted to prevail.
It will not do to say that the waters which the United States may
collect at the source of the St. Mary during the winter and early
spring months, and the waters which 1t may divert from the big flow
during the summer flow, will give it a dependable and reliable sup-
ply o% water for irrigation. We know from the testimony in the
case, showing the irrigable area of lands in Canada that can be
watered by these streams and the possibility of storage there, that
the time will come when Canada will demand every drop of water
to which she is entitled under this treaty, and that, as we have seen,
will be three-quarters of all the international waters and at least four-
fifths of all the dependable waters of these two streams. When we
consider that the negotiators of this treaty had at their elbow trained
experts who had been familiar with these streams and their tribu-
taries and all their idiosyncrasies for years, I ask the Commission is it
explicable on any theory of reason and common sense that the negoti-
ators of the United States dagreed to the treaty which learned counsel
for the Dominion:of Canada is here insisting that they agreed to?

I have made these comparisons solely on the basis of the waters
that actually reach the Milk River, but the thing is perfectly
staggering when we consider the waters that are properly tributar
to the Milk River, but which are diverted and never reach the Milﬁ
River, and which, as Mr. Sands very graphically said, would have
to be repaid to Canada, if the contention of Canada prevails, even
at the expense of making them flow uphill. There are some legal
propositions, gentlemen, that are apparently fair on their face, which,
when pushed to their logical :sequence, produce results so startli
and extraordinary as to shock the conscience of a judicial tribunal.
will not say that learned counsel for Canada have knowingly and
intentionally put. forward a proposition of that kind, but I say that
that is the effect of their proposition. Having put it forth, they
have not made.a claim for tﬁese other waters flowing from the water-
sheds . of the Little Rockies and the Bear Paw and the Sweet Grass
Hills, which otherwise they would have made a claim for because
that would explode their contention. I said in the beginning that
the results were so extraordinary as to permit any course of con-
struction which was at all permissible under the canons of construc-
tion laid down by the writers on international law and by the courts;
and I think I have sustained that proposition when we consider
what these waters are which it is eontended are to be brought within
the equation under the construction of our Canadian friends, and
that that justifies the elaborate examination of the history of the
negotiations made by Senator Walsh yesterday. I shall not under-
take to repeat that examination in my own remarks. It is un-
necessary, mn the first place, and I could .not hoEe to present it as
_ graphically and as forcibly as it was presented by Senator Walsh.
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It is true, as stated by him, that never from the commencement of
negotiations down to the time when the papers disappear into the
council chamber of Mr. Root and Mr. Bryce was there a suggestion
from any quarter that any waters were to be brought within the
equation to be covered by that treaty, except the waters flowing
from one country to the other, and which, by reason of that possessed
a value to each of the countries and might be used beneficially by
each of the countries.

Senator Walsh made the same argument at Detroit, and I read the
argument of my friend, Col. MacInnes, very carefully to see how he
had countered these irrefragable evidences furnished by the history
of the negotiations. I may say that while I admired the ability and
ingenuity with which he presented the case of Canada, almost going:
to the extent of making the worse appear the better case, I thought
his argument was very deficient in the attempt to meet the historical
evidences, and I venture to say that his argument on this oceasion
will necessarily betray the same deficiency with respect to that
particular matter, because it is impossible to answer the evidences of
the negotiation of this treaty from beginning to end without seeing
that the negotiators never had these Montana tributaries in mind.

Now, how did learned counsel counter the tremendous and over-
whelming effect of these historical evidences? He said that there
was much bargaining back and forth as to the quantity of water that
Canada should get out of the negotiations, and as to the basis of the.
apportionment, and that a deadlock occurred between the negotiators
on these two points, and at the last moment the negotiators threw
over all the understandings before that had, and made a treaty pro--
viding for the division of these waters on a new basis. This is not
the exact language of Col. Maclnnes, but it is the substance of what
he said. Lest it be thought that I am misquoting him, I want to.
read what he did say on that occasion. I shall refer to what he said.
on pages 125, 126, 129, 131, and 132, although I am not going to read
all these pages. . Referring to the prior drafts which had been put in,
Mr. Tawney said (125): -

Well, the use of these prior drafts in any cage, as it is stated by Senator Walsh and
others, is only for the purpose of showing that in the previous consideration of the-
matter nothing excepting the two main rivers and their tributaries that cross the-
boundary or were international waters was even considered. In other words, that
the tributary waters entirely within the State of Montana and belonging either to.
the State or to its inhabitants were not even referred to or mentioned in any previous
drafts. That, as I understand Senator Walsh’s argument, is the only sense in which.
the previous drafts were referred to.

Col. MacInNEs. Yes; and on that discussion my point is that they came to a block.

Mr. TawneY. Not as to those waters.

Col. MacInnes. Yes; that is just what they did; they came to a block ag to the-
amount of water Canada could get out of these negotiations, and Canada said: “We
quite agree; we appreciate your wanting to protect your pricr appropriations, and so
on, but still we must have more water.”

Then on page 129:

Mr. PoweLr. Senator Walsh says that these imaginary conversations took place all
through without the Milk River ever entering into them at all. e says that the
agreement was expressed more broadly in the treaty than it appears anywhere in the-
negotiations.

Jol. MacInnes. Well, yes; when they wanted to put it into narrow language they
wer{} practically unable to do it in a satisfactory way, as they showed by their previous
drafts. .
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Col. MacInngs. I think “practically unable” should read ““per-
fectly able.”

Mr. TurNEr. I should think the sense was ‘‘ practically unable,”
but my friend knows what he meant to say. To continue the quota-
tion from Col. MacInnes:

When they wished to give a narrow interpretation, the interpretation which my
learned friends pretend should be given, they were quite unable to express them-
selves as one would expect, but when they came to express the true meaning of the
_ parties as the agreement was, it wag found necessary to put it in broad language.

Mr. P(Q)WELL. And you say thay abandoned the narrow meaning evidently for some
purpose?’ .

Col. MacInngs. Yes; for some purpose.  And one sees, by looking at these drafts,
that they were arguing back and forth, and Canada was not satis’ed. The only
project she set up was that if it were international there would be no prior appropria-
tion, which was rejected by the United States. And then, both parties having come
to a block, they came together and reached the solution, and here we have it in the
treaty.

Again, on page 131:

Mr. GrenN. Taking all these former drafts and the correspondence, etc., in every
single instance they speak of streams crossing the boundary and of boundary waters;
but at the last moment in Washineton, in the treaty itself. those expressions do not
avpear, and Canada gets more than half the waters. Is that your contention, Col.
Mac{nnes?

Col. MacInngs. Yes: to this extent, that Canada gets in the result a larger amount.

Mr. Grenn. Now, can you point out to me any docinment or any testimony in this
case which brought ahout that sudden change of mind on the part of these two Gov-
ernments just before they made this treaty?

Col. MacInNes. Yes, Gov. Glenn, I can; I have pointed out that they absolutely
could not agree. .

Mr. GLenNN. Why, the last proposition made by Sir George Gibbons himself did
not reler to those tributaries.

Col. MacInnes. That is true; but you see that the Governments could not agree
on that ground.

Mr. GrenN. Well, look at page 93 of the transcript.

Col. MacINNEs. Yes; that is Mr. Newell. Mr. ( ‘ampbell having made the sugges-
tion that we might have equal divisions of streams crossing the boundaries, but an
allowance being made for prior appropriations.

Mr. GLeENN. Well, can you show e where the change came in and why?

Col. MacInnNgs, Well, as [ said a moment ago, on the 29th of December they were:
putting forward these two different proposals, one proposing a division of the waters
that crossed the boundary and leaving out any prior appropriations. Then Mr.
Newell comes-back and suggests a division of the waters crossing the houndary, but.
says there must be prior appropriations. So you see they are at a deadlock.

Now, may it please the Commission, while the record of the prior
negotiations discloses some divergency of views, as to the basis of the.
division of thése waters owing to the fact that there were commit-
ments in each country for w%ich each thought it ought to have a
prior right in the waters, and the insistence of Canada on that point,
as you will see from the negotiations, was stronger than that of the
United States, this divergency of view had entirely disappeared when
the papers were whipped into shape by Secretary Root and Mr. Brﬁ?ce
and their assistants, Mr. Anderson and Sir George Gibbons. When
the papers came to them, there had been entire coneurrence hetween
the negotiators on an equal division of these waters considered strictly
in their character as international waters, and I propose to show the
Commission that that fact is absolutely true. At page 88 of the St.
Paul proceedings, referring to the somewhat extravagant claims of
water made by Mr. King in his first memorandum of April, 1908, Mr.
Newell made these declarations concerning the division of these waters.

1
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Mr. Newell is talking strictly here about the international waters, be-
cause he refers to the decision facilitating an entire understanding of
the problem presented by the international features of the St. Mary
and Milk Rivers. On page 88 he says:

The principal feature of the plan of November 11, 1905 (sent to Hon. James Brree
June 15, 1907), is the equal division of available waters. To define or regulate this
distribution, certain rules are suggested: these are subsidiary to the general scheme
of equal share. This is regarded as extremely liberal, as nearly all the waters arise
in the United States. In return for protection of an equal share of the flow the United
States suggests that Canada give safe conduct down Milk River for the share of stored
water falling to the United States. Unfortunately, the privy council minute of
March 2, 1908, seems to indicate that ('anada is not satisfied with this proposition
based on equality. It is not believed that any proposal to give ("anada more than
half the water can be entertained, although the details ag to how this hallf may be
ageertained are open to discussion.

Mr. King in his memorandum of December 23, 1908, in reply to this
memorandum of Mr. Newell, agrees with Mr. Newell on the principle
of an equal division of these waters. In the last paragraph but five
of his memorandum on page 92 of the St. Paul proceedings, Mr. King
says:

It seems desirable, in the first place, to agree upon a general principle of division
of the water. The wide variance between the proposals of the parties to the present

. discussion seems to show the disadvantage of dealing with complicated details without
a definite fundamental principle to guide.

The principle of equal sharing of bene”ts, with compensation by quantity of
water, suggested by the undersigned, doubtless has a disadvantage in depending for
its application upon agreement as to details.

That is, as to assigning a specific quantity of the waters of each of
the streams to one particular country. He goes on:
A principle which is free from this objection and is, moreover, a simple one, is

that of equal division of water on the boundary streams (each country providing for
its existing interests out of its ghare of the water).

Here we have on December 23, 1908, only 19 days before this treaty
was signed, concurrence between Mr. Newell and Mr. King on the
rinciple of an equal division of the waters of these streams, which
r. King calls boundary streams. Now, on December 29, 1908, Mr.
Campbeﬁ had succeeded Mr. King as the Canadian representative at
Washington—I understand that that was the character; I may be
mistaken-—in which he made his proposal. - For some reason he came
there and succeeded Mr. King, and we see from his proposal of that
date, only 13 days before the signing of the treaty, that the under-
standing still persisted with the negotiators on the part of the Do-
minion that the waters to be divided were the international waters,
and that the division was to be absolutely equal between the two
countries. Let us see what he did propese. His proposal is found
on page 93 of the St. Paul hearing and is dated December 29, 1908:
In all the streams which cross the international boundary, the waters of which are
used for irrigation, each country shall be entitled to the use of half the natural fow
as ascertained by measurement at the point or points where such streams cross the
international boundary. “Natural flow” means the fow of each river system from
all its sources which would pass the point or points indicated herein if no artif cial
obstruction had been placed in the stream, or any of its tributaries or sources, and if
no water had been diverted from or added to the fiow before reaching the point or
points indicated.
There are five paragraphs in this proposal of Mr. Campbell, and
each one of them specifically refers to the waters which cross the
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international boundary between the two countries. Mr. Newell's
rejoinder on the same dates shows his understanding to the same
effect. These are simply the different drafts to secure, evidently, the
principles which had been agreed upon of equal division of the waters
of these international streams. He says:

That the waters of each stream flowing acress the international boundary shall be
divided equally in quantity as nearly as practicable between the two countries;
thatis to say, the waters of St. Mary River and its tributaries crossing the international
boundary shall be meagured as they cross the boundary and an equal amount appor-
tioned to each country, due allowance being made for the quantity stored above the
point of measurement in reservoir or reservoirs constructed by the United States;
also the waters of the north and south branches of Milk River shall be measured where
they cross from the United States into ('anada, and the main Milk River and its
tributaries measured where they cross from Canada into the United States, allowance
being made for any water diverted or stored in either country before reaching the
points of measurement.

Here, again, only 13 days before the treaty was signed, we have
concurrence between the representatives of the two countries that
the waters to be divided were the waters that cross the boundar
line and that the division between the two countries was to be equal.
Now, somewhere between the 1st and the 9th day of January, the
latter being the date that the treaty was signed, Mr. Chandler P.
Anderson and Mr. Gibbons, as he then was, now Sir George Gibbons, -
appeared upon the scene. They were neither of them hydraulic
engineers, nor is it probable that either one of them had any very
extensive acquaintance with the waters which form the subject matter
of this treaty. Mr. Anderson was the counsellor of the State Depart-
ment at Washington and Mr. George Gibbons was a statesman high
in the councils of the then Canadian Government. Undoubtedly
they were called in to assist Mr. Root and Mr. Bryce in formulating
the entire treaty of 1909, of which Article VI forms but a part. It
was not their duty to negotiate; that had already been concluded.
It was their duty to write down and to reproduce, as nearly as the
imperfections of language would permit, the understanding already
arrived at. Kach of them prepared a tentative draft, and these two
drafts are found on pages 96 and 97 of the St. Paul hearing.

Mr. Gibbons's draft:

Articte VI, Itis agreed that for the use for irrigation the St. Mary and Milk Rivers
(in the State of Montana and the Province of Alberta) and their tributaries are to be
treated as one stream, and the total amount that can be diverted from the two for
such purnose is to be distributed so that each country shall have the right to one-half
of the whole, but in the distribytion more may be taken from one stream and less
from the ather by each country so as to afford a more beneficial use to each.

Sir George Gibbons in this draft makes it very general and drops
out the qualification concerning the character of the waters which
had always been found in all prior drafts and in all the communica-
tions up to this time. But not so the draft of Mr. Anderson. His
draft proceeds:

Articte VI, It is agreed that each country shall have the exclusive right to one-
half of the natural flow of the St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their tributaries, the
amount thereof to be determined at the points of storage and diversion and at the
boundary by measurements made jointly by the properly-constituted reclamation and
_rrization oficers on either side of the boundary; and the channel of Milk River in
1Canala may be used at the convenience of the United States for the coniveyance,

without interference, while passing through Canadian territory, of the waters of
either river stored in the United States and constituting any part of its one-half share.
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This draft of Mr. Anderson’s bears internal evidence that he under-
stood that there had been at that time no change in the character of
the waters about which the two countries were negotiating. His
provision for measurement at points of storage and diversion and at
the boundary bear very clear evidence of that fact, The points of
storage referred to by him were those contemplated by the two
countries, that of the United States to be at the source of the St.
Mary River and that of Canada at such convenient points as would

ermit them to divert waters both from the St. Mary and the Milk

ivers. The points on the boundary were necessarily those points
where the two streams crossed the {)oundary from one country to
the other, and the points of diversion were those points where the
United States had constructed or was in process of constructing, or
had contemplated, a diversion canal from the waters of the St. Mary
River, and that point on the Milk River where Canada had already
constructed a diversion canal.

The suggestion of counsel on the other side that the points of diver-
sion referred to by Mr. Anderson had reference to the thousands of
E{ivate locations and diversions made by locators in Canada and

ontana is absolutely untenable. 1t would take an army of men to
make these measurements at the thousands of points where water had
been diverted by private appropriators, and it would be impossible to
get the reports of the measurements made at the different points at a
sufficiently early date to coordinate them in order to make the
division of the waters which the treaty contemplates shall be made
from day to day. We see, then, that there was not any understanding
on the part of Mr. Anderson that there had been any change of view
concerning the waters to be divided or the quantity thereof. It may
be asked why did not Sir George Gibbons’s draft show the same thing?
I answer that Sir George may not have been acquainted with the

eculiar character of all the tributaries of these streams, and may not

ave understood the importance of the use of qualifying words in
connection with the word ‘ tributaries.” Or, if that suggestion had
been made to him, he might very well have answered in entire good
faith that qualifying words were not necessary in view of the history
of the negotiations, which showed so conclusively that the parties had
nothing in mind but the waters flowing from one country to the other.
Either one of these hypotheses is su%icient to account for the very
general manner in which he presented his draft.

Now, sirs, in view of this it will be seen that the contention of
counsel that Canada was making a strenuous and determined effort
at this time for more water, so strenuous and determined that the

arties came to a deadlock or, in the very gmphic language of Col.
&aclnnes, to a block, and that as a result of that block the negotia-
tors concluded at the last moment to make an entirely different
treaty, providing for the inclusion of these Montana waters, thereby
increasing the share of Canada of the international waters, is not
borne out by the facts of this case. After the concession of Mr. King,
in his communication of December 23, 1908, Canada never at any
time, in any of these negotiations, claimed more than one-half of these
international waters. It is true that the earlier negotiations dis-
closed that she did offer bases for a division of the waters which, if
accepted by the United States, would have given her the lion’s share

57208—21—5
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of the waters, but that was on the theory put forward by her strenu-
ously from the beginning that there were private prior appropria~
tions in Canada prior to any existing in the 8nited States, Wﬁi(}h she
was entitled to have recognized and provided for. So we see that
even from the very earliest period this doctrine of private prior ap-
propriations, which Col. Macfnnes said intervened at the last moment
to block these negotiations, was the peculiar insistence of the Domin-
ion of Canada in these negotiations. The United States never in-
sisted upon a recognition of prior private appropriations, Canada
did put forward that contention in nearly all of her communications.
Thus, in the order in council of June, 1905, at page 64, we find her
i.nsisting1 that there ought to be a recognition of these private prior
appropriations. The order in council says:

The minister of the interior, to whom the said dispatches were referred, observes with
respect to the conditions existing in the State of Montana and the districts of Alberta
and Assiniboia along the Milk River, to which the honorable the Secrctary of State
refers, it is manifestly in the interests of both countries that the waters of the St. Mar
and Milk Rivers should be conserved for the beneficial use of the owners of agricul-
tural and ranch lands through which these rivers flow, and that the Canadian Govern-
ment should join in an arrangement with the United States Government for the pur-
pose of attaining this end, due regard being had to the protection of vested rights in
conformity with the laws concerning the right to use water as recognized in both
countries.

The minister therefore submits that as the United States Reclamation Service has
been devoting much consideration to this matter, His Majesty's ambassador at Wash-
ington should be asked to invite the United States Government to suggest such a plan
for the settlement of all questions in reference to the waters of the &t. Mary and Milk
Rivers as would be acceptable to both countries.

Here we see the Canadian Government, through its council, very
anxious for a division of these waters upon a basis that would have
due regard to the protection of vested mghts in conformity with the
laws concerning the right to the use of water as recognized in both
of the countries. Bear in mind that Col. MacInnes is getting rid of
the effect of these negotiations by saying they had a deadlock on these
matters at the last moment. I am trying to show that there was no
deadlock, and that so far as this question of prior appropriations was
concerned, Canada was insisting on it more than the United States,
and that the United States never did in all these negotiations make a
proposition for a division based upon the recognition of private prior
appropriations. ) )

ain, in the order in council of March 2, 1908, at pages 67 and
68—this was in reference to Mr. Root’s proposition—commencing at
the third paragraph I find this: ’

That the Government of the Dominion was appealed to many years ago by persons
interested in southern Alberta to develop that district by the construction of a canal
system to divert water from St. Mary River and finally decided to take action in the
matter after reaching the conclusion from the reports of its own officers and other
engineers that the diversion of the St. Mary River could not be carried out in the
United States as a commercial undertaking. )

That the Government of the Dominion accordingly commenced a canal system for
the ‘utilization of the water of St. Mary River under a policy precisely similar to that
adopted by the United States under their Reclamation Act. )

That for various reasons the said Government, instead of constructing the cang.l
system as a public work, entrusted it to private capital without relinquishing their
administrative control under the irrigation laws of the Dominion. . ) .

That the irrigation company formed for the purpose of carrying out this project laid
out plans for the construction of an extensive irrigation system for the development
of a large tract of land and were given a term of years by the Government to complete
the canals which are essentially public in character. .
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That the construction of this canal system has been actively carried on and good
faith kept with the Government by the company.

That in 8o dealing with this project.the Government has innocently created vested
rights under the laws of the Dominion.

That under the most favorable circumstances the diversion of the waters of the St.
Mary River in the United States will seriously affect the rights so created, as well
as the public rights to the use in development of public lands of the natural surplus
water of streams flowing through the territory, not for the purpose of protecting similar
rights in the United States, but in order to create rights not now in existence.

And in conclusion:

That for these reasons, and in order to give a fair measure of protection to the vested
rights created in Canada, this country should receive considerably more water than
the proposed treaty provides for apportioning to it.

Who was clamoring here for the recognition of private prior appro-
priations? Take Mr. King’s memorandum of April 27, 1908, found
on page 83, commencing at the second paragraph:

The Alberta Railway & Irrigation Co. has made an appropriation of the waters of
the St. Mary River which would surely be held valid in the courts of Montana or of
the United States, werc the works of the company situated in Montana, or in another
State of the Union,

This appropriation, made under the laws of Canada, covers the low-water flow and
up to 2,000 second-feet of the high or flood stages. This appropriation was not an
improvident one. Before it was made it had been ascertained that the stated quan.
tity of water could be applied beneficially and without waste. The company have
prosecuted their works under their authorization with due diligence.

While the fact that the works of the Canadian canal do not hie in the United States
may involve difficulty in the establishment of the validity of the appropriation as
against subsequent diversions in Montana, it would seem only fair and reasonable
under the comity of nations that St. Mary River should be undisturbed to the extent
of allowing Canada to supply its commitments from that stream. ’

Who is clamoring here about a recognition of Igrivate prior aplpro-
priations? Then take the memorandum of Mr. King dated April 27,
1908, quoting from the second paragraph on page 83:

As to the Canadian company, however, the proposal is to terminate or limit existing
rights, and this, it is submitted, can not be done, under the laws on either side of the
boundary line, at a date fixed without the consent of the parties interested.

As is set forth in the minute of council previously referred to, the operations of the
Alberta Railway & Irrigation Co. have been in pursuance of a consistent plan dating
back many years. Their project contemplates the application to a certain tract of the
water which they have been authorized under the irrigation act to take. This authori-
zation was not an improvident one, nor given without previous careful consideration.
Before it was given the fact had been ascertained by surveys made by the Government
and the company that the authorized quantity of water could be applied beneficially
and without waste. " The company have prosecuted their works under their authori-
zation with due diligence. ‘

In these circumstances it is believed that under the laws as to reclamation of arid
lands in force in Canada, as well as in many States of the Union, including Montana,
the beneficial use by the company would begin at the initiation of the project, and that
the amount of water beneficially used would be determined by the courts as equal to
the ainount authorized, and thereby recorded against the stream.

Now, sirs, in view of all that, having disposed of the question of
the equal division of the waters, what is there in the contention of
learned counsel! that there was a deadlock because the United States
insisted upon recognizing prior appropriations? :

Sir WiLLiam Hearst. In view of your contention that the United
States was not much concerned about a recognition of the right of
prior appropriations, whilst Canada was clamoring for it, why did
not the United States at once accept Mr. Campbell’s offer to divide
equally the water flowing across the boundary and give up any right
to the prior appropriations on the part of Canada ?
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Mr. TurNER. I am just coming to that, if you will pardon me.
Mr. Newell’s proposition, which was in response to Mr. Campbell’s
proposition, did not propose, as counsel seems to think, any recogni-
tion of prior appropriations. It simply provided for a prior right in
each of the Governments for a certain quantity of water, that of the
Dominion being 400 second-feet of the waters of the St. Mary River
and that of the United States being 359 second-feet of the waters of
the Milk River, after which the waters were to be divided equally
between the two countries. So far from this being any proposition
to recognize prior appropriations, it was a grant of a prior right to
ea’h of the two Governments en bloc, and to each of the two Gov-
ernments in their governmental capacity.

Mr. PowsLL. Don’t you think it was just assuming the appro-
priation ¢

Mr. TurNER. No, sir. I do not think it was doing anything except

iving each Government a prior right to so much water. It was to

e given to each of the countries in their character as political entities
and they could do whatever they pleased with it. Canada could not
tell what the United States might do with that water, nor could the
United States tell what Canada might do. No doubt 1t was with the
idea that each country might have a sufficient quantity of water to
provide for the commitments which existed in the two countries.

Now, sirs, to show that there is absolutely nothing in this idea
that there was any deadlock in the negotiations because the United
States was insisting on prior appropriation of waters, this draft of
Sir George Gibbons, which followed almost immediately the draft of
Mr. Newell, makes the same provision, almost in the identical lan-
guage of Mr. Newell. It provides for this prior right of the two Gov-
ernments in each one of these streams, and more than that, gentle-
men of the Commission, the treaty which was written only four or
five days afterwards, provides for the same thing exactly in the lan-
ﬁla%e of Mr. Newell. Now, where is this terrific deadlock which Col.

aclnnes finds either as to the quantity of water the two countries
should have or upon this subject of prior appropriations? There is
nothing in it. It never existed. It is a highly picturesque flight
of the imagination, and that is all that can %)e said for it. If this
deadlock did exist, Sir George Gibbons did not know it. If it existed,
Mr. Bryce and Mr. Root did not know it when they wrote this treaty
in almost the language employed by Mr. Newell providing for these
prior rights in the waters. Nor was there anything in the quantity
of the water provided by Mr. Newell to create a deadlock.

Mr. MacInnes. The deadlock I refer to was not over Mr. Newell’s
draft of the 29th of December, but over Mr. Campbell’s proposition
of the 29th of December.

Mr. TurNER. There was not any deadlock there either, or Sir
George Gibbons and Mr. Root and Mr. Bryce very quickly unlocked
the deadlock if there was any. I say that in the quantity proposed
by Mr. Newell there was nothing to cause a deadlock. On the con-
trary, since his proposal gave Canada 400 second-feet of the waters
of the St. Mary River and the United States only 359 second-feet of
the waters of the Milk River, it will be seen that under his proposal
Canada was to get 41 second-feet more of these joint waters than the
United States was to get.
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Now, gentlemen of the Commission, I submit in all candor and in
all sincerity that when these papers came into the hands of Sir
George Gibbons and Mr. Anderson there had been complete concur-
rence as to the character of the waters which were to be divided,
and as to the quantity thereof which each of the countries was to
receive. More than that, there is absolutely no evidence in the record
to show any recession from that understanding by either one of the
countries after the papers came into their hands. So far as we know
or can see, no rift in the lute had occurred to mar the perfect harmony
existing between them. Now, sir, I say, that it is safer to assume
that the language employed by those who finally put this treaty in
shape was intended to carry out and effectuate tlgis understanding
arrived at, rather than to go off and hunt for unfounded and imagi-
nary grounds upon which to found a theory that the draftsmen of
this treaty at the last moment concluded to make a different treaty
from any ever in mind by any person in either one of these two coun-
tries during the entire Kistory of the negotiations. Tt is not only
safer to do that, but it is more in consonance with the law. When
a particular status once exists the law presumes that it continues
until the contrar{ has been shown, and this presumption has special
and peculiar application to a mental status. Whenever it has been
shown that a particular purpose and intention‘is entertained, with
reference to the performance of some contemplated act, that purpose
and intention is presumed to continue and to govern the act when
finally performed, unless there be satisfactory evidence that there
had been a recession from it by the party who previously held it.
Not only was there no recession here, and no evidence of any reces-
sion, but the evidence is very clear to the contrary. .

Now, gentlemen, we have the matter up to the final arbiters, Mr.
Root and Mr. Bryce. We can not enter the council chamber and
listen to the interchange of views that took place between them, but
we know the character of those men. We know that neither one of
them can be thought for a moment to have entertained any idea of
getting an advantage of the other. Undoubtedly, their purpose was
to effectuate and carry out in entire good faith the understanding
before that reached by the technical representatives of the two Gov-
ernments. They could not imagine that misunderstanding might
arise out of so simple a matter. Indeed, it seemed plainer and simpler
to them than it does to us now, because their knowledge of these
waters and their tributaries must have been superficial. No hint
had come to them of a claim by either country to waters entirely
local to the other country, and being unable to understand that any
such claim might ever possibly be made by either country, the idea
never entered their minds of guarding against it by qualifying words.
And so, in the haste of the moment, and under the necessity of econo-
mizing in space, because this stipulation was only one of a large
number of stipulations in the treaty of 1909, they wrote the broad
word “tributaries’” without qualification, unless, as Senator Walsh
has shown, and as I shall undertake to show, there was a qualifica-
tion of these tributaries in the language of the treaty. But outside
of that they wrote the broad word ‘“tributary” without qualifica-
tion, and this controversy is the result. Many similar international
controversies have arisen between countries before from the same
cause, that is, the inability of the treaty writers to understand or
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appreciate the different situations to which their broad and general
words might have application. All such controversies have been de-
termined in the past upon the broad and just principle laid down by
all the writers, that treaties between nations are covenants bone
fidei and are to be construed according to their spirit rather than their
letter and such I can not permit myself to doubt will be the deter-
mination of this controversy here by this intelligent and very im-
partial international tribunal.

I want to pass on very briefly to another contention of learned
counsel. He insisted very strenuously that there was an inconsist-
ency between the United States claiming the northern tributaries,
originating in Canada and flowing across the border before they
joined the Milk River, and claiming that Canada was entitled to
111{(} rights in any tributary flowing into the Montana end of the Milk

iver.

Mr. PoweLL, What bothers me probably more than anything else
about this whole matter is this. When these negotiations drew to a
close, we find this condition of affairs., It was anticipated that there
would be 500 second-feet or thereabouts or three-quarters of the
flow of the Milk River going to the United States. That leaves a
3uarter of the flow, making the total 666% second-feet. It was evi-

ently in their minds that there was not only a possibility but a
probability of that being the case. Further than that, this is not
during the flood season, but exclusively during the period of irriga-
tion. How do you account for that? When there is not 200 second-
feet unless you go away down stream and take the whole Milk River
into account.

Mr. TurnER. I suppose that fact troubles you because it raises an
implication that the parties intended to take in these Milk River
tributaries. But, sir, if you look at Mr. Newell’s last proposal-—he
was one of the technical experts in the United States—his proposal
was to give this prior right in the Milk River to the Uniteg States,
and his proposal groceeded strictly upon the proposition that the
waters to be divided were the waters crossing the boundary. So
evidently when he proposed this priority, he did not have these lower
waters in Montana in consideration at all. It is utterly impossible.
I am unable to account for it except upon the theory that Mr. Newell
must have been mooning about that matter, and forgot there would
not be any waters in the Milk River during the irrigating season.
But, manifestly, his proposal was for the division of waters crossing
the boundary, and it provided for this priority to the United States.
These negotiators could not be su pose(f to know there would not be
any water there, when Mr. Newell, the writer of the treaty, did no#
know it. So they just followed the drafts provided by him,

Mr. PowzLL. 1t seems incomprehensible that these people did not
know there was no water there.

Mr. TurNEgR. Itisincomprehensible to me, but neither country need
be very much concerned about whether a particular quantity of water
they were to have was in the particular system or not. The two
rivers were to be considered as one stream. If there was no water
in the Milk River, the United States would be entitled to have the
water in the other river, except during the irrigation season.

Mr. PoweLL. That is the only season that bothers me.
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Mr. TurNER. So the United States may have concluded in Mr.
Newell’s estimation that there would be some water in the Milk River,
possibly that the United States would have stored from the spare
waters of the St. Mary River enough water to make up during this
irrigating season what the- United -States” was “giving up in the St.
Mary River. That is the only theory on which his action is expli-
cable, but manifestly his action did not proceed on the theory that
these southern tributaries of the Milk River were to be brought
within the equation, because if we look at his last proposal here of
December 29, 13 days before the treaty was signed——

Mr. Crarx. When you speak of these southern tributaries in
Montana, you refer to those that enter the Milk River after it crosses
the boundary from Canada into the United States ?

Mr. Tur~nER. I am referring to the Montana tributaries alone.

Mr. Crark. You refer to those that enter the river after the river
crosses into Montana from Canada ?

Mr. TurNER. Yes.

Mr. Crarx. Those that rise after the stream crosses into Montana
for the last time before it reaches the Missouri?

Mr. TurNER. Yes. Here is Mr. Newell’s proposal:

That the waters of each stream flowing across the international boundary shall e
divided equally in quantity as nearly as practicable between the two countries.

And further on: *

Inasmuch as the water of the rivers have widely different values at different times
of the year, and have especial value during the irrigating season, this latter shall be
taken as including the time from April 1 to September 30. A priority to the right to
the use of a portion of the water of St. Mary River shall be recognized as appertaining
to Canada to the amount of 400 second-feet, the amount now put to beneficial use;
and, thus, in the event of the natural flow of the 8t. Mary River at the international
boundary being less than double this amount—namelv, 800 second-feet—then the
United States shall waive for the time being its claim to the full equality of the natural
flow during the irrigating season as above defined, and shall permit a full flow of 400
second-feet to pass the boundary. * * *

On the Mitk River, also, there shall be recognized as existing a priority in the United
States to an extent of 359 second-feet of the natural flow of Milk River, and this amount
of the natural flow shall he allowed to pass from Canada into the United States without
diminution of the natural flow of the stream during the irrigating season when the river
and its tributaries yields this quantity or a less amount.

and so forth, Manifestly, when Mr. Newell provides for this priority
out of the waters of the Milk River, he is talking about the Milk River
before it crosses the international boundary, and he is talking about
water that we now know probably will not be there for one season
out of three. It is possible that Mr. Newell, for the moment, had
forgotten about the idiosyncrasies of this river when he made this
{iroposal. At any rate, Mr. Bryce and Mr. Root had this proposition

efore themn when they made the treaty, and they assumed that the
technical representative knew what he was talking about, and they
provided for the same thing, except that they gave a little larger
quantity. They gave 500 second-feet to each instead of 400 second-
feet to Canada and 359 second-feet to the United States. It does not
involve any implication whatever that anybody had in mind the
drawing into the equation of these Montana tributaries.

I want to go on with this supposed inconsistency in the position of
the United States in insisting on including these Canadian tributaries
which cross the boundary before they join the Milk River, and in
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insisting on excluding the Montana tributaries. 1 say that there is
not any inconsistency. The Canadian tributaries were these inter-
national streams that cross the boundary and were capable of division.
The Montana tributaries had no international character whatever,
and they were incapable of division. There had been no previous
claim on the part of anybody connected with the Canadian Govern-
ment insisting upon any right in those waters.

Mr. Crark. Would or would not the same controversies arise as
between the settlers on the tributaries and on the main river?

Mr. Torner. They did arise. ‘

Mr. Crark. And therefore, in your opinion, they would be subject
to the same consideration ?

Mr. Tur~er. History shows there was complaint on the part of
American settlers against the diversion of these tributaries. The
history of the negotiations shows that while Canada never at any
time mentioned those Montana tributaries, these Canadian tribu-
taries were mentioned on both sides during the negotiations. They
were expressly included in Mr. Root’s draft treaty of June 15, 1907,
found on page 66 of the record. He first provided (page 66) for
the waters that were to go to the United States. Then he provided
for the Canadian share in these words:

(d) All water of St. Mary River crossing the international boundary into Canada,
notin excess of 2,000 cubic feet per second.

(e) All water of Milk River, and its tributaries, diverted in Canada for use in its
territory, excluding any water of St. Mary River turned into Milk River by Canada
and which has been measured under item (d).

So that here Secretary Root refers to these Canadian tributaries.
The reply of the privy council to this proposition of Mr. Root’s was
on March 2, 1908, page 68. I do not read that but I note and call
the attention of the Commission to it, that they did not in that reply
anywhere take issue with Mr. Root’s proposition that these northern
tributaries in Canada be charged to Canada as a part of these waters.
Mr. Newell’s memorandum of October 15, 1908, expressly refers to
these northern Canadian tributaries. In that memorandum on
page 88, speaking of the surveys of the United States, he says:

The surveys begun in 1900 have been steadily followed up, and on March 25, 1905,
the sum of $1,000,000 was allotted to begin the work now being carried on. The fact
that the Dominion Government took upon itself the determination as to how the
waters should be used without consulting the United States, and that it has attempted
to dispose of the waters of Milk River which rise in the United States and pass through
a part of Canada has aroused a very deep feeling. This is steadily aggravated by the
fact that Canada is permitting the tributaries of Milk River to be diverted, namely,
West Fork or Willow Creek, North I'ork or Battle (‘reck, Frenchman Creek or White
Water, and Rock Creek, in spite of the fact that these waters have been appropriated
undorthe laws of Montana and already put to bencficial use.

These tributaries referred to by Mr. Newell are the northern
Canadian tributaries which cross the boundary before they join the
Milk River. Mr. King’s reply of December 23, 1908, 1s at page 92:

As to diversions in Canada from the four tributaries of Milk River mentioned in
Mr. Newell's memorandum, the authorizations have becn restricted to the actual
necessities of individual settlers. 'lhe authorizations, with the strict system of
inspection, operate as a restraint against excessive use of water rather than the opposite.

The (‘anadian Government would have been ready to consider any representations
made on behalf of the settlers on these creeks south of the boundary line, but none
appear hitherto to have been made, and not even in the draft treaty of 1907 nor in
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Mr. Newell’s present memorandum is any remedy proposed on their Leball. Tnder
clause 5 (c) of the draft treaty—

that is the Root treaty—

Canada would apparently be entitled to all the flow of these streams north of the
boundary line.

Just as I stated. They were included by Mr. Root in the waters
that were to be given to Canada. Now we come to Mr. Campbell’s
draft of December 29, 1908:

In all streams which cross the international houndary, the waters of which are used
Tor irrigation, each country shall be entitled to the use of half the total natural fiow
as ascertained by measurement at the point or points where such streams cross the
international boundary. ‘‘Natural flow’’ means the flow of each river system from
all its sources which would pass the point or points indicated herein if no artificial
obstruction had been placed in the streamn or any of its tributaries or sources, and
if no water had been diverted from or added to the flow before reaching the point or
points indicated. '

Mr. PoweLL. That proposition would exclude the southern tribu-
taries.

Mr. Turner. Certainly it would, but it would include the northern
tributaries. I am attempting to show that Canada has consistently
from the start recognized that these northern tributaries were tribu-
taries that entered mnto the equation, and therefore that there is no
inconsistency in the United States insisting upon their division, and
at the same time insisting that the Montana tributaries are not sub-
jected to division. Now, the most convincing evidence is Mr. Gib-

ons’s telegram to Mr. Anderson, found on page 97, in which he sug-
gests adding the Province of Saskatchewan to the Province of Alberta
as a description of the territories in Canada from which these tribu-
taries come. Sir George Gibbons certainly understood that the Sas-
katchewan tributaries were to be divided. Otherwise, he would
never have insisted upon the addition of the word ‘Saskatchewan”
to this treaty. I notice there is more or less speculation as to why
Sir George said that. Col. MacInnes in his argument at Detroit, gave
a very good reason for it. There need not be any mystery why he
suggested the Saskatchewan tributaries. At page 128 of the Detroit
hearing, Col. MacInnes says, in reply to a question by Mr. Glenn:

Yes; I think this was the reason that Saskatchewan was added. When some
one-—

that is, Sir George Gibbons—

got home he looked at the map and said: “Hello, here is a geographical description
where it speaks of tributaries being in the State of Montana and the Frovince of Alberta
and I find that some of there tributaries are in Saskatchewan. The description is
bad.”” That is all I think it was.

That speaks well for Sir Geor%e Gibbons as an honorable, upright
negotiator, and also for his enlightened statemanship. He wis ed to
see everything which in good faith ought to go into this treaty included
in it, in order that the just rights of both might be protected inthe
treaty, and that those things which had heretofore given cause for
disagreement between the two countries might all be bound up in
this treaty and be thereby ended. That concludes all I desire to say
on the historical aspects of this case.

I want to add a few words concerning the logical method of con-
struing this treaty. I say that it is not necessary to go back to these
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historical evidences of the negotiations to show that the contention
of Canada is utterly and absolutely unfounded. If we look simply
at the face of the treaty and read it, we see that it referred to the
waters of two particularly described rivers and their tributaries, and

that the division of those waters was to be equal between the two

countries. The question now arises, What are the waters that come
within that description—that is to say, “the St. Mary and the Milk
Rivers and their tributaries in the State of Montana and the Prov-
inces of Alberta and Saskatchewan”? Now the only waters coming
within that description that are capable of division are those waters
that flow across the boundary, which, by reason of that fact have a
quasi-international character, and which by reason of that fact both
countries can make a beneficial use of if permitted to have their fair
share of their natural flow. I say that the natural, necessary, and
conclusive implication is that those were the waters intended by this
treaty to be divided. I say that this Commission can not assume that
either one of these countries had any interest in, or intended to claim
any interest in, waters wholly local to the other country, and that it
must assume that their interest pertained and pertained alone to
those waters that were common to both of them. These are impli-
cations which the Commission is compelled to draw. They are
abstract implications which are necessarily inherent in the subject
matter of this transaction and in the wording of this treaty.

Now if the division be made upon a basis of the international
waters which are capable of being divided, it will be seen that each
country gets one-half of the waters, just as the terms of this treaty
provides, but if the contention of Canada be sustained and these

ontana tributaries of the Milk River be included in the waters to be
divided, then, as I have heretofore shown, Canada will receive three-

uarters of these international waters —and the waters which furnish
the raison d’etre for this treaty, and the only waters which furnish
it—while the United States Vﬂﬁ get only one-quarter of the waters.
I say that any such result is contrary to the intention manifest on the
face of this treaty. Where do we get any inkling on the face of this
treaty of a purpose to include these Montana tributaries? Nowhere,
unless it be in the unqualified use of the word ‘ tributaries.”” Canada
says that that word, being unqualified, must be read literally, and
therefore will include the Montana tributaries as well as the inter-
national tributaries. But, gentlemen, I say that no reading of any
contract or treaty is pecmissible which produces results so shocking
in their inequality and so contrary to any purpose which may be
reasonably imputed to either one of these two countries. Judicial
tribunals decline to pursue any kind of construction to results so
extraordinary. They stop short in such cases and, in the language
of Mr. Hall, give a reasonable sense rather than a literal sense to words
when the two senses do not agree. I say that the reasonable sense
here is that the tributaries referred to by the treaty are those which
either add to the flow of the main streams before they cross the
boundary, or which themselves cross the boundary before joining the
main stream and are themselves international tributaries. This
reasonable sense is the logical sense. Since the treaty was about
the waters of two international streams, the natural implication
arising from the association of the different parts of the treaty re-
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quires the word “tributaries” to be read in the same sense as inter-
national tributaries. If that which is so clearly implied on the face
of this treaty were expressly written in the treaty, this implication
would stand out with great distinctness. If the treaty had read
“the two high contracting parties agree to divide equally between
themselves the waters of two international rivers and their tribu-
taries, to wit, the St. Mary and the Milk Rivers,” then the implication
would be irresistible that the tributaries referred to were the tribu-
taries that appertained to these rivers while they were still inter-
national rivers, or tributaries that were themselves international
streams and crossed the border before joining the main stream. I
want to beg the pardon of the Commission for presenting two or three
other views of the logical construction of this treaty.

A strong indication of the meaning of this article is found in the
direction for the apportionment and division of the waters between
the two countries. Apportionment means division, and I state that
with great confidence, because I have looked it up in the dictionaries,
and the words apportionment and division are used interchangeably
in the article. The apportionment and division here directec% is an
actual and physical apportionment and division. It is to be made
from time to time by the reclamgtion officers of the United States,
and the properly constituted irrigation officers of the Dominion of
Canada. It is to be made daily, and sometimes twice a day, because
the treaty provides that where the exigencies of one country are
greater than those of the other it may for the time being be supplied
with the greater portion of the water. These measurements have
to be made all the time. These gentlemen have to be on their job
there all the time. This division provided here therefore is an actual
g‘l;ﬁfsical division of these waters to be made from time to time.

ile it is to be equal in the long run, it may be unequal and dis-
roportionate at times to meet the exigencies of the two countries.
his is the reason for committing the measurement and apportion-
ment to the reclamation and irrigation officers of the two countries.
If, then, the apportionment and fivision is to be actual and physical,
it is evident tﬁat it was intended to be confined to waters that were
susceptible of actual and physical division. But that can not be
said of waters that have passed from one country to another, or of
waters wholly within one country. They are beyond the power of
actual physical division. It is possible, of course, to charge them
to one country or the other as a part of the waters to which it is
entitled, but that is not what the article provides for. It provides
for their actual apportionment and division, and that is only possible
of waters passing from one country to the other. Waters which may
be measured and apportioned, so that a certain quantity may be
detained in one country, leaving another certain portion to pass
down for use into the other country. If this be the meaning of the
several provisions for apportionment and division, and for measure-
ment and apportionment, and I respectfully submit that no other
meaning can be attached to them, then it fixes and defines beyond
doubt or cavil the waters intended to be divided. They are waters
susceptible of actual physical division, and necessarily waters and
waters only that cross the boundary from one country to the other.

Mr. PoweLL. You think there is a necessary implication there?
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Mr. TurNER. I think that is a logical implication. I think the
Commission is bound to find that this is a provision for actual
physical division and apportionment.

lgylr. PoweLL. In respect to waters which the Commission have it
in_their discretion to allot to Canada, if they see fit to do so?

Mr. TurRNER. Yes, or the United States, as the case may be. I
desire again to insist on the contention put forth by the United
States at the former hearings and presented by Senator Walsh
yesterday, that the words of Article VI “in the State of Montana and
the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan,” are words of limitation
rather than words of description. The St. Mary and Milk Rivers
are the only two streams of those names on the American continent,
whose waters may be treated as one stream and divided between the
two countries. Therefore, as words of description the addition of
the words ““in the State of Montana and the Provinces of Alberta and
Saskatchewan’ were wholly unnecessary. As words of limitation
they were necessary, or at Kaast desirable, to avoid misconstruction
with respect to the tributaries intended to be included.

Now, sirs, taking the words as a limitation, as I think they must be
taken, they require these tributaries to be both in Montana and in
the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan. The use of the con-
junctive particle “‘and,” in the phrase ‘‘in the State of Montana and
the Province of Alberta,” necessarily implies, if the word is to be
given its literal meaning, that the thing referred to must be in both
the State of Montana and the Province of Alberta. It is true that
the conjunction ‘““and” is frequently given the meaning of the dis-
junctive “or”’ in legal construction, when the context or the: sur-
rounding circumstances indicates that the latter meaning was in-
tended.  But in order to thus transpose the meaning of the word,
we must resort to construction—something that our friends on the
other side say can not be permitted. We on this side, however,
say that it may be permitted, and we say further that if construction
be resorted to, it only confirms the contention that the words in
question are words of limitation, because the limitation that they
provide for is in strict conformity with what the history of the case
shows was the intention of the parties.

The contention that the words are words of limitation is strength-
ened when we remember that in the osiginal draft of Sir George
Gibbons the words ‘‘and their tributaries’” followed instead of pre-
ceded the words ““in the State of Montana and the Province of Al-
berta,” thus leaving the word ‘‘tributaries” without any qualifica-
tion whatever. In the treaty as finally concluded, however, the
words ‘“and their tributaries’’ were moved forward so that they
preceded the words ‘‘in the State of Montana and the Provinces of
Alberta and Saskatchewan.” Grammatical arrangement did not
require this transposition, and it is impossible to suggest any good
reason for it, except that it was intended that the words ‘‘in the
State of Montana and the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan’’
should limit the character of the tributaries intended to be included
in the apportionment and division of the waters provided for.

Two c{)ifﬁculties were suggested at the former hearings to treating
the words as words of limitation. First, that there are no tributaries
that are at one and the same time in Montana and in the Province



/
ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS. ™

of Alberta and in the Province of Saskatchewan, and therefore that
the words are inapplicable considered as words of limitation. They
are, however, also inapplicable for the same reason considered as
words of description. The Commission will remember that the
Province of Saskatchewan was inserted at the last moment on the
telegraphic request of Sir George Gibbons.

It is fair to assume, I think, under these peculiar circumstances,
that the Province of Saskatchewan was added, not to make an addi-
tional limitation, but to broaden the limitation already made; that
is to say, to put in apposition the State of Montana on one side, and
the territory, considered as a whole, of Alberta and Saskatchewan
on the other. The word “or’’ as a connective particle would have
been more appropriate in hitching on the Province of Saskatchewan,
but since there-are no tributaries that are at the same time in Mon-
tana and in each of the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan, the
disjunctive rather than the conjunctive particle must be understood.
The draft as first prepared read “‘in the State of Montana and the
Province of Alberta.” Here there was no difficulty in reading the
words as a limitation, namely, that the tributaries referred to must
be tributaries flowing both in Montana and in Alberta. Manifestly,
the hitching on of the Province of Saskatchewan at the last moment,
because it was found that some of the tributaries flowed across the
boundary from that Province, was not intended to change the essen-
tial purpose of the limiting words.

The second difficulty suggested grows out of the fact that there are
certain tributdries arising in the United States and flowing into the
St. Mary River, and also into the Milk River, before the latter rivers
cross the boundary, and which therefore can not be said to flow as
tributaries in both countries. This difficulty, I confess, is more
serious than the one first suggested, but it seems to me that the
solution suggested by Senator Walsh is sound, namely, that these
tributaries were not in the minds of the treaty makers when they
made the limitation, because they became added to the flow of the
main stream before the latter crossed the boundary, and were con-
sidered as a part of the main stream to the natural flow of which,
plus their tributaries, Canada was entitled under the designation
““the St. Mary and Milk Rivers.” I want to say this about the diffi-
culty of harmonizing the different implications which arise on
treaties and contracts. Sometimes it can not be done. This was
a treaty about a complicated matter and it was evidently concluded
by gentlemen who were not very familiar with the complications
with which they had to deal. Therefore, as we find in a great many
‘treaties, you can not harmonize &bsolutely every contradiction
which you find growing out of the treaty. There are bound to be
ragged points which you can not close up, and there are many con-
tracts and many treaties of that character. The fact that one or
more such inconsistencies exist in a treaty is no argument against
trying to find the real true genuine gurpose of the treaty and apply-
in%uit according to that purpose and intention.

r. PoweLL. Suppose you are dealing with cattle ranchers; sup-
ose this big man in Calgary, Pat Burns, has three ranches, one in
ontana, one in Alberta, and one in Saskatchewan? Would not the

natural meaning—I am not ruling out a possible meaning—of the
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expression ‘“Pat Burns’s ranches in the State of Montana and the
Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan” be that he had a ranch in
Montana alone, and & ranch in the Province of Alberta alone, and a
ranch in the Province of Saskatchewan alone?

Mr. TurNEgR. I think that is true, sir.

Mr. Powerr. I am not suggesting that yours is not a possible
meaning.

Mr. Tus~veRr. If Pat Burns had a ranch, half of which was in Al-
berta and half in Saskatchewan, and that was described as a ranch
in Alberta and Saskatchewan, the necessary implication would be
that it must be in both those territories at the same time. So,
when the original draft here referred only to Alberta there is no
difficulty in applying that meaning to the description, “in the State
of Montana and the Province of Alberta” and because we find these
streams to exist in both those territorial subdivisions. My proposi-
tion is that the hooking on at the last moment of Saskatchewan, at
the request of Sir George Gibbons, no doubt being done hurriedly,
was not inteuded to change the sense in which the phrase ‘“Montana
and the Province of Alberta’ was used, which was a limitation rather
than a description. :

Mr. PoweLL. I am not suggesting that Scnator Walsh’s construe-
tion or interpretation does violence in any way to the English lan-
guage, because 1 recognize it as a possible construction.

Sir Winrniam Huarst. If Pat Burns owns ranches, some entirely
in Saskatchewan, some entirely in Alberta, and some entirely in
Montana, and some on the boundary line between Alberta .and
Montana, or between Saskatchewan and Montana, ﬁartly in one
country and partly in another, and he devises to his son: “My
ranches in the State of Montana and in the Provinces of Alberta and
Saskatchewan,” do I understand you to say that the son would
simply take those ranches that were partly in Saskatchewan and
partly in Montana and those that were partly in Alberta and partly
mm Montana, and not those entirely in Montana or entirely in Sas-
katchewan or entirely in Alberta ?

Mr. TurNER. I do not understand anything of that kind. 1 insist
on the natural and sensible meaning of words rather than on the literal
meaning of those words, and in that respect I differ from my friends
on the other side.

I now pass to another point. It is presumed that different acts
passed at the same session, or at different sessions with respect
to the same subject matter, are imbued with the same spirit and
actuated by the same policy, and they should be construed each in
the light of the other. The (i)ctrine of construing acts in pari materia,
strictly speaking, has relation to different acts, but the same prin-
ciple prevails even more strongly in construing different parts of the
same act under the doctrine that the several provisions of an act
ought to be construed together, and each provision in the light of
every other provision. ‘

Now, looking at this treaty as a whole, we see that it has relation,
except as to questions submitted under Articles IX and X, exclusively
to boundary waters, or waters crossing the boundary from one coun-
try to the other. That throws some hight on the sense in which the
words “St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their tributaries’” were used
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in Article VI of the treaty. Dut the connection between Article 11
and Article VI is immediate and direct. They are intimate parts of
a connected whole,

Now let us see what Article IT says:

Each of the high contracting parties reserves to itself or to the several State govern-
ments on the one side and the Dominion or Provinecial governments on the other, as
the case may: be, subject to any treaty provisions now existing with respect thereto,
the exclusive jurisdiction and control over the use and diversion, whether temporary
or permanent, of all waters on its own side of the line which in their natural chan-
nels would flow across the boundary or into boundary waters.

Here is a general principle laid down that each country may control
absolutely without reference to the other the waters arising and
flowing into that particular country.

Mr. PoweLL. That is general, this is specific.

Mr. Tur~NER. That is what I am proceeding to. Tt will be seen
that Article IT lays down a definite principle with reference to waters
which flow across the boundary; namely, that each country reserves
to itself exclusive jurisdiction and control over the use and diversion
of such waters on its own side of the line, subject to the obligation
to make compensation to persons on the other side of the line whe
may be injured by such use or diversion under this provision. Neither
country would have any ground to object to any diversion of waters,
however complete, which would otherwise flow to it across the line.
It would be a complete answer to any complaint about the matter
that the right to make such diversion was expressly reserved by
Article 11, and that the courts of the country making the diversion
were open to citizens of the other country for the purpose of repara- -
tion if it could be shown that they were injured by the diversion.

Article VT is really an exception to this general rule in that it abro-
gates the rule as to the St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their tributa-
ries, and provides that those waters shall be enjoyed by both coun-
tries, and evenly divided between them. It might very well have
been attached to Article II as an exception. Undoubtedly it was
framed in the light of Article IT and with the knowledge that it created
a special case Inconsistent with that article and really an exception
to 1t. Therefore, I say that the object and purpose of the one may
be properly deduced from the other.

he object and purpose of Article II was to establish a principle
with respect to waters that flow across the boundary or into
boundary waters. No other waters were in mind. Therefore, when
an exceptional case was to be provided for, the natural presumption
is that the exception referred to the same class of waters as those de-
fined in the general provisions. No escape would be possible if Article
II and Article VI were contained in one article, as they very well
might have been. The fact that they were divided into two articles
can not alter the principle. They must, notwithstanding that fact,
be construed together, and thus construed they show what was in
the mind of the negotiators in the writing of both articles, namely,
that they had in mind only waters flowing across the boundary from
one country to the other.

Lastly, 1 submit that the last clause of Article VI—that clause
provided for the measurement and apportionment of the water by
the reclamation and irrigation officers of the two countries under the
direction of the International Joint Commission—sheds some light,
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and by no means a feeble light, on the meaning of the article. While
it is true that the officers of either country may, where authorized by
treaty, perform functions in the other country, such authorization
is unusual and when conferred ought to be conferred expressly and
not by implication. That the officers of either country may go into
the other 1n performing the functions of measuring and apportioning
the water under Article VI, is the barest implication. }i‘ ere is no
express authority for it. It is reasonable to assume, then, that the
joint authority to measure and apportion the waters, conferred by
the last clause of Article VI, was conferred upon these officers in the
indeterminate language of that clause, because there were points
where that authority could be jointly exercised without either im-
pinging on the territorial sovereignty of the other, namely, at points
where the waters pass from one country to the other, and where
measurements could be taken by each that would check with those
taken by the other. If that be true, and it seems a reasonable
hypothesis, it throws an illuminating light on Article VI. It shows
an intention that the joint measurement and apportionment should
be made at the boundary, and nowhere else, and, therefore, that those
waters only that were capable of measurement at the boundary were
within the contemplation of the makers of the treaty.

Gentlemen, I want to present to the Commission the findings which
I think they should make here, as the result of this hearing, and in
this connection I want to say a word about the findings proposed by
the representatives of the Canadian Government at tﬁe gt. Paul
hearing. They proposed that the commission give Canada from the
St. Mary River up to a maximum flow of 2,000 second-feet, May to
October, inclusive, 500,290 acre-feet, and of the Milk River below
A. R. N. L intake 72,000 acre-feet.

Mr. MacInNes. That is where that can not be used.

Mr. TurNER. A little further down they propose that Canada
should get of the northern tributaries of the IBIilk River, the tribu-
taries we have been talking about, 136,000 acre-feet, and to the
United States of the northern tributaries of the Milk River, passed
by Canada, 54,000 acre-feet. Now, I can not conceive of any prin-
ciple upon which this Commission could make any such finding as
that proposed by our friends on the other side, and 1 can not conceive
of any principle upon which they propose it, except that which we
lawyers go on when we bring a suit of damages against some one—we
pray for $50,000 when we only expect to get $5,000—in order to give
the jury a chance to come down in our favor. Of course, this treaty
does not provide for this Commission 1g]oing on and parceling out
these waters in specific proportions. The waters are too uncertain,
the flows of the rivers are too difficult to compute. You can not
say that either country shall have any particular quantity of water
at any particular time, except this priority providing for during the
irrigation season. You can provide for these priorities in actual
figures of second or acre feet, but with respect to all other divisions
it must be by laying down general principles.

I propose these findings, and the findings are based on the argu-
ment which I have presented, and I assume that if the argument
which I have presented strikes the Commission as correct, the findings
will be made. If not, they will make other findings, but in no case
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will they make findings apportioning to either one of these Govern-
ments any specific amount of water of any of these rivers outside of
this priority they are entitled to during the irrigation season.

Mr. Powerr. That is the only thing that is fixed.

Mr. Tor~NER. Yes. The Commission finds and directs:

First. That Article VI of the treaty of 1909, in its provision for
the apportionment of the waters of the St. Mary and Milk Rivers
and their tributaries, between the United States and Canada, has
reference to the waters of said rivers and tributaries that are inter-
national in character, that is to say, the natural flow of which, if not
interfered with, would: cross the international boundary. The said
article has reference to tributaries arising in one country, the natural
flow of which, if not interfered with, would cross the international
boundary to join one or the other of the rivers after the latter has
finally crossed the international boundary into the other country—
maJkin%l provision here for these northern Canadian tributaries that
cross the border before joining the main stream.

Second. Tributaries arising and flowing wholly in one of the coun-
tries, and joining one of the rivers after it has finally crossed the
international boundary into that country, are not within the purview
of the treaty, and are not to be considered in any apportionment and
division of the waters direeted by said Article VI.

Third. For the purposes of division and apportionment of the
waters of said rivers between the two countries, both during the irri-
gating .and nonirrigating season, measurement of their flow shall

e at the international boundary where the said rivers finally pass
from one country into the other, but any water diverted from the
St.Mary Riveror anyof its tributaries, er stored by the United States,
shall be computed as a part of the natural flow of the river at the
boundary. The same principle shall be applied mutatus mutandis
to diversions of the waters of the Milk River or its tributaries by
Canada before that river finally crosses the boundary. The appor-
tionment of the waters of the said rivers by the reclamation and 1rri-
ration officers of the two countries, other than the apportionment

ereinafter described, shall be made during the irrigation season,
shall be made daily, and shall be equal between the two countries,
but more than half may be taken from one river and less than half
from the other by either country whenever the said officers, acting
conjointly, shall determine that to do so will conduce to a more
beneﬁcia?use of the water in each country. Water from the St.
Mary River diverted and stored by the United States, when released
and turned into the channel of the Milk River, shall not be considered
as & part of the natural flow of the latter river.

Fourth. The division of the waters of said rivers during the irri-
gation season, between the 1st of April and the 31st of October,
meclusive, annually, shall be as follows:

ST. MARY RIVER.

(¢) When the flow is 500 second-feet or less, one-fourth to the
United States and three-fourths to Canada.

Mr. PowELL. You are taking 666§ ¢ :

Mr. Tur~NER. No, sir. I mean 500 second-feet or less.

57208-—-21——86
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(b) When the flow is more than 500 second-feet, the excess up to
750 second-feet to the United States.

4 (g:()1 XVhen the flow is above 750 second-feet, the water to be equally
ivided.

Right here, let me say that the provision with reference to the
amount of -this-priority is &-very diffieult one to deal with. Article
VI provides:

It is further agreed that in the division of such waters during the irrigation season,
between the 1st of Apriland 31st of October, inclusive, annually, the United States is
entitled to a prior appropriation of 500 cubic feet per second of the waters of the Milk
River, or so much of such amount as constitutes three-fourtlis of its natural flow.

How are you going to construe that particle “or”? Are you going
to construe “or” as an alternative? Manifestly you can not do that.
When the waters are not more than 500 feet, the United States is

_entitled to one-quarter of it, and you can not cut off that quarter
from the United States with any reason or consistency. So you can
not construe this word “or” here as an alternative. The word is
frequently used in the sense of ““to wit,”” ““ that is to say,” in explana-~
tion of that which precedes, and gives to that which precedes the same
signification as that which follows. That has been decided many
times, over and over again. Giving it that signification, and that
is the only one that you can give to it without absurdity, is to give
to this language ‘“or so much of such amount as constitutes three-
quarters of its natural flow,” the meaning, ‘“to wit, that is to say,
they shall’ have three-quarters of 500 second-feet.” - If that is the
meaning, that is the extent of the direction here. They shall have
three-quarters of 500 second-feet of the natural flow. . ~VV)171at follows ?
They get their 375, and the United States gets its 125. Then comes
in the general provision for equality of division, and you are bound to

ive the United States enough water thereafter, out of the St. Mary

iver, to get its 375 feet. That brings it up to 750 feet that is pro-
vided for, the priorities named in this treaty. Thereafter, you
divide the waters evenly between the two countries. That 1s my
construction of this clause. I understand that it has been generally
understood that Canada was to have three-quarters of 667 feet. I
can not see any ground for any such a construction. 1t is to have
three-quarters of 500 feet, that is, 375 feet. She is not to get any
more until the United States has enough to make up her 375 feet
which makes 750 feet, and then the waters are to be divided equally
between the two countries. I apprehend the same thing with refer-
ence to the waters of the Milk River.

The division of the waters of the Milk River during the irrigation
season, between the 1st of April and the 31st of October, inclusive,
annually, shall be as follows: .

(@) en the flow is 500 second-feet or less, one-fourth to Canada
and three-fourths to the United States.

(b)) When the flow is more than 500 second-feet, the excess up to
750 second-feet to Canada. :

(¢) When the flow is above 750 second-feet, the water to be
equally divided. - ‘ o : )

If, as a result of the method of division prescribed by sections 3
and 4, one country shall receive during any period an excess of water
over the other, such excess shall be taken into account and equalized
in subsequent apportionments. S
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Fifth. And here is something that I think is strictly logical and I
think it ought to be the finding of the Commission. As to the waters of
the tributaries of the Milk River arising in Alberta and Saskatchewan
which, if not interfered with, would flow across the international
boundary into the United States, before joining the said river, each
country is entitled to one-half thereof at all seasons of the year.
Manifestly, that provision about the irrigation season applies only to
the rivers proper; the tributaries are not mentioned there at all. So
these tributaries comirfg across the border before joining the Milk
River are subject to the provision for equal apportionment and
division, and equal apportionment and division at all seasons of the
year. Of course, I need not say any more than I have already said
about the proposal to give Canada 132,000 acre-feet of these tribu-
taries and the United States 58,000. There is not any provision in
this treaty on which any such division of these tributaries can possibly
be predicated.

hat is all I have to say, gentlemen, and I thank you very kindly
for your patient attention.

ARGUMENT OF COL. C. S. MacINNES FOR THE DOMINION OF
CANADA AND THE PROVINCES OF ALBERTA AND SAS-
KATCHEWAN.

Mr. MacInwes. Mr. Chairman and gentlemen: There are some
matters I can probably deal with this evening, but before going on
I wanted to have put up this map which will enable me to make
certain points clearer.

In the first place, it falls to me, I think, as the only counsel present
who has been at all of these hearings, to take advantage of the
opportunity, which is a sad one, indeed, of referring to the loss
W%ich the Commission has suffered in the death of one of its members,
who acted as chairman of the proceedings both at St. Paul and
Detroit. I refer, of course, to the late Mr. Tawney. As a member
of the Canadian bar, I should like to be allowed to pay tribute
not only to his courtesy, and if I may say so, his ability, but also
to his marked devotion to the work of this Commission and to his
desire and intention to help make the Commission such a body as
was doubtless contemplated by those who took part in its creation.

We had a long and extensive argument to-day from Senator
Turner, from whom the Commission has not heard on this subject
previously. So far as I am concerned, there is a record of previous
arguments by me, and I do not wish to travel over too much of the
ground twice, although I quite understand that the Commission
would like this matter fully dealt with, almost as if there were
nothing else on record. I should like, however, to put on record a
reference to my previous argument at St. Paul, pages 56 to 69, and
pages 278 to 301, of the St. Paul record; also a written memorandum
of argument, dated September 2, 1915, to which is attached a written
memorandum of evidence which contains ciuotations of what pur-
port to be the pages of the evidence. Unfortunately, the page
numbers refer to the manuscript, and are, therefore, not the same
in the printed evidence.

Mr. CLarx. That document does not appear in the records we
have printed here.
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Mr. Burpek. It is filed with the Commission but it is not in the
book. During the argument quotations were made from it by
Senator Walsh.

Mr. MacInNgs. Those pages will be corrected with the assistance
of the secretary of the Commission, to whom corrections-have been
given. T'would also refer to the Detroit record, pages 118 to 150.

Before proceeding with the argument to-day, there is a certain.

reliminary point which must be dealt with_by myself as counsel
or the Canadian Government, and that is certain correspondence
which appears to have taken place between the Secretary of State
for the United States and the Commission, which was referred to
by the chairman, Mr. Magrath, in his opening remarks, and from
which it appears that the%etter was written to the Commission by
the Secretary of State with regard to the jurisdiction of the com-
mission; that a copy of that communication was also sent through
the usual diplomatic channels to the Government of Canada; that a
reply was sent to that communication by the Commission, which
was acknowledged by the Secretary of State with that statement
that his letter remained unchanged; that a reply was sent to that
communication by the Government of Canada in the form of what
we call an order in council; that a subsequent letter has been re-
ceived from the Secretary of State, which purports to modify his
previous communication, as not expressing what was his intention
or his views in the matter. ‘

Reference has been made by two counsel for the United States
to that last letter. By Senator Walsh we were informed that he
had had the opportunity of discussing the matter with the Secre-
tary of State, who was quite clear that his previous communication
did not at all express what his own views were, and that therefore
he proposed to have the matter cleared up. Those also were the
views of Senator Walsh, who found that the Secretary of State
concurred in his views as to the dealing with this matter by the
Commission. Senator Turner has informed us that in his view
there is a situation as to the jurisdiction of the Commission which
would, as he put it, be somewhat to this effect: That if the Com-
mission did not deal with the matter so as to rule out what have
been described as the all-Montana tributaries, which do not cross
the boundary, that would not be satisfactory to the United States
Government. I think, however, there must be some misunderstand-~
ing there, because I think we would all be clear on this situation
that under Article VI the Cornmission would have jurisdiction to deal
with the matter, carrying out its duties as laid upon it by the two
Governments, in the treaties which have been made, and would
be checked only to such an extent as, if by any chance, the Com-
mission should obviously and manifestly go outside what has been
committed to it under that article and do something different.
If that were so, then doubtless what would happen would be this:
That the' Government, one or other of the Governmerits, might say:
There is a manifest excess of jurisdiction here. But in doing that,
that Government would not strike out from that finding of the
Commission any particular part and send it to the other Govern-
ment and say: So far we are bound, but no further. f

The practical step would surely be this, that one Government,
which of itself would have no power to make a change, would sug-
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gest through the usual diplomatic channels to the other Govern-
ment: Is there not perhaps some excess of jurisdiction here? To
it, the other Government would reply: We will take that matter up,
and when we do we think we can satisfy you that that view is not
correct, but that the Commission has kept entirely within its juris-
diction. Then the other Government, after having heard the views
expressed in that way, would either be convinced that it was so,
that the jurisdiction had not been exceeded, which, of course, would
naturally be the presumption, I submit, in connection with such a
body as this, or that Government would say: Well, if there has
been such an excess, what shall we do about 1t? Then it would be
open, if such a situation should arise—personally, on.our side we
feel that there is no probability of its arising, no probability of the
United States Government taking such an attitude, if the findings
of the Commission should not be entirely to its liking—but assum-
ing such a situation did arise, the matter would then be dealt with
again in a diplomatic way, either by making such changes in the
treaty as migﬁt be desired by a modus vivendi, or by a reference
to somebody else or to this commission, to settle any point that
might be considered worth while to be dealt with. But, subject to
that, it is impossible to coneceive that any Government should appear
before the Commission—and I can not take it that that is Senator
Turner’s view—-and say: If your finding does not agree with my
argument, then the United States, without hearing further from
Canada, or without considering the matter further in any way, will
simply inform the Commission that they have gone too far. That, I
submit, is not a view on which it would be possible for any parties
on the Canadian side to argue or to deal with this matter further
before this Commission, if we were to be informed that if the deci-
sion was not satisfactory to the other side, the other side would not
be bound by it. So we must take it that what is meant, and what
the actual situation now is, is this: That there is simply the possi-
bility, remote I think, or I certainly hope so, that any technical
point of jurisdiction is one which might be raised, but if raised,
would be raised in a proper and usual way.

Then there was a further preliminary point raised by Senator
Walsh in his argument, and that was that whatever Canada’s con-
struction or views of this article might be, they had been in some
way prejudiced or affected by what had been done in connection with
gauging stations. -That is a point I should like to clear up, as it
.can be cleared up absolutely. It was, I should have thought, suffi-
ciently cleared up at St. Paul. There were certain gauging stations,
as shown by the correspondence at the end of the St. Paul hearings,
which had been established by both countries on either side of the
line. What was done was that these gauging stations on either side
were brought into one, which was an obvious saving of expense and
a perfectly natural thing to do. Apart from that, the situation as
to the gauging stations in the United States or elsewhere, is shown
by Exhibit B, which was put in at the St. Paul proceedings, and
which shows the gauging stations that were in existence. From
this you will see there is an abundance of gauging stations in Canada
for the purpose of finding out all the waters of these two rivers
which were constituted as one under the article, and that there are
also gauging stations in the United States which would furnish the

[ ]
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information necessary, according to Canada’s contention, to arrive
at a measurement of the total waters to be divided under this treaty.
These stations were there, they were in existence. Further than that,
_the_evidence at St. Paul and Detroit shows that the two countries

published their measurements taken from the gauging stations,
that they exchanged reports, and that there was entire harmony
in their getting together and discussing and checking the informa-
tion available at these points. So the situation was there, and in
such a way as to give the information in a broad and general way to
ensable Canada’s view which it has held from the outset, to be car-
ried out.

What was further discussed, after the Commission had taken it up,
was the question as to what further gauging stations or checking
stations might be considered. The situation is very far from hav-
ing been in the nature of a construction adopted by the parties of
estoppal. They have agreed to a construction different from what
they now contend, namely, that there was a measurement at the
boundary and there only. Any action in that regard has been, not
by the Government as suggested, but by the reclamation officers,
and they have dealt with the situation entirely in accord with what
Canada’s view of the subject is and has been. )

. Passing from that, I was much struck with the force and amount
of attention that Senator Turner in his argument gave to the view
that Canada’s position, whether supported by the language or not,
or whether the language was clear or not, could not be supported
because it led to an absurdity, and the result would be such that one
would be bound to come to a conclusion that something different
was meant. In that regard, I would say that I think it is unfor-
tunate that Senator Turner was not at St. Paul. I think if he had
had the advantage of hearing the evidence orally, he would have
been satisfied that the evidence, apart from what was really argu-
ment rather than evidence, of Mr. Sands made it clear that the
figures taken by Canada and checked by the United States as repre-
senting the average flow of the so-called all-Montana tributaries
accurately, subject only to unusual or extraordinary variation, rep-
resented the true situation as to the product of these all-Montana
tributaries which would be chargeable against the United States,
under the Canadian contention, as being half of the United States’
share of the waters of this one stream, having regard to beneficial
use and the areas to which the waters were applied, and he would
have been convinced that the suggestion that there was some colossal
amount which might make it necessary that the water should be
made to flow backward was imaginary rather than real, that it was
a monster of imagination conjured up with the idea of then sayin
that, there being such a monster in the path, this meaning coul
not be given to the article.

So far as facts and figures are concerned, you will find that Mr.
Conner, who was one of the United States officers dealing with this
matter and had first-hand information, stated on the top of page 51
of the St. Paul record:

Mr. MacIvNEs., Now, as to these other propositions that you spoke of in general
language, what are they, and to what extent was their beneficial use?

Mr. Conngr. They are based on the tributaries entirely. Fifteen second-feet is
from the main river. Our investigations cover the numerous tributaries over 14,000

square miles.
]
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Mr. Conner had been all over the situation and knew what he was
talking about. Again:

Mr. MacInnes, Have you any figures on thisat all? :

Mr. CoxnNER. Something like 1,700 second-feet is actually being beneficially used.

Mr. MacInnes. That is the aggregate?

Mr. ConNER. Yes, sir.

Mr. MacInves. What is that in acre-feet?
—Mr-Gonver: T acre-feet it is-about 264,000

That is the situation with regard to the water being used for irri-
gation outside of the project of the Reclamation Service, as to which
there is full information, namely, that any additional water that
there might be would probably be only flood water in an abnormal
year, and of such a character that it would not be available for irri-
gation, and would therefore not come within the language of Article
i’/’I, because, if you will remember, that what is being dealt with here
is the waters that are to be applied to irrigation and for power.
These extraordinary waters Whl(‘i might occur in some abnormal
year would not be of that nature if they could not be measured and
made available for use in the ordinary way. Further than that, the
suggestion that any water might at any time be called upon t be
sent back to Canada is, as I say, entirely imaginary, and I might say,
absurd. If at any time there was a.considerable amount in the Milk
River lower valley and it might be said that the United States would
not be able to get as much from the St. Mary River, the situation
would be that the United States would not be needing it. So there
would not arise a situation which would cause hardship or trouble in
any way, for the United States under such a condition of this one
stream would have at the place where it was required the water that
was needed for irrigation.

Mr. PoweLL. That is, all the water they require comes down the
Milk River, practically ¢

Mr. MacInnes. Quite so. Before concluding to-night I should like
to call particular attention to this: All through the argument that
we have heard from counsel for the United States we have not heard,
as I remember it, one single reference to the fact that Article VI of
this treaty says that these two rivers are to be treated as one stream.
We have also heard practically nothing—a mere reference to it—as
to the fact that the treaty provides for a division in which beneficial
use is to be taken into account. We have heard a great deal about
diplomatic negotiations, etc., but practically nothing at all about the
irrigcable areas to which this water which is under discussion was to
be applied. That is what I would like to deal with more fully in
opening to-morrow, after a reference now to the local situation, as
shown on the map, so that the Commission may know what it is deal-
ing with, not merely as a matter of law, nor yet merely as a matter
of water, but as a matter of the lands to which the water was to be
applied under the treaty for beneficial use, and after having made
reference also to the fact that as to the lower Milk River Vaﬁey the
United States has three available sources of water supply under this
treaty. It has the local waters which are there and which it con-
tends it is not called upon to take into account. It has the waters
of the Milk River tributaries flowing from the north. It has also, by
reason of the treaty, and by reason of the canal from the Milk River, .
a source of supply from the St. Mary River taken from here [indi-
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cating]. It has therefore three sources of supply for the land which,
it will be remembered, is in the lower Milk River Valley.

- On the other hand, in Canada, for the land to be irrigated, there is
but one source of supply and one only, with the exception, of course,
of this small-amount-in the Milk River. - What does that lead us to?
It leads us to this fact. If the United States takes the position: It is
true, we have water in the lower Milk River Valley, but we do not
intend to bother about that, we do not intend to store it, or do any-
thing with it—I am not saying they will do this willfully, but if they
do not actively take steps in the other direction—for we will take
the water we need from this Canadian canal, with the assistance, of
course, of the money expended on the canal, and bring it down there
[indicating], the result will be that although there are two other
sources of supply open to the United States the Canadian irrigable
area is deprived, either now or in course of time, of water which it
can not get from any other source. That is the situation, which I
submit, was not in any way dealt with or indicated in the interesting
argument which we have had up to date from the United States
Government. '

The Commission adjourned at 5 p. m.

WeDNEsDAY, May 6, 1920.

The Commission resumed this morning at 10 o'clock.

Mr. TurNER. I am desired by the officer of the Reclamation Service
to say that there ark some inaccuracies in the large map hung upon
the wall; not sufficient, however, to prevent counsel on the other
side from illustrating by the map, but if there are any particular
conclusions to be drawn from what is shown on the map it would
make a difference. The most important item -is that none of the
tributaries below Hinsdale are shown on the map.

Mr. MacInngs. Are there any others?

Dr. Davis (United States Reclamation Service). The irrigated
areas are out of proportion. They are shown much larger relatively
in Canada than they are in the United States. I'do not know that
there is any intention back of that, but it is a fact. We have not
had an opportunity to compare it with the accurate map. I do not
know whether there are other inaccuracies, but it is our understanding
that there is not to be evidence or testimony introduced at this
argument, and it is only having regard to that fact that I speak.

r. MacInngs. Quite true. I put on the wall the map to show
the information of previous maps agreed upon.

Mr. TurNEr. It is merely by way of illustration.

Mr. MacInnes. Yes. I understand that the only inaccuracy is in
not showing certain tributaries below Hinsdale. 1 would point out
that what is below Hinsdale to the mouth is not taken into considera-
tion in this matter because it seems to be demonstrated that the waters
below that point are not suited for irrigation, and would not fall
within the scope of Article VI.

Mr. Drake. Might I explain the manner in which that map was
prepared? It was not prepared to be filed with the Commission in
" connection with this argument, nor was it prepared to illustrate the
case, but merely to show out in bold relief the principal streams
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affected. It is drawn roughly to scale. The point raised by Mr.
Davis is that the irrigation areas are not shown on quite the same
scale in the United gtates as in Canada. The areas in the Milk
River Valley are the irrigated areas as shown on the United States
surveys map. The areas in Canada are commanded areas; that is,
areas that would be commanded by the canal system which at present
isnot constructed but is projected. Some portions, just what portions
we can not say, of the command areas will eventually prove to be
irrigable areas. That is the explanation. There is considerable
difference, which Mr. David quite appreciates, between commanded
and irrigated areas. This map was not prepared in reference to this
argument at all. The map is practically a copy of the map which
was filed in St. Paul in 1915, and Exhibt 1.

Mr. TurNER. I just called attention to the fact.

Mr. EcLesToN. We should have opportunity to check it with the
map exhibited at St. Paul if this is to be an exhibit.

Mr. MacInnes. It is not an exhibit. It is simply a map which
we have hung on the wall to which we can point. ﬁlis map is onl
intended to ;gllustrate what was in the exhibit put in at St. Paul.
I am glad the point was raised so that there may be no misunder-
standing about it. I do not wish to refer to a single thing that is
not supported by ‘the testimony already given.

Mr. Crark. I suppose this map is merely for the convenience of
counsel and the Commission; is that it? .

Mr. MacInnes, That is it exactly.

Mr. PoweLL. If the figures of the run-off are correct, it would be
a very great convenience to have this map. ,

Mr. TurnEr. I understand that there is a complete map in, so
that it could be verified if necessary.

Mr. MacInNEs. Quite so. '

Mr. DrARE. One further remark. The map used yesterday: to
illustrate is not the map that was at any time filed with the Commis-
-sion as an exhibit. It is a map that was prepared for the Commission
by the United States Geological Survey and the Canadian Reclama-
tion Service to show the areas in both countries that are affected,
and the various streams within their areas. It was used by counsel
yesterday merely for the purpose of illustrating their comments, but
1t is not an exhibit. It isin precisely the same position as this map; it
is not to be filed as an exhibit but for the convenience of counsel.

Mr. PoweLL. The figures on that map might unconsciously
affect—are the quantities correct and the same as on the other maps?

Mr. Drake. The quantities there are from the reports prepared
for the Commission by the United States Geological Survey and the
‘Canadian Reclamation Service to collect in the one report the data
which has been placed before the Commission and for the convenience
-of the Commission. The figures are the figures that have been -
-agreed upon between the two countries; there is nothing of contro-
versy there.

Mr. PowsLL. Are they the same figures as in the maps that you
refer to as being an exhibit ¢

Mr. Drakg. They are not the same figures exactly as shown on
Exhibit 1, but they are the later figures of the stream flow and are
:agreed upon by the two countries and brought up to date.
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Mr. PowgLr. This, to my mind, is probably the crux of the whole
question. You speak about those figures; does that represent the
annual run-off? You speak about the stream flow; how do you
arrive at that, how did the people from whom you got the data

arrive at it—from meteorological observations or actual measure-
ments ?

Mr. Drake. Actual measurements. To compute the run-off from
these northern tributaries in Canada, what was at the international
boundary was, I think, at the time of the St. Paul hearing, about
194,000 acre-feet per annum. We have several years later records
now which did not exist then, which have been exchanged between
the United States and ourselves, and are agreed upon so that there
is no controversy. We have brought that figure up to 249,000
acre-feet, speaking from memory, which if anything would be in
favor of the United States. I give that as an illustration to show
that these figures are not quite the figures given at St. Paul, but
they are figures agreed on between. the two countries as the result of
stream measurements. )

Mr. PowerL. Take the figures, 189,000, in red on the map;is that
actual measurement ?

Mr. DrAKE. Actual measurement.

Mr. PowerL. Do you see these figures down to the south of the
map; are we to take that as actual measurement—that area included
within the pink lines op the map?

Mr. Drake. All these are matters of computation..

Mr. PoweLL. I know that, but I want to know what it means.
Does it mean an accurate estimate of the flow?

Mr. Drake. Yes.

Mr. MacInNEgs. I would ask the attention of the Commission to
gage 49 of the memorandum put in on behalf of the Commission at

t. Paul. At that page you will find, in what I think is the most
convenient form, a list of the exhibits which were put in at St. Paul
and I may ask the attention of the Commission to these exhibits and
the material shown thereon and the argument derived from them.
With reference in particular to one of these exhibits, Exhibit A, the
large watershed map, there is one copy of it here, and I do not know
whether the secretary will be able to supply the members of the
Commission with other copies. There is also Exhibit A-1, which is
a similar map but showing the stream-flow data; Exhibit B is a
diagram sketch map showing the existing gauging stations, which is
the one to which I referred 1n my argument yesterday showing the
existence of the gauging stations in the United States and in Canada,
from which the information would be obtainable in connection with
the Canadian or with any other contention in the matter.

It has been suggested, you will remember, that that information
- would not be avai%able because there were only gauging stations at
the international boundary and that Canada seemed to be concerned
only with these. These gauging maps show that there were these
gaugin% stations, for instance, in the United States at Havre and at
other places, and then again at Hinsdale, which is the latest irrigation
point. Then Exhibits L and L~1 are maps showing the irrigable
areas in both countries in accordance with the figures which were
produced at St. Paul. There is no question as to these figures. It
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is the evidence to which I wish to refer which is put in diagrammatic
form in these exhibits, I understand, quite to the satisfaction of Mr.
Davis, because, so far as the exhibits were concerned, these diagrams
were checked with the figures which were put in. Then Exhibit Q
is a matter with which I shall deal in detail later. It is a diagram to
illustrate what is described as the Canadian users showing the irrigable
areas with acre-feet and depth of water. As the Commission will see,
that is put in dia%rammatlc form on the map. Then Exhibit R is
a smaller one which shows not only in diagrammatic form to illustrate
either on the Canadian view or on the United States view, which
cuts off, you will remember, the waters and cuts off also the flow
into the other countries, or the tributaries which are entirely within
one country and do not flow into the other. The interesting part of
these exhibits is that you see the results as applied to the lan(f itself,
as shown in inches. That is te say, take the irrigable area, take the
water allotted under either of these views, and see what the result
is on the water available for these irrigable areas. It puts in very
clear form what the result is. I shall leave these exhibits here and
perhaps the secretary will be able to obtain copies for the Com-
missioners.

Mr. TuRNER. Are not these things something that have already
been put in ¢

Mr. MacInnes. Yes; I am directing the attention of the Commis-
sion to them as part of my argument, and as showing the evidence
which was given at St. Paul.

Mr. Kivg. I understand you are not offering them as evidence ?

Mr. MacInnNes. They are already in.

Mr. CLARK. Are there any copies of these printed and filed with
the report of the hearing ¢

Mr. Magrata. No; but they are filed in the office of each country.

Mr. CLark. So that if the members of the Commission want to get
at them, they will have to go to the original record ?

Mr. MAGRATH. Yes.

Mr. Draxe. If the members of the Commission wish copies of all
the smaller diagrams which were prepared by Canada and filed as
exhibits, there ought to be no difficulty in furnishing extra copies.
But with respect to the large watershed maps, I would not like to
undertake to supply them.

Mr. MacInNEs. ’%urning to these local situations, there are cer-
tain points to which I should like to call attention. First of all, there
is the question of the irrigable areas in both countries. As was
pointed out at St. Paul, the estimated irrigable area of Canada is
something over 700,000 acres. In the United States, in the lower
Milk River Valley, the figures put in were 220,000, and I think the
diagrams are prepared and based on 250,000 acres.

r. DRaKE. 219,000.

Mr. MacInnes. This figure, 219,000, is taken from the reclamation
surveys reports as being the area which from their examination they
consider to be available for irrigation in the Milk River Valley.

Mr. Crark. I am rather uninformed with regard to this, but I
understand in a general way that there is a great lack of water in that
section for the land that can be irrigated if there was sufficient water.
Is that true, as a matter of fact? Is there enough water to irrigate
the land that would be made profitable by irrigation ?
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Mr. MacInnes. The answer to that would be this: That there
would be a question as to whether some of the land to which you refer
would be irrigable or not, because all things are, humanly speaking,
possible. But assuming that you had the water, it is a question

“whether it would be economically possible to place that water on the

land.

Mr. CLarg. My idea has been that there was a great acreage of this
land that could not possibly be irrigated, taking the land on both
sides of the border.

Mr. MacInNEs. Quite so.

Mr. CLark. Owing to the lack of water supplied. I want to know
if that notion is correct ?

Mr. MacInnes. I do not know that that is quite so much the
trouble. ‘

Mr. CrLark. Is there enough water running in the two rivers to
produce results in all the lands ?

Mr. MacInNEs. We are getting into a rather large question there.
That again would depend on the extent to which either or both
countries concerned had reservoirs for all the water that was available.
All the water that comes is there. That is not increased, except,
subject to the increase of the Milk River water, by the water taken
from somewhere else. All the water is there—the next step would
be to prevent that water from running away, and that could be done,
of course, only by suitable reservoirs unless the water is used im-
mediately. The next question is: Where are your lands. Are they
lands that would be benefited by irrigation, and, in the second place,
would it be economically possible, would the expense not be too much,
to place the water which you had stored upon the land ? :

Mr. Crark. I do not make my meaning clear. Sup}l)ose you have
500,000 acres of land on the two sides of the boundary line ?

Mr. MacInnes. On the two sides, of course there is more than that.

Mr. Crark. I don’t care how much land you take, take a million
acres if you like—is there enough water, either running in the flow of
the stream or susceptible by proper reservoiring, to irrigate that
amount of land %

Mr. MacInnes. To irrigate 500,000 acres ?

Mr. Crark. To irrigate all the land there is.

Mr. Magrata. Is it not a general proposition in irrigated countries
that there is only water for about 15 per cent of the land to be irri-

ated ? -
g Mr. Crark. I know, but I want to get it down to this proposition
we are considering. My idea was simply this, that there is not enough
water to irrigate all the land. It does not make much difference to
us how much land there is in the watershed if there is not water
enough by which it can be irrigated.

Mr. MagraTH. T would say that in Alberta and Montana, there is
not nearly enough water to irrigate all the land that can be irrigated,
and that requires water.

Mr. CLark. I am speaking of the water and the land in this partic-
ular section. - Can there be a marriage between all the water and
all the land ? '

Mr. King. If there was enough water to irrigate all the land, we
would not have this trouble.
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Mr. Crark. I am not theorizing; I am asking a question as an
enﬁneering fact, and I think it is important. _

r. TURNER. Col. MacInnes seems to think it is important.

Mr. Crark. 1 think it is important.

Mr. ill‘URNER.” I do not see what the irrigated area has to do with
it at all.

Mr. MacInnes. What I was pointing at, if I may, was that I think
the Commission could get some benefit by looking at the geographical
situation, and at the problem with which these negotiators had to
deal. I think there Wiﬁ be far more light and help to this Commission
by dealing with the problem that the negotiators were dealing with
rather than dealing with a question of law. The situation was, I was
starting to say, that the irrigable area in the lower Milk River Valley,
subject, as shown in the evidence, to the possible extension of that
area, was checked, however, by the economic problem.

A further point in that connection, in answer to what Senator
Clark was saying as to the duty of water in either country. The
duty of water in Montana, as I remember it, was put at 1 foot—was.
it not, Mr. Drake ?

Mr. DrakE. One and one-half, I think.

Mr. MacIxngs. In Montana ?

Mr. Drake. Mr. Newell’s evidence was to the effect that 14 acre-
feet of water would be his idea of what was required.

g Mr. MacInNes. And in Canada? So I may be quite sure of the.
gures.

Mr. Drake. Our legal duty at that time was 2 acre-feet. Over a.
certain part of that territory it still is 2 acre-feet; but we have de-
creased that duty to 1% acre-feet recently.

Mr. MacInnes. Then, as has been pomted out already to the Com-
mission, there were two rivers that were being dealt with, both
rising approximately at the same place, but both having an entirely
different character, the St. Mary Eaving a far larger and more con-
stant flow, and also having a possibility of storage at its rise which
did not exist in the case of the Milk River. The storage possibilities.
were great as to the St. Mary River; as to the Milk River they were
not, although the latter has storage possibilities to a certain extent
in Canada, and to a very considerable extent after it has crossed into-
the United States in what is known as the lower Milk River Valley.
Those were two important points which affected the situation;
namely, the different character of the flow of those rivers at different
periods of the year, and the different possibilities as to storage. -

The next point I desire to call attention to is the question of the:
tributaries, as to which there has been so much said. You will
find that in both eountries on the Milk and on the St. Mary certain
tributaries rise, and join either river and flow over the boundary,
- but not as tributaries; on the other hand, certain other of these
tributaries rise in one country and flow into the other. In that
connection I would call particular attention to what are dealt with
here as the eastern tributaries of the Milk River rising in Canada.
Those tributaries had names of their own; in fact, in many cases it .
is somewhat confusing because some of them had more than one
name. For instance, there is Lodge Creek, there is West Fork or
Willow Creek—they are not all shown on this large map, but they
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will all be found on the small map which is before the commissioners—
there is Battle Creek or North Fork, there is Frenchman’s Creek or
White Water, and there is Rock Creek. '

The reason I am calling attention to this point is that those streams
which had names ‘of their own do not become tributaries of the
Milk River until after the Milk River, as a river, has crossed into
Canada. And what I am pointing out is that although those streams
had characters and names of their own, they are described as tribu-
taries of the Milk River, and, as we say, they form part of this one
stream which is being dealt with. The United States say: Yes,
they are tributaries of the Milk River, but for the purpose of dealing
with this matter we refuse to include that portion of the river from
the eastern crossing which these tributaries join. In other words,
they do not become tributaries of the Milk River, according to the
United States contention, until after the Milk River ceases to exist.

A further point geographically

Mr. Powerr. Before you pass from that point, Mr. MacInnes, I
want to ask you a question, ag T am not sure that I quite understood
you. As I take your argument, it is this: That if a limitation is to
be placed on the Milk River, including only that portion of the
river from its source to the ultimate crossing of the boundary line,
these northern tributaries would not be tributaries within' the mean-
ing of the treaty. ,

r. MacInnEs. Quite so.

Mr. PowgLL. And if they are tributaries within the meaning of
the treaty, you say that inferentially extends the Milk River down
to the lowest tributary? ‘

Mr. MacInnes. Surely, for you must inelude enough of the river
to enable them to become tributaries of it.

Mr. PowerL. I understand you.

Mr. MacInnes: Then on: this larie map and on the small map
before you you will see a place marked Hinsdale. As I said before,
the water rising down there can not be used for irrigation owing to
the character of the land and otherwise. There is a similar situation
in Canada, From a place called Kimball, where the Alberta Railway
& Irrigation Co.’s canal starts, down to where the St. Mary joins the
Belly %iiver, or practically at a place called Whitney’s ranch, the
same situation exists. What is called the run-off of water from
Kimball down, that is to say, in all Canadian territory is found to
be approximately the same as from Hinsdale down to where the
Milk River joins the Missouri. So that those portiens of this water-
shed in the two countries can be eliminated from consideration
here because the question is confined, according to article 6, to
waters available for irrigation and power. As to the power part, it
was shown at St. Paul, as you will remember, that that question does
not arise here.

Then there is the fact that the Milk River after it crosses into
Canada on the westerly crossing and comes out again at what is
known as the eastern crossing, a distance, I understand, of something
over 100 miles, may be used by the United States as a canal, it being
so provided in the treaty. Of course, it is also provided that the
United States will be liable for damages which miiht very easily
arise from the excess or flood waters eroding the banks.

Mr. King. May [ ask you to state that again?
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Mr. MacInwes. I was pointing out that there is provision made for
-the payment of damages, ‘and it is obvious that these damages might
very easily arise, owing to the fact that a much larger volume of
water is let into the river and is kept there constantly than would
exist in a state of nature, with the result that a breaking of the bank
of the river might occur and there would be erosion.

It may be said: “Oh, yes, there is provision for payment of dam-
ages, but, on the other hand, no one, particularly of the farming class,
would want a law suit in exchange for actual damages, and that very
likely he would have neither the money nor the knowledge to institute
proceedings, and that naturally a lawsuit, particularly where a gov-
ernment is concerned, would involve delay.”

There is, of course, the further fact, which is obvious on the map,
that water going down there in large volume would create a WhOle
different situation to what existed before, namely, that where there
had been—this was all shown in the evidence at %etroit——m fordable
stream, the greater volume of water would necessitaté the erection
of bridges, and so forth. I was pointing out that the granting per-
mission to the United States to use this as a canal was a serious draw-
back to Canada, while on the other hand it was of tremendous value
to the United States, because it enabled them to carry out their
project, which otherwise would not have been feasible from a financial
standpoint. - <.

The next point is as to the user of this water at the time the treaty
was made. - On the Canadian side there had been what is known as a
prior appropriation .in accordance with the irrigation law by the
Alberta Raillway & Irrigation Co. on the St. Mary River. That
prior appropriation was in 1899, and it extended to all of the low-water
flow and to the high-water flow up te 2,000 second-feet. On the
Milk River there was also a prior appropriation by the same company
in 1902 to the extent of 500 secon(f-feet of the low water and 1,500
second-feet of the high water.

Mr. Crark. When you speak of the low-water appropriation and
the high-water appropriation, do you mean that the high-water
apFropriation was to gegin only after the low-water appropriation
exhausted the entire natural flow?

Mr. MacInnes. What is the exact point, Senator ?

Mr. CLARk. As I understand the law in the United States—I may
be mistaken-—the earlier appropriations are made up to the natural
flow of the river, and then when by storage or otherwise the flow is
increased additional water rights are granted for the increased flow.
Now, you speak of two appropriations. Does the one take place
only after the ordinary flow of the river is exhausted? I am asking
simply for personal information.

r. MacInves. I would ask Mr. Drake to answer that question,
Senator. \ '

Mr. Drake. Senator Clark’s idea is correct. We have three
recognized principles of granting water rights; a grant of the low-
water flow; a grant of the high-water flow, which 1s made only after
the low-water flow has been fully appropriated; and a further grant
of the flood flow.

Mr. MacInnes. The Canadians had, therefore, the two appropria-
tions which Senator Clark spoke of just now. I mean there was one
appropriation on the St. Mary River which has two branches to it,
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the high water and the low water, and the same situation existed
on the Milk River. So in one sense there were four appropriations,
but it was one appropriation really in two parts on each river by the
same company, the Alberta Railway & rri%ation‘Co., now repre-
sented by the Canadian Pacific Railway Co., for which company my
learned friend Mr. Tilley agpears.

The matter in the United States has to be gone into in more detail,
and I would like to call attention to page 33 of the record at St. Paul.
You will there find that Mr. Newell gave us a list of the prior appro-
priations on the Milk River in the United States. They were: :

Fort Belknap Canal & Irrigation Co.
Winters, Anderson Ditch Co.

Paradise Valley Ditch & Trrigation Co.
New Harlem Irrigation Co.

Cooks Irrigation Co.

Matthewson Ditch Co.

West Fork Ditch Co.

Fort Belknap Indian Canal.

I call your particular attention to the last one, because it appears
in other places under the descri;{tion of an agency ditch, and we
also find 1t referred to in the diplomatic correspondence. Of those
prior apgropriationg the last four were on what might be called the
main body of the Milk; the others were on the branches or tributaries
of the Milk which join it at practically the same place as where these
other prior appropriations existed.

Now, if you will be good enough to turn to the map which is before
%rou, you will find that the engineers have placed the situation on it.

n the printed margin on the right two-thirds down the second col-
umn you will find—
6B Fort Belknap Canal.
7B Winter-Anderson Canal.
8B Paradise Valley Canal.

9B Harlen Canal.
10B Agency Ditch—

then a little further down—

18B West Fork Ditch.
28B Cook Canal.
29B Matheson Canal.

If you turn to the map you will find that those numbers which
are in red with a little red diamond attached are all at or immediately
surrounding this point Chinook as shown on this larger map, and that
is where these prior appropriations existed.

Mr. PowELL. You mean a red triangle?

Mr. MaclInngs. Yes.

There is also a reference in the record to a Rock Creek appropriation,
which is 41B in the column to the right, and which will be found to the
eastward of the others and just about Hinsdale. That, then, was
the situation so far as the appropriations were concerned.

You have, of course, seen from the diplomatic correspondence that
information was received that the United States were going to carr:
out this project of throwing the St. Mary River water into the nort
branch of the Milk River and taking it through Canada for the pur-
pose of carrying it down to the lands in the Milk River Valley, the
reason of that being, as I think I explained yesterday, that the
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United States wanted to get another source of supply for these lands
[referring to large map] which was of a permanent character and
which they could make more permanent gy reason of the storage,
so that they would not be dependent on the fluctuations of the water
on the lower river.

In Canada a canal had been constructed on the Milk River, which,
it was (f)ointed out to the United States, could, if the United States
insisted on putting this water into the Milk River and carrying it
through Canada without the consent of Canada, be taken out at the
Milk River.

The matter, therefore, came up in that way, and that was the
problem to be solved. What the United States wanted, as I say,
was wabter to satisfy their prior appropriations at Chinook. They
wanted a source of supply from the St. Mary River which would be
permanent and sufficient to supply the reservoirs which they were
going to construct there, the figures as to which are given in the
United States Reclamation Service.

There is also reference to the fact that they wanted water to
satisfy prior appropriations over on the Frenchman or Rock Creek.
They wanted also such water as might be required in the lower Milk
River Valley as a source of supply for lands there not dealt with by
the water taken from the St. I\Eary.

Canada, on the other hand, wanted and was under contractual
and statutory obligations to supply water for its prior appropriations
on the St. Mary River to the extent that I have stated, namely, -all
the low-water tlow and 2,000 second-feet of the high-water flow and
on the Milk River to the extent of 500 of the low-water flow and 1,500
second-feet of the high-water flow. Accordingly the situation was,
so to speak, that Canada was in a position to stand pat and say that
that was what she was entitled to.

The difliculty had to be solved, and, as Senator Turner has said,
there is possibly no international law absolutely laid down on the
point; but the question came up as to whether it could not be dealt
with in accordance with the prior appropriations. That was put
forward by Mr. Hay, and that solution would have been satisfactory
to Canada if her prior appropriations had been fully protected. But
that is where one of the troubles came, that it was sought to cut
dOWﬁ those prior appropriations which Canada was under obligation
to fill,

Now, before going further into that phase of the case, as it would
lead me into the negotiations, 1 want to next deal with the question
of the measurement of the waters which were available for supplying
these demands by the different countries and for the purpose of car-
rying out the bargain made in regard to them. I want to call par-
ticular attention, if I may, to paragraph 14 of the Canadian memo-
randum filed at St. Paul. I say particular attention, Mr. Chairman,
for this reason, that it does seem to me that in this case nothing has
perhaps caused more confusion and misunderstanding than this ques-
tion of measurement and the fact that for the purpose of carrying
out this provision there has to be more than one measurement—that
is to say, a measurement for different purposes-—because Senator
Turner, for instance, in his argument continually referred to the fact

57208—21—-7
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that according to the Canadian contention the water of the Milk
River would be measured, as he described it, down at the mouth—
which, of course, in any event would not be the case—but we will
say at Hinsdale, and that where it was measured for that purpose
it would have to be divided. That would be tantamount to saying
that Canadians would have to go down into the United States to get
their water, and in that way he seemed to seek to reduce the Canadian
contention to a reductio ad absurdum.

Gentlemen, that is not the situation at all, and that is not the way
in which the matter would be dealt with for the purpose of carrying
out this arrangement. 1 do not think I can express it better than
the way it is put at page 8 of our memorandum, which I would like
to read. There we stated:

It can not be too emphatically pointed out that the measurement of the waters in
question to be made under the direction of the commission is required for more than

one purpose. :
MEASUREMENT OF TOTAL.

1. For the purpose of ascertaining the total quantity of the waters to be apportioned
between the two countries.

You will remember the treaty says that the two rivers and their
tributarics are to be regarded as one stream, and that more can be
taken from one than from the other for the purpose of greater bene-
ficial use. For that purpose, as there is one stream and as there is
a.division by equal apportionment, obviously you have to get at the
total of what is to be apportioned.

MEASUREMENT OF DISTRIBUTING SHARES.

2. For the purpose of ascertaining the amount of the waters to be received by and
debited to each country at different points, as forming part of the share of each coun-
try in the said total to be apportioned.

That, you see, is a different measurement and for a different pur-
pose. You get the total, you then know what each country is en-
titled to, and then for the purpose of dividing that, as it huppens as
you see by the situation here that all the water is not taken in one
place, there has to be a measurement for the purpose of division at
the places where the respective countries take or are debited with
their water. And if this article is worked out in different sections,
$0 to speak, other measurements may be necessary in connection
with the prior appropriations, although as a matter of fact it may
very well be that the prior ap%ropriations will become merged in
practice with the other water. But, of course, there will have to be
measurements at the places where those prior appropriations should
be measured.

Now, having explained that situation as to measurements, I would
like to refer to what has been described as the Canadian proposals.
In that connection it seems to be said that Canada has put forward
something which is in the nature of a new treaty—that she is trying
to make a new bargain. That, gentlemen, as understood by those
who were at St. Paul, was not the case at all. What was done was
this: The treaty calls for a certain apportionment of these waters for
beneficial use. Now, for the enlightenment of the Commission.
Canada wanted to show where its beneficial use would be and where
it wanted the water, and it desired to show that in a practical way so
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that the matter could be dealt with on the easiest possible lines, that
there should be as little dividing by days or weeks or months and at a
whole number of different places as possible; but rather to get it
down so that its beneficial use would be covered, and that could be
done by a division largely according to territories, that is to say, by
different rivers and by different periods of time instead of simply day
by day.

yOm the other hand, while naturally Canada was called upon to show
what was its beneficial use, it found that in preparing that statement
it would have to consider what it understood from all the materials
to be the beneficial use that would be required by the United States.
Therefore our Canadian representatives put that down and they
showed in this division what the result to the United States would
be on this basis, and asked that the United States should demonstrate
to the Commission at any time in what respect that might be defective
or wrong, for we could not assume to have full information as to what
the United States required. But on the evidence and on the reports
of the United States Reclamation Service which we have before us
we endeavored to cover that. Now, what is put forward here as
the Canadian proposals—and I want to impress this on the Commis- .
sion—-is not a new treaty, but is what would suit Canada as far as
its beneficial use is concerned, based on figures checked by both
countries. And what will be the result of that to the United States?
Will it be as described by Judge King, so absurd and so ridiculous
that no two countries could have made this bargain; so absurd that
you must depart from language that is absolutely clear, that you
must make a new treaty, that you must write in language that is
not there; that you must take rivers which are described as being
one stream and cut them off, not in one place but in many places,
and so have tributaries hanging in the air and yet call these split
limbs part of that one stream? That, he says, 1s the result of the
Canadian contention, that you have to change clear language and do
gomething that is absolutely repugnant to that language-—change
one stream into many parts by inserting words which are not there.

That is described at page 14 of that memorandum as follows:

A tentative suggestion (reprinted at the end of the memorandum attached hereto)
was submitted by Canada. No objections have yet been stated by the United States
to the suggestions therein, which contain a solution wholly in accord with Article VI
and under which the United States, in addition to the use of the channel of the Milk
River in Canada. :

Milk River.—(a) Will continue to enjoy all the waters of the Milk River in Montana.

The United States will get not a part but the whole of those waters.
Where then remains this argument that Canadians will invade
Montana to get that water, that the Montana settlers—over whom the
United States has no control, and over whom even the State of
Montana possibly has no control—will have their property taken
awaﬁr for the benefit of Canada? Nothing of the kind 1s intended,
gentlemen. Under such a division as this—which, as I say, has not
yet been criticized as a practical working out of the treaty—the
settlers of Montana will get all the water that is there.

Mr. Tur~eR. They get all that already belongs to them.

Mr. MacInNes. Quite so. Does the canal in Canada belong to
them, then ? ' ‘

Mr. TurNeR. Certainly not.
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Mr. MacInnes., Then the United States—
(b) Can also obtain practically all the waters of the Milk River in Canada.

That is, all the flow of the Milk River at what is called the eastern
crossing.

Mr. %‘URNER. That is to say, Colonel, you take out of the Milk
l(],l%iver 76,400 acre-feet, which is within 15,000 acre-feet of its total

OW.

Mr. MacInngs. If the Senator will allow me, 1 will deal with the
figures presently. I understand you are referring to the figures which
we attached to the memorandum, and I will deal with those in a
moment.

The situation as to the Milk River, you will remember, was that
these prior appropriations existed at Chinook, and while there was
water coming 1n at Chinook—some of which was all Montana water,
which did not come {from the boundary—still a large portion of that
was coming from Canada, and they wanted, for the purpose of pro-
tecting those prior appropriations at Chinook, to have all of the water
coming down from Canada. They werc claiming, it will be remem-
bered, that they had their prior appropriations there, although, on
the other hand, the Canadians were able to show that they had their
grior appropriations on the Milk River, which were granted as far

ack as 1902.

(¢) Will obtain all the water that appears to be required from the eastern tributaries
of the Milk River in Canada for the irrigable area involved.

That is to say, for their prior. appropriations that might exist in
Montana, and which perhaps could not be satisfied solely by waters
rising in Montana, that sufficient water would come down from
Canada which, together with that local supply up above the prior
appropriations, would satisfy them.

St. Mary River.—(d) Will be able to get a larger average number of acre-feet from
the waters of the St. Mary River than has been stated tobe required for the Reclama-
tion Service project.

That is, that even on this proposal, which is now criticized not by
engineers of the United States, but by learned counsel for that coun-
try, the United States would get for their St. Mary River project as
well all that is shown in’ the evidenee as required for the Reclamation

- Service project.

Now, as to the figures, if T may say so, I think my learned friend has
not fully understood them, which may be due to the fact that the full
explanation in regard to them is not perhaps all there, some of it being
scattered through the oral argument. I will quote page 298 of the
St. Paul record, which contains the figures and the explanation, as
follows: .

It is suggested by Canada that the division of the waters of St. Mary and Milk
Rivers and their tributaries may be made by the International Joint Commission, in
"accordance with the provisions of the treaty, in several ways. A division which

- appears to fulfill these requirements is appended hereto for the consideration of the
commission. .

That is what was done. It was no new treaty, it was put forward

in explanation.

While such division would be acceptable to Canada, it is not put forward as the only
method of division that would be acceptable.
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This method of division recognizes the greater interest of the United States in the
waters of Milk River, or in waters that can be diverted into Milk River, and the simi-
larly greater interest of Canada in the waters of St. Mary River. It also recognizes the
interests of both countries in the waters of the Saskatchewan tributaries of Milk River,
and, it is believed; adequately fulfills all requirements on these tributaries.

Then there is a tabular statement headed:

Suggested division of the waters in accordance with the treaty.

St. Mary River up to a maximum flow of 2,000 second-feet, May to October,
inclusive: Acre-feet.

Canada. oo e 500, 290

Not from April to October, but from May to October. Those are
the months which will work it out. As you will see, in the article as
to prior appropriations, there is no absolute following of months,
because they are all taken into one account to produce beneficial
use.

St. Mary River below Alberta Railway & Irrigation intake: Acre-feet.
Canada. ..o L. L R 72, 000
St. Mary River from November to April, inclusive:
United StateS. oo ie et et e e e e e 131, 662

The whole amount during that period goes to the United States,
the same as the other amount from May to October goes to Canada.

St. Mary River, peaks of over 2,000 second-feet flood flow in summer. ...... 103, 500

That is just as valuable as any other water to the United States
by reason of the storage which they have at St. Mary to take that
flood flow, and which storage was built for that purpose.

Milk River at eastern crossing...........o.iioiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiianana 100, 000

Here is the point, T think, that has caused confusion in Senator
Turner’s mind, if I may say so.

The total acre-feet going to the United Statesis.............. .. ........... 335162
Less delivered at Alberta Railway & Irrigation intake on Milk River....... 76, 400
BEquals......o.o i ettt 258, 762

That will be explained two lines below.
Dealing now with the Milk River:
Milk River at Alberta Railway & Irrigation (fo.’s intake during floods: Acre-foet.

LT V.7 YN 20,000
United StabO8. . e eiee it et e aaaans

This is on the assumption that Canada will build storage reservoirs
at that point to enable her to make use of that flood water.
Now then—
Milk River at Alberta Railway & Irrigation Co.’s intake, St. Mary or Milk
River waters: Acre-feel.
7 (7Y 76, 400
United States. . e i ieieeaeiiaaaeiee e
Canada wanted some of the water in the Milk River obviously for
the settlers there and in satisfaction of their prior appropriations,
but it did not matter to Canada whether that water came from the
St. Mary River or from the Milk River, and if the United States pre-
ferred tgat it should be taken from the one river, well and good; but
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it is provided in this arrangement that United States is to get the
total average flow of what the Milk River is up to the eastern crossing,
namely, 100,000 acre-feet. Then the amount to go to Canada for
use on the Milk River would come either from any incidental surplus
over that amount or from the waters of the St. Mary River taken -
from here [indicating on large map] and flowing down through the
Milk River by reason of this canal. In other words, we make use of
the fact that these two waters are connected, so that this amount of
water on the Milk River in Canada can be taken from one source of
supply or the other. DBut that is not a cutting down of the water on
the%\firlk River, because if it does not suit the United States to give
it from the Milk River they supply it from the St. Mary River.

Mr. TurNer. How do you get the St. Mary water down into the
Milk River that you say you want to put there?

Mr. MacInngs. From the United States canal, you will remember,
it is diverted into the north branch of the Milk River and flows through
Canada, so the Milk River is carrying both Milk River water and
St. Mary River water.

Mr. TurNER. So you are using the United States canal to divert
your water.

Mr. MacInyes. That is terrible. I submit that we should make
use of the water.

Mr. Turner. T am not saying it is terrible; 1 am saying you are
assuming that.

Mr. MacInnNes. Quite so. It is water which is put there——

Mr. Turner. For the use of the United States.

Mr. MacInnes. I would have thought, Senator, for the beneficial
use of the irrigable arcas in these two countries, being carried out in
accordance with the treaty, that treaty having been made between
two neighbors instead of their adopting the principle of do%gea.t dog—
one person putting the water into the river and the other taking it out.

Mr. TurNER. I am rather wondering at the assumption that you
can usc that canal without anything ever having been said about it.

Mr. MacIxnes. I do not quite follow you. We do not use the
canal; the water is flowing through the Milk River, which contains
water that has been put into it.

"Mr. TurNer. By the United States for its own purposes.

Mr. MacInnes. Evidently I have not made myself clear. The
Canadians do not make use of the United States canal itself; they
take out from the Milk River—that is, if it is desired—water which is
flowing past. Now, it may be that that is ordinary Milk River water
or it may be that it is water which is being added thereto by the di-
version of the St. Mary River Canal in United States territory. But
the waters are flowing by naturally mixed together.

Then I come back to the suggested division:

Northern tributaries of Milk River, stored or diverted by Canada: Acre-feet.

Canada. . oot e 136, 000

United States. ... ..o ..o oo
Northern tributaries of Milk River passed by Canada:

Canada. . . o e e cemeaae eeaan

United SEaLEB. e e et iee et e iaeaeaaaaiaaa, 54, 000

That is, if the United States for its beneficial use wants more of
these northern tributaries so as to make use of them on the eastern
crossing, then it is for the United States to say so, and for the Com-
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mission to allot them a larger share, and for Canada to take a less
share of that same water to the north. That is one of the points
where adjustments can be made for the purpose of arriving at bene-
ficial use.

Then here is the next point:

Milk River and tributaries below eastern crossing up to 1lingdale or Vandalia; Acre-fest.

Canada. . oo e

United SEates. ..uuenn i it 350, 000
Milk River and tributaries below Vandalia:

L7 4 e 2

United States. ..o e 72, 600

Mr. CLark. Should that not be “down’ to Hinsdale or Vandalia?

Mr. MacInnNEs. You are quite right. It should be down to Hins-
date or Vandalia, which, as you will remember we pointed out thig
morning, is the final point of irrigable availability.

Now, this is the situation: The water down there is being taken
into account for the purpose of what there is available for these two
countries for beneficial use, just as if it all belonged to one person.
But it is not to be taken from there; it is being left there in the same
way. 1 would point out that there has been added to this total
which is being included all of these now so-called Saskatchewan
tributaries of the Milk River, which used to have names of their own,
and which were added to this common total and brought into the
common pot.

Senator Turner very kindly paid a tribute to Sir George Gibbons
as being a broad-minded statesman who brought everything in to
account so that the whole situation could be dealt with and cleaned
up. That being so, may I not be allowed to pay the same compli-
ment to the United States negotiators and to say that they, too. in-
tended to include all of the water immediately to the south which was

art of this settlement of the whole situation? Otherwise you would

ave it that on the United States side you come to a point at the
eastern crossing, and as to the rest you include all to the north but
nothing from the United States to the south. So while on the one
hand it is broad-minded to include everything so that the situation
may be finally dealt with, yet on the other hand it is now suggoested
that the position may be taken that all the water lying immediately
to the south which is being contributed by broad-minded statesmen
is to be left out of consideration altogether.

Mr. Tur~Ner. My tribute to Sir George Gibbons was that he
wanted to include all the waters that had ¢ver been in controversy.
There never had been any controversy about these lower waters.

Mr. MacInnges. I do not agree with my learned friend on that. I
think there was controversy on them just as much as there was
controversy on other matters connected with the watershed, as I will
be able to point out from one of Mr. Newell’s memoranda.

We find at page 88 of the record what I think is a conclusive answer
to my learned friend, that the water being taken here from the lower
Milk River Valley south of the Saskatchewan tributaries was not in
controversy. Mr. Newell, writing to Dr. King on the 15th of October,
1908, stated:

First. That the Government of the Dominion was appealed to many years ago by
persons interested in southern Alberta to develop that district by a canal system to
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divert water from St, Mary River, and finally decided to take action in the matter
after reaching the conclusion from the reports of its own officers and other engineers
that the diversion of the St. Mary River could not be carried out in the United States
as a commercial undertaking.

Mr. TurNER. That is the language of the privy council.

Mr. Maclnnges. Quite so; that is in quotation marks.

Mr. Newell proceeds: ’

This conclusion evidently did not take into account the fact that such diversion
was feasible and has heen demanded for many years by public sentiment and petition
by citizens of the United States. The surveys begun in 1900 have heen steadily
followed up. and on March 25, 1905, the sum of $1,000,000 was allotted to begin the
work now being carried on. The fact that the Dominion Government took upon
itself the determination as to how the waters should be used without consulting the
United States and that it has attempted to dispose of the waters of Milk River which
rise in the United States and pass through a part of Canada— .

That would be up in the northern part of the Milk River—
has aroused a very deep feeling.
Now, I invite particular attention to this:

This is steadily ageravated by the fact that Canada is permitting the tributaries of
Milk River to be diverted, namely, West Fork or Willow Creek—

You will find that on the detailed map which is before you—

North Fork or Battle (‘reek, Frenchman Creek or White Water, and Rock Creek, in
gpite of the fact that these waters have been appropriated under the laws of Montana
and already put to beneficial use. .

So that there was exactly the same controversy, with the exception
of the larger question of the canal, ete.

Mr. TurNER. That has no reference at all to the tributaries south
of the line.

Mr. MacInNes. Surely.

Senator CLArk. You mean, south of the Milk River?

Mr. TUrNER. South of the international boundary line. These
diversions which he is speaking about, West Fork or Willow Creek,
North Fork or Battle C}I)‘eek, and so on, are diversions made from
these tributaries in Canada.

Mr. MacInnes. Quite so.

Mr. TurNER. From these tributaries which afterwards flow into
the United States?

Mr. MacInnes. Yes; and that was affecting the use of these
waters to the south in the United States.

Mr.HTURNER. Affecting the use of these waters in the United States
as well ?

Mr. MacInnes. Quite so. It was said that the Cahadians were
taking, or proposing to take, water through the Alberta Railway &
Irrigation Co. canal which would affect the rights of United States
citizens. Now, coming farther eastward, we find the same complaint
on the part of the United States—that their citizens were being
affected by the taking out of water to the north by Canadians.

Mr. TurNer. I thought that you were reading this to show that
there had been some controversy about these intrastate Montana
tributaries.

Mr. MacInnes. Well, I should have thought that they showed in
the clearest possible language that they——

Mr. Turner. What you have read here only shows a controversy
about international triﬂutaries that flow across the border.
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Mr. Crark. I think you gentlemen are at cross purposes. Senator
Turner is referring to tributaries south of the Milk River in Montana
alone.

Mr. MacInnes. Quite so, yes.

Mr. CLark. And the Colonel is referring to the tributaries that
come in from the north? :

Mr. MacInNes. Yes.

Mr. PowrLL. One is referring to intrastate and the other to inter-
state waters.

Mr. MacIxnEs. In this particular country to the east there was
more controversy as to the prior appropriations and the use of the
water in the two countries.

Mr. Turner. There was no controversy as to the use of waters
rising and flowing wholly in Montana, and there never has been. I
would like you to read from the record anything which shows that
there has been any such controversy.

Mr. Powgerr. How could there be any controversy at that time
about a stream in the State on the south side of the line?

Mr. MacInxus. The Senator and I may be entirely at cross pur-
poses. But what I am pointing out is this: I understand from the
Senator that he is suggesting that this controversy between the two
countries as to the use of waters on either side stopped short of the
so-called Saskatchewan tributaries of the Milk River, and in the
country to the south, in the United States. 1 was pointing out that
in that territory exactly the same dispute, or a dispute of the same
nature, exists.

Mr. Tur~Ner. If you will permit me, you were commenting on my
commendation of Sir George Gibbons for including in this treaty the
Saskatchewan tributaries as being very broad-minded statemanship
on his part, and you said that the same statesmanship had been shown
by the American negotiators in including these waters down in Mon-
tana that were wholly intrastate. I said that my compliment to Sir
‘George was based on the fact that he included tributaries that had
been in controversy; then you proposed to read and to show that
these intrastate Montana tributaries had been in controversy. My
proposition is that what you have read does not show that at all.

Mr. MacInNes. Very good. My proposition is this: Without this
broad-minded action as shown in the treaty these Saskatchewan
tributaries would have been excluded, and, as is now clear, that por-
tion of the watershed would not have been brought into this article
as well as the others. I really should have thought that could not
have been made more clear,

Mr. GARDNER. You think, Mr. MacInnes, that that would include
the waters flowing into the Milk River from the south?

Mr. MacInngs. Of course; you will see as the argument goes on.
The Canadian contention is that the whole matter is dealt with; both
rivers, with their tributaries, are treated as one.

Mr. GArRDNER. All the previous correspondence, though, referred
to the international waters.

Mr. MacInnes. I think I can show you very clearly that when
they wanted to use the word “international,”’ not merely for describ-
ing a situation but for cutting off rivers at the boundary and dealing
with them there and nowhere else, they were perfectly well able to
-express their ideas. .



106 ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS.

Mr. GARDNER. Your contention is, then, as I understand you, that
%ey itzlcluded in their consideration the entire watershed of the Milk

iver ?

Mr. MaclnnNms. Surely.

Mr. GArDNER. On both sides of the river?

Mr. MacInngs. Down to the lowest point where the waters would
" be useful for irrigation.

Mr. TurNeR. That would include this 72,000 acre-feet, so you can

“not stop there.

}1:11'. Maclnnes. I think, Senator, that we intend to be fair to cach
other.

Senator TurNer. I may misunderstand that, but I do not know
what this 72,000 acre-feet below Vandalia is, unless it is that 72,000
feet which you say can not be used.

Mr. MacInNEs. This memorandum says:

St. Mary River below Alberta Railway & Irrigation intake, 72,000.

It is exactly the same wording; it is simply a cross eniry so as to
show there all the waters. The footnote, No. 1, says:

1. These amounts are not at present considered available for Irrigation but possibly
for power.

The same amount is attributed to both countries.

Mr. Turner. Still, it is charged up to the United States. We.
charged up the same amount to Canada, and the Canadian waters,
you say, are not susceptible of use?

Mr. MacINNEs. 1tisasimilar amount of useless water; it is charged
up on both sides of the balance sheet, so that the whole situation may
be depicted. :

Mr. CLark. Let me get the reason for that charging up. Why not
omit it entirely in the calculation ?

Mr. MacInnes. That might have been done; I think it was just
to have the whole situation—-—

Mr. Crark. It is rather confusing.

Sir WiLriam HearsT. As I understand it, it does not affect the
result whether you throw out these useless waters on the lower part
of the St. Mary and on the Milk River, or whether you take them
in, because they exactly counterbalance each other.

Mr. MacInNes. Quite so, that is the situation. They were put in
the memorandum so that the whole picture would be there. But I
grant you, Senator Clark, that without further argument the thing is
a little difficult to understand.

Mr. CLark. A confusion of bookkeeping.

Mr. Maclnnes. I shall not read again the footnotes on page 298,
because they have already been stated in argument.

Now, the result of that proposition, as I have said, is set forth in
graphic form in Exhibit Q, from which it will be seen that under that
there will be provided for the United States very considerably more
foritsirrigable areas, as is shown in the evidence, than is provided for
Canada, for its considerably larger irrigable areas. It is shown here,
for instance, that the depth of water that will be available for Canada
in an average year will be 0.84 feet, whereas in the United States in
an average year the depth is 3.78 feet; that for a maximum year
Canada will receive 0.81 feet and the United States 6.04 feet.
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Mr. Crark. Colonel, in order that I may understand you clearly,
may I go back to my original question? You take now the entire
probable irrigable area of each country and you divide the waters
according to that irrigable area?

Mr. MacInxEes. Oh no, Senator; not at all.

Mr. Crark. That is what 1 was trying to get at in that last state-
ment; my mind was somewhat confused as to that.

Mr. MacInnes. I am very glad to have an opportunity of getting
it clear. We have had it stated what was the situation in the two
countries. We get the treaty; we take that and make an estimate as
to how that would work out so as to give beneficial use to the two
countries. Having done that, we see what the result of that appor-
tionment is with regard to irrigable area in cach country, which we
previously have been considering. You have got your irrigable areas;
you have got your treaty; you get the result of the treaty; you turn
back to your irrigable area and see how much water that provides
per acre for that irrigable area.

Mr. Crark. That 18 exactly what I understood. Now, you esti-
mate your irrigable area; I have not been able to get through my
mind as yet the substantial right to estimate the irrigable area. For
instance, suppose there are 500,000 acres

Mr. Maclnnes. 1 agree it is arguable, Senator.

Mr. Triey. You only divide the water; you do not divide the
irrigable area.

Sir WiLriam Hearst. What do you mean by irrigable area? Isit
an area that can be irrigated from certain waters ?

Mr. MagraTH. I was under the impression that it was the areas
that were under consideration by the projects on both sides of the
line that were taken into account.

Mr. PowsLL. You are endeavoring to show that the scheme you
suggested worked out no injury to either party ?

Mr. MacInnes. It is the one common-sense arrangement which
produced what the treaty contemplated, beneficial use.

Mr. MacraTH. I was under the impression that these two projects
had in mind the development of certain land by irrigation, and that
they determined these areas as from these respective projects. Now,
T do not know whether or not I am right, but that is what was in my
own mind. '

Mr. MacInngs. That is what T understand.

Sir Wir.Lram Hearsr, It is in the record.

Mr. PowrLL. My idea is that this whole argument really has
nothing to do with it, because the treaty says: “divide one-half,”
and if that can be done to benefit one by putting it here instead of
there, and not injure the other, why the Commission in its discretion,
would do that. But I do not thinf(/ that all this talk about irrigable
areas has a blessed thing to do with the situation.

Mr. Tvrner. This has to be done from time to time, not as a
permanent order from the Commission.

Mr. MacInNges. Of course, Mr. Commissioner, this matter is one
of first impression, so far as some of the commissioners are concerned.
That is why this matter is being dealt with,

Mr. PoweLL. That is shown to be a reasonable construction to be
placed upon the treaty, and that would go in favor of your construc-
tion to a certain extent—that is your argument?
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Mr. MacInnes. Yes. But in any event I would be bound to deal
with this side of it, in view of the very forcible attack that was made
by my learned friend, Senator Turner, on the treaty, on the ground
that 1t led to absurd conclusions. Senator Walsh also went into
these questions of figures, but Semator Turner took a somewhat
different line. There is clear language in this treaty, as I have
always pointed out. Senator Walsh, largely, and Senator Turner,
to some extent, sought to say that they are entitled to read the treaty
in a different way because of certain fanguage in it, which we say 1s
descriptive. Senator Turner, however, developed a new-suggestion—
few have a better knowledge of the decisions with respect to the con-
structions of treaties than he has—that you must apply the clear
language that you find in the wording of the treaty unless it leads
you to an absurd conclusion. Then he undertook to show, from
these figures, that the Canadian contention produced absurd results.

Mr. PoweLL. And you say, in response to that, Here is a suggestion
I have to make which, if adopted, would show this reasonable result
from the treaty ?

Mr. MacIxngs. Exactly. Of course, you have the matter in
mind and thoroughly know, I trust, that the suggestion is not absurd,
but it might be that other commissioners would not have the same
opinion.

Then, I would like to turn for a moment to the treaty itself. We
have deseribed the geographical situation; we have dealt with the
difficulties. 'We have seen what the result would be of a bargain as
indicated in the treaty as construed by Canada. Now, let us look
at, this article for a moment and examine it more minutely in connec-
tion with the negotiations upon which my learned friend lays so
much stress.

The points to which T wish to call attention in Article VI are these:

The high contracting parties agree that the St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their
tributaries (in the State of Montana and the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatc hewan)
are to be treated as one stream-—

That is, in this proposal as finally accepted, these rivers were to be
treated as one stream—

for the purposes of irrigation and power, and the waters thercof shall be apportioned
equally between the two countries,

They were to be one stream; there was to be this equal apportion-
ment. Then it says:

but in making su-h equal apportionment more than half may be taken from one river
and less than half from the other. :

That was one of the main advantages, as you will see, of making
it the one stream; the result was that more could be taken from one
than from the other. That is an important point to bear in mind in
dealing with these negotiations; that as this thing finally boiled
down, these waters were dealt with not separately, but as one, and
in such a way that more could be taken out of the one than from the
other—which, as you see, fits in with what the different parties were
wanting.

Then, there were to be prior appropriations; I will not deal with
that aspect of it critically or fully at the moment. Then there ig the
provision that the ¢hannel of the Milk River in Canada—mnothing
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international about that; entirely the channel in Canada—is to be
used at the convenience of the United States. There is a scrvitude
placed on that canal in Canadian territory for the use of the United
States. So we have it that there was one stream; we have it that
it was to be all the waters; we have it that there was to be equal
division and more than half from one than from the other. We have
it that there was to be a balancing, as one might describe it, of appro-
priation, one on one river and one on the other, and we have it that
there was to be the use of a canal. Now, what is suggested on the
other side—so that we may have that in mind when we are looking
at the negotiations—is this: That although there is nothing in the
- article itself, there is to be a cutting down of the gencral langunage,
which cutting down is to the effect that such parts of rivers and such
tributaries as arc not in both countries are to be included. It is
admitted by my learned friends that the tributaries which are wholly
in either countries, but join the main river before it goes across the
boundary, are to be included.  But that very fact, I submit, places
them in an irapossible predicament when they seek to argue that the
parenthetical language ““in the State of Montana and the Provinces
of Alherta and Saskatchewan’ has the eflect of cutting out tribu-
taries unless they are in the State of Montana and one or other of
those Provinces. Ifven if that were to be granted, as you will see,
that does not fit in with their contention, or with their limitation,
because they themselves admit that there should be included tribu-
taries which are not in Montana and in one or other of the Provinces.
For instance, the waters of the various tributaries of the Milk and
so on, which rise in Canada and do not flow into the United States,
but join another river which does, according to their contention,
these waters are to be included. Thercfore my learned friends have
to say, but the limitation is this, it cuts off those waters which are
not in both countries and which do not flow across the boundary.
So that you will see that their desire, then, is in some way to get n
a limitation at the boundary. For the purposes of this article, it is
not so stated, though the negotiators found it perfectly simple and
perfectly easy so to state when they had that in view.

My learned friend found this further difficulty, that there had
been descriptions of these waters as “international’” waters. He
said—perfeetly correctly, if I may be allowed to say so—that there
is no such thing as “international waters”; that waters that flow
from one country to the other are not international waters. He said
that that was not the correct. expression, but that he would use it for
the purpose of describing the points which he wished to make. Now,
my objection is that when you use the word “international” in that
way, you get into the thought of the two nations and of the bound-
aries, and of something different. So I submit that it will not assist
but rather hurt, to use a word which is not a correct word, and which
carries with it a signification which is the very crux of the dispute.
I suggest that the better way to describe these waters is that the
‘““demands” should be regarded as common waters, and that the
others, which he says should not be included, as waters which are not
common to both countries. Of course, my learned friend may use any
language he chooses, but it seems to me that that would be a more
correct designation of those waters sought to be excluded, when they
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are not being excluded on any boundary prineciple in connection with
an arrangement which, as T shall be able to develop later from the
negotiations and from the facts, has been settled, not on any inter-
‘national basis but on a national basis—a basis under which the rivers
in both countries are to be treated as one, and under which a canal in
one of the countries, which under no conceivable view could be
claimed by another country, is granted or has servitude placed upon
it, in favor of the other country.

Now, it might be contended that my learned friend went so far as
to say that it 1s for the Canadian side to find in these negotiations the
bargain as contained in this article. That, I submit, should not be
put forward to anybody as a task in construing a document, because .
obviously the final result is not to be found in the negotiations; the
final result is one which the parties have reached after negotiations,
written and oral. But he may put it to me—and I accept-—that you
will find flowing through the negotiations various ideas which grow
and develop, and finally result—and, I trust, flourish—in the agree-
ment finally arrived at. Well in that connection, you will find various
narrow ideas of dealing simply with prior appropriations and of
dealing with parts of the waters up to an apportionment of the flood
flow, but not including everything. Then you find the idea of treat-
ing them both as one stream. You are getting there on broader
ground. You are getting it that there should be equality; you are
getting it that there should be appropriations; you are gradually
going on from one idea to another. Then there would appear to be
some suggestion of narrowing again; of not having the streams as
one but as having them separate; of having them come across at the
boundary; no use of the canal; no prior appropriations. Then you
find the proposals coming back again to a wider result, a result
which is due to the good statesmanship, evidently on both sides, of
making it clear that there was included here all the tributaries
farther to the east in Saskatchewan, tributaries which, but for the
use of general language, might have been outside of this arrangement
and might have had to be treated under Article 1I or under some other
negotiations. As I say, you find narrower ideas, then broader ideas,
then possibly a swing back to narrower, and the final result of every-
thing included, all one streani, not only the tributaries to the west
but the tributaries to the east. And in that final result you do not
find a trace of the language which they themselves have shown that
they were perfectly capable of using, and of using in a very few words,
when they desired so to express themselves. Why, if it was intended
that these waters should be cut off at the boundary, it was only
necessary to say so—nothing simpler—three words more, words that
they had used before time and again. They are not here; and my
learned friend has to go out to the highways and byways of rules of
construction to find a limitation which could have been so easily
expressed had any such limitation been intended.

he prior appropriationg——

Mr. PowrLrL. Before you pass that, Colonel, of course your argu-
ment is simply this: That the words “river and its tributaries”” mean
the total river systems within these countries {

Mr. MacInNgs. Surely.

Mr. PoweLL. The total river system. Well, have you given any
thought as to why that word “tributaries” was introduced there at
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all? Just think for a moment. It must have some significance,
because the river would seem to comprise all the waters of all the
tributaries. “The waters of the river” is the sum of all the waters
of the tributaries. Practically, the two expressions mean the same
thing. Do you think then that there is any significance—I am just
calling attention to that—in the introduction of the word “tribu-
taries,” or was it simply to mean the river system ?

Mr. MaclInygs. I would think so. What you say may be per-
fectly true as applied to a fully settled country, where everybody
knows what a river is, and what are its branches and its tributaries,
and so on. But when you get into a newly settled country, where
tributaries have names of their own—as I was saying just now, not
merely one name but two names—don’t you get away from any
question or argument as to whether you are including the whole or
not, by saying that you take the river and its tributaries, which
means not such waters as are designated by certain local appellations,
or by local custom, not certain things which are called the branches
of the Milk River, but waters which would be included by a geog-
rapher as being all the water which is tributary to that river. There
was to be no possibility of conflict: there was to be no possibility of
the suggestion being made: Why that is not a tributary of such a
river, because it has its own name.

Mr. PowgLL. There is no question about it that the word “river”’
embraces the whole river system, so far as water is concerned. But
does it strike you that there is any significance in the word “ tribu-
taries’’; that it may possibly mean that instead of waiting for the
whole of the water to get into that river we were to have the right to
divide on the tributary itself as apart from the river? Do you catch
my meaning ? It is just an idea that was floating in my mind; there
may be something in the measurement.

Mr. MacInngs. I think I see your point, Mr. Commissioner. That
might be so if these matters were being dealt with separately. But
here, where you get it that it is one stream and all brought into the
common pot, I would not think that they would have wanted to use
-that word, or intended to use it, because the idea here is not to force
either country to take its share of the total apportionment, at each
particular point or at each particular tributary. The idea here was
exactly the contrary. The idea here was to get your watershed, to
consider beneficial use and to let each country take it where it wanted
to. So I think it was in the view of including everything that a
geographer would include. )

Mr. PoweLL. Well, these eminent literary men, like Bryce, and
the rest of them, have succeeded in a few lines in creating more
ambiguities than arise under the Statute of Frauds.

Mr. CLark. According to Senator Turner on one side, and Col.
Maclnnes on the other, there is no ambiguity.

Mr. MacInnes. So far as I am concerned, Mr. Commissioner, if you
deal with the article and not go out and try to create ambiguity,
there will be no difficulty.

Mr. PowrLL. We will not say ‘‘ ambiguity,” we will say ¢ questions.”

Mr. Maclnnges. I take it almost as a personal reflection that
although I have had the honor of arguing this cglestlon before you
three times, your mind is not yet clear upon it. But when you have
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taken into account, Mr. Commissioner, the arguments that have
flowed on both sides, I hope that you will get some beneficial result.

Before passing to the negotiations, if I may, I might ask the Com-
mission to look at the map which is before them and which has on it

- the details that are in the record. If you look at the place, “Chinook,”
where the prior appropriations of the United States were, you will
see that there is passing at that point not merely the main body of
the Milk River but innumerable small streams, or whatever you call
them, Box Elder Creek, Clear Creek, and so on, flowing from the Bear
Paw Mountains in the south of Montana. We have also those which
start from the north—here is one called Red Rock Coulee. We have
also some of the tributaries—JI.odge Creek, Battle Creek—which have
their origin in Canada. But what I wanted the Commission, if they
would, to get clear before them as shown on this map, is that at this

oint, where the prior appropriations of the United States were to

e taken, there was flowing in water which, on my learned friend’s
contention, should be excluded; that water was coming in at this
part which was water which had not flowed across the boundary.
Do 1 make myself clear? If you look at Chinook and look at the
water which comes in there, for the purpose of answering these
appropriations, you will see that there were coming in there not
merely waters from the north which flowed across the %)oundary, but
other waters from the south and elsewhere which had their origin
in Montana and which had not flowed across the boundary.

Mr. Crark. Right there is a question that it might be proper for
me to ask; I have had it in mind from the beginning. Is there any-
thing in the negotiations, Colonel, to indicate that the negotiators in
their discussion or in their notes considered any water—I1 am speak-
ing now of waters in their physical sense—which did not, or could not
by any possibility, pass the boundary line ?

Mr. MacInnes. Yes, Senator, I am going to deal with that.

Mr. Crark. I wish you would call my attention particularly to
that when you get to it.

Mr Maclnnes. I wanted you to get this geographical situation
clearly in your mind. : :

I do not think that I may deal with anything earlier than the
dispatch from Mr. John Hay, who was then Secretary of State, of
February 19, 1903, which is at the top of page 61. In that dispatch
there was a proposition from the United States which I should like
to emphasize:

1t is propesed to deal with this matter in strict conformity with the laws concerning
the rights to the use of water as recognized by the courts of the arid region, both on this
side. of the international boundary and on the other. The principle may be stated
in the language of section 8 of the rerlamation act of June 17, 1902 (32 Stat. 388):

“That the right to use of water shall be appurtenant to the lands irrigated and bene-
ficial use shall be the basis, the measure, and limit.of the right.”

The suggestion, in other words, was that to the question which had
arisen there, there should be applied the principles of irrigation law
as to prior appropriations. There was to be applied something which
was not international law in any sense, but which was a domestic law,

- as existing in either country. As a matter of fact, the principles are
entirely the same to be applied to the situation. But with regard to
these waters which were ﬁowing from one country to the other, there
was to be applied the law of irrigation, which is based on the question

v
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of prior ap{)ropriations. We shall see presently where that leads to
in the development of the argument, but you will note that that was
the proposition—-that one country should be obliged to consider the
water which had been taken from a river lower down, and that the
matter should be dealt with according to irrigation law, which meant
that it should be dealt with and measured as to quantity, not as to
boundary or any division between the two countries, simply as if
the streams were one at the place where the water was being taken.
Now, what was the result of that? That you would deal with it as
if the territory was one, and there would obviously be included in that
all the waters above the place where the water was required and where
it was to be taken, and where the prior appropriation had to be
respected. Nothing can possibly be clearer than that.

Mr. Tur~ner. What was the letter from which you read? I did
not quite catch your reference to it at the beginning ?

Mr. MacIn~es. This is Mr. Hay’s letter, page 61 of the St. Paul
record. I do not know whether I have made myself clear there.
The complaint, we will say, from the lower to the upper country would
be based, not on anything which had happened at the boundary, but
on irrigation law. The question which would be dealt with under
irrigation law, obvlously, has not any boundaries in it, has not any
cut across, is based on an accumulation of water which comes in at
that particular point. So that it is the application of a national, a
domestic law, to not international waters, but an international
question. Now, there again, I grant you, on the question of termi-
nology there is a great deal of discussion as to the use of the word
‘“international.”” Of course, this was an intérnational question; it
would not be before you, gentlemen, now if it were not. But does that
not involve that it should be dealt with by 37011 by inventing a bound-
ary when the parties have not said so, and where there is language
which excludes such a consideration. As I gointed out just now, the
boundary is excluded by the collection of these two rivers into one;
the boundary is excluded by the application of irrigation law, which
takes into account the waters which are subject to prior appropriation,
not waters which are to be measured or cut off at some other place.
I wish to call attention again to that, because reference has been made
to the preliminary marks in some of these documents as indicating
that this is an international question. True, it is international; it
was a question between the two countries. But that does not involve
that they were to cut things off at the boundary unless they have said
so. It s just as if it was ‘“re so-and-so, dispute between the United
States and Canada.”” It is an international matter, but they do not
necessarily solve it in that way, any more than they did in the con-
troversy which took place between the State of Kansas and the
State of Colorado, which was referred to and very ably dealt with in
Mr. Gunn’s memorandum. A similar situation had arisen there
between the two States, and the matter went before the Senate, 1
understand, which acts more or less as an arbitrator or judicial
body in connection with solving such disputes. The Senate there said
that the two rivers in question were to be treated as one; they cut out
the State boundaries, and that is the way they dealt with it. Now, I
submit, that is the way that the parties here have obviously dealt
with this matter, which, undoubtedly, is 4n international matter.

57208—21-—8
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But calling it an international matter does not interject provisions
into the treaty which are not there, and which would not be imported
by the word “international,”’ as my learned friend has attempted,
because ‘“international waters” has no meaning.

Sir- Wirtzam Hearst. Mr. Hay, in the concluding paragraph of
that communication, seems to amplify the idea he had, whatever that
idea was. ]

Mr. MacInnes. Quite so. Ie says:

Inasmuch as the position taken by the Reclamation Service in this matter in regard
to the rights claimed in Canada apé)ears to be precisely that which is taken in the case
‘of similar rights within the United States, both being treated according to the recog-
nized rules of law governing the diversion and appropriation of water in arid regions,
Mr. Hitchcock—

I understand that Mr. Hitchecock was the Secretary of the In-
terior—
regrets that he can see no reason for a change in the position taken by this Government
in the matter.

I was directing attention to the memorandum of May 9, 1904,
apparently communicated to the British ambassador. The first
sentence says:

It has been represented to the Government of the United States that a large canal

is now in the course of construction in Canadian territory which will divert a large
amount of water from Milk River into the Saskatchewan Basin.

Now, we will follow the language closely:

that all normal flow of Milk River is now being used by the people of Milk River
Valley in Montana, who have built irrigating canals involving-a great expenditure of
money and have thereby reclaimed 80,000 acres of arid lands.

Now, I point that out as showin%1 to you that what was there
involved was all the normal flow of the Milk River; in other words,
they considered that all these southern waters in the United States
were covered bY these United States appropriations. So that the

oint there would be this: That the prior appropriations, so far as the

nited States was concerned, would exhaust the waters coming from
Canada, and all the waters at this part where these prior appropria-
tions existed of the normal flow. They had in mind there

Mr. PoweLL. You are passing on to another point, now?

Mr. MacInnes. Quite so.

Mr. PoweLL. Before you leave that, assuming that the idea of
making the two rivers common had its root in the practice in the
United States; assuming that to be correct—-

Mr. Crarg. What practice do you refer to?

Mr. PowerLL. The practice generally in respect to irrigation as
between upper and lower riparian proprietors or States. .

Mr. Cuark. Just a moment. I would like to have that a little
more definitely settled. What is that practice?

Mr. PowerLL. Well, whatever it may be, I was going to ask a

uestion, because they assumed, do you see, that the practice there
should prevail. The United States put it up to Canada that the
laws relating to upper and lower riparian proprietors, with respect to
irrigation, should prevail. Whatever that may be, I am going to ask
a question. .
Ir. Cr.are. Well, I will have to start with the understanding that
in the irrigating part of the United States there is no such thing as
riparian proprietors.
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Mr. MacInygs. Quite so. .

y Mr. KinG. In other words there is no “practice’” at the present
ime.

Mr. Crark. Oh, yes; there is practice, but it does not recognize any
riparian right.

Mr. PoweLn. Well, if it is introducing a question with respect to
riparian proprietors, I will modify-my-inquiry. -

Mr. MacInngs. I did not understand that you were dealing with
the question of riparian proprietors; you were dealing with the ques-
tion of irrigation law.

Mr. PowrrL. It is the right to abstract waters from streams.

Mr. Crark. There is no upper or lower right.

Mr. PowewrL, There is not?

Mr. Crark. No. The mere fact that you live higher up on a stream
gives you no preferential right to appropriate the waters of that
stream.

Mr. PoweLL. Now, as between riparian States, that matter has been
before the United States courts.

Mr. MacInnes. No, I think that is wrong, if I may say so. The
dispute that arose—Senator Clark will correct me if I am wrong—
between Kansas and Colorado was that one was a State which 'was
governed by riparian law, a State in which riparian. rights were
recognized, and the other was an irrigation State, a State in which
water was used for irrigation purposes. ST

Mr. Crark. Hardly that. The question was as to the right of the
State to appropriate all the water of a river that would ordinarily
flow into another State. : (

Mr. MacInxgs. Well, as I remember it, that was the situation as
between the two States: One recognized riparian law, at least to some
extent; and the. other -did net; the other was governed by irriga-
tion law.

Mr. CrLark. It was a question of the right of a State;to appropriate
all waters flowing into that State, whether they {lowed into the other
State or not. ‘ ‘ o :

Mr. PowgLL. That, then, is a question as between upper and lower
riparian States. : : : ,

Sir Woriam Hearst. As I understand the position taken by Mr.
Hay in the communication read by Col. MacInnes it is this: Canada.
has nothing to complain of because she is being treated exactly as the
United States is being treated.

M]y. éVIACINNES. Exactly, and that this law of irrigation should be
applied.

g ir WicLtam HearsT. Quite so—an irrigation law which is common.

Mr. Crark. It is the law of prior appropriation and beneficial use,
that is all there is to it.

Mr. PowerL. Now, I was going to put this question to you. Sup-
pose the lower proprietors were proceeding by an injunction against
the upper proprietors, the United States court, having, we will assume,
jurisdiction over both; in a case of that kind would it be open to the
upper riparian proprietor to claim: You lower proprietors are already
appropriating waters to the south and there is no necessity for your
taking additional waters from above, to meet presént emergencies.

Mr. MacIxnes. Surely it would be the other way round. If the
complainant had to make out a case he would have to show that he
had prior appropriations, we will say, for 500 second-feet.
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Mr. PowrrL. I am not. speaking about the prior appropriations;
I am simply speaking of the necessities of the land helow.

Mr. MaclnNEes. Quite so. It would be for whoever was raising the
claim to make out his case. He would say: I am entitled by my
laws—-1 should have thought we were dealing with irrigation laws—-
but still he could say: I am entitled to that flow of water by law.
Now, T am not getting it; T am short so much. Surely he can not go
to the person above him and call upon him to allow to flow down to
him an amount which, together with the other sources of supply to
which the lower man is entitled, would give him more than his right.

Mr. PowELL. In other words, the supply that he gets from other
sources is a factor in the problem as to whether he is entitled to call
upon the other States to let the water go down.

Mr. MacInnes. Surely.

Mr. PoweLL. As a real emergency !

Mr. MacIN~NEs. Yes,

Mr. CLarx. Most of the States have their own laws in this respect.
Take, for instance, the State of Wyoming, I appropriate for 160
acres of land. The State engineer tells me how much water I can
take out of that stream for that 160 acres of land, and the man who
has land ‘below can not compel me to divide what the State engineer
has given me, provided the State engineer has not given me more
than sufficient to irrigate ‘my land. In other words, I may have
sufficient to irrigate my land, and the man below me may be compelled
to go entirely g . :

‘Mr. PoweLL. I"lzhat is a case of intrastate municipal law.

Mr. CLARk. Yes. :

Mr. Powxrr. And as to interstate law, as administered by the
Suﬁvem‘e Court of the United States. : :

r.: CLARK. That has not yet been determined. It is still in
abeyance and probably always will be.
r. Kive. It is pending in the Wyoming-Colorado case. -

Mr. CLark. Yes; in which the Supreme Court has had two or
three rehearings and has not yet determined what the law is—that is,
as between citizens of different States, not as between two States.

Col. MacInnEs. On page 63 of the St. Paul record is a further
dispatch from Mr. Hay, dated December 30, 1904, and I wish to call
attention to the fourth paragraph of that on page 63, reading as
follows: 4

The engineers report that the waters of the St. Mary River which flow northward
into Canadian territory are now being utilized to only a'small extent, and they state
that it is practicable to store these waters in the United States, conduct them by a
canal on the southern side of the international boundary line to the head of the Milk

iver, and there turn them into the Milk River, so as to increase the ordinary flow
of that river,

and so on.

Under this arrangement the prior rights of the Canadian settlers on the St. Mary
River would be protected by permitting its ordinary flow to continue to pass into
Canadian territory, and at the same time the great volume of flood water which passes
down that river,
and so forth. I call attention to that, not so much in connection
with the construction of the article, as with the carrying out of its
})rovisions by the Commission, in the hope that some way may be

ound, as pertinent to the jurisdiction of the Commission, to develop



ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS, 117

or encourage, if not to order, storage facilities in both countries to
be developed as far as possible, because it is quite clear that if there
is storage there will be greater water and less possibility of dispute
between the two countries at any future time. I mean that as
development goes on; and there is more storage, you are quite sure
all the water 1s measured that can be got there. ,

There was a question on the record whether there had been an
argument to store or not that indicated that there might be such an
agreement. Anyhow, in the result, there was no formal agreement
between the two countries to store, although it was shown that
Canada was quite. willing and ready to contribute to the storage
which might take place at the best available place on St. Mary Lake.

Turning, then, to Mr. Root’s dispatch of June 15, 1907, on pages 65
and 66, the matter now seems to be widening, and that the rivers are
to be treated as one; but instead of the whole situation being dealt
with, as you will remember is pointed out in Dr. King’s subsequent
memorandum, there is an endeavor to balance certain benefits
without dealing with the whole. There are questions of storage in
several months. There is a question of setting off all the water in
one river against all the water of another in a way that is exceedingly
difficult to comprehend. I can only say that if you were looking %or
ambiguity you could not do better than endeavor to solve this
balancing of benefits, from the details that were given. As is shown
by the facts, they could not land anywhere on such a basis because
it is difficult to understand; I am referring particularly to Article V.
There are other parts which I shall show are quite clear as to what
was meant. ‘ » S

I invite particular attention to paragraphs 9 and 10 of this docu-
ment, as sgowing to my mind conclusively that the parties had in
mind and were dealing with waters which were wholly in one country.

Mr. Crark. That is the point to which my question was directed.

Mr. MacInNEs. Let us look at paragraph 9 on page 66:

The share of the United States shall in any event include so much of the available
natural flow of the Milk River as shall be judicially determined as having been
applied to beneficial use on or before November 1, 1905, by the canal systems taking
water from the lower Milk River in Montana.

I have shown you to-day on the map Chinook, where those were
being taken. at is referred to in paragraph 9 you'will find in
this red triangle shown on the map before you. To continue:

the same to be measured at the intakes of said canal systems; and whenever one-
balf of the natural flow of Milk shall be less than such amount, measured as aforesaid—

That is at Chinook, applying the facts to the document—
the share of Canada—
we will see In a moment that that is one-half:

the share of Canada shall be diminished so that said country shall receive of the natural
flow of the entire Milk River system ohly the excess, if any, beyond such amount
of decreed beneficial use. ‘

So what is involved there is not only prior 1s\x})fn'olgr'1ations,'but a
one-half consideration of all the waters of the Milk River, which we
are dealing with, when coming from Canada or coming in at this
point, where it is expressly stated by Mr. Root the water is to be
measured. Therefore, so far as Canada’s share of these particular
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waters is dealt with there, it has to be one-half of that water and of
whatever is supplemental thereto and arises south of the boundary
and up to the point where it is being measured for the satisfaction
of these prior appropriators, that is Chinook.

Mr. MaGraTH. That is your interpretation of the entire Milk
River system?

Mr. Maclnnes. Yes; as being dealt with by Mr. Root. That is
the entire Milk River system as they were dealing with it at the time.

Sir WiLLiaM fIeARsT. And you say the intakes of the canal sys-
tems at which measurement is to be made are at Chinook ?

Mr. MacINNES. Oh, yes; there is no dispute about that. To carry
on, we get the same idea exactly in the other country, for whatever
results it may produce. Paragraph X, on page 66, says:

The share of Canada shall in any event include so much of the available natural

flow (())f St. Mary River as has been applied to beneficial use on or before November
1, 1905.

You will note that Mr. Root dates it back, which was one of the
points Canada was objecting to, because the result would be to cut
down Canada’s authorized appropriation on the St. Mary to an
earlier date. It goes on:

by the canal taking water from St. Mary River in Canada—-

That, you will remember, is not at the boundary, but at Kimball,
which 1s shown on the small map before you, just about the figure 25—
the same to be measured at the intake of ssid ranal; and whenever one-hslf of the
natural flow of St. Mary River shall be less than such.amount, measured as aforesaid,
the share of the United States shall be diminished, so that said country shall receive
of the natural flow of the entire St. Mary River system only the excess, if any, beyond
such amount. )

There they were speaking of the St. Mary River just as they were
of the Milk River system. They are dealing with water for irriga-
tion. Therefore, the system includes up to the point where it is
being used for irrigation—in the United States, as it happened, at
and around Chinook, and in Canada at Kimball. =~

Mr. PowerLL. You have only given us one canal. How many
were there ?

Mr. MacInngs, Oh, no. . ,

Mr. PowrrL. Just at this moment you have only mentioned one.

Mr. MacInnes. Noj; I am speaking of the St. Mary.

Mr. PoweLL. I am speaking of the Milk River. What were the
canals that tapped below Chinook?

Mr. MacInNgs. If you would refer to page 33 of the record, that
gives a statement of what they were. Then this map—I called your
attention to the numbers this morning—shows exactly where each
one of them was. There are eight, and you will find each one of
these numbers, as a matter of fact, around Chinook. That may be
why Mr. Powell thought I was speaking of only one; I was speaking
of them all——

Mr. PoweLL., Now, below that, were there any canals that took
water from the Milk River? '

“Mr. MacIxnes. There were none spoken of in the evidence. What
is spoken of as having arisen subsequent to this time is No. 41-b,
Rock Creek Canal. '

Mr. PoweLL. That was constructed later?
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Mr. MacInnes. Before the treaty was made.

Mr. PoweLr. Was it in existence at the time Mr. Root made his
proposition ?

Mr. MacInnNes. My recollection would be not, but that this lower
one came in between Mr. Root’s proposal and the treaty.

Mr. Powerr. Mr. -Davis would recollect.

. Mr(.1 Davis. That was built before 1905, but it has since been en-
arged.

Mr. PoweLL. It was in existence at that time?

Mr. Davis. I think it was. v

Sir WirLiav Hearst. 1907 is the date we are speaking of, but if
it was in existence in 1905 it would be there in 1907.

Mr. PowEeLL. It was in existence at this time, Mr. Davis says, and
was enlarged afterwards.

Mr. MacInnes. My information on the Canadian side is that there
was nothing to show in the official records that it was in existence
at that time, but that it came in later. That is what I have been
informed is the result of the record.

Mr. PoweLL. Mr. Davis says it was in existence and taking water
at that time, and was enlarged afterwards.

Mr., Davis. I am not sure about the enlargement. It was in
ixistence at that time. Whether they enlarged it or not, I do not

now.

Mr. Maclnnes. What time was that?

Mr. Davis. 1907.

Mr. PowzeLL. I understood you to say it was constructed in 1905.

Mr. Davis. The exact date {do not know.

Mr. MacInyes, I am not wishing to check Mr. Davis at all, but
Mr. Newell, in his evidence on page 33, does not include that, so I
am entitled, on the record, to say it was not there, because Mr.
Newell was at the head of the Reclamation Service, holding the posi-
tion Mr. Davis now holds.

Mr. Davis. It does not divert from the Milk River.

Mr. MacInves. From the tributaries?

Mr. Davis. Yes.

Mr. MacInngs. This list given by Mr. Newell, on page 33, includes
diversions from the tributaries. I do not know how important the
point is as to the argument, but I think I am correct in my statement
on the record.

Mr. CLagrk. Entirely correct, according to Mr. Newell’s statement.

Mr. PoweLL. He speaks of canal systems:

Canal systems taking water from the lower Milk River in Montana, the same to
be measured at the intakes of said canal systems; and whenever one-half of the natural
flow of the Milk shall be less than such amount, measured as aforesaid, the share of
Canada shall be diminished so that said country shall receive of the natural flow of the
entire Milk River system only the excess, if any, beyond such amount of decreed
beneficial use.

If there were only one canal on the main river, the only meaning
ou could attach to that is that the canals from the tributaries down
elow were also included.

Mr. MacInnes. There are apparently several, as shown by the
map.

1\}4)1'. PoweLL. That is the statement that was given by Mr. Newell.
Now we are construing the meaning of Mr. Root’s proposed arrange-
ment.
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Mr. MacInnNEs. Quite so.

Mr. PowgLr. One thing is clear from Mr. Root’s statement, and
that is that there were more canals than one in the lower Milk River
at that time. If there were only one on the main river, the plurality
could only be got by assuming that there were canals for the

tributaries.

Mr. MacInnes. That is quite true, but we do not want to get at
cross-purposes. There would be more than one without this Rock
Creek. There are several at Chinook, regardless of Rock Creek.

Mr. PowerL. There were more canals than one at that point.

Mr. MacInnes. If you will be good enough to look at the map,
you will see them. :

Mr. Tur~NeR. I do not think there is much value in subjecting to
microscopic examination these diplomatic interchanges. '

Sir WirLtam Hearst. Look at paragraph 7, please:

The amounts of water chargeable to each of the countries under the several items,
enumerated in paragragh 5, shall include all the waters of the river systems whethet
used directly or indirectly by the two Governments or by private parties in their
respective territories.

Do you claim that under that paragraph the United States would
be chargeable with all Montana waters used in irrigation in the
lower Milk River Valley ? :

Mr. MacInnes. Yes; I would say that they would be brought
into account, certainly, but there is no great difficulty there, because,
as I have already pointed out, such water as there was there was
covered by these prior appropriations.

Sir Wicriam Hearst. But I suppose that if the United States
was chargeable with that water, the more it was chargeable with of
these Montana waters the more Canada would get at the crossing. -

Mr. MacInvgs. Quite so. There is no doubt about that.

Sir WiLLiam HearsT. I just wanted your views whether she was
chargeable or not.

Mr. MacInnes. She was chargeable with that. But you will see
by Mr. King’s criticism later on that Mr. Root, while establishing a
broad general principle for dealing with it, does not, in the system
proposed of balancing one against the other, cover the whole situ-
ation, so far as distribution is concerned. You will remember, for
instance, that Mr. Root, where he is describing the shares, only
includes the waters up to a certain amount, 2,000 second-feet. In
other words, he does, as I say, and as you pointed out in that para-
graph, include the other things they were dealing with, although the
actual distribution of it into shares does not fully exist, as he appar-
ently thought it was unnecessary to exist, but the principle was that
everything was brought in and up to such a point as would cover
these appropriations.

Then on page 67 we have the order in council of March 2, 1908,
of which I will read the last paragraph on that page.

That under the most favorable circumstances the diversion of the waters of the
St. Mary River in the United States will seriously affect the rights so created, as
well as the public rights to the use in development of public lands of the natural
surplus water of streams flowing through the territory, not for the purpose of pro-
tecting similar rights in the United States, but in order to create rights not now in
existence. There i a somewhat indefinite prior claim on behalf of the settlers on

the lower Milk River, which the treaty proposes to recognize and which ap{:arently
may at certain seasons allow Canadians no use whatever of the water of Milk River.
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Moreover, the draft treaty provides for the carriage of a very large volume of water
by the channel of Milk River, in Canada, all of which water must be allowed to pass
through to the United States, while the Canadian use is restricted to a part only of
the natural flow, which in the low-water period is very small. 1t is felt that the con-
cession asked from Canada in this regard 1s a very great one, in view of the difficulties
which may arise from the restriction thus placed upon the settlers on the banks of the
river, and of the liability of damage to property from the increased height of water,
and that there is not sufficient compensation allowed in the treaty for such concession.

The attitude of my learned friends has been to brush this canal
situation aside as though it had no bearing, but I submit, apart
from any value it has as a canal, it shows and indicates that it was
brought in as part of a general scheme whereby everything should be
linked together. And the emphasis is not so much on its monetary
value as on the fact that it was used to make a settlement of this
whole matter, and that everything was included. He goes on:

That the division of the waters of the St. Mary and Milk Rivers on the terms sug-
gested in the draft treaty would, in practical operation, result in the Dominion of
‘Canada receiving a less proportion of the water than that to which this country is
equitably entitled, as although the rights given to the United States over the waters
-of St. Mary River are, in terms, balanced by rights given to Canada with respect to
Milk River, the latter river is by no means equal in volume of constancy of flow to
8t. Mary River.

The point there is this: Mr. King was objecting that while Mr. Root’s
proposals were general in terms, in the carrying of them out there
were limitations in_the compulsory balancing of one against the other,
and that is what I was saying. I think the whole course of these
- negotiations shows that as they went on the thing broadened until it
finally broadened out into this treaty, and when it was attempted to
deal with the matter by Mr. Campbell’s draft, which is placed in the
record here by Mr. Wyvell, there was a very narrow dea{)ing with the
thing and on a different basis, and that was rejected. Apart from
that, everything grows on from prior appropriations to the taking
into account of water in the entire tributaries, thereby affecting the
share, as described by Mr. Root, and from then on, but at the same
time tied down by certain balancing restrictions. At that- time
there is also brought in the principle of the one stream. There is also
brought in this canal. From that you go on and get a final result, and
the language used makes it clear that the negotiators were including not
merely waters from the entire Milk River system, which the negotia-
tors had in mind up to this point, but all the tributaries, and to make
it clear that all that water was included, and that there should be no
doubt about it, the proper geographical words were added ‘‘and
Saskatchewan.” The other part of it was not left to be dealt with
under any article of the treaty, but was brought in, as I say, as part
of this whole scheme, and as part of a watershed which was under
construction prior to that, possibly to a more westerly geographical
point. It made it abundantly clear that this had all been linked
together, and here in the treaty you are dealing with the whole thing.
You have a commission to give directions to officers. You are not

oing to have it left to officers who have to travel back and forth to
Ottawa, but you are going to have a joint commission- to settle the
details, and the details they have to settle are the widest possible,
together with all that relates to these two rivers, linked together by
treaty, linked together by a canal, with provisions as to prior apgro-
priations in either country and limited only by the extent to which
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the waters of these two systems could be capable of use for irrigation
and power. ,

Mr. PoweLL. I was inquiring before as to canals on the Milk River
to the west of Chinook. ~ Are there any substantial tributaries from
the south that flow into the Milk River?

Mr. MacInnes. You will see them on the map.

Mr. PowEeLL. I see one here, the Big Sandy Creek. That is the
biggest one.

r. MaclnNEs. There is the Box Elder, Clear Creek——

Mr. PoweLL. Give us only those that are to the west of Chinook.
The engineers might have a look at this, because it strikes me as
having a very important bearing on the question if you are reviewing'
the past. Y};u see the relevancy of this. If there are substantial
confluents from the south joining that river to the west of the Chi-
nook Canal, they were taken into account by Mr. Root’s proposition.
Let us see if there are any.

Mr. MacInnes. The engineers have called my attention to the fact
that while I have here East Chinook, geographically the last.canal to-
the east is 10B, somewhat to the east o inook. It is described
as the agency ditch, which is the Fort Belknap Indian ditch. It is
on the reservation itself.

Mr. PoweLL. Suppose we get all hands to agree to these facts if
they are not disputed.

Mr. MacInnNes. They are not disputed, as shown on this map.
What you want is the names as shown. ‘
Mr. PoweLL. I want the names as shown of all the southern con-

fluents to the west of this 10B.

Mr. MacInngs. If you will look, you will see that there is a vast
number of them; they do not have actual names on this map. The
map, if I may say so, is really the clearest answer to your inquiry.

Mr. PowsLL. They may be coulees, which have really no substan-
tial flow.

Mr. MacInnes. The principal ones, without exhausting them all,
are the Big Sandy, the Box Eﬁder, Clear Creek, and Snake Creek.

Mr. MagrarH, West of Chinook?

Mr. MacInNEs. West of the Fort Belknap agency ditch, 10B.

Mr. CLark. These last ones that you mentioned do not seem to
flow into the Milk River at all; they seem to be coulees.

Mr. MacInnes. The Box Elder seems to join Snake Creek and then
flow in as one river.

Mr. PowgLL. Are there any measurements of the flow of these
confluents ?

Mr. MacInnes. That I do not know.

Mr. PowrLL, Have the engineers the measurements ?

Mr. Jones. They were measured in 1918 and 1919. The figures
have been supplied to the Commission, or I can get them for the
Commission. '

Mr. CLarg. Measured on what streams?

Mr. JonEs.* There is a station on Big Sandy, Clear Creek, and Box
Elder. I should call attention of the Commission to the fact that
there are three Box Elders. This is the one that comes in near
Havre. There is one other small tributary entering near Havre.

Mr. PowgLL. And that is all to the west of that canal?

Mr. Jones. Yes. :
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Mr.-PoweLL. And they flow from the south into the Milk River?

Mr. MacInngs. To continue with the order in council of March 2,
1908, containing certain objections to Mr. Root’s proposals, although
they had been wider than heretofore, the last paragraph I shall read—
Thave already read two—is the third one on page 63. I have already
read the paragraph pointing out that the setting aside of one against
the other would not be fair to Canada inasmuch as the Milk River
set aside to Canada in the Root proposal was by no means equal in
volume and constancy of flow to the St. Marys River. The objection
summarized was this: o

That for these reasons, and in order to give a fair measure of protection to the vested
rights created in Canada, this country should receive considerably more water than the
proposed treaty provides for apportioning to it.

Now, reading in order of record rather than of date, I come to the
communication from Mr. Walcott, on page 75, to the Secretary of
the Interior, which was forwarded to Canada: :

This correspondence calls attention to the fact that the Canadian canal is being
constructed to divert water from Milk River, and this will injure the prtigerty of the
Government, particularly the irrigation system upon the Fort Belknap Reservation.
The matter is one of great importance to the Government, as well as to the people of

Montana, and I respectfully recommend that, as suggested in other letters, the matter
be taken up through the Department of State.

That Fort Belknap Reservation is at ditch 10B. So they were
making a reference to that ditch and to the water taken from it in
accordance with irrigation law.

Mr. PoweLL. I do not attach very much importance to that.

Mr. MacInnes. It was only as identifying one of these; which was
at a point where all Montana water was included.

Mr. PoweLL. It goes no further than this, that there will be an
injury resulting from that diversion.

Mr. MacInngs. It was of interest, I thought, rather than of value,
as referred to this particular one which we find is the most easterly.
Then, on page 81, gfr. King puts the general principle admirably:

In view of the large area of arid lands situated in the basins of St. Marys and Milk
Rivers, on both sides of the international boundary line, for the development of
which irrigation is a vital necessity, it is thought that an agreement whereby all
available water shall be utilized for the conversion of the present desert wastes to the
fertility of irrigated fields, to the advantage of both countries, is in the very highest
degree desirable. Such agreement, it is believed, to secure acceptance by the people
of both countries and to fulfill its purpose of obviating all possible future contentions

can best be based upon the principle of equal sharing of benefits to be derived from
these international rivers, due regard being had to existing rights.

Mr. Crark. Mr. King uses the word ‘‘international.”

Mr. MacInves. What I was calling attention to there was the
proposal that all available water was to be utilized for the conserva-
tion of these lands.

Mr. Crark. 1 was simply commenting on the use of the word
“international” in the phrase “international rivers.”

Mr. MacInnes. Oh, yes. I do not wish to travel over more of
the ground than isggecessary for this particular point. I would turn
to page 90 where  there is a matter which can no doubt be cleared up
lk\)I the secretaries of the Commission. In Mr. Newell’s criticism of

r. King’s proposal, you will see this paragraph:

This latter amounts to practically 359 second-feet. This proposal, as understood,
gives the United States during April to July, inclusive, 359 second-feet then Canada

-+
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330 second-feet. This seems to be fair and in line with the principles whjch it is
desired to follow. .

_ The record stops there. We have not got here the document put
in by Mr. Wyvell at Washington, but the copy which was furnished
to me goes on to say “on the assumption that it includes all tribu-

taries ol the Milk River.” It is of course important and desirable to
have on the record whatever is correct, and the copy which I have
includes those additional words.

Mr. PoweLL. Who has got the original, the United States ?

Mr. MacInnes. No; that should be here. It is the comments on
the memorandum.

Mr. Crark. There would be a copy of it in both places, I suppose.

Mr. MacInnes. That could be checked up.

Mr. TurnER. What do you want the original for %

Mr. MacInnes. We only want the language that is right, Senator.

) L}fr'rg TurneR. Is there any reason to suppose this lanfuage is not
right ?

ng. MacInNes. Yes; I think there is. What is in the record does
not contain all that is in the copy which I have seen of this communi-
cation, which contains the words: “On the assumption that it in-
cludes all tributaries of the Milk River.” What we want is to get this
thing cleaned up. I do not know how much importance attaches to
it, but the record should, of course, contain a copy of what was put in.

Mr. CLARK. According to your understanding, there is a failure
on plage 90 to include all that was included in the criticism of pro-
posal 5¢ :

Mr. MacInNEs. Yes.

Mr. PoweLL. That is a mistake in transeription.

Sir WiLLiam Hearst. It looks like a typographical error.

Mr. Cragrk. It is an omission.

Mr. MacInnes. Then, on page 93 there is this draft by Mr. R. H.
Campbell, dated December 29, 1908, on which my learned friend
seems to place a great deal of reliance, but as already pointed out in
arguments at various times it is quite clear that this proposal con-
tamed in Mr. Campbell’s draft is a swing back to a totally different
kind of proposition. It is a proposition which relates, not only to
these two rivers and their tributaries, but to all streams. It is a prop-
osition which is expressly limited to streams which cross the inter-
national boundary. It is a proposition which makes no provision
for prior appropriations, and no provision for a canal. I remember
that Mr. Commissioner Powell made a remark as to this, as to why
the United States might not favor it, although Canada would not,
inasmuch as Canada’s prior appropriation was of greater value than
the prior appropriation of the United States. So far as that particular
point is concerned, under this Canada would get part of the St. Mary,
which is treated as a separate stream and it is assumed that half of
the stream treated separately and not in unison with the rest, would
be as good presumably as the prior appropriations. What is quite
clear is that this is a totally different propositign and on a totally
different basis what is also perfectly clear 1s that it expressly states
the limitation to waters which cross the boundary.

Next, or at the same time, comes this memorandum by Mr. Newell,
of December 29, 1908, on the same page.
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Sir WiLLiam Hrarst. Before you read that, you said it contained
no provision for a canal. What does paragraph 7 mean ?

Mr. MacInnes. That provides that there is to be responsibility
for damage, but it does not contain what the treaty does and what had
previously been contemplated, that is a definite consent and permis-
sion, which, as you will see, might be a very different thing, because
if it 1s stated simply that damage will be paid for, there being no form
of consent, objection could be raised and the matter not be allowed to
continue. It is a very different thing to have a license or a servitude
to be allowed to do a thing which is in a treaty and protected, than
simply saying that if I do something I will pay the damages.

Mr. PoweLr. Do you not think that the language implies a license
to divert ?

Mr. MacInyes. I would have thought it was very different. It
certainly is different. ' :

Mr. PoweLL. It evidently contemplates a diversion, and it does not
kick against its being done.

Mr. MacIn~NEs. It 1s put in general language. It is stated there
with reference to the Milk River and the canal on it, which the treaty
deals with as a separate matter. It is a general provision that 1if
either country causes damage to the other it will pay for it.

Sir WiLLiam HEearst. The provision for compensation is quite
different. -

Mr. PoweLL. Your idea is that this is a general code without
reference to the specific situation.

Mr. MacInNEes. It is so in terms. I do not think we can find any
ambiguity there at all. It refers to all streams. It is general as to .
streams, {ut limited to such streams as cross the boundary. To get
back to the very point that I was making, it is a different proposition
entirely because it relates to all streams. It makes no provision for
prior appropriations and is expressly limited to such streams as cross
the boundary. : ‘

To conclude on these prior negotiations, so far as reference to the
documents is concerned, if you turn to page 94 you will see the printer
has put in there ‘ Draft received from Mr. Gibbons with his letter of
December 31, 1908,” and on page 96 the same document is headed
“Mr. Gibbons’s draft.” I do not say that the point is one of im-
Eortance, one way or the other, but I do say that the record ought to

e made straight, and that these documents ought not to be so
designated until proof has been given to that effect. I mean that
whatever may happen we do not want a document called “Mr:
Gibbons’s draft’’ that really was not in fact Mr. Gibbons’s draft.

Mr. CLARK. Are we to understand that this record, for the purpose
of this hearing is not complete and not to be relied on? I can not
understand the situation. -

Mr. MacINNEs. Let me explain that. At the time they were put
in by Mr. Wyvell, counsel for the United States, he stated that they
were Mr. Gibbons’s drafts and that they were accompanied by a letter.
As a matter of fact, our information was to the contrary. Mr. Mig-
nault said that he thought the matter ought to be straightened out.
There is no objection to their being on the record, but the objection
is to their being designated as something which has not yet been
cleared up.

Mr. Crark. Then they are worthless.
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Mr. MacInnNes. As to that, I understand directions have been
%éven by the commission requesting the commission’s secretary at
ashington to obtain from Mr. Wyvell or the State Department
certified copies of this document. e have put in certified copies of

what we put in.
o MI‘.ATURNER. What about the draft headed ‘Original draft

. PoAYY <

Mr. MacInnes. That is actually there in writing, as I remember
the writing.

Mr. TurNER. Your idea is that both these drafts were prepared
by Mr. Anderson, is it ?

Mr. MacInves. I think both were Mr. Anderson’s. I am not
sure. Mr. Wyvell’s concluding remarks are: ‘There are two undated
drafts of treaties.” and he put them in there together. Ome has
certainly Mr. Anderson’s initials on it. The other he called ““Mr.
Gibbons’ draft”, but from what I can understand of the matter they
were both Mr. Anderson’s.

Mr. PoweLL. The arrangement as between you and Mr. Wyvell is,
on your part: I can not submit, it can not go in, it has never been
seen on our side at all; and on the part of Mr. Wyvell: T can submit
this later. I can get it in better shape. There is some uncertainty.

Mr. MacInNEs. This is from the original draft. It certainly couﬂl
not be subsequent to the ones which have been already put in.

The commission then adjourned for luncheon.

May 5, 1920—2.30 p. M.
AFTERNOON SESSION.

Mr. MagraTH. Will you continue your argument, Mr. MacInnes ¢

Mr. EcLesToN. If your honor please, we ask to have inserted in the
record two short memorandum briefs in support of our case, one
prepared by Mr. Morris Bien, counsel for the United States Reclama-
tion Service, and the other prepared by me. We will serve copies
on the opposing counsel for their examination.

Mr. MaGgrATH. Is that agreeable? '

Mr. MacInngs. I have no objection whatever, Mr. Chairman, to
additional arguments going in, provided we have an opportunity of
dealing with them. is to one of the memoranda that has been
referred to, of which I have just received a typewritten copy, I
have not had an opportunity of considering it, but I have handed it
to Mr. Tilley, who may be able to deal with it. As to the other
memorandum, I understand that it is not available.

Mr, EcLesToN. If that is objected to we must, of course, leave it
out; but if not, we will serve a copy on you for the purpose of your
objecting or making a reply.

i(r. MacInNEs. lgf my ]iearned friend thinks it of sufficient impor-
tance, that could be done and we could put in a written reply. - But
one would naturally prefer not to cumber up the record with a lot
of additional documents if it could be avoided. I would ask my -
learned friend to consider if he could not state orally what is in this
memorandum that is not available. -

Mr. TurNER. Mr. Bien’s memorandum is a very explicit state-
ment of some of the propositions urged by counsel here.
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Mr. MacInnes. Quite so.

Mr. TurNER. I do not know what Mr. Egleston’s paper may be.

Mr. MacInves. That is the one I was asking about.

Mr. EcLesToN. The other memorandum is on & point that is not
very material in this controversy, but it has been touched upon in
the argument both of Senator Walsh and Judge King=the Govern=
ment ownership of waters in Montana. It would be difficult to do
more than state the position, because it is backed by some authorities
which I have not at Eand, but which are written out. If this memo-
randum can not be admitted later, as soon as I obtain a copy. of it,
we will not insist on its admission, because I think it is diII“I)icult to
state the position and quote the authorities at this time.

Mr. TurNER. My idea is that that is one of the controversial
matters that were very fully gone into at St. Paul and that have not
anything to do with the case.

r. PowgLL. It is the constitutional feature, is it not ?

Mr. Turner. It runs into that.

Mr. EcLestoN. That being the case, I will not insist upon admis-
gion of the second memorandum, but will ask that the first memoran-
.«dum, prepared by Mr. Bien, be admitted.

CONTINUATION OF ARGUMENT BY MR. MACINNES.

Mr. MacInNes. Mr. Chairman and gentlemen, the legal members
.of the commission will doubtless expect me to deal with the authori-
ties from textbooks and cases which have been cited by my learned
friend, Senator Turner. I shall do so as shortly as possible,

In the first place, my learned friend cited Vattel's Law of Nations.
I would also do the same. The reference I would make is to pages
244, 245, and 246, parts of which I will read:

The first general maxim of interpretation is, that it is not allowable to interpret
what bas no need of interpretation. When a deed is worded in clear and precise
terms—when its meaning 1s evident and leads to no absurd conclusion—there can
be no reason for refusing to admit the meaning which such deed naturally presents.
To go elsewhere in search of conjectures, in order to restrict or extend it, is but an
-attempt to elude it. If this dangerous method be once admitted, there will be no
deed which it will not render useless. However luminous each clause may be—how-
-ever clear and precise the terms in which the deed is couched—all this will be of
no avail, if it be allowed to go in quest of extraneous arguments, to prove that it is
not to be understood in the sense which it naturally presents.

And further down on that page:

There will be no security in conventions, no stability in grants or concessions, if
they may be rendered nugatory by subsequent limitations, which ought to have been
-originally specified in the deed, ig they were in the contemplation of the contracting
parties.

The concluding language, as you see, covers absolutely the question
of the insertion of words, which must be inserted if my learned friend
gains his point, that this convention in Article VI is limited to waters
crossing the boundary. _

My learned friend cited also from Phillimore’s International Law,
Volume II, third edition. T would cite from the same source at
page 99:

There are, however, certain general rules of literal interpretation, which have been
:sanctioned by all jurists, and which should be mentioned in this place.
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1. The principal rule has been already adverted to, namely, to follow the ordinary
and usual acceptation, the plain and obvious meaning of the language employed.
This rule is, in fact, inculcated as a cardinal maxim of interpretation equally by
civilians and by writers on international law.

Vattel says that it is not allowable to interpret what has no need of interpretation.
If the meaning be evident, and the conclusion not absurd, you have no right to look
beyond or beneath it, to alter or add to it by conjecture. Wolff observes, that to do-
80 is to remove all certainty from human transactions.

Mr. Commissioner Powoll referred to Hall, a well-known writer on
international law, and I will give a reference to the sixth edition,
ab page 327:

Jurists are generally agreed in laying down certain rules of construction and inter-
pretation as being applicable where disagreement takes place between the parties
to a treaty as to the meaning or intention of its stipulations., Some of these rules are
either unsafe in their application or of doubtful applicability; and rules tainted by
any shade of doubt, from whatever source it may be gerived, are unfit for use in inter-
national controversy. Those against which no objection can be urged, and which
are probably sufficient for all purposes, may be stated as follows:

1. Where the language of a treaty, taken in the ordinary meaning of the words,
yields a plain and reasonable sense, it must be taken as intended to be read in that
sense, subject to the qualifications, that any words which may have a customary
meaning in treaties, differing from their common sigrification, must be understood
to have that meaning, and that a sense can not be adopted which leads to an absurdity,
or to incompatibility of the contract with an accepted fundamental principle of law.

Then I refer to some decisions of the United States courts. I
find a case in the Maine courts which may interest Senator Gardner.
It is Little ». Watson, and will be found in 32 Maine reports at page
214. It dealt with title to land in New York ceded to Massachu-
setts and confirmed by the fourth article of the treaty of cession being
good as against State grant. This is the clause from the judgment
that I would cite: o '

The literal is the correct construction of such an instrument, when the language is
clear, precise, not incounsistent with other provisions and not leading to absurd con-
clusions. And in such case no extraneous means for an interpretation of the treaty
should be sought.

When the language used in a treaty clearly declares a fact. or grants, defines, or
confirms a right. it must be effectual even if found to be inconsistent with the pur-
pose disclosed by the correspondence which preceded it.

In that case also as a matter of fact there were interviews as well
as correspondence. That is, of course, putting the case much
higher than I would need to put it here. ’?hat is putting it to the
extent of being inconsistent with previous correspondence, although
there what possibly influenced the court may have been this, that
in going into such previous correspondence, and being aware that
that correspondence did not contain everything, there having also
been interviews, they might very likely still be not merely follow-
ing the actual language of the treaty but coming to the absolutely
correct conclusion if they went contrary to the correspondence
because it was in accordance with the final interviews.

As I say, I do not need to go as far as that here, because I think I
have beén able to demonstrate to the Commission to-day that the
final provisions of this draft are not contrary in any sense to the
previous negotiations, even although we have not the benefit of all
the interviews; they are not contrary to them, although very natur-
ally as being the last they are not the same in all respects as the
preceding, because they are a development arising out of negotia-
tions, some of the reasons being made apparent from the docu-
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Then the quite recent case in the Supreme Court of the United
States of Rocca v. Thompson, 223 U. S., at 317, a case which is cited
in Crandall on Treaties, 2d edition, at page 371:

Tt is further to be observed that treaties are the subject of careful consideration
before they are entered into, and are drawn by persons competent to express their
meaning and to choose apt words in which to embody the purposes of the high con-
tracting parties. Had it been the intention to commit the administration of the
estates of citizens of one country, dying in another, exclusively to the consul of the
foreign nation, it would have been very easy to have declared that purpose in un-
mistakable terms,

There is the further question as to treaty-making power, which
has been referred to by some of the counsel appearing in United
States interests, although not touched upon by Senator Turner, in
his argument, as I remember. It would seem to me, with all re-
spect to those who raised the point, that it is entirely beside the mark
and reall{) has no relation whatever to what we have before us. But
as it has been touched upon I would like to cite to you some extracts
from what is considered to be the leading authority on the treaty-
making power of the United States, and from an edition which was
the last authoritative work at the time this treaty was made in 1909;
it is Butler’s Treaty-making Power of the United States, volume I,
section 3:

The author fully appreciates that any attempt to extend Federal jurisdiction to
matters which are not clearly expressed in the Constitution carries with it the onus
probandi to its fullest extent. He is, however, so firmly convinced that the Govern-
ment of the United States is completely endowed with all the essential attributes of
nationality and sovereignty in regard to ndtional affairs that he feels fully justified
in expressing the following opinion:

I will leave out the first é)aragraph, which does not seem necessary
here, and take the second paragraph, which seems to cover this
situation:

Second. That this power exists in, and can he exercised by the National Govern-
nient, whenever foreign relations of any kind are established with any other sovereign
power, in regulating by treaty the use of property belonging to States or the citizens
thereof, such as canals, railroads, fisheries, public lands, mining claims, etc., in regu-
lating the descent or possession of property within the otherwise exclusive jurisdic-
tion of States; in surrendering citizens and inhabitants of States to foreign powers for
punishment of crimes committed outside of the jurisdiction of the United States or
of any State or Territery thereof; in fact, that the power of the United States to enter
into treaty stipulations’in regard to all matters, which can properly be the subject of
negotiation between sovereign States, is practically unlimited, and that in no case is
the sanction, aid, or consent of any State necessary to validate the treaty or to enforce
its provisions. L L

Fourth. That all provisions in State statutes or constitutions which in any way con-
flict with any treaty stipulations, whether they have been made prior or subsequently
thereto, must give way to the provisions of the treaty, or act of Congress based on and
enforcing the same, even if such provisions relate to matters wholly within State
jurisdiction.

Then the author goes on in section 7 to state the sources of his
information and the grounds for his opinion. I will not read that
into the record, but any member of the Commission who wishes to
follow that up will see how Butler has absolutely exhausted every-
thing on this subject. And you will remember that at Detroit,
where we had a discussion on this matter, this appeared to be the
view in the addresses of Mr. Root himself, who was Secretary of
State at the time this treaty was made. As I have said before, I
think the point is entirely academic and beside the mark, but I wish
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ments, others not, because some of those others may have been
through interviews; but there are such reasons as I have pointed
out already that are fairly obvious, namely, that in dealing with
the matter backward and forward, and which becomes limted or
extended, that by degrees the matter becomes one which is dealt
with on a broad basis so as to cover the whole situation, and to
cover it for all time.

And that is borne out by the fact that it is put in here in a gen-
eral treaty which is dealing on a broad basis between two countries,
and evidently the intention was that it would be in the best inter-
ests of both countries to cover the whole situation rather than at-
tempt to keep something back, whether for one country or for the
other; and that it would not be contemplated that under such an
arrangement finally agreed upon and placed in a general document,
stated to be for beneficial use, that one country should be allowed
to keep for itself absolutely in this sense water which otherwise
would be available for the other. country, and the only source of
supply for that other country. That, it seems to me, would be a
conclusion which no individual would have arrived at, and which
no two States or Provinces would have arrived at.

It is inconceivable that in dealing with the situation where they
had certain areas of land to be irrigated, and where one State or
Province had two sources of supply and the other had only one
source, that they either as individuals or as two States or Provinces,
where there was no question of internationality—although that
ought not to make any difference, but it does—I mean where you
have not to get into any question between nations, that two indi-
viduals or two States or Provinces would never have dreamt of
making a joint bargain to cover the whole situation where one side
was allowed not to disclose, not to put into the account, not to
deal with a source of supply which it had under its own control,
which it might, as I have already pointed out in my argument,
refuse to develop and allow to go to waste.

We would not expect an individual to say: “I won’t bother to
develop this water. I can do so, it is true, for a small amount, but
it does not matter. I have not got to bring it into account, and I
can get water up there. If those other people”’—I am not talking
now of nations—“if that other man is deprived, so.much the worse
for him.” Can you picture, gentlemen, any individuals or any
people who were not troubled with some suggestion of nationality—
which, I submit, ought not to bring in a gifferent principle—can
you conceive of their making such a bargain in which the whole
situation is being dealt with and yet one of the vital factors is
excluded ? -

Then the next case I wish to cite is Sturges v. Crowinshield, de-
cided in the Supreme Court of the United States, and to be found
in 4 Wheaton, at page 202:

Butif, in any case, the plain meaning of a provision, not contradicted by any other
provision in the same instrument, is to be disregarded, because we believe the framers.
of that instrument could not intend what they say, it must be one in which the ab-

surdity and injustice of applying the provision to the case would be so monstrous
that all mankind would, without hesitation, unite in rejecting the application.

57208—21 9
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to cite those authorities in deference to the fact that the point had
been raised by any of the counsel appearing on the other side.

It remains for me to say a few words on the subject of prior appro-
priations. My learned friend, Senator Turner, made the statement,
without elaboration as I remember it, that these prior appropriations
formed part of the equal apportionment in the sense of being charged
up afainst them so as to lessen to either country its share of the
equal apportionment. That view is one which you will remember
was not taken at Detroit by the counsel for the Reclamation Serv-
ice, although I think he said that he did not undertake to be speak-
ing foreverybody; nor has it been pressed or explained, as I remember
it, by any of the counsel for the United States.

Mr. Tur~nEeR. I did not quite understand what you said my posi-
tion was.

Mr. MacInnes. That the prior appropriations were to be included
in the one-half share of either country. I thought you said that.

Mr. TurNER. I said, as I remember, that prior appropriations had
absolutely nothing to do with this treaty, but that each country had
been insisting in the earlier stages on a greater share of the waters
than the other, on the theory that they had prior appropriations to
meet. That was simply part of the claims made by the respective
countries. ,

Mr. MacInngs. I was referring to the provision as to prior appro-
priations contained in Article VI.

Mr. TurNER. That is, the appropriations that have priority of
right in the two Governments.

Mr. MacInNNEs. The language used, Senator Turner, is:

It is further agreed that in the division of such waters during the irrigation season
between the lst of April and the 31st of October, inclusive, annually, the United
States is entitled to a prior appropriation of 500 cubic feet.

Mr. TurNER. That is the United States, not some private pro-
prietor. :

Mr. MacInnes. Then the point was up as to how the Commission
in working out this matter should deal with the waters allotted by
reason of those reciprocal provisions as to prior appropriations,
whether they were included in the one-half of the apportionment
that each country got, or whether they were outside of that.

Mr. Tur~eR. 1 understand your proposition now.

Mr. MacInnEs. I was saying that I understood you to say that
they were included in the one-half. '

Mr. Tur~neER. Undoubtedly the country that gets the prior a}ipro-
priations has to allow the other country a sufficient amount there-
after to equal those prior appropriations, otherwise the prime requi-
site of equality in the division could not be followed out.

Mr. MacInNEs. As I thought, that is your view. We on our side
hold an entirely different view, which we think is in accord with the
language and with the intent of the parties, and we think that the
matter should be put rather in this way: That there was to be an
equal apportionment, if you will, between the two countries; that
there were also these two prior appropriations, one on one river, one
on the other, which might or might not have a different value in the
water according to the flow of the different rivers. But so far as
the two countries were concerned, the prior appropriation which each
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got on a particular river was the prior appropriation which each
wanted. So it got the prior appropriation on its river, so to speak,
and the other country got its prior appropriation on the other river,
which although perhaps greater in water was not what the other

country wanted.

Another way in which the matter may very well be put, and which
is entirely in accord with the negotiations if one looks at them, and
in harmony with the other way of stating it that I have just men-
tioned, is this: That these prior appropriations are set aside, first,
because they were in the nature of existing liens which were on the
water—‘ prior appropriation” is an irrigation term and must be
understood in that sense—and that the two countries in dealing with
these waters came to .a situation with these existing charges, one on
one river and one on the other, and therefore those waters were
beyond their purview in dealing with them.

K&y learned friend says that it is the United States that is mentioned.
That, I submit, would be natural; you would not mention John
Jones or the Belknap Canal in a treaty. ,

Mr. CLarg. Your notion, Mr. Maclnnes, is that this 500 feet pref-
«erence right was to be used by the Government obtaining it for the
Apull\}mse of sa;tisfy% the appropriations of its citizens. '

r. MacInNEs. Yes; that each country, so to speak, was trustee
for its citizens. Having got that, it is the balance which is divided.
Either of those views is entirely in accord, and, I submit, more in
accord with the language than the suggestion that those prier appro-
priations are to be debited to the share which is being dealt with
under this t'reartiy.

Mr. CLark. That is, they are taken entirely out of the consider-
ation of the whoele matter?

Mr. MacINNEs. Quite so. And, as I was saying, that was in
accord also with the prior negotiations, because, as you will remember,
when a suigestion was being put forward on a different basis by
Dr. King that he had not been able to agree with Mr. Newell, you
will remember he put up the suggestion of an equal division of waters
on the boundary streams, each country providing for its existing
interests out .of its share of the water. 1t was therefore perfeotly
easy, if that is what they intended to do, putting it in that way,
that each country was to provide for its share out of that. When
we get to the later drafts, which are very similar to the final treaty,
 what we find on that point is this statement: “It is further agreed
that there exists on the part of the United States the right to prior
appropriations, and that there exists the right, etc., on the part of
tanada;” which is language practically the same as we have here,
and seems to be entirely in accord with the view that those are to be
set aside first before you deal with it, or, putting it in another way,
if you are considering them -as an equal apportionment, the one was
as good, as the other.

Mr. Crark. It looks to me an & cursory examination of it that
they are putting aside the matter of prior appropriations en behalf of
individual citizens on each river an({) saying to Canada: “You take
500 cubic feet out of the full 8t. Mary River to satisfy your pro-
prietors.””  And they say to the United States: “ You take 500 cubic
eet, or such amount as constitutes three-fourths ef its flow, and
satisfy your prior appropriations.”’
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Mr. MacIn~es. Yes.

Mr. Crark: “Then the balance we will divide according to the
terms of the treaty.”

Mr. MacInxes. That is my submission, and that is what I would:
have thought was the common-sense view of it. Those who are not as
familiar with irrigation as yourself, Senator, might perhaps be led
astray by the use of the words “ prior appropriations,” thinking that
‘“prior’’ meant something to one country which was subsequently to
be made up in the other. DBut those who are familiar with irrigation
know that “prior appropriations’ is one phrase, that it is not simply
Canada as against the United States, but that it is a lien which 1s
good against all the world: therefore what is available for division
1s limited to that extent. But obviously we have to apply to the
language herc the circumstances for which it was being employed.

l\%y learned friend Senator Turner bas made certain suggestions
as to the findings of the Commission, and T would follow his course
and venture to make these suggestions:

That the International Joint Commission should issue directions
to the officers named in Article VI to muke a measurement, if they
have not already done so, for the purpose of ascertaining the amount of
water available for irrigation--I understand we have not got to deal
with power at the present time—-in the St. Mary and Milk Rivers and
their tributaries in the State of Montana and in the Province of
Alberta and the Province of Saskatchewan, those being treated as
one stream.

Mr. Cark. By doing that don’t you leave the matter just where
it is?

Mr. MacInyes. I quite appreciate, Senator, what you say, but my
snbmission is that that is what you have to do. I will go further tor
malke it quite clear and say: that you would not make from the water
so measured and so ascertained a deduction to the extent of such
waters as did not flow across the houndary, but that for the purpose of
making vour equal apportionment the waters of the two streams
were to be included. Frankly, I can not personally put it any clearer
than I find it in the treaty.

Mr. Cuark. I think you have put it clearer in vour later statement.

Mr. Maclywgs. T say that you do not add any rider or exception
to it as my learned friend has asked you to do. '

That having done that, steps be taken to apportion the water
equally hbetween the two countries, taking more from one, less from
the other, so as to obtain a more beneficial use, such beneficial use
being arrived at, of course, from information received from the
representatives of the two countries. That is, they will inform us
where they wish to have the water.

If there be any conflict between the two countries, that is to say,
as to whether both countries want to get more than one-half from
any particular source, then it is for the Commission to investigate
what would be more beneficial use and decide that, and then the other
country would have to get what made up its share from some other
source. That is the function cast on the Commission in the case of
there being any dispute as to both countries wanting, from their
view, beneficial use of the water at one place, that is, one wanting to
get more than one-half, and the other wanting the same at the same
point.
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This is where I said before a little confusion was caused, although
Canada wanted to help out the situation. We explained what we
thought was our heneficial use, and we expected that if it was unsat-
isfactory to the United States their officer should so inform the
Commission and make any-counter suggestions, as to which we have
heard nothing further.

Then, as I mentioned just now, in the making of this equal appor-
tionment, when you are dividing you first of all set aside these two
rivers in accordance with the more heneficial use of these prior
appropriations. That, again, is indicated in the suggestions which
Canada made before. It is quite possible that the prior appropria-
tions will work into a general scheme of more beneficial use, which
will have the result of less measurements and less computations being
made by the oflicers of the two countries. Just in the same way as 1s
indicated on the memorandum, the equal apportionment in accord-
ance with this, assuming there be any dispute between my learned
friend and myself, may very well be made not from day to day at
each place, but by one country taking all the water of a river for
certain months, and the other country taking all the water of that
river for the remaining months.

I submit that those are the directions which this Commission should
give, and that they should hear the parties from time to time and
make such changes as may be deemed expedient. But as to what is
to be apportioned, as distinguished from where it is delivered, is all
the waters of these rivers as described in the treaty, without an
exception or deduction therefrom, except such water as is not avail-
able for irrigation as stated in the treaty.

In conclusion, Mr. Chairman, I would say that it seems to me that
this treaty, construed as Canada submits, is clear, but is, in fact, not
as good as Canada might have got, and would have lgot, by an apﬁli—
cation of irrigation law in accordance with the original proposals of Mr.
Secretary Hay; that the result of that application would have been
to give Cysmada more on this river here at least, that is, water sufficient
to satisfy its bona fide authorizations on the St. Mary River ahead of
anybody else, and ahead of this project of the United States—which
is to be commended no doubt for its enterprise, but which is certainly
unique in taking the waters from practically one watershed in the
west and conducting them clear away to a totally different lot of
lands. On that basis the prior appropriation of the Alberta Railwa
& Irrigation Co. on the St. Mary Canal would have been recognized,
and Canada would have got more out of the application of such
principle than it would out of any such treaty, construed even
according to its clear language—infinitely more so if restricted and
whittled down in accordance with the contention of the other side.
In addition to that, of course, Canada would at least have got some
of the Milk River water, because of its appropriation depending
doubtless, according to irrigation law, on the dates of the prior
appropriations claimed lower down on the Milk River. .

evertheless, that is not what took place. We have got this
treaty here, and I submit that it is one which, in accordance with its
language, is one which might have been made between two individuals
or two States putting everything into the common fund; but, on the
other hand—I do not wish to repeat myself—that to have a common
arrangement, and to have the rivers and waters that come into that
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arrangement truncated in every possible direction and deductions
made, is an arrangement which no two individuals and no two States
would have made; and that there is nothing to indicate in the clear
language of the treaty, nor in the negotiations, that they did anything
but take into account the waters applicable to the whole situation.

If, however, the treaty is construed according to its clear lan-
guage, my submission is tﬂat the result will be one which will produce
the greatest advantage to the arid regions, as they are described,
on both sides of the boundary by making the most, under the direc-
tion of this Commission, of what nature has provided for that purpose;
and in addition, that if the treaty is construed in that way, according
to its language, and in such a way as will induce both countries to
make the best use of its waters for that purpose, the treaty will live
up, not only as to lands but in other results, to the language which it
contains and to the expression “beneficial use.”

Mr. Crark. Col.' MacInnes, before you sit down I would like to
get your notion as to the grammatical construction in the first place
of Article VI of the words in parentheses, “in the State of Montana
and the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan.” What, in your
view, do those words refer to?

Mr. Macinyes: 1 am glad you called attention to that, Senator.
I have not referred to them to-day because I have referred to them
s0 often before.

Mr. Crark. I was not familiar with your view.

Mr. MacInnes. It seems to me to be perfectly clear that those
words are descriptive and comprehensive; that this Article VI, or
rather the substitution of it, was being negotiated by Mr. Root and
the others as a separate matter between the two countries, and that
in the end it was brought into this treaty where everything was dealt
with by both countries. There might be a doubt as to what was
being referred to—where theseriverswere—and, further than that, they
were referring to them, for they stated in the most comprehensive way
everything that belonged to them, so that there could be no question,
as I was mentioning this morning, that any part of them which might
have another name was to be cut off. Therefore they took those
rivers and said: ‘“Here, we had better make it clear where these
rivers are, and we had better make it clear that they comprise the
whole watershed belonging to each country that is being dealt with
in this treaty.”” If we take the whole Milk River, we find where are
the tributaries to it, and we find them in Montana, Alberta, and
Saskatchewan.

Mr. CLark. Then your view is that the words in parentheses refer
both to the rivers and the tributaries?

Mr. MacInnes. Certainly. And I would say one word in answer
to what has been contended on the other side, that those are words of
limitation. I submit that that is forcing the language, because it is
read by them again as meaning in the State of Montana and in
Canada, and even then it does not produce the limitation which they
want, because even if with those limiting words you only include
those two tributaries, that is not what they do include; they include
tributaries which are in either country provided they flow across the
boundary. So taking those words, and even putting the strained
construction of limitation rather than that of description and com-
prehension, clearly it is not open to controversy what is intended,
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and my learned friends do not arrive at the limitation they are them-
selves seeking to support.

Mr. CLarRk. My question was directed to whether or not those.
words could be used with reference only to tributaries.

Mr. MacInnes. That would not be the grammatical construction

I would think, Senator.  The parenthesis, you will note, is put in
brackets, which would seem to mean that it applies to both. 1 am
quite willing to try to meet what your suggestion there might lead to,
but I do not quite follow it.

Mr. Crark. I did not put it forward in the shape of argument at
all, and it would do some violence to the printing of it perhapsif I did.

Mr. MacInnes. It would.

Mr. CLark. Suppose, for instance, there was a comma after the
word “rivers,” and the parenthesis was omitted ?

Mr. MacInnEs. Let us see what that would produce.

Mr. CLark. “The high contracting parties agree that the St. Mary
and Milk Rivers”’—assuming that we know exactly where they are
and what they are—‘and their tributaries in the State of Montana
and the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan’’—would that put
any different phase on the treaty ?

Sir WiLriam Hearst. The tributaries are to be treated as one
stream.

Mr. Cuark. I was asking whether it would make any difference.

Mr. MacInnes. I do not think that would lead anywhere.

Mr. CLark. I was simply asking for information.

Mr. MacInnes. I thank the Commission.

Mr. MagraTtH. Now, Mr. Tilley.

ARGUMENT BY MR. W. N. TILLEY, COUNSEE FOR THE ALBERTA
RAILWAY & IRRIGATION CO.

Mr. Treeey. Mr. Chairman and members of the Commission, I am
sure that the Commission are glad to see me on my feet ready to
make my address, because they know that except as to some reply
I am the last counsel to appear. I am quite sure that it requires a

reat deal of patience to listen to an argument for the third time and
for three days. I shall try to be as brief as I can, but the interests
of my clients in the question are important, and I shall desire to %0
over ground even that has been gone over by Mr. MacInnes for the
purpose of placing before the Commission the view of my clients as
to this treaty, so that no more water shall be taken from our minimum
amount during the irrigation season in the St. Mary River than has
already been taken, because even during this past year we have had
to prorate the water amongst our consumers, and serious enough as
is the situation now having regard to the rights that were given to
us originally, it would be still more serious if the argument for which
the United States is contending should prevail.

First, let me say that my contention will be that we are asking for
the treaty in its exact form. We ask for no change in the wording;
we suggest that no word “and’”’ shall be changed to “or,” and no
word eliminated. We are contending here for the exact, precise
language of Article VI. And I venture to say, notwithstanding the
remark made this morning, that if anyone were to sit down and try
to draw the clause so as to cover what we are contending for, without
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having in mind some criticism that ordinarily would not be thought
of, he could not put what we contend for in more appropriate lan-
guage. On the other hand, I have heard from no counsel on the
part of the United States or of the interests represented here allied
with the United States that does not involve some criticism of the
language and some suggested change. It may not be great, it may
be put 1n an attractive form, to merely change ‘“and” for “or’’; but
when my learned friend Senator Turner was putting his point with
regard to it he dictated practically a new clause.

he important reason assigned for placing any construction on
the language instead of taking the literal language for which we con-
tend is the point that Senator Turner attempted to make, that our
contention, if acceded to, produces such an unreasonable result and
such an unfair result that it could never have been contemplated.
And T appreciate the importance of that contention all the more
because the treaty itself is aimed at fair treatment to both nations
s0 as to produce, as far as possible, equality between them.

When that is taken to be the general character of the treaty, and
when we find that kind of language appearing in this particular
clause, 1 appreciate that I should be expeeted to deal to some extent
with the question whether the article measures up to the standard
that has been set for it by the terms of the treaty itself. If it were
not for that phase, I am not sure that I would treat the argument
very seriously, because under the authorities of our highest courts
botﬁ on the Canadian side, as reflected in decisions of the Privy
Council, and in the Supreme Court of the United States, it is perfectly
clear that in construing a document of this kind you must take the
language as you find it, unless you find the conclusion is so absurd,
so monstrous, that it could not have been in the contemplation of
any person that such a result should be produced.

If that condition prevails, it may be said, then, to be a case where
you examine carefule to see whether the language is capable of some
other construction. If it is not, you must apply the construction
that is literal even though it is absurd. Butif you get that natural
reading of the language, producing such an absurd conclusion, you
examine to see whether it is capable of another meaning, and if you
find that it is, depending upon circumstances ahd conditions and
degrees—because no one case binds another in that regard—you may
apply the other meaning.

'ow, I hope to be able to show that this article carries out a
measure of equality to both nations that is evidence in our favor, if
evidence were needed, that the natural meaning of the words used
should be followed. My submission is, of course, that the onus
is entirely the other way, and that the absurd condition for which
my learned friend Senator Turner contended is not present, and that
not being present there is no oceasion to see whether a secondary
meaning can be given, that if you look for & secondary meaning
you can not find it'in the language used; and therefore of necessity,
even if the result should be of the character my learned friend de-
scribes, the language ‘will not bear any such construction.

In dealing with the matter I want to approach it from that stand-
point, but I should give to this Commission what I regard as being
{:ossibly the most satisfactory authority on the proposition I have
been discussing in view of the fact that my learned friend, Senator
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Turner, has cited from English decisions, but has not, according to
my submission, given to the Commission the proper view of the law.
I am not saying that it is an improper view, but I mean that he has
not given to the Commission what T consider to be the authority on
this kind of case, because there are two points presented to us here.
First, it is said the language is capable of another meaning, or should
be amended so as to be capable OF another meaning, because the con-
clusion or result is absurd. It is said to us as well that there has
been some action, governmental rather than on the part of govern-
ments, that in some way places an interpretation on the language
of this article, and that there is a contemporaneous construction of
doubtful or ambiguous language which should be adopted by this
tribunal.

The case I refer to is The North Eastern Railway ». Lord Hastings,
1900 Appeal Cases, at page 260. The facts of the case were that
lands were granted to & railway for a right of way for a term, I
think, of one thousand years, and the conditions of the grant pro-
vided that the lessee, who was taking steps to have his railway com-
pany incorporated, should pay a specified rent on coal carried over
any part of the raillway. e railway was constructed and for more
than 40 years rent was paid by the company for coal carried over
the railway and shippecf at Port B when the coal passed over the
lands that were leased. But if the coal was shipped over the rail-
way but not over the lands leased no rent was paid. At the end
of that 40-year period the contention was made that the rental to
be paid under this lease for that right of way must be based on the
coa ga,ssing over any part of the railway whether it crossed over the
leased land or not. And it was held that that was what the language
of the lease said, and that therefore rent must be so paid, and the
court ordered an accounting for six years back to take into account
rents at the higher rate. .

Now, if any decision could cover the point here, my submission is
that this is 1t. Because, mark you, P am arguing for the exact
language of this clause. I am not suggesting that any word can be
left out of it without creating a doubt as to its meaning; I am
arguing that every word in it is required, that nothing can be struck
out without leaving the document open to a doubt that does not
exist with the words in it. .

I shall not read from the judgment in that case, but my submission
is that where you find one party to a controversy, let it atfect a treaty
or let it affect an agreement, who says, “I contend for the language
itself; I want my rights determined on that language,” if that lan-
guaie has a meaning according to the natural meanindg to be given
to the words used, you must adopt that language, and you can not
go back to negotiations, examine documents that passed to and fro
and analyze them—you can not do that sort of thing; you must
apply that language. And, if I may say so, that seems to be the
duty of this Commission, particularly if the point taken by my
learned friend Senator Turner is right, that if you misconstrue your
action is not to be recognized. ’

How can counsel come here and say for one of the parties to this
treaty: “If you make a mistake in construing this language my
client is not to be bound, but reserves the right to take such diplo-
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matic action or other action as it thinks proper,” and at the same
time invite you to change the language of the document? It seems
to me that that is a most unheard of proposition. And yet every
counsel who has made a submission here when he has analyzed that
language has suggested the propriety of changes in order to get at
the meaning that he says shoul(f) be ascribed to Article VI. So that
I say if it 1s ever appropriate for a commission to be bound by the
lan%uage, it is particularly appropriate as to this Commission.

If T may say so with deference to the Commission, it should not
roam about to find out what the parties intended when the parties
have submitted to them a document that expresses or purports to
express their intention, particularly if the decision witﬁ) regard to
it can not be reviewed by some other independent tribunal by way of
appeal. If that were possible I could quite understand the Com-
mission putting a certain interpretation on the document; but if
that is not possible, as it is not ﬁossible here, and if the parties to the
submission are in the position that Senator Turner indicates of being
able to reject what is not the frue meaning of the agreement, then
my submission is that the tribunal should act on the literal inter-
pretation and say: “If that is not what the parties intended, they
are of age and able to change the document. It is not the case of a
will, it can be made right, but in our action we must obey the mandate
which is embodied in the treaty and on each side confirmed by legis-
lative action.”

There is no more justification for changing the terms of this
document than for bringing in evidence to construe the statute or the
legislative action that was taken on either side of the boundary;
and my submission is that it would be an unheard of thing if this
were embodied in a statute to ask a commission to take evidence
as to what the negotiations were, what papers happened to be left
by persons who may, for all we know, have had numerous conversa-
tions on the very same subject, and no doubt had, and yet because
we find some stray papers—those are produced without any satis-
factory evidence in regard to some of them as to what is their real
origin—we are asked to construe a treaty on the assumption that
that is evidence as to what happened. I venture to suggest that it is
not s hundredth part of what went on that was material if these

uestions raised here are going to be considered on the basis of:
hat did these people say and do when they were carrying on their
negotiations %

§ust one other remark with regard to the construction of this
document, and then I pass on to a discussion of the merits. I quite
af;l)preciate that there are numerous remarks made by text writers
that Il)oint to what you might call a more general or more generous
or a looser interpretation of treaties than other ducuments. But
that principle can not be applied to a treaty that came into existence
as this one did. “This is not & treaty made in the rush of attempting
to settle a war, it is not a treaty made under the threat of action by
one country against the other, but it is a treaty that grew up as the
natural consequence of negotiations that had been proceeding for
some time, drawn and settled at leisure, carefully considered in every
aspect, and providing for permanent arrangements between two
countries that were not bound to make them under any stress or
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pressure that was imminent at the time, and providing as part of the
provisions of that treaty for the creation of a tribunal of a judicial
character to sit in judgment and hear cases and pass upon them.

Now, that sort of treaty is not to be treated in any different way,
niy subrmnission is; than an agreement between parties. - H you had
an agreement between neigh%roring owners of property represented
by the streams that are referred to under Article VI, would any
1[‘:erson attempt to analyze the transaction to find out whether in

is opinion it was fair on both sides, or would he assume that it was
made as agreements are made in which each party capable of handling
his own affairs, with competent legal services, prepares the language
of an agreement that had been settled after being seriously considered
to put mnto precise form what the parties intended ?

T feel, Mr. Chairman, that I should more or less apologize for dis-
cussing the attitude that the Commission should take in regard to
this, but the matter has been referred to, and 1 can not refrain—
particularly as I represent a private interest and am acting for
neither Government, and am therefore to that extent erf%ctly
irresponsible—I can not refrain from saying that our rights have
been put in your hands here without our being parties to the treaty,
and we are here saying that our private rights are going to be af-
fected by your decision; therefors we want to be bound by the
treaty, if we are bound at all, and we do not want to be bound by
what peo;ile might urge before you was intended without any ap-
propriate language to express that intention. .

T wish to submit that the langusge used in the parentheses refers
to both the rivers and the tributaries, that that language was ap-
propriate and proper and necessary to make it clear that the rivers
and the tributaries being dealt with were in an area of land rather
than being boundary streams, or streams that crossed the border.
It was a geographical description to bring in two watcrsheds, to
make them as one, and that had those words not been there we
would have the argument much more strongly presented to this
tribunal that rivers and tributaries must under the circumstances
be rivers and tributaries that cross the boundary and are measured
at the boundary. ‘

My submission is that the way this agreement put these words
was absolutely necessary, and that they were most appropriate to
show that these negotiators having dealt with boundary streams,
having dealt with streams that cross the boundary, were then dealing
with streams in an area described geographically, and that those
must be taken as one body of water, the waters of one watershed,
and they were to be divided as the negotiators thought was fair.

Before taking up what, as I say, I desire to take up, and that is
the diplomatic correspondence—not because I think 1t is material,
but because it has been relied on and referred to here—let me de-
seribe what I conceive to be the important thing that these people
were negotiating about. It is very well to say that in certain lan-
guage and in certain documents we find the expressions,’ streams
that rise in one country and flow into the other, streams that cross
the boundary, boundary waters, international waters”’—we find
the expressions in the document so often that this is all these people
were dealing with.
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Now, you do not go to the language of the document to find what
the parties were dezﬁing with in order to ascertain what the dispute
was. -1 mean to say that the clauses of the greatest length probably
cover the most important feature of it, and I would like for & moment
to deal with what was the important thing here, who wanted it,
and what caused this particular matter to be one of such importance
between the two countries.

Starting from that point, it is perfectly obvious that in 1894 the
Dominion for the first time—because its statute was passed in that
year—adopted a policy with regard to arid lands as reflected in that
statute; and then in 1896 and 1897, realizing as to this particular
territory where those lands were chiefly situated, they appreciated
that to make a proper working arrangement on a reasonable basis so
that the greatest ﬁeneﬁt would be got from the waters that were
flowing, they approached the United States for the purpose of
having some arrangement made that would be mutually satistactory.
That carries us back to the documents that are at pages 56 and 57.

The first of them is an order in council of the 13th December, 1895,
about a year after the first statute passed by the Dominion Govern-
ment, and the lands we are dealing with here are, I understand, the
first lands in the Dominion to be dealt with under any irrigation
system. ‘

Mr. TurNER. The first document I find on that page is dated
January 8, 1896.

Mr. TirLey. That is the date I should have mentioned. This is
described as an extract from a report of the committee of the Privy
Council approved on the 8th January, 1896:

On g report dated 13th December, 1895, from the minister of the interior, statin

that a resolution was passed by the International Irrigation Congress of the Unite
States at its meeting at Albuquerque, N. Mex., in September, 1895—

That is to say, following a resolution by that Congress, the material
portion of which was that they asked— :

for the appointment of an international commission to act in conjunction with the
authorities of Mexico and Canada in adjudicating the conflicting rights which have
arisen, or may hereafter arise, on streams of an international character.

A map was inclosed and reference was made to the number of

- streams that cross the border. Your honors will notice the express-
ing there “important streams arise within the boundaries of Canada
and flow south to the United States.” 1 point to that because in
all the language of these documents you have something that refers
to the streams as either international streams, or streams that rise
in the one country and flow into the other, or streams that cross,
unltil you have our treaty, when you have streams within a geographi-
cal area.

That order in council suggests that the Canadian Government
would be glad to cooperate with the authorities of Mexico and the
United States with the object of regulating the use, for the purposes
of irrigation, of the waters of the streams which have their origin in
one of the countries named and subsequently flow through the terri-
tory of the other. The reply to that was that Mr. Olney was inter-
ested but had at the time nothing to offer. That is in 1896.

In 1899 our predecessors in title received the licenses or authoriza-
tions issued to appropriate water. If the Commission pleases we
will turn to page 143.
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The first is an order in council dated 22d May, 1899:

On a report dated 2d May, 1899, from the minister of the interior, stating that under
the authority of an order in council dated 21st September, 1897, a quantity of water
equal to 500 cubic feet per second during the low-water stage of the St. Mary River
in the district of Alberta and 1,000 cubic feet per second during the high-water stage
of the said river were reserved for a period not exceeding ten years.

Having recited the reservation made in 1897, which was imme-
diately after this correspondence with the United States, in the last
clause the order in council proceeds:

The minister recommends that provided the company is duly authorized to con-
struct the canal the quantity of water reserved by the order in council of the 21st
September, 1897, and as much more as is required to irrigate the tract of land de-
scribed in their application be granted to the Alberia Irrigation Co.

So that you see there is a definite setting apart for that company
of 500 second-fect in the low-water stage and of 1,000 second-feet in
the high-water stage of the St. Mary River, with the provision that
there might be more taken if more was necessary to irrigate the lands.

Following on the same page in 1899 is an order in council or a
recommendation of the deputy minister of the interior under the
provision of subsection (2) of section 15 of the act, whereby the
Alberta Irrigation Company was granted the right to divert water
from the St. Mary River at a placed named—
for irrigation and power purposes, no change or variation therefrom being deemed
necessary—
and so on. That is merely authority to construct the works.

The next one is the Etzi-kom or Kipps Coulee water, and followin
that in June, 1900, we were authorized to divert the Pothole Cree
water; in June, 1900, again the Nine Mile Coulee; on the 5th June,
1900. the Middle Coulee, and on the 19th June, 1900, the Pinepound
Creek (or Spring Coulee) water we were authorized to divert.

Mr. CLARK. T%mt does not appear to be the same grantee, does it ?

Mr. TieLey. That is the Canadian Northwest Irrigation Co. We
are the successors of those companies, at least we own the capital
stock of the present company and acquired their rights. So nothing
depends on the chain of title.

hen in October, 1902, we have this document that groups up all
these privileges that were granted to us and, in addition, gives 500
cubic feet of water per second from the Belly River, which is item
No. 2; and under item No. 4, 500 cubic feet of water per second from
the Milk River, including the flow of all its branches during low
water, and 1,500 cubic feet of water per second during high water
and flood stages.

So that by 1902 we had rights in the St. Mary River to the extent
of 500 second-feet at low water and 2,000 cubic feet per second during
high water; and in the Milk River we had 500 feet per second during
low water and 1,500 feet per second in the high water and flood
stages. :

hen this controversy arose those rights were treated by the
Canadian Government as rights in us created by them. That is
possibly somewhat important, because Canada was being pressed to
treat whatever rights were to be respected on the St. Mary River as
being rights acquired subject to the same conditions as rights con-
ferred in the United States, and that as the water at the time was not
being put to actual beneficial use the contention was made that these



ST, MARY AND MILK RIVERS. 148

rights so granted to my clients should be cut down to the lesser
amount. :

Mr. PowgLr. That was an immediate vested right ?

Mr. Tirey. Yes, immediate vested rights that have only been
impaired by anything done under this treaty. The Dominion Gov-
ernment has confirmed the treaty, and possibly we could advance
certain arguments as to our civil rights within the Province being
affected ; but in the view that I am presenting this is a treaty between
two nations, and the private individual’s position is not a thing to
be considered, we must merely construe the language of the treaty.

Mr. PoweLL. They are vested rights to be acted on at the con-
venience of the grantee, I suppose?

Mr. TILLEY. Ybes; and it was part of a governmental scheme as
this correspondence shows. So it was the duty of the Government,
and whether it was their duty or not they took the position in the
early correspondence: We have created these rights in this company.

Let me refer to the correspondence again as it appears on page 58,
or rather to the order in council that there appears. After reciting
what had happened before the order in council proceeds in this way
in the third paragraph:

The minister submits that it appears now that uuder the provisions of an act passed
at the last session of Congress the Government of the Uniteg States proposes to divert

the waters of St. Mary River into the channel of Milk River for the purpose of irri-
gating certain lands in Montana.

Then the river is described, but I shall not stop to read the
deseription.
At page 59 the need of this water to Canada is stated in this way:

The proposed diversion of the river will render useless the greater part of the works
constructed at a large expense by the Canadian Northwest Irrigation Co., and its
revenues will be 80 affected that it will be unable to meet its obligations. The lands
reclaimed since the canal was built being deprived of water, will no longer be suit-
able for cultivation, and will have to be abandoned. The numerous farmers whose
Erosperity seemed an assured fact will lose not only what they paid for their farms,

ut also the money and labor invested in buildings and other improvements.

The minister further states that it has been contended that the streams discharging -
into the St. Mary River between the heads of the United States and Canadian canals
furnish an ample supply for the land irrigated in Canada; that, however, is not the
case. The whole of the water now fowing in the 8t, Mary River is required for
irrigating the lands in the vicinity of the town of Lethbridge and the Canadian canal
was constructed with a capacity sufficient for carryving this quantity of water.

Then the possibility of use if the water should be diverted into
the Milk River is discussed. It is said:

Should the water of St. Mary River be turned into either the North or the South
Fork of Milk River, it will flow foreabout 150 miles in Canada before it can be used
to irrigate lands in the United States. In report No. 254 of the United States Senate
Committee on the Reclamation of Arid Lands it is stated that the diversion canal is
to be continued to the South Fork of Milk River, ‘‘as it is not considered practicable
for the Canadians to divert water at any point in Canada from the South Fork or from
Milk River.”” Again, in the reportof tge, hydrographer of the United States Geological
Survey upon which was based the recommendation of the Secretary of the Interior
to Congress it is said:— '

Then the Milk River is described, and possibly I should read that,
because the condition of the Milk River is one of the important
things to bé considered here—

1f the water is turned into either the North or the South Fork of Milk River it
first finds its way into Canada before it can be used in the lower basin. The valley
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proper of Milk Riverin Canada is comparatively narrow and has little irrigable land,
go that any proposition on a large scale must contemplate using the high bench of
lands above. Milk River in Canada from the junction of the North and South Forks
downstream has & very slight fall—not more than 2 feet to the mile—and a canal of
100 miles or more in length would be necessary before the water could be brought
to the uiper benches, It is not, therefore, considered feasible to divert the water
from Milk River into Canada. '

Now, I emphasize that because on any scheme of fair play you
must take into account, or the person who is dealing with what is
regarded as fair play must take into account, that at that point it
*was considered to be a very difficult thing to store water.

Mr. CLark. To divert it.

Mr. Tieiey. Yes, to divert it from the river. . In fact, it was
thought to be so difficult that it might be regarded as impossible,
and that therefore anything thrown into the Milk River at the
western crossing of the boundary line was bound to go all the way
down the river and would pass back to the United States at the
eastern crossing. :

In regard to that the minister says:

The minister represents that the surveys made under his direction do not confirm
the views expressed in the reports quoted above; on the contrary, they prove that
the present water supply of Milk River and any additional amount diverted therein

from St. Mary River south of the international boundary can be taken out in Canada
at & moderate cost and prevented from flowing again into the United States,

And then the minister submits:

That action in this matter should not be governed by 2 consideration of what
Canada may or may not do to protect her interests; a question of this kind should
be dealt with on its merits as justice and equity may demand.

Let us consider what that means. What the United States
wanted to do was to get the water from the St. Mary River south
of the boundary line and by some means transfer that water that
naturally would run north and never come back to the United States,
and the beneficial use of which, if the water once crossed the boundary
line, would pass to Canada for all time—the United States wanted
to. get that water transferred down to Chinook. :

Ithough it was suggested in the correspondence that an all-
American canal should be built to get the water down to Chinook
without its going into Canada, we are told that that was an impracti-
cable scheme, as it would cost from $10,000,000 to $20,000,000 and
was really out of the question. So that the plan was to take these
waters into Canada and get them back, not because of any right to
do it, for there was no particular right to carry those waters through
Canada, but because it was thought they could be passed into Canada,
and come down through the Milk River and back into the United
States without any possibility of diverting the waters out of the
channel of the Milk Igver.

That was what the United States wanted to accomplish, to transfer
the water from the headwaters of the St. Mary, from another water-
shed down to Chinook in this larger watershed to the east.

Canada, in reply, said: “ Well, if you do put those waters into the
Milk River, either the south branch or the north branch, it is possible
to take them out.”” And whether for the purpose of demonstrating
that that could be done or whether it was because they really
intended to divert the water, a canal was built from the MilK River,
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and apparently the United States realized that it was impossible to
carry out the original scheme. . ‘

Now, that has been accomplished by the treaty, not poss1bl{l to
the full extent that they would like, but it has beer} accomplished
And who is to say, on a question of fairness and equity, what is the
proper arran(gfrement to make in respect of it ?

y learned friend Senator Turner this merning, when Mr. MacInnes
was addressing the Commission in reference to a South Creek here
being brought into the computation that is made necessary in order
to work out the division, suggested that we were using the United
States canal to divert our water. Well, something is due, and who
is to say what, for enabling the United States to take the water from
the headwaters of the St. Mary and get them down ta Chinook,
when they can not get them there without the consent of Canada.
That is a problem: that must be dealt with when anyone is considering
what is fair play and equity as between these two countries.

That shows the position in 1902. In 1903 we have further discus-
sions that are not very material until we come to Mr. Hay’s letter
written to the ambassador. He suggests what is fair in a sense, he
su%)gests some sort of equal division so that the interests, at any rate,
of both sides can be protected, but he dees not say what protection
will be afforded. He suggests at i&ge 51 that the standard as to
these prior appropriations is the right to the use of water so far as it
has been already taken and put to beneficial use. .

My learned friend Mr. MacInnes asks me to read that suggestion.
Perhaps it is not very material, but let me read it:

In the present case the intention is clearly expressed to avoid all interfemence
with the amount of water to which the Canadian canal on the Milk River may be
entitled. The engineer in charge of the work 1n Montana made a careful investigation
of the river with a view to determining the amount of water to which claim might
properly be advanced in Canada, and it is the intention of the Reclamation Service,
1im its recommendation to the Interior Department, copcerning this project, to m.a}%:p a8
full provision for the protection of any prior vested rights to water along the Milk River
in Canada as it would make if the river were wholly within the boundadries of the
United States and the rights of the citizens of this country only were under con-
sideration.

It is proposed to deal with this matter in strict conformity with the laws concerning
the rights to the use of water as recognized by the courts of the arid region, both on

this side of the international boundary and on the other. The principle msay be
stated in thelanguage of section 8 of the reclamation act of June 17, 1802 (32 Stat., 388):

Then the principle is stated:

That the right to use of water shall be appurtenant to the lands irrigated and the
beneficial use shall be the basjs, the measure, and limit of the right.

In the concluding paragraph Mr. Hay says:

Inasmuch as the position taken by the Reclamation Service in this matter in regard
to the rights claimed in Canada appears to be precisely that which is taken in the cage
of similar rights within the United States, both being treated according to the recog-
nized rules of law govemin%1 the diversion and a?propriaﬁon of water in arid regions,
Mr. Hitcheock regrets that he can see no reason for a change in the position taken by
this Government in the matter. :

So that the scheme defined under that was to proceed, and no.
harm was to be done because in the view presented the prior appro-
priations were to be respected just as though they were prior appre-
priations of a stream entirely within the State of Montana.

57208—21——10
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In the memorandum of May 9, 1904, we find the following:

. It has been represented to the Government of the United States that a large canal
is now in the course of construction in Canadian territory which will divert a large
amount of water from Milk River into the Saskatchewan Basin; that all the normal
flow of Milk River is now being used by the people of Milk River Valley in Montana,
who have built irrigating canals involving a great expenditure ol money and have
thereby reclaimed 80,000 acres of arid lands. It is further represented that the
proposed diversion of the waters of Milk River in Canadian territory will cause great
injury to the people of Montana by depriving their reclaimed lands of the water
necessary for the purposes of irrigation.

Then the fact that the river rises in the United States is referred
to, and so on. !

Next an order in council is passed in this case, Canada practically
saying that they are not particularly interested. That is the way
the dispute was running at that time apparentlﬁ, the United States
.at first confident in the view that it could take the waters down
without any consent from Canada, and then Canada takes the
posttion:

The minister of the interior, to whom the said dispatch was referred, submits that
the records of the Department of the Interior show that authority has been given
to the Canadian Northwest Irrigation Co. to divert {from Milk River for the use on
lands owned or held by the company in Canada 500 cubic feet per second at the low-
water flow of that stream and 1,500 cubic feet per second during the high-water and
flood stages of the river; also that authority has been granted to another applicant
to divert 6 cubic feet per second of water from the same source also for irrigation
purposes.

So that the position taken by Canada there was that rights had
been granted to us in the amounts mentioned, and that seemed to
be all the information they had to communicate to the United States.

On December 30, 1904, there is another letter from John Hay. He
-traces the Milk River from its source and describes it, and then he
speaks of the threatened diversion and of the injury to the citizens
of the United States if that is done. In the third paragraph on
page 63 he writes:

The engineers of the Reclamation Service of the Interior Department of the United
States believe it possible for the two Governments to make an arrangement whereby
the rights of the settlers within the domain of the United States will be preserved
and at the same time the water necessary to supply the canal built by the Canadian
Northwest Irrigation Co. will be provided. .

The engineers report that the waters of the St. Mary River which flow northward
into Canadian territory are now being utilized to only a small extent, and they state
that it is practicable to store these waters in the United States, conduct them by a
canal on the southern side of the international boundary line to the head of the Milk
River, and there turn them into the Milk River, so as to increase the ordinary flow
of that river and furnish a supply of water for lands in the Milk River Valley within
the United States. Under this arrangement the prior rights of the Canadian settlers
on the St. Mary River would be protected by permitting its ordinary flow to continue
to pass into Canadian territory, and at the same time the great volume of flood water
which passes down that river destroying property along its banks would be restrained
within the United States and diverted to the headwaters of the Milk' River and be
put to beneficial use in the lower Milk River Valley in the United States.

And he suggests the all-American route for this water

Sir WiLLiam Hearst. It would seem at that time as though all
that was contemplated was the storage of flood water, transfer that
water to the valley of the Milk, and let the ordinary flow go down the
river.

Mr. TiLey. Yes, and give the Canadian settlers the right they
would be entitled to in the ordinary flow of the river.
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In 1905 we have this order in council—and the point I want to
make is that Canada at that time was taking the position that these
were vested rights—

The minister of the interior, to whom the said dispatches were referred, observes
with respect to the conditions existing in the State of Montana and the districts of
Albertaand Assiniboia along-the Milk-River-te-which-the-honorable the Secretary of
State refers, it is manifestly in the interests of both countries that the waters of the
St. Mary and Milk Rivers should be conserved for the heneficial use of the owners
of agricultural and ranch lands through which these waters flow, and that the Cana-
dian Government shoutld join in an arrangement with the United States Government
for the purpose of attaining this end, due regard being had to the protection of vested
rights in conformity with the laws concerning the right to use of water as recognized
in both countries.

The minister therefore submits that as the United States Reclamation Service
has been devoting much consideration to this matter His Majesty’s ambassador at
Washington should be asked to invite the United States Government to suggest such
a plan for the settlement of all questions in reference to the waters of the St. Mary
and Milk Rivers as would be acceptable to both countries,

That portion has already been read by Senator Walsh. The order
continues: !

The minister further observes with respect to the request for information in regard
to the flow of the Milk River and of the St. Mary River, and the allotment of such
waters by the Dominion authorities, that the department of the interior of Canada
has not yet made a final determination as to these facts, such a determination being
a8 yet unnecessary, in view of the fact that a license will not be issued to the Alberta
Railway & Irrigation Co., which has authority to divert water from these streams,
until the completion of its works within the period allotted to it.

The only point with regard to that is that the authority had been
granted to exercise their rights when they would get their license,
but at that time it was a vested authority in the company. They
had the rights, but the actual license to go on and operate would be
issued when they completed their works. That is the only point.

Mr. CLark. Suppose the company had never gone on and com-

leted their work, how would that right have been recovered by the
Eovernment for the purpose of giving it to somebody else who would
complete the work ?

Mr. WaLkER. The authorization limits the time within which the
works must be completed.

Mr. TiLLey. And that is kept renewed, I suppose ?

Mr. WALKER. Yes.

Mr. CLark. When the time has elapsed and the works had not
been completed, does the authorization necessarily fail ¢

Mr. WaLkER. The minister may extend the time from time to
time.

Mr. CLARK. Suppose he does not, has he a right to give the authority
to anybody else? .

Mr. WaLker. To cancel it.

Sir Witriam Hearst., As I understand, they have a system of
inspection, theg go over the works from time to time to see if the
conditions are being complied with; if not, the minister may cancel
the authorization.

Mr. PowerLr. They do not become void by mere lapse of time I
understand.

Mr. Tierey. No. They are voidable, not void. .

Mr. PoweLL. That would cause a condition to arise under which a
declaration that they are void could be made?



148 ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS.

Mr. TinLEy. Yes.

Mr. CLarg. Was this authorization an absolutely vested right?

Mr. TiLLEY. With us it is a vested right. I am not discussing now
whether it would be a vested right under your law; but with us it
would be a vested right to this water.

Mr. Crarx. Depending upon another contingency.

Mr. Triey. But in the meantime an appropriation of the water
for that purpose.

Mr. Drakr. The only condition, Senator, is that when the grant
is made the grantee shall show good faith. The conditions are thor-
oughly within the control of the grantee. The Minister of the Interior
loses the right to cancel so long as the grantee shows good faith.

Mr. Ticiey. I suppose so long as the grantee performs the condi-
tions the minister loses the right to cancel; and so long as he shows
good faith his grant will not be canceled.

Mr. DrakEe. Quite right. ‘

Mr. TrLeey. Now, I want to get before the Commission, if I may,
exactly what changes were proposed. So far we have nothing definite
except that this work was to go on, and that rights to persons who
have what are regarded as rights under the law as it was accepted in
the United States, although it is treated as being the same as in
Canada—that their rights should be preserved, and that subject to
that the waters should be diverted; and, as pointed out, the syg-
gestion was that the flood waters should be diverted and the ordinary

ow should be reserved for the persons entitled to their rights on the
St. Mary River.

At last we come to the first sort of comprehensive document that
was brought into existence in the nature of a proposed treaty, and
that is at page 65. Reference has been made to clauses 9 and 10,
and reference was made in former proceedings to the introductory
words of 'this document. What I would ask the Commission to note
is that while the introductory paragraph is a paragraph that seems
Hmited to partieular waters, immediately the document takes a
broader aspect. It says:

With a view to bringing to a determination the questions so long discussed relating
to the use of the waters of the St. Mary River and the Milk River which flow acrass the
forty-ninth parallel boundary between the United States and Canada, I beg to offer
the following suggestions for a basis of a treaty for the equitable appertionment of those
waters:

That would be: “The equitable apportionment of the waters of the
St. Mary River and the l\gﬂk River which flow across the forty-ninth
parallel boundary between the United States and Canada——that is the
question that hes been up, and with regard to that question I beg to
offer the following proposition:” and, as I say, we immediately see
the proposition when made is one that takes a broader aspect; it is
not eonfined merely to the particular thing that had been discussed,
it enlarges it. ‘ ;

It is hereby agreed between the Governments of the United Stajes and Great Britaip
that the waters of the Milk River and the St. Mary River and their tributaries.shall be
apportioned- in perpetuity for use in the two countries according to ‘the folléwing
stipulations and agreements: o

1. That for the purposes of this agreement the St. Mary;River and the Milk River
and their tributaries, which are now separate and mq?pendent river systems, shall
be treated as'though they were the waterways of a single ‘drainage system.
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There is the first sug%estion of that kind. I am not saying that
this treaty goes the whole distante that our present treaty does, but
I say there is the first suggestion of sometl‘x)ing of that kind being
worked out; that is to say, for the purposes of the treaty the St. Mary
and Milk Rivers and their tributaries, which are now separate and
independent river systems, shall be treated as though they were thé
watersheds of a single drainage system. ,

And just before that is also the expression, ‘‘ the Milk River and the
St. Mary River and their tributaries shall be a%portioned in per-
{)etuity for use in the two countries according to the following stipu-
ations and agreements:”’

Then clause 2:

That the water available for irrigation from these two river systems throughout the
period from March 1 to September 30 of each year, both dates included, shall be
apportioned to each of the two countries from day to day in equal amounts.

There is what we have, but I am not saying that all the clauses of
-that treaty carry out that scheme; what I do say is the suggestion is
there of what we ultimately got:

That the water available for irrigation from these two river systems throughout the
period from March 1 to September 30 of each year, both Yates included, shall be
apportioned to each of the two countries from day to day in equal amounts.

Mr. PowerL. Do you attach any significance to the words there
“separate and independent river systems’’ as respects scope ?

r. TiLLeY. I suppose what that means is that they are in separate
drainage areas, so that they can not be brought together at all.

Mr. PoweLL. But do you attach any broader signification to the
phrase “river systems’” than you would to “river;” does it imply
more ¢ : , ‘ ‘ - :

Mr. TreLey. I would say that you take the river and its tributaries.
It is the river system. ‘It is'a comprehensive deseription. ‘

Mr. PowerL. That is what I meéan. '

Mr. Triey. It is a ‘very compreliensive term and embodids th
main river-and all its branches, and groups up and includes all the
arteries for water in a watershed. That is really what is intended
there. And here you have two such river systems, two separaté
drainage areas wi'ti & main river in each and tributaries, and ?rou
treat each one as a separate system, and then you say they shall bé
treated as though they were the waterwiys of a sinigle drainiage system.
1t gets the idea, although, as I'say, I do not contend that this treaty
goes the distance that our treaty does. But it is a step in the direc-
tion of grouping up all the water in two drainage areas, treating themi
as the water of one drainage area and then apportioning them equally.
That is reflected there, although I do not say that the exact clauses of
this agreement carry it out fully.

Mr. CLaRK. Does this memorandum of Secretary Root’s include
any of the waters east of the final crossing of the Miﬁ( River?

Me. Tineey. Yes.

Mr. CLARK. Where do you find that?

Mr. Tirrey. In clause 9 on page 66:

The share of the United States shall in any event include so much of the available
natural flow of the Milk River asshall be judiciallﬁ determined as having been applied

to beneficial use on or before November 1, 1805, by the canal systems tdking water
from the lower Milk River in Montana.
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Mr. CLark. That refers to the use of water by the citizens of
Montana. But section 5, on a cursory examination, seems to de-
scribe the water that shall be divided for the purposes of irrigation
between the two countries. It takes:

All water of the St. Mary River and its tributaries diverted in the United States for
use in its territory and not delivered into Milk River or its tributaries.

And—

_ All water of the Milk River and its tributaries diverted in United States for use in
its territory above the crossing of such streams into Canada.

And—

All water of Milk River (including stored water of the St. Mary River turned into
it), not in excess of 2,000 cubic feet per second, flowing into the United States at the
eastern Milk River crossing of the international boundary. '

That is what the United States is entitled to.

Mr. TiLLey. Quite so. ] )

_ Mr. CLarx. What the United States is entitled to of the division
includes nothing east of that boundary. Now:

The share to which Canada is entitled shall be the total of the following items:

And none of those items includes anything east of the crossing.

Mr. Trrey. That is to say ~

Mr. Crark. So in Secretary Root’s memorandum here it would
seem on & cursory examination that it refers to none of the waters
except those that lie west of the crossing.

Mr. TurNER. Lying north you mean.

Mr. Crark. I mean west of the point where the river crosses the
boundary. :

Mr. TicLey. I think you appreciate, Senator Clark, that I am not
saying that this treaty goes as far as our treaty does, although I
think there is a good deal to be said that that was the basic idea,
although possibly not fully and completely expressed, because when
you go back to the earlier clauses it shows the idea of distributing
equally all the water available in the streams, treating them as one
stream. I think clause 5 was intended to give certain priority of
use in the irrigation season. : : ,

Sir WiLLiam Hearst. Could there be any doubt of that being what
was intended ?

Mr. TiLLey. I think that is what was intended when I come to
read paragraph (6); but it seems to me that lawyers would have a
better treaty to make a living out of if they had the Root treaty
than the one we have here.

Sir WiLLiam HearsT. This one seems fairly productive of results.

Mr. Ticrey. I think the other might really be more productive.

If you read the introductory part of paragraph (5)— :

That the apportionment of water hereby agreed upon during the period specified
in paragraph (2) —

That is, only during the irrigation season—

shall be determined in the following manner: The share to which the United States
is entitled shall be the total of the following items:

That is, it is a sort of priority right during the irrigation season.
Mr. MacIxnes. And not covering all the waters.
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Mr. TiLLey. Because at certain points 2,000 cubic feet per second
is to be taken. :

Mr. TurNER. A good deal more water than is ever in the Milk
River, I imagine.

Mr. Tirrey. I suppose.

Mr. MacINnEs. A great deal less than is in the St. Mary River.
~ Mr. Tiwigy. At any rate, it is language which gave a sort of pri-
ority right I would say. _

Sir WiLriam Hearst. If you refer back to paragraph (2), you
will see that it provides for an equal apportionment %lurmg the 1rri-
gation season. Then does not the writer simply set out a list of
priorities which he assumes will comply with this equal a]iportion-
ment? It may be a question as to which is the superior clause.

Mr. Ticeey. That was the ‘“joker” as some would say. But it
professed to give equality.

Mr. Crark. My query was not directed as to whether Secretary
Root’s note contemplated any division of waters that did not occur
before the water crossed the boundary. L

Mr. TiLLey. I appreciate that, Senator Clark.

Sir WiLLiam HeARsT. I have not the Senator’s point.

Mr. Tizrey. The Senator’s point is this: Not whether there was to
be equality as to all water before the river made the eastern crossing
back from Canada into the United States—he does not question
that; but he says, “Is there any division beyond that point?”’

Mr. CLARK. Yes.

Sir WitLiam HEARrsT. Does not section 9 clear that up? It says
that in any event—— ‘

Mr. TiLLey. May I just refer to the clauses before that? Clause
6 provides: ‘

The total quantity of water to which each country shall be entitled, according
to the items enumerated in paragraph (5), shall be maintained at equal amounts,
a8 nearly as may be poesible, from day to day during the period speciﬁegl in paragraph
(2), under such regulations as shall be agreed upon by the commission provided for
in paragraph (14). .

There again we have features that entered into this ultimate
arrangement.

Then the amounts of water under clause 7:

The amounts of water chargeable to each of the countries under the several items
enumerated in paragraph (5) shall include all the waters of the two river systems

whether used directly or indirectly by the two Governments or by private parties
in their respective territories.

Then clause 8:

That Canada shall in no event divert from the Milk River any portion of the stored
St. Mary River water turned into the Milk River system by the United States, due
allowance being made for losses while passing through the channels of the Milk River
system, as fixed by the commission provided for in paragraph (14).

Then you come to clause 9, which points, according to my sub-
mission, to a division of waters beyon({) the eastern crossings where
the Milk leaves Canada and goes into the United States, but it is
not in nearly so plain language—to put it that way—as we have in
our present treaty. I would not care to go the length of saying that
this treaty actually contemplated grouping up as much water as
the treaty shows by Article VI.
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The share of the United States shall in any event include o much of the available
natural flow of the Milk River as shall be judicially determined as having been applied
to beneficial use an or before November 1, 1805, by the canal systems taking water
from the lower Milk River in Montana—

That is, southeast of the eastern crossing.

Mr. CrARk. To my mind that simply said that when you come
to make your division up thers at the eastern crossing the share of
the United States shall be at least enough to maintain the prior
rights of the settlers lower down on the stream. I am not asserting
that, but the query arises in my mind. ‘

Mr. TiLLey. And I am not asserting to the contrary. As I say,
I can not in any view of this diseussion see that it is essential to me
to prove that my identieal treaty was proposed at some time before.
I can not see that that enters into the matter at all. It is not one of
the points I make, that I can go to the negotiations and find the
identical treaty; all I am pointing to is that one of the parties
interested in the negotiations at one time made & proposal that
aimeéd in this direction.

Let me read the lagt part of that clause:

and whenever ohe-half of the naturkl flow of Milk shall be less than such amount—
That is, the amount of the prior appropriations—

measured as aforesaid—
That is, méasured at the point where they take it—

the share of Canada shall Pe %iyniuished go that said country shall receive of the
natural flow of the éntire M1k River systern—

The question would be: What is the entire Milk River system?
My rights do not depend on this treaty, therefore I do not take up
my time in arguin‘% exactly what the language of that particular
treaty means. As I say, IyWould submit that that shows that at
that point where these persons with prior appropriations are b&king
their water east of the eastern erossing from Canada to the Unite
States of the Milk River—at that point the rivér is to be mesasured
and they aré to have their appropriations, and if half of the natural
flow of the Milk at that point will not give them their appropriations;
then Canada, using thé water above, is prohibited from using it
so as to reduce it to less than half. But at that point Montana
water is coming into the Milk, and that is measured there, and in
that way Canadn gets the beénefit of it.

I do not say that that goes as far as my present treaty, but I do
say that on that basis of dividing the water the prior appropriations
are taken care of, but to the extent to which Montana affords intra-
state water for those appropriations Canada gets the benefit of that
in the equal uge she gets of the waters above.

I do not want to say that that is perfectly clear, because my only
point in regard to this whele treaty is that it is astomishing how
closely the American proposal in 1907 approached the thing that
was ultimately arranged. It eame from the United States, and it
was a scheme of equal division, taking care of appropriations, giving
certain priorities during the irrigation season, but in the end marshal-
ing the systems into one system and making an equal division.

%. do not want to be carried into detail any further than that,
because if T am it looks as if I am seeking to prove that what was
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done at a later stage was proposed in 1907, and I do not have to
prove that at all. But I do say, and I urge it as one of the things
that is important to be considered, that the United States outlined 4
scheme which, if Senator Clark had sat down te consider, he would
say, “Well, I am not satisfied as to the exact limits of that proposal;
you might have done that.” But the nucleus of the idea that
ultimately appeared in our treaty is in this Root proposal of directing
the two systems into one system and making equality between the
two nations out of the waters of the single united system. And
there certainly is the feature that that doeés not stop at the boundary
as to the benefits to Canada, because in the limitation that is pro-

osed in regard to the protection of the prior approptiations in

outana, the lower valley of the Milk, the tributaty waters from
Montana are brought into the equation.

Mr. Crark. Of course, I do not wanht to put any interpretation
upon this section 9. As you say, there i3 no necessity for it, because
it doés not enter into the treaty. But unless, after a more careful
reading of section 9, I should change my mind, it would seem to me
that the section was intended as a limitation upon Canada as to the
amount of water she should take at the crossing of ‘the boundary,
that limitation being put on for the purpose of protectirig prior rights
below the boundary.

Mr: TiLiey. You are not understanding me as pressing the matter
unduly in regard to that? I am not trying at all to eonvince you to
the contrary, becwase I do not think it is impertant.

Mr. Crarx. No. ,

Mr. TieLey. But if you look at elause 11 you will seé it reads:

_The term ‘‘natural flow,” as used herein, is to be understood ag the flow of the
river systemn in guestion— :

It is not the river; it.is ““ the river system in question”—

which would pass the;point or points specified if no artificial structure had been
laced in the stream-channel an({xﬁ no water had been diverted from or turned into
it. Such natural flow shall be determined by the Commission—

That is to say, passing the point or points specified.

My submission is that it may be construed to be the whole river
system, or it may not; but whatever is the right view with rega
to that, it must be this, that it proposes something that to another
mind would suggest the working out possibly of a broader plan, and
in that way it i1s a suggestion that is important in showing how this
thing grew up.

I do not t%ink that Senator Clark misunderstands me. I think
you appreciate, Senator, that the lower waters that come from
Montana into the Milk before it reaches where these appropriations
take place are brought into the streaim and computed under these
clauses as the stream at that point. I mean you appreciate I have
been arguing that.

Mr. CLark. Yes.

Sir Wirriam Hearst. And to the extent they are satisfied below
‘Canada benefits above. The amount of water she takes goes up or
down according to the amount of water down at the point of intake.

Mr. TicLey. Yes. Of course, the other suggestion in regard to
that is that Canada gets her half above and this saves her being
charged below.
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Mr. CLark. My contention is that the division is equal so long as
there is enough water, no matter where it comes from; but if the
water falls short, then the amount Canada is entitled to is diminished
by the amount it falls short. ‘

Mr. TiLLey. Yes.

Sir WiLLiam Hearst. As I take it, that is Mr. Tilley’s contention.

Mr. TiLey. Yes.

Mr. MagraTH. A good deal has been said about the physical
impossibility of taking water back into Canada. For instance, I see
in this draft that you are discussing the expression occurs ‘‘amounts
of water chargeable to each country.” Is that principle enunciated
there of charging each country with waters in connection with the
balancing as between the two countries of the amounts they are
entitled to?

Mr. TizLey. On that branch, of course, it has never been any
Eerson’s sugiestion that Canada gets the right to take any water by

ucket or otherwise from a stream that is away below the boundary,
but that this is a matter of apportionment ofy water, charging each
one with certain water, and then saying that they get half and half,
with no obligation on either country to take its water from a partic-
ular stream or tributary. Everything is to be charged. That is why
I point out that the Root draft is a draft that in many directions
points to a scheme of the character which we contend is adopted in
the present article. Whether that scheme was as broad as the present
treaty is a point that I am not really goncerned to answer. It may
have been the extension of that with some elements of more equality
during the irrigation season that enabled the parties to get together
on the ultimate treaty. But the treaty does point to many things,
including the one in item 7, where it speaks of the waters chargeable
to each of the countries.

The comment on that is just as one would expect, that while there
is a general scheme of equality the equality does not work out, because
the Ei{ﬁlk River is not o(} the steady(%low of the St. Mary.

There is some discussion of this all-American route for this water,
but that is not important, and at the bottom of page 67 is the clause
that was referred to by Mr. MacInnes, and I shall not read it again.
But objection is taken that under the arrangement, although it
seemed to produce equality, this country would not get the water
that it was entitled to.

That order in council refers to the report of the International
Waterways Commission, and an extract from that report is given at

age 68. It deals there with waters on or crossing the boundary
ine. So that matters are left in that position.

I think I can pass over everything up to the time when Mr. Newell
was appointed——see page 77—on be%ml? of the United States, and Mr.
King was appointed on behalf of Canada for the purpose of conferring
together. From that point on, as I said when I commenced my argu-
ment, some evidence is afforded as to what happened, because certain
papers are produced, but they are of no more value than would be
the verbal giscussions between the parties—and it is not suggested
at all that we have the whole of the evidence. ‘

We have, then, the proposals made, the first one by Mr. King to
Mr. Newell, at page 81. Igis proposal is that:
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In view of the large area of arid lands situated in the basing of St. Mary and Milk
Rivers, on both sides of the international boundary line, for the development of which
irrigation is a vital necessity, it is thought that an agreement whereby all available
water shall be utilized for the conversion of the present desert wastes to the fertility of
irrigated fields, to the advantage of both countries, isin the very highest degree desir-
able. Such agreement, it is believed, to secure acceptance by the people of both
countries, and to fulfill its purpose of obviating all possible future contentions, can
best be based upon the principle of equal sharing of benefits to be derived from these
international rivers, due regard being had to existing rights.

Importance is to be attached to the expression “existing rights,”
because the existing rights include all the flow, as I have pointed
out before, of the St. Mary River in the low water up to 2,000 second-
feet during the high water.

Mr. King proposes as part of his arrangement to give:

Equal supply to the two countries during the summer; full equality would be
agsured if the winter storage supply of Milk River were equal to that of St. Mary River.

And he discusses that. Then he points out that suggestions have
been made dealing with this former proposal, and that it was provided:

That the bed of Milk River, through Canada, shall be used to carry the waters
stored by the United States to the points where it is to be supplied to the land.
M:I]‘ll;liﬁ places upon Canada the heavy liability of maintenance of the channel of the

i iver.

And so on. He discusses the whole situation there, dealing with it as
a matter which is proposed to work out an equitable solution, but
he does not make any definite proposal.

Then apparently, I would say, he meets Mr. Newell, because at
page 83 he shows that he had had a discussion with him and realizes
that he has not done what Mr. Newell expected him to do, or there
was some misunderstanding, and he comes along then with a definite
proposition. It would appear to me that he misunderstood that he
was merely to make comments on the Root treaty and to make com-
ments only, when in fact it was understood that he was to make a
proposal. He makes his proposal at page 84, and I would ask the
commission’s attention to that.

Leaving aside what appears to be a very serious question of undertaking to deplete
the water supply of one internatioual stream for the benefit of another, your proposal
‘is that Canada relinquish its right to the difference between what it is committed to
supply and one-half the flow of the river, and shall further provide and maintain for

ou, for all time, a canal system, over 100 miles in length, being the channel of the
Rilk River, for the transportation of the amount you would withdraw from St. Mary
iver,

The withdrawal from St. Mary River would seriously affect vested interests in
Canada, as previously referred to, and would hinder the natural development of the
country, while the passage of a large body of water down the Milk River Channel
might carry with it serious consequences.

Nevertheless, in the interests of friendly cooperation between the two countries,
Canada is most desirous of reaching a settlement of this question, and to that end
will be willing to recede to some extent from the position which it is believed she is
entitled to take as to her rights, both on St. Mary and Milk Rivers. I accordingly
submit for your consideration the following proposal:

That the United States shall be entitled to all the water of §t. Mary River at the
dam site of St. Mary Reservoir, for storage during the months of Januvary, February,
March, November, and December in each year.

That leaves the irrigation season from the 1st of April to the end
of October, which is longer than was proposed in the Root draft.

That Canada shall be entitled to divert from the natural flow of St. Mary River
1,400 cubic feet per second during the remaining months.
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That is, for the irrigation season the prior appropriation for Canada
under King’s proposal, was as much as 1,400 cubic feet per second
on the St. Mary River. There is nothing that I have seen in this
record that shows where that 1,400 cubic feet per second is taken
from, but I assume it has regard to the area that Canada wanted to
irrigate, because in all these matters we must keep in mind that the
irrigable portion of the land for Canada was between 700,000 and
750,000 acres, and for the United States about 200,000 acres.
shall give the reference to that, but those figures may be assumed
for the present, and of course that is a point that must be familiar
to all the members of the Commission who have heard the evidence
and the previous argument.

Mr. TurNER. I wish to enter a decided protest against that
statement.

Mr. TiLLey. Which statement ?

Mr. TurNER. Two hundred thousand acres. Simp’}y that much

entered into the project of the reclamation officers. The testimony
is that there is 3,000,000 acres of land capable of irrigation in that
area. .
Mr. TiLLey. The project that was on foot at the time this matter
developed, and the project that made it desirable to bring about a
settlement for the United States, was a project involving in the con-
templation of the parties at the time 200,000 acres.

Mr. TURNER. Tﬁat was just the reclamation project, not the
necessities of the country.

Mr. TiLLEY. Let me give the reference to that now if there is any
question about it. Let us take Mr. Newell's evidence at page 25
and the following pages. First on page 25 he is asked, about two-
thirds the way down the page, by Mr. MacInnes: .

So that then your total requirement for that canal; subject to what you have just
said about building the Nelson Dam, would be about 200,000 acre-feet.

Mr. Ecreston. For the canal.
Mr. Treey. That would be for the canal, I suppose, from the St.
Mary River. But he deals with it again at page 29:

 Mr. MagInnes. This water of the Milk River is used of course upon the lands in
the lower Milk River Valley?

Mr. NEweLL. Yes,

, 1M?r MacInnes. The water in the lower Milk River Valley is not taken anywhere
else?

Mr. Newers. No: it is used in the comparatively narrow tract of land on both sides
of the river. ‘

Mr. MacInnes. You told us that the irrigable area which is to be irrigated with
the part of the waters of the St. Mary River under your scheme and with all these
waters of the Milk River Valley is aplproximately 200,000 acres.

Mr. Newerr. That is our present plan.

Mr. MacInnes. Do you suggest in any way—because it would be news to me if it is
so—that that amount could be increased? :

Mr. NEwgrL. T doubt whether we could get enough water to increase it notably,
sunless we get a very greatly increased duty from economi/ of water in its use.

Mr. MacInngs. Apart altogether from that, where could you get the land?

Mr. Newerr. There is plenty of land along the river.

Mr. MacInnes. Plenty of land; yes. But whereis the land that could be irrigated?
Because, according to your report I understood you had investigated that, and it is
stated that your irrigable area is 219,000 acres.

Mr. NeweLL. Yes; that is the land we have covered under the present compilation.

Mt. MacInxes. Quite so; but where, if at all, is there any additional land that
could be added to the irrigable area? '
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Mr. NewEewL. By extending the canale on the present grade farther easterly to cover
higher and higher ground.

Mr. MacInNes. Which would involve, of course, higher and higher expense?

Mr. Newerr. Yes. . )

Mr. MacInngs. But in your reports up to date it is not suggested that there will
-be-a-larger-amount than-219;000 acres:

Mr. NgweLL. That is limited by the economic conditions and the water.

That was the area that was then regarded as being irrigable, as I
understand it, an any economic basis. I am not saying that there
were not lots of land therethat would be the better for the water, but
these were the areas that were at a level and under conditions that,
if the water was there in the stream, they could be irrigated. And
what was desired of course was that the United States, instead of
depending on the waters of the Milk River, which were not of the
constant character of the waters of the St. Mary River, and which
did not come to them possibly at just the point they wanted the water,
should, as I say, receive water from the gt. Mary River for a scheme
that at that time contemplated, whether there was possibility of
expansion or not, some 219,000 acres in this vicinity. The idea that
started this whole movement was the plan to irrigate that acreage,
and if that could not be done wholly from the Milk River, in order to
make their plan of irrigation an assured success, or at any rate a
greater success than it otherwise would be, they wanted to hook up
to the St. Mary River and tap the waters so that they would be sure of
waters of their constent flow and volume to the extent to which they
could get volume, rather than the flow they were then getting and
could get from the Milk River.

It shows what importance they attached to that for their 219,000
acres when they proposed to go to the expenditure that they actually
went to, and were willing to suggest an expenditure that would be
involved in taking those waters all the way to the Chinook by an
all-American route. That is all I want te say about. that.

But here, on the other hand, we have a demand for lands available
for irrigation requiring at least 1,400 second-feet, because we find
that in King’s proposal he reserves a prior right to 1,400 second-feet
in 8t. Mary River during the irrigation season, and that under his
proposal is one month longer than the proposal made by Senator Root.

hen King’s proposal provides:

That the excess flow of St. Mary River during the last-mentioned pericd, above
1,400 second-feet, shall be divided equally between the two countries.

Then there is the. corresponding proposal with regard to the Milk
River. There the United States are to get all the Milk River during
the months of January, February, March, August, September,
Octo}l:er, November, and December, the irrigation season being differ-
ent there. '

That Canada shall be entitled to divert {rom the natural flow of Milk River to the
present capacity of the Canadian Milk River Cana), a%reed upon as being 330 second-
feet, during the months of April, May, June, and July in each year, subject to the
rights of appropriation from the Milk River within the territory of the United States,
as existing at the date of the Canadian company’s appropriation on Milk River (23d
Oct., 1902), and now being judicially determined in the courts of Montana.

That the natural flow in the Milk River during the months of April, May, June,
and July in each year in-excess of the amount of 330 second-feet, together with the
the amount required 2& above by the apprapriations in the lower valley, ghall be
divided equally between the two countries.
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{ want to emphasize the proposal made by Mr. King there, because
as I understand Senator Turner he, within a very short time from
this, is suggesting that they got to a point where they were really
agreed; and therefore it is important to know just what at that time,

ay, 1908, Mr. King was proposing to Mr. Newell as being a fair
thing. In connection with that he asks for a prior right to 1,400
cubic feet in the St. Mary River during the irrigation season, and he
asks for the present capacity of the Canadian Milk River Canal,
amounting to 330 second-feet in the irrigation season on the Milk
River, reserving, of course, the rights of persons who had prior appro-
priations below. He combines with that, of course, the idea that
there shall be equality otherwise, and he also combines with it the
fact that the channel of the Milk River through Canada shall be
used for the transportation of the St. Mary River water to the lower
Milk River Valley.

Mr. PowEgLL. %he lower amount that was required by estimation
there for these settlers whose rights were before the courts was 369
second-feet. Add to that the 330 and you get about 700 second-feet,
which was not in the Milk River without going down.

Mr. TiLLey. The prior appropriations for those on the lower valley
of the Milk have always in these proposals taken in the water that
was available to them there.

Mr. PowerLL. You have to go down there to get it. .

Mr. Trrey. Yes. These figures are senseless unless you apply
them so that the measurement takes place at the point where the
ap&ropriations occur.

r. PowgLL. And that is during the irrigation season.

Mr. TicLey. Yes; of course, that is the important period. It is
not a clause that provides for equality generally. I mean the provi-
sions do not provide for that. The United States takes all the waters
of the St. Mary River for storage except in the irrigation season, and
the United States gets all the water of the Milk River during the sea-
son other than the irrigation season on the Milk. And in the irriga-
tion season the St. Mary River waters are divided, 1,400 second-feet
to Canada first and then equally, and the Milk River water is divided,
359 or 369 second-feet, whichever it is, measured lower down the
Milk River for the existing appropriations, and then following upon
that a priority of 330 second-feet to Canada.

Mr. PoweLL. And the surplus equally.

Mr. TrLLEY. As it was on the St. Mary River.

That is replied to by Mr. Newell

Mr. MacInngs. If my learned friend will permit me I would like
here to refer to a defimite statement as to tﬁis irrigable area in the
Milk River Valley, as to which there has been some discussion. I
should have referred to it in my argument so as to make it clear.
At page 119 we find the following discussion between Mr. Bien, who,
you will remember, is one of the officers of the United States Reclama-
tion Service, and Mr. Burley, who is one of the officers of the Canadian
reclamation service:

Mr. Bien. Have you any idea what the private irrigation area is in Milk River in
Montana? .

The reason for that question being that Mr. Burley had been all
over the territory.
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Mr. Buriey. I have an idea from a statement that was made in the United States
‘Geological water-supply papers for 1906 on the Missouri River drainage basin. It was
not thought that there were over 50,000 acres at the outside that could be depended
upon to any extent.

Mr. Bien. Do you understand that that is in¢luded in the 220,000 of the project?

That is, the United States Reclamation Service project.

Mr. Burrey. I should say that it was exclusive of that.

Ml‘l.?BIEN. Do you know how much of that is in Milk River Valley itself, the old
canal?

Mr. BurLey. I estimate that about 30,000 acres, in round numbers.

Mr. Bien. I believe that is correct.

So that is how the figures come to be put at 250,000, 219,000, or
220,000, in round figures, for the United States Reclamation Serv-
ice—30,000 over what was possible.

Mr. CLark. I notice that it has run from 220,000 up to 8,000,000
acres.

Mr. MacInNes. When you get to Mr. Sands it might run to
80,000,000.

Mr. Turner. That is Conner’s evidence.

Mr. MacInNes. Noj; it is in Mr. Sands’s. It seems that they view
things from different aspects, Mr. Newell viewing it from the aspect
of how much land can be brought under irrigation now by the funds
at his disposal. ‘

Mr. Turner. 1t is the project.

Mr. MacInnes. It is the project that he is after. The other side
say they have 8,000,000 acres provided they could get all the water
in the world to put on it at any time they wanted it.

Mr. Trriey. The evidence is all there. We can not give any more
now. There is no doubt, I think, on the evidence that the scheme
on which they were prepared to bring down the St. Mary River
water was the scheme involving 200,000 acres odd.

Mr. Crark. I think that is the scheme of the Reclamation Service.

Mr. MacInNEs. Yes.

Mr. Tirey. And that is the scheme that made the transportation
of those waters desirable. If was the scheme that was warranting,
or not warranting the expense and trouble, and so on.

Mr. Crarg. Yes, that was the scheme, in addition to the appli-
cation for 3,200 filings upon the water made by private individuals.
This was to open up additional land.

Mr. TiLrey. Yes. And in order to make that supply certain
they wanted to get the St. Mary River water. .

Then Mr. King sends his memorandum on May 1, 1908. That
has been referred to several times, and I shall not stop to comment
on it except to point out one or two things. The language at the
top of page 88 has been referred to and read twice at least, I think,
so I shall not read it again, but I ask the Commission to note the
language in the last sentence of that paragraph:

It is not believed that any proposal to give Canada more than half the water can be
entertained, although the details as to how this half may be ascertained are open to
discussion. '

Mr. Crark. That is from Mr. Newell’s statement.

Mr. Tiiey. To Mr. King—showing that having regard to the
views that Mr. King was putting forward, they were not prepared
to give up more than & half. They were prepared to arrange the
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details of how the half was to be ascertained in a way that possibly
might give more favorable consideration than just a straight definite
half of the waters.

Then for the first time in this discussion I ask the Commission to
note that at page 88 these northern tributaries of the Milk River are
brought in, showing that claims were being made there and the
waters were being diverted.

hMr. MacInnes has referred to the other matters connected with
that.

Then I ask the Commission to note at page 92—I think Senator
Turner refers to this—that Canada points out, through Mr. King:

As to diversions in Canada from the four tributaries of Milk River mentioned in
Mr. Neall’s memorandum, the authorizations have been restricted to the actual
necessities of individyal settlers. The authorizations, with the strict system of in-
spection, operate as a restraint against excessive use of water, rather than the opposite.

The Canadian Government would have been ready to consider any representations
made on behalf of the sattlers on these creeks south of the boundary line, but none
appear hitherto to have been made, and not even in the dralt treaty of 1807 nor in

r. Newell’s present memorandum is any remedy proI)osed on their behalf. Under
clause 5 (¢) of the draft treaty, Canada would apparently be entitled to all the flow of
these streams north of the boundary line, accounting therefor only by a greater supply
to the United States in the main channel of Milk River, not in these tribntaries, a
compensation which would not seem to be of service to the settlers on the creeks
away from the immediate valley of the river. ’

Should not the Commission take in the full effect of these two
paragraphs? First, Mr. King says to Mr. Newell:

This is the first time you have raised any dispute about the four tributaries of the
Milk River. There has been no contention heretofore that any injury has been worked
on the settlers on that stream on the south side of the boundary; and the Canadian
Government would have been ready to consider any representations made on behalf
of the settlers on those creeks south of the boundary line.

Now, there is this to be remembered about clause 5 (c) of the draft
treaty—that goes back to the Root draft treaty—that Canada
would apparently be entitled to all the flow of these streams north
of the boundary line, accounting therefor’’—that is, accounting for
the flow of these streams north of the boundary line if they took it
all, “only by a greater supply to the United States in the main channel
of the Milk River—not in these tributaries—a compensation which
would not seem to be of service to the settlers on the creeks away
from the immediate valley of the river.”

Mr. CLarx. Do you think that that refers to the Root draft treaty
that we were considering awhile ago?

Sir WirLiam Hearst. If says specifically clause 5 (c).

Mr. Crark. “Of the draft treaty.”

Mr. Tiiey. That is the only draft treaty they had. We have
had no draft treaty but one. » , ;

Mr. TurneR. He has been considering that draft treaty all through
his memorandum. :

Mr. MacInnes. It should be 5 (e), Senator, not 5 (¢); that is a
misprint. )

r. CLARK. That is what misled me.

Mr. TurNER. Yes; it is a misprint.

Mr. TiLLey. Yes. Clause 5 (e) gives Canada:

All water of Milk River and its tributaries diverted in Canada for use in its territory,
excluding any water of St. Mary River turned into Milk River by Canada and which
has been mesgsured under item (d).
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Mr. Crark. That clears up my mind entirely.

Mr. Tieey. Will you allow me to peint out what I think is the
important feature of that? These two men had been discussing—
and while on the strict language of the Root draft treaty I would
not care to say exaetly how far the language would go

Mr. CLark. The reference you have made here does not apply to
elause 5 (c) of the Root draft treaty, but does refer to another part
of it, 5 (e). It has nothing to do with your argument.

Mr. Triey. No; except that I want to come back to the point
we were discussing before: What is the extent of the Milk River
system in the Root treaty? Here Mr. King is saying “ Under clause
5 (e).” If you refer to 5 (e) you find that Canada acknowledged
priority, so to speak, in the irrigation season in the Milk River water
and its tributaries diverted in Canada for use in its territory, ex-
cluding any water of the St. Mary River.

Now, the Milk River and its tributaries diverted in Canada under
5 (e) includes, according to these gentlemen, a tributary that joins
the Milk River away below the boundary, and anything taken under
that is said by King to be a taking that involves bringing the amount
into account with the United States. So that it is not the Milk
River tributaries to the boundary that are there being discussed, it
is the Milk River tributaries that join the Milk River at a point
south of the boundary line. And that adds to the point that 1 was
suggesting as right, that the Root treaty was intended, although
possibly he did not work it out to a true conclusion in all the details,
to take up the whole system as a system and extend it to the waters
south of the boundary line. But whether that was or was not the
intention, that is what, as we submit, the negotiations ultimately
resulted in. : .

Mr. PowrrLL. To complete that, it might be ar%ued that under 7
they were constructively included, although actually they would not
come under the technical terms of 5.

Mr. TiLLey. I think you will appreciate the difficulty I have in
taking the Root clpuses as they stand. I would not have to go
that far. But here you have two men, who no doubt had been dis-
cussing that treaty, communicating with each other in that way,
and I think it throws light on what was intended. And the Milk
River tributaries under the Root scheme certainly included tribu-
taries that never joined in Canada but joined in the States; and there-
fore that system must be taken as the Milk River and the tributaries
which wou{d make the Milk River where they joined it.

But, as I say, the point is not important one way or the other so
long as it shows they were approaching the thing from different
angles to come to a conelusion that would be satisfactory. No
person was saying, “ We will deal with nothing but the Milk River
Channel and the St. Mary River Channel.” No person was saying
anything that pointed to a hard determined attitude with regard to
dealing with nothing but international waters in the sense of boundary
waters, or streams that crossed the boundary. Propositions were
being made from all angles, the desire being to reach a mutually
satisfactory arrangement.

57208—21——11
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The clauses below have been discussed. Mr. MacInnes pointed out
that the clause commencing “The central idea of the proposal of
May 1, 1908,” was a balancing. And I ask the commission to note:

The central idea of the proposal of May 1, 1908, was a balancing of benefits and
concessions while making provisions for existing appropriations.

That was the idea that certainly was in the minds of these people,
to balance concessions, to appropriate in the sense of bringing things
into account.

Then, following upon that, I think Senator Turner argued that here,
by the few short expressions or paragraphs at the end of the King docu-
ment, the parties came together, practically saying there was an
agreement between them. All that was needed, so to speak, as 1
gathered from him, was that the agreement made should be reduced
almost to the form of a treaty. But my submission is that they
were just as far apart, or possibly farther apart, at the end of this
letter of December 23, 1908, as at any time, because Mr. King says:

The principle of equal sharing of benefits, with compensation by quantity of water.

I ask the Commission to note that expression, “Equal sharing of
benefits, with compensation by quantity of water.” What I shall
argue is that what our treaty merely provides for as it is, is compen-
sation by quantity of water. You do not take it from a particular
Elace, but the measurement of the whole, and dividing it in two tells

ow much water as a matter of quantity each one is to get. Mr.
King says:

The principle of equal sharing of bepefits, with compensation by quantity of water,
suggested by the undersigned, doubtless has a disadvantage in depending for its appli-
cation upon agreement as to details.

* The difficulty of working it out is that it requires too much detail.
Then he says, not as an offer, but as a feeler:

A principle which is free from this objection and is, moreover, a simple one, is that
of ‘equal division of water on the boundary streams (each country providing for its
existing interests out of its share of the water).

Senator Turner says they were in agreement practically to have
an equal division of boundary waters. In no sense was there any
agreement in regard to that. It was a suggestion made by Mr.

ing to a man who wanted a canal for his water from the head-
waters of the St. Mary over to Chinook, who had to transport his
waters across, and who was being offered half the St. Mary with the
obligation to get it to where he wanted to use it by his own means:
in return Canada would have the other half of the St. Mary and
would have, with the United States, half of the Milk at the boundary.
That was the suggestion that Mr. Newell could not accept unless he
abandoned all t%mt he had been contending for. And Mr. King
writes:

Mr. Newell appears to prefer this principle, though he does not state definitely
that he accepts it as a guiding one, and some of his suggested amendments to the
proposal of May 1 do not accurately accord with it. A similar objection lies against
the draft treaty, which purported to be based upon the principle of equal division,
but in its details did not well provide for carrying it out in practice.

So that ends the correspondence between Mr. King and Mr. Newell,
and far from bringing these two into accord, or far from saying that
they had reached a stage where they had said: “No matter what has
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taken place with regard to other matters, we are going to stick to
one thing, and that is division at the boundary or a division of
boundary waters in the sense of waters that cross the boundary.”
They had not agreed on anything; they were sounding each other,
presenting views, each one contending for such a priority in the:
Irrigation season that made it practically impossible for the other one
to accept it, and they remained in that position when, so far as they
are concerned, they disa%pear from the negotiations.

The next document that we have is dated December 29, 1908,
headed “Draft by R. H. Campbell.” That is referred to again as a
document showing that the parties were dealing with boundar
waters. It does not show anything more than that Mr. Campbell
drafted a clause. We have nothing to show to whom he handed it,
nothing to show whether it was in fact rejected, or why, and it deals
with all streams that cross the international boundary from the
Atlantic to the Pacific.

It is a general clause referring to all streams, and without some-
thing to show why one or the other objected to it, or what advantage
one or the other would get by bringing in the whole boundary line,
one can not say why it was refused, whether it gave the United
States an advantage or whether it gave Canada an advantage,
because it dealt with situations that t%ere is nothing here to show
what was really involved to either country; it extended right across
the whole continent.

The clause with regard to diverting waters is No. 7. I quite
agree with the suggestion that there is the implication that waters
might be transferred from one stream to another, as I think Mr.
Powell suggested. But what that might mean to either country
along the boundary is something 1 can not deal with at all. Whether
the United States would object to it on that account, or whether
-Canada would object to it on that account, it is a clause that implied
a sort of wholesale right on the part of either country te throw
water into a stream that is not the natural bed for it going ‘through
another country, and the provision for damages is not the same; and
so on. So that the document at the top of ﬁage 93, I submit, should
just be disregarded because it throws no light at all on the situation.

Then you come to the draft prepared by Mr. Newell: i

That the waters of each stream flowing across the international boundary shall
be divided equally in quantity as nearly as practicable between the two countries;
thatis to say, the waters of St. Mary River and its tributaries crossing the international
boundary shall be measured as they cross the boundary and an equal amount appor-
tioned to each country, due allowance being made for the quantity stored above the
point of measurement in reservoir or reservoirs constructed in the United States;
also the waters of the north and south branches of Milk River shall be measurad
where they cross from the United States into Canada, and the main Milk River and
its tributaries measured where they cross from Canada into the United States, allow-
ance being made for any water diverted or stored in any country before reaching the
points of measurement.

One can not say but that that is possibly a draft, which Mr. Newell
is endeavoring to work out, of the seeming suggestion that was
made away back in October, 1908, two or three months before; or
it may be a draft prepared by Mr. Newell in conneetion with attempts
that were being carried on to bring matters to a head that Mr.
Gibbons and Mr. Chandler Anderson were dealing with in a broad
international arbitration agreement between the two countries.
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No doubt between October and December 29, 1908, there were
many discussions between the parties, and how this clause came to
be drawn in that form, what criticisms were made of it, why it was
not accepted, no one knows. But it is clear, and I think it is of the
utmost importance, that in all these documents right down to the
last ene prepared by Sir George Gibbons—assuming it was prepared
by him, which I am not at all assured of—in fact the document is
not dated; at the same time at any rate we have one from Mr.
Chandler Anderson which I shall refer to—this expression comes up
each time. At page 93 we have the expression “the waters of St.
Mary River and its tributaries crossing the international boundary,”
an expression that was censtantly in the mouth of any person who
wanted to describe the particular river and its tributaries, and to
show that only those tributaries were to be included that crossed
the international boundary line.

So that on December 29, 1908, Mr. Newell is endeavoring to
divide, on terms satisfactory to him apparently, but he makes it a
division at the boundary, and to get gls division at the boundary
he inserts words.in his treaty that expressly provide for that.

Then at page 94 he provides for priorities, but not working out
just the same. First, Canada has a priority on the St. Mary River
of 400 second-feet, and the United States & priority of 400 second-
feet, making 800 feet, and so on. That is not material to be con-
sidered now. Then he goes on with the Milk River priorities, 359
second-feet to the Unite§ States, and he proceeds:

After the priorities above described have been provided for each country shall
be permitted to divert water in excess of the priorities to an ameunt not exceeding
one-half the patural flow of the atreams.

In computing this one-half the priorities above described shall be included.

There Mr. Newell, far from drawing something that expresses an
sgreement between himself and Mr. %{ing, has mserted something
entirely different from what Mr. King suggested, because at page
92 Mr. King had suggested that in this equal division of the boundary
streams each country shall provide out of its share for any existin,
interests; while here it is being provided that these priorities sha
be taken care of—not that each country shall take care of it out of
its own share, but the priority shall be an absolute prierity, and
Canada to recoguize it on the part of the United States.

Mr. Powerr. That is his declaration at the first, but the composi-
tion is muddled in the tail end of the paragraph.

Mr. Triorey. How do you mean ?

Mr. PoweLL. “After the priorities above described have been
provided for each country shall be permitted to divert water in
excess of the priorities to an amount not exceeding one-half the natural
flow of the streams.”” That is, as you say, clear and unequivocal.
Then it goes on to contradict that: ‘“In computing this one-half the
priorities above described shall be included; that is to say, the 400
second-feet in Milk River shall form a portion of the one-half of the
river allotted to €anada, and the 359 second-feet, or as much thereof
as is obtainable from the natural flow, shall be considered as part
of the one-half of Milk River waters.”” The last part is contra-
dictory of the first.
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Mr. TroLey. What King proposes is that there shall be an equal
division of the water of the boundary streams, each country provid-
ing for its existing interest out of its share of the water.

Mr. PowerLL. But he provides the same thing in the tail end of
this. )

Mr. TicLey. Does he?

Mr. PoweLL. Yes. :

Mr. TiLrey. Not quite, I think, if you will pardon me. Instead of
saying: “We have no concern with appropriations; you have to
look after yours, and if your people can not get appropriations out of
vour half share they can not get them at all’—that is what I under-
stood King to mean—Newell comes back, not with a simple agreement
for division and that you must take a chance on getting sufficient
water to meet your appropriations; he comes back with the appro-
priations being a charge against the stream.

Mr. PoweLL. The only thing is that he says, so to speak, the
appropriation was 400 feet; while the other leaves it general.

ir WicLiam Hearst. He sets out specifically in the treaty the
same method of treating appropriations that 1 understand Mr.
Turner to contend for under tﬁ,\e treaty we are construing; that is,
it is taken in the consideration of the half.

Mr. TiLLey. Yes; but Newell does not provide in this just simply
as King had provided—at least, I woulg suggest not. King had
proposed that each should take care of his own appropriations.

r. PoweLL. He goes further. ‘

Mr. TirLey. I do not think this was a communication from Newell
to King, but I think it was prepared in connection with the final
drafts, and possibly he was not at all attempting to draw anything
to comply with King’s suggestions. ‘ :

Sir WiLriam HEeaARsT. %s there anything on the record to show
that this was communicated to any person on the Canadian side?

Mr. Triiey. I think not. In the last paragraph we find:

In consideration for this equal division Canada will permit the United States teo
send down through the channel of Milk River undiminished in quantity the water
which may have been stored by the United States in its own territory.

And then the concluding paragraph deals with the compensation
to be made by the United States. El‘here again it is not in accord-
ance with anything King suggested, because he did not suggest that
in consideration of equal division the United States would be entitled
to use the canal. ,

That is Mr. Newell’s draft at e 94, and then follows what js
said to be a draft received from M}r) sibbons, and which is duplicated
on pages 96 and 97. '

Sir WirLiam HEARST. Are these two drafts identical ¢

Mr. TueNER. They are identical.

Mr. CLark. This draft on page 94 seems to be an authentic draf
fronrll1 Mr. Gibbons, while the draft on page 96 is not authenticated
at all,

Mr. TiLLeY. Each of these headings is just written on the exhibit,
as I understand it.

Mr. CLARK. On page 94 it is headed, “ Draft received from Mr.
Gibbons with his letter of December 31, 1908.”
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Mr. TrLLey. There is no letter produced, and Mr. MacInnes said
he did not think that Mr. Gibbons did prepare this draft, and we
have had no explanation from Mr. Wyvell as to where he got it.

Mr. TurNER. Do you want to consider it as not in the record ?

Mr. TicLey. No. ‘

Mr. TurnerR. What are you talking about then?

Mr. Tierey. I am answering one of the commissioners, who sug-
%ests there is something shown to be authentic about the document.

propose to argue the case on the record exactly as we have it in
the document produced by you, said to be something, and we are
asking you for a little more proof, but not objecting to its going in.

The only point is that Senator Turner in his argument tried to

ut this in a position that this language must be read against us,
gecause it was Mr. Gibbons’s drafting. To the extent to W%lich that
is material, it breaks down for lack of proof. But here is a document
suggested by some person, and we find a treaty with a clause in it
very much like this; and I want to point out what I think is of the
utmost importance in regard to these two drafts, that is, the addition
of the word Saskatchewan, when ultimately added, did not change
the effect of this first draft, that the first draft meant the same thing,
and it was made clearer in the treaty possibly; but the result is just
the same in regard to rivers and tributaries therein included. May
I read the first paragraph?

It is agreed that for the use of irrigation the St. Mary and Milk Rivers (in the State
of Montana and the Province of Alberta)—

That is the first time we have had any suggestion of the geograph-
ical location of the area through which the river runs as distinct from
& description of a river running from one countlgf to the south or at
the border, or anything of the kind. It is a deliberate change of
language, and according to my submission, in saying that these two
rivers are in the States or in the Provinces, however they may be
described in the territory through which they run, the aim is that
those rivers and their tributaries are to be treated as one stream.

Now, the St. Mary River and the Milk River are, of course, in
Montana and Alberta, and not in Saskatchewan; their tributaries
extend to Saskatchewan. But the expression ‘“the St. Mary and
Milk Rivers (in the State of Montana and the Province of Al%erta)
and their tributaries,” includes all the tributaries of those two rivers,
and the language in parentheses shows that it is to be those two
rivers, not at the boundary line, or not treated merely as boundary
waters, but as rivers running through Montana and as rivers running
through Alberta; that is to say, over the boundary line rather than
at the boundary line in the case of each river; within the territory
rather than at the boundary of the territory of each country.

Just let me deal with that language for a moment. When that
language comes into Article VI, the expression “in the State of
Montana and the Province of Alberta” is transposed to after the
word “tributaries” instead of before it, and then you have ‘“the
St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their tributaries in the State of Montana
and the Province of Alberta.”” That was wrong, because when you
express it that way the tributaries run into t%le Province of Sas-
katchewan. So that a description that was inclusive of all the rivers,
that is to say, rivers throughout their length in the country on each
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side of the boundary, and not rivers on the boundary line—those
rivers described in that way would group up the whole river system
and include tributaries even if they extended into Saskatchewan.

Now, when the description of the geographical area within which
these rivers run that are being grouped up and put into one system is
transposed to after the word “tributaries,” it was left with an inac-
curate description of the whole system, because you had to add one
more Province to the geographical area in order to group up the rivers
with all their tributaries.

That is my submission with regard to that. The meaning is per-
fectly plain. There is no word to be changed either in the first draft
or in the second draft to mean exactly what we say. The St. Mary
River and the Milk River, if you describe the Provinces that they are
in for the purpose of showing that it is the rivers in the Provinces or
in the States; that is, if they were both being described by the same
name in the countries rather than at the boundaries—which they have
been talking about heretofore to a great extent—to make it perfectly
clear that 1t is not at the boundary you say “in the countries that are
on each side of the boundary,”’ those being Montana and Alberta, then
you take all the tributaries of those two and you get those tributaries
right into Saskatchewan and obtain exactly the same river system
by transposing the geographical description to after the word * trib-
utaries;” but if you do you must add one more Province, becauss
the area is not broad enough to take in what was originally described
in the first draft.

Then, just reading on from that, it says:
and the total amount that can be diverted from the two for such purpose is to be dis-
tributed so that each country shall have the right to one-half of the whole, but in the

distribution more may be taken from one stream and less from the other by each coun-
try, so as to afford a more beneficial use to each.

My submission is that, notwithstanding that we have had all this
evidence and three arguments, nothing could be plainer than that
language if rivers—complete rivers from end to end——in Montana and
Alberta were carefully and distinctly described as being the things
that were to afford the water which in bulk was to be divided and
appropriated between the two countries; and that, having given the
rivers from end to end, you say ‘“all their tributaries,” and it is need-
less to go on and say where the tributaries are, because it is anything
that hitches onto those rivers from end to end.

And the very way that it was introduced into this paragraph con-
firms, in my submission, that that is the right view, because there is no
attempt to describe tributaries; there is no effort to say where they
are or what Provinces they are in, or what area they cover, because,
having deseribed the main streams from end to end, you bring in to
them every tributary that joins them at any place.

So that with the original words you have the two rivers in those
countries, getting the idea that they are on both sides of the bound-
ary line, regardless of whether the river is going toward Canada or
away from Canada, because you have the Milk River here running
down out of Canada at the eastern crossing, with the St. Marff
running north and never coming back to the United States at all.
So that regardless of which side of the boundary you are on in re-
spect to the St. Mary River, regardless of which side of the boundary
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you are on in respect to the Milk River, you have those two rivers
there with their whole length in these countries, and you have ex-
pressly and finally shown the concluded opinion not to deal with
anything at a boundary line at all, but to disregard the boundary
~Hne and treat the matter from a broader aspect, working out equal-
ity, so that the entire water from these watersheds shall be awvail-
able for equal distribution between the two countries.

Therefore, it is important, according to my submission, that you
find that at first the location, so to speak, the geographical area that
was affected by the two rivers as main rivers is first described, and
tributaries without any description; and when you for proper draft-
ing or otherwise take a geographical description and put it after
“tributaries,” you have to add on one more Province. hy? Be-
cause your geographical area is wrong unless you extend it to in-
clude tributaries tﬁab were already Erovided for under the original
draft, as they extend up into Saskatchewan, and that Province
must be added in order to get your description correct.

Mr. Powerr. In furtherance of what you are arguing there, this
fact is rather important, in considering that the two expressions
are the same, that the Milk River begins in Montana and ends in
Montana, and there is no tributary to it outside of Montana, Alberta,
and Saskatchewan, so that the two, when you make a mathematical
analysis, are exactly the same.

Mr. TieLey. That is my point.

Mr. PoweLL. Taking your construction.

Mr. TiLLEY. Yes, that is the point I am trying to meke in regard
to that. The main river is just in the two—Alberta and Montana.

Mr. PoweLLr. It never goes out of the two.

Mr. TrLiey: Yes.

Mr. PowerL. And there is no tributary outside of the three sec-
tions.

Mr. Triiey. If you describe the main artery by the two Prov-
inces, and make that geographical area for the main artery and add
all the branches of the main artery without making any geographical
area for those, you give it exactly the same as if you say “the main
artery and the branches” and give the geographical description that
covers the area to which any of those extend. You have exactly
the same thing when you transpose the description of location and
put it after the word ‘tributaries,” provided you add another Prov-
Ince, because the expression “tributaries,” used without any de-
scription as to location, in fact extends not only into the two main

laces—that is, Montana and Alberta-—but also into the additional
rovince of Saskatchewan.

Mr. PowgLi. Of course, subject to all this is the consideration
that has to be given to the judge’s argument that there are two
units—one territory is formed by Montana and the Province of
Alberta and the other is formed by Montana and the Province of
Saskatchewan. '

Mr. Treeey. I would like to say a word or two in regard to that
when I come to Article VI, as we have it at the end. I am devel-
oping this point now only for the purpose of indicating that not only
does the language bear my construction but I produce two docu-
ments that bring the same result; and it has been emphasized against
me that no very great change was intended because it was done by
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telegram. Senator Root put it that there was some mistake about
it. Apparently Mr. Gibbons either did not know much about his
subject—I think he put it that way—or was not accurate in his
expression, being a busy lawyer, and I think he went so far as to
suggest for the consideration of this Coramission that Mr. Gibbons
would undertake to draft an article dealing with a complex subject
such as this without getting any help from people who had been
drafting and studying these expressions.

Mr. TurNER. Secretary Root did not make that statement.

Mr. TiLLeY. No; Senator Turner. I took it down from his address,
that he suggested Mr. Gibbons—I do not know whether it is reported
here or not—did this unaided by people who knew the situation, and
that there was some carelessness.

What I say is this: I emphasize that the language used in this
document must receive the literal interpretation, because I produce
the first draft and the second draft, in which a change is made on a
telegram adding the word Saskatchewan:; and I say that on the
literal interpretation of each they both mean precisely and exactly
the same thing and cover exactly the same streams and group up
and include the same waters for equal division. And I say, instead
of it being open to the argument that this thing is something that is
not carefully considered and carefully drawn, no person made any
mistake, that it was all done with the greatest of care, and that this
document produced as being Chandler Anderson’s original draft, one
might assume that his original draft would be before the final draft
that was accepted, and apparently this that has Mr. Gibbons’s name
at the head of it, but Whlc% Mr. MacInnes has gone as far as to sug-
gest was Mr. Chandler Anderson’s ultimate draft—1I say it is fair to
assume that his original draft was before this other draft, because no
doubt there would be a good deal of drafting.

What is the original draft? Of course, we get no light on this
document except from the treaties. But his original draft is that
each country shall have the exclusive right to one-half of the natural
flow of St. Mary River and the Milk River and their tributaries, the
amount thereof to be determined at the point of storage and diver-
sion and at the boundary.

Now, that is rejected. Undoubtedly, that was the language put
forward in the short time it was in the very eye of the people who were
settling this treaty, and they had it before them, and we find no word
that points in.that direction in the treaty. And when you put side by
side with that a clause pointing distinctly to the boundary line, you
put side by side with that a clause that points to the geographical
area rather than to a line, what must the conclusion be except that
these people who were settling this, if you are to take these documents
as evidence of anything, were attempting to make that distinction
and that change? That it is intentional is apparent from the fact
that it is covered by language in two forms, both meaning the same
thing, and my submission to this Commission is that you could not
have stronger evidence that this was carefully considered and carried
out as the actual intention of the parties. _

(Adjournment from 6 p. m. until 7.30 p. m.)



170 ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS.

NIGHT SESSION.

Mr. TiLLey. Before the adjournment I referred to the documents
headed “Mr. Gibbons’s draft’’ and ‘“Mr. Anderson’s draft.”’ There
only remains to say a word about the telegram from Mr. Gibbons to
Mr. Anderson at page 97. If one reads the telegram one is impressed
with the fact that all these changes proposed are changes more or
less of a verbal character, merely for the purpose of expressing the
intention of the parties more clearly or in more appropriate language,
and that supports the view that I have suggested, that the addition
of the words “and Saskatchewan’ was made for the purpose of
enlarging the area which included within it the rivers and tributaries,
because the tributaries were in the new draft deseribed as being
within the area. That, however, does not make an end of the matter,
because it is clear from Mr. Anderson’s telegram to Mr. Gibbons at
page 98, sent on January 9, 1909, that having got these telegrams
with suggested changes he went to Washington, as he says: *‘Going
to Washington Sunday morning to confer on all amendments.” So
that everything was carefully considered at that time and the amend-
ments were agreed to, including the addition of the words ‘“and
Saskatchewan.”’

That being the way in which the article was brought into existence
may I just say a word or two with respect to the article, having
regard to one or other provisions of the treaty itself? Mr. Bien,in
the memorandum which he desires to file, discusses the terms of the
treaty itself, and, so far as Mr. MacInnes and I are concerned, there
is no need of any further reply than such comment as I make in
regard to the treaty now. Mr. Maclnnes says that he does not
desire to add anything to what he has already stated.

First, in the preliminary article you have the description of bound-
ary waters there defined as:

The waters from main shore to main shore of the lakes and rivers and connecting

waterways, or the portions thercof, along which the international boundary between-
the United States and the Dominion of Canada passes—

and those include:

all bays, arms, and inlets thereof, but not including tributary waters which in the
natural channels would flow into such lakes, rivers, and waterways—

and then these words:

or waters flowing from such lakes, rivers, and waterways, or the waters of rivers flow-
ing across the boundary.

So in the very treaty itself we have the expression which I have
referred to as being in the preliminary correspondence and negotia-~
tions, so far as they are reflected in the documents, we have ‘“‘rivers
flowing across the boundary.” We have the express language of
the treaty, from the very preliminary articles to the end of the
treaty, and if they are to come within that category in order to be
within the treaty, we would expect to find them described by that
short expression, ‘rivers flowing across the boundary.” So when
you come to an article in the treaty like Article VI, that describes
waters In some other way, you must at once say, ‘“these can not
be waters that cross the boundary, because they are not described
in the very language that the preliminary article says shall be used
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to describe certain waters; and that is shown further by Article II,
which reads:

Each of the high contracting parties reserves to itself or to the several State govern-
ments on the one side and the Dominion or provincial governments on the other, as
the case may be, subject to any treaty provisions now existing with respect thereto,
the exclusive jurisdiction and control over the use and diversion, whether temporary
or permancnt, of all waters on its own side of the line which in the natural channels
would flow across the boundary—

So that again you have the same expression, “rivers or streams that
flow across the boundary,” used whenever the streams being referred
to or described are streams that come within this treaty if they
flow across, and they do not come within the treaty if they do not
flow across.

Therefore, I repeat that even if it should be limited to streams
flowing across the boundary, if that is to be one of the features that
brings them within Article VI, we would have the rivers described
in that way and not in some different way than has already been
used both in the preliminary article and in Article II.

Then Article V? must be approached from the standpoint that the
waters being dealt with are not waters that are boundary waters,
because they are not described as boundary waters, nor are they
waters that flow across the boundary; that is not their feature.
Then what is it? As I said before, it is waters within a geographical
area, it is waters within the country of each, instead of waters merely
at the point of the boundary line. And the language, as I say, 1s
appropriate for that, and it 1s not appropriate for any other thing.

or instance, Senator Walsh suggested: Leave out the words mn
ggrentheses, and you have just what Canada is contending for.
ell, perhaps the commissioners will be good enough just to look
at the article, leaving out those words, and see just what questions
might arise. It would read then:

The high contracting parties agree that the St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their
tributaries are to be treated as one stream for the purposes of irrigation and power,
and the waters thereof shall be apportioned equally between the two countries.

At once the question would be raised: Where are they to be
treated as one stream? And as the treaty was a treaty regarding
boundary waters, and so on, it would be suggested that they are
to be treated as one stream at the boundary; that would be a possible
argument and the expression ‘‘and the waters thereof” where? It
might be argued at the boundary. The words that are in the
parentheses are, one might almost say, necessary for the purpose of
excluding any possible argument that this is a case of dealing with
waters at the boundary, because it says:

The St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their tributaries (in the State of Montana and the
Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan) are to be treated (in the State of Montana
and the Provinces of Alberta and Saskatchewan) as one stream for the purposes of
irrigation and power, and the waters thereof (in the State of Montana and the Provinces
of Alberta and Saskatchewan).

_ Reading it that way, then, you have it clearly shown that no ques-
tion can be raised as to where these waters are. There the streams
are to be taken as one, they are to be taken as one throughout the
Provinces and the State, and the waters thereof in the Provinces
and the State are all to be treated as the waters of one stream.
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It has been suggested that a more appropriate expression for the
United States contention would be to substitute the word “or” for
the word “and” between Alberta and Saskatchewan. I think it
was argued by Senator Walsh that that would be appropriate, then,
to describe a stream in the State of Montana and the Province of
Alberta, or you would have to assume that there was an ellipsis
there, to be supplied by the words “in the State of Montana and the
Province of SasEatchewan 7+ and it was said that it must be a river
at one and the same time in each of these Provinces, taking Province
and State as being correlative terms. In no place has there been
any suggestion of a river at one and the same time in both countries;
that has not been the language used. They had described those
rivers as streams that crossed the boundary, streams that rise in
one country and run into the other; but no person has heard before,
until we get this verbal construction by the United States of this
clause, of streams that are at one and the same time in two places;
and when you think it over it is a very unappropriate expression.
No river is at one and the same time in two places, the waters of no
river are at one and the same time in two places, and to say that a
river is to be at one and the same time in two countries merely
because you have the word “and” coupling the two named places,
is rather a stretch of the imagination. One can hardly assume that
any person intended that to e the construction, particularly, as I
say, the rivers have never been described in that way before.

But supposing the United States had that change made, with the
“or” for “and” and the ellipsis supplied by adding ““the State of
Montana” again before the word ““Saskatchewan” what would you
have? You would have all these tributaries of these rivers in Mon-
tana before either river crosses the boundary eliminated from Article
VI, and that is important because wherever the preceding documents
have referred to a river crossing the boundary they have always
used either the expression “river and its tributaries’ or some expres-
sion such as ‘‘the natural flow of the river across the boundary,”
defining “natural flow” to be the flow that would go across the
boundary in a state of nature, if there had been no diversion of the
river or any of its branches. :

That appears in Senator Root’s draft treaty. It is shown there
that the United States regarded these tributaries in Montana before
either river crossed the boundary, being tributaries of such size
and importance that they should be brought within the treaty by
express language. That 1s shown at page 66. If you look at part
(@) at the top of that page you will find the following:

(a) All water of the St. Mary River and its tributaries diverted in the United
States for use in its territory.

So that before the St. Mary River reaches the boundary going
north through Canada it has tributaries that in the Root draft treaty
were of sufficient importance to be incorporated by express language
along with the river itself as one of the places from which the Lgnited
States could take its priority of waters. ’

Likewise the Milk Eiver:

. All water of Milk River and its tributaries diverted in the United States for use in
its territory above the crossing of such streamsinto Canada.
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So the expression ‘“above the crossing” means above following
the stream in the United States. Therefore, you have there these
two rivers and their tributaries referred to expressly in the Root
draft, and yet if we had the language of that clause, which is sup-

Eosed to be a clause of limitation, worded as has been suggested

the United States counsel, we would have a clause that would
eliminate by express language the very tributaries that were being
expressly referred to in the Root draft treaty.

Similarly, the Milk River in Alberta has branches on the map, filed
here as Exhibit A, that are entirely in Alberta. Those surely are
brought within the treaty. The Milk River has branches on the
south side that extend out into Montana, but on the north side it has
branches in Alberta only, so that there you have tributaries of such
importance that, if you change the language in the way you say you
must change it in order to work out the real intention of the negotia-~
tors of this treaty, you must make a change in the language that
actually excludes rivers that certainly the negotiators, if we are to
pay any attention at all to what they were doing before the treaty
was signed, had intended to bring into the treaty., They either
brought them in by referring to the streams that crossed the boundary
with the waters they would carry in a state of nature if there had
been no diversion, or in some other appropriate language these rivers
were included as the rivers that crossed the boundary. Here the
Commission is clearly asked to alter the literal interpretation of the
treaty so as to actually exclude tributaries that plainly were in the
contemplation of the parties that were instrumental in suggesting
the draft, because no doubt the experts of the United States were
behind the Root draft, in which the tributaries were expressly
included. .

I think I have nothing further to say with regard to that phase
of the question, but I would like to say a word or two with regard
to the clause relating to prior appropriations. It is to be said in a
word, but the argument advanced by Senator Turner indicates the
importance of ascertaining just what is intended by that clause and
seeing that it is properly applied, because Senator Turner has said
that on the St. Mary River we are entitled to an apgropriation of
three-quarters of 500 second-feet, which would be 375 feet, and that
the United States on that river is entitled to 125 second-feet, being
the balance of the 500, and an additional 250 second-feet, making 375
feet; in other words, giving to the United States a second priorit
following ours of an equal amount. That is what he puts forward,
as I understand it, as working out equality, and he says that ‘“the
governing principle of the clause is equalitlylr, and therefore the
appropriation is to be treated as part of your share of the water, and
when you have got your appropriation the way to make us equal
with you is to give us an appropriation of the same amount.”

That way of looking at it, and that way of dealing with it, was
expressed in some of tlgw former documents, only to be rejected here.
What we have here in the case of each of us is a prior appropriation.
My learned friend can describe it as being something in the nature
of a prior right, but it is intended to be a prior appropriation in the
sense in which that expression is used, and it is an aipropriation to
the country for the benefit of its inhabitants to take care of the
claims of the settlers along the rivers,
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Now, then, that prior appropriation may be looked at in one of
two ways—either that it is a prior appropriation and the waters that
are to be equal are those that remain, or, by the express terms of the
treaty, each of us is given a prior appropriation which is taken to be
and 1s to be equality between us with regard to the appropriation,

But on the St. Mary River, for instance, if that is the only river
to be considered, if the clause read as to the St. Mary River, “that
the waters are to be divided equally between the \two countries, and
in making the division Canada shall be entitled to a priority of 500
second-feet,” the whole priority would be wiped out unless the
priority was treated, so to speak, as a first charge or a first lien, and
the equal division came after that; and my submission is—and it is
an imﬁortant matter to the company I represent—that you elimi-
nate the idea entirely of prior appropriation if, the moment you had
given the prior appropriation, you give to one of the countries some-
thing that can be regarded as intended to equal the appropriation
that has already been conceded. It must not be a thing of that
character, it must be an appropriation in the strict sense, and it is
onéy the surpius waters that are capable of being divided.

o you can put it in one of two ways: Prior appropriation comes
first, and the surplus waters are the waters to be divided; or you can
put it that there is to be an arbitrary setting of one appropriation
against the other, which is to be taken as equality to that extent.

There is only one other feature that I desire to refer to, and that is
the treaty, and my submission brings out in the plainest possible
way just what should be done in the circumstances that existed in
order to work out fair play, equity, and decency between these two
nations, so that each, having regard to its requirements, would get
treatment that would be equivalent to the treatment that the other
country got.

It must be remembered, Mr. Chairman, that the plan of making
the rivers of these two separate watersheds—I suppose all water-
sheds must be separate—but these two watersheds with the height
of land between them of such a character made it difficult to bring
the water of one to the other; the plan was only made possible by
the arrangement that was made, with the consent of Canada, that
the headwaters of the St. Mary River should be taken across, partly
by an artificial and partly by a natural channel, a portion of the
canal being in the United States, the main part of it being in Canada.

Without that consent on Canada’s part, this idea of bringing the
waters together and marshaling them was impossible, and that was
the thing of prior importance to the United States, that is the thing
they were after. So that we find Canada consenting to an arrange-
ment whereby all shall be brought in and treated as one group of
waters, and a connecting canal made that worked out the arrange-
ment, so that it is possible, with her consent, in her territory, being
the thing that the United States wanted, to bring that arrangement
about. And my submission is that at once you have got a C{proposi-
tion that would appeal to any person not as a thing absurd, in the
language of Senator Turner, but as a thing that is in entire harmony
with the treaty, which purported to be a treaty dealing equitably
‘and fairly between the two countries.

That treaty was drawn and brought into existance in 1909, some
three years after the decision of the Supreme Court of the United
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States in the Kansas and Colorado case. That is to be found in 1906
Supreme Court Reports, volume 206. There the question came
before the Supreme Court of the United States as a question to be
decided not on any strict rules of law but, as I would put it, accord-
irig to equity and good conscience; and the question was whether
the upper State was entitled to take away the waters of the Arkansas
River, so as to deprive Kansas of the water that would flow in the
natural course down this stream, raising the question of riparian
rights, as to whether each State was entitled, as an owner would be,
to the natural flow of the stream, making such use of it as was proper
having regard to the rights of people below.

The Supreme Court reached the conclusion that Colorado had
taken from the river waters that appreciably affected its flow. The
lack of water in the State of Kansas was attributed during the trial
and in the argument to various causes. It was suggested that there
was some subterranean river running away from the surface river,
and carrying away waters in that way, and that really it was not
Colorado that was causing this loss of water. It was also suggested
that the river was in reality a river that had its source in Colorado
and then another source, so to speak, in Kansas, and that it should
be treated as such.

All that was rejected and the Supreme Court reached the con-
clusion that the river was appreciably affected in its flow, and had
the case been one that depended on the common law of England, it
was a case in which between individuals there certainly would have
been a restraining order; but having regard to the fact that it had
to be approached from the standpoint 1 have indicated, they went
into every feature of the situation to ascertain whether there should
be a prohibition against the diversion of waters, or whether there
should not, and they considered the need of the State of Colorado,
the use the water was made of there, the benefit it was, to some
extent suggesting the benefit that is reflected from one State to the
other if there is progress and business industry in a particular State—
they considered, as I state, every feature from the standpoint of
Colorado, and came to the conclusion that the waters were being put
to their beneficial use and were building up substantial trade and
industry there.

Then, on the other hand, they considered the standpoint of Kansas
just in the same way. I can find nothing in this case which indicates
that they had brought before them the question of the amount of
waters afforded by other streams in Kansas, but if that question had
been one that had been raised as against Kansas in this sense—that
here while you are conducting the flow of this river through your
State you are letting your own waters go to waste or you are not
making the most beneficial use you can of them, so you are not
getting that hum of industry which you could if you made proper
use of them. All these things would have been considered.

Now, what do we do here? I venture to say that the negotiators
of this treaty had in mind just the same situation as between Canada
and the United States. Here the United States had away down in
the valley of the Milk River an area of land—it is immaterial to
consider whether it is possible in the future by new methods or by
less expensive procedure or saving in water to determine whether
they can irrigate a great many more acres, but at any rate at that
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time the prime thing in the minds of the Americans was to have
water to irrigate a tract of some 200,000 acres of land, and more if
they could get it, of course. On the other hand, Canada had 750,000
acres of land situated in a desirable way for the purpose of irrigation
and needing the water, and it had a right to use the water practically
where those lands were situated, the St. Mary River rising in the
United States being unable by any economic method to be tapped
by the United States and carried over to its arid lands, but situated
apdd running so that it was in perfect form for use on the Canadian
stde.

What did they do? They said: “Here, in this treaty we have
dealt with boundary waters, we have fixed those up here; we have
dealt with waters that cross the boundaries; they are fixed up.
Now, here is another situation that must be dealt with, because 1n
this we are not dealing merely with boundary waters, but we have a
situation that has been present to the minds of people who have
been anxious to settle it for some time, and that requires treatment
on some basis that works out beneficial results for both countries.
You have your arid lands; we have ours. We have a stream flowing
north through ourlands, and we have a stream that you are depending
on, also flowing through Canada. What shall we do? Why, let us
disregard that boundary line as to the amounts of these waters that
are available; let us use all these waters. How? Equally between
us. The only curtailment on that being that certain amounts shall
be appropriated on one river in one country, and a certain equal
amount on another river in the other country, to satisfy claims of
persons who have liens or charters, so to speak, on that water;
ether than that, let us treat all those waters that we both have
available in this whole area as though they were one water system,
and let us have an equal apportionment.”’

Mr. Chairman, my submission is that that is what the treaty
calls for.

Mr. CLARK. Just as a matter of personal curiosity, there is about
500,000 acres of your land there ?

Mr. TiLeY. 700,000.

Mr. CLark. How much of that land at the present time has been
put under water?

Mr. Trerey. 1 do not know.

Mr. DrakE. 82,000 acres last year.

Mr. TicLey. The trouble is that this scheme from the beginning
has been more or less held up.

Mr. CLark. I understand that.

Mr. TrLLey. It is a pressing question with us. It has been held
back, which is a serious matter; and the threat that we may not get
the water contemplated when the treaty was made is a much more
serious matter.

Mr. Crark: I understand that.

MER. BIEN’S MEMORANDUM.

Mr. MacIlxnes. Mr. Chairman, if you would allow me for one
moment? You will remember Mr, Egleston asked permission to put
in a written brief or memorandum on behalf, I understand, of the
United States Reclamation Service. He has handed me a copy of it.
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Most of it is argument based on certain articles of the treaty, which'
I think have been sufficiently dealt with by the arguments already
presented to the commission. On two of the ({mges, however—
the pages are not numbered—on pages 6, 7, and 8 there are cer-
tain statements of fact which I have had checked by.the Canadian
engineers, and they inform me that they are not correct and are not
in accordance with the record. My learned friend, Mr. Egleston,
has, therefore, altered one of these paragraphs so as to read ‘““if the
facts are so-and-so.”

I would, however, suggest that it would leave the record in a ver
unsatisfactory position to have a hypothetical statement made wit.
regard to the facts, when already there is a record which could be
verified if my learned friend had some argument to base upon the
facts. I would therefore ask that before this memorandum is put
in, so far as any facts are concerned, that he should have them checked
with the record and some reference given, as counsel would do if he
were present, to support any such contention which is one of fact,
not of law.

Mr. EcLEstoNn. If your honors please, it seems to me that the
memorandum might go in now, with the objection of counsel for
Canada, as stated; that is, that the objectionable part might go in
for what it is worth, or be stricken out altogether ifp the Commission
agrees with Col. MacInnes. .

Mr. Magrata. What is the pleasure of the Commission ¢

Mr. EqLEsTOoN. In the absence of Mr. Bien’s authority to change
his memorandum, I hesitate to make a change by striking out some
maﬁters which might be material to some other matters; but I made
a change—— '

Mr. Turner. May it please the Commission, I never heard of a
memorandum being refused in argument because the other side say
some facts are not stated correctly; that is for the tribunal to deter-
mine. Mr. Bien has appeared here before, and this is his memoran-
dum, and under the very liberal rule that the Commission has in-
dulged all of us in by receiving anything anyone wanted to put in,
I think this memorandum ought to be received, even although my
friend, Mr. MacInnes, does question some of the facts.

Sir WirLiam HearsT. 1 would silfrgest that we might receive the
argument as presented and that Mr. Maclnnes might file a short
memorandum challenging the accuracy of the statement of facts,

Mr. MacINNES. As to that, Sir William, the statement is put there
as being a statement of certain facts, without any reference what-
ever to the record in support of it, which, as you know, is the usual
way, either in oral or written argument.

Mr. PoweLL. How many paragraphs does that apply to?

Mr. EcLEsTON. It applies roughly to two pages.

Mr. Powrrr. How would it do to put a postscript to that memo-
randum to this effect: The facts in the last two pages are not ad-
mitted by counsel for Canada?

Mr. EaLesToN. Thatis already stated inCol. MacInnes’s objection..

Mr. MacraTa. Will not the discussion that has just taken place
be sufficient for your purposes ?

Mr. MacInnes. Yes. I.find in this memorandum not only cer-
tain arguments but certain alleged facts, which are not supported

57208-—21——12



178 ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS.

by the records. In consenting in any way to the admission of this
on the records, I wish to call particular attention to the contention
of the Canadian side, that the record does not justify the statement
so far as these facts are concerned.

Then another point that I might mention; it is a matter dealing
with the record. It may be remembered that at St. Paul and at
Detroit there was some reference to the question whether any of
these tributaries were in Montana, and in Alberta or Saskatchewan.
I think the matter first arose from some question put to the United
States counsel by Mr. Justice Migneauly. The matter is again
referred to by Senator Walsh and, I think, somewhere by myself.
I understand from the maps and from the records that seems to have
been an incorrect assumption on the part of everybody concerned
that there are two tributaries of the Milk River which are in Alberta,
and in Saskatchewan, and in Montana. I do not think it makes the
slightest difference to the argument, either on one side or the other,
but I just wish to call attention to it.

Sir WirLiam HEarsT. Senator Walsh made that statement in his
argument the day before yesterday.

r. MacInnes. That is my recollection.
The following is the memorandum referred to by Mr. Egleston:

BRIEF BY MR. MORRIS BIEN ON THE DEFINITION OF BOUND-
ARY WATERS IN THE TREATY BETWEEN THE UNITED
STATES AND GREAT BRITAIN, DATED JANUARY 11, 1909,

‘The contention of the United States is that the treaty confers upon
the International Joint Commission jurisdiction of waters which if
not interfered with would cross the boundary between the United
States and Canada, and to no other waters.

Article VI of the treaty refers specifically to St. Mary and Milk
Rivers and their tributaries, and this article is the pl_'lnclgal one
affecting the interests of the United States Reclamation Service,
but no document such as this treaty can be properly construed by
considering only one article. This is particularly true in the present
case because the treaty as a preliminary in its earlier articles lays
down certain general principles which must necessarily govern the
interpretation of the entire treaty. : '

The preamble of the treaty is as follows:

The United States of America and His Majesty the King of the United Kingdom
of Great Britain and Ireland and of the British Dominions beyond the Seas, Emperor
of India, being equally desirous to prevent disputes regarding the use of boundary
waters and to settle all questions which are now pending between the United States
and the Dominion of Canada involving the rights, obligations, or interests of either
in relation to the other or to the inhabitants of the other, along their common frontier,
and to make provision for the adjustment and settlement of all such questions as
may hereafter arise have resolved to conclude a treaty in furtherance of these ends.

Thus the object of the treaty is definitely stated as the desire of
both Governments “ to prevent disputes regarding the use of boundary
waters’’ and to settle all questions now pending or hereafter to arise
involving rights, obligations, and interests along their common
frontier.

The preliminary article of the treaty states:

For the purposes of this treaty boundary waters are defined as the waters from main
ghore to main shore of the lakes and rivers and connecting waterways, or the portions
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thereof, along which the international boundary between the United States and
the Dominion of Canada passes, including all bays, arms, and inlets thereof, but
not including tributary waters, which in their natural channels would flow into such
lakes, rivers, and waterways, or waters flowing from such lakes, rivers, and water-

~ways, or the waters of rivers flowing across the boundary.

This article defines boundary waters, which are the subject of the -
treaty, in substantially the following terms: The waters of lakes and
rivers along which the international boundary passes but not includ-
ing tributary waters which in their natural channels would flow into
such water courses or the waters of rivers flowing across the boundary.

Article II provides that each party reserves to itself or to the
several State governments on the one side and the Dominion or

rovincial governments on the other * * * ‘“the exclusive
jurisdiction and control over the use and diversion, whether temporar;
or permanent, of all waters on its own side of the line which in their
naturalﬂchannels would flow across the boundary or into boundary
waters.

Article VI deals directly with the St. Mary and Milk Rivers andtheir
tributaries and in some respects is inconsistent with the definitions
of boundary waters as stated in the preliminary article because that
article excepts waters flowing across the boundary while the rivers
to be considered under Article VI do in fact cross the boundary.

On the other hand, the fundamental purpose of the treaty stated
in the preamble that the two Governments desire to prevent dis-
putes regarding the use of boundary waters conclusively points to
the fact that St. Mary and Milk Rivers and their tributaries to be
considered under Article VI are boundary waters.

Article I1 contains similar inconsistencies in re%ard to Article VI,
namely, in reserving to the State and }irovincia governments the
exclusive jurisdiction and control over all waters on their own side
of the line which'in their natural channels would flow across the
boundary or into boundary waters, because there are certain tribu-
taries of Milk River which cross the boundary from Canada into the
United States and certain tributaries in Montana, such as Swift Cur-
rent Creek, which flows into St. Mary River, which crosses the
boundary. Manifestly both of these classes of tributaries are within
the purview of Article V1. :

It thus appears that while the purpose of the treaty is to prevent
disputes regarding the use of boundary waters and to settle questions
along the common frontier, the definition of boundary waters in the
preliminary article and the reservations regarding them in Article IT
are to a certain extent inconsistent wiﬁlv the evident intent of
Article VI.

On the other hand, it is also clear that these inconsistencies can not
be regarded as changing the fundamental purpose of the treaty
which is to prevent disputes regarding the use of boundary waters
and to settle questions along the common frontier.

Following the established rules of interpretation, it is evident,
therefore, that Article VI must be construed as relating only to
boundary waters, and that the definitions in the preliminary article
and the reservations in Article II must be modified so far as necessary
to relieve the treaty of inconsistencies in the several parts under
consideration.
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In other words, Article VI must be construed as relating to
- boundary waters considered in the light of the special conditions
arising under Article VI, but in no event would there be authority
to construe Article VI as referring to other than boundary waters,
. or to such waters as bear a direct relation to the boundary.

This is admittedly true in the case of the main stream of St.
Mary and Milk Rivers and also of tributaries of St. Mary and Milk
Rivers where the waters which theﬁ contribute to those rivers
become boundary waters but could not be true of any waters tributary
to the main streams which do not cross the boundary or which are
in no way related to the waters which cross the boundary.

Therefore, it can not be properly contended that boundary waters
can include those which rise in the State of Montana or those which
rise in the Dominion of Canada, or its Provinees, and which do not
flow into the main rivers at such places that their waters actually
‘cross the boundary, because they have no connection with the
boundary or with waters crossing the boundary. Such waters can
not by the broadest interpretation be included in the definition of
boundary waters in the treaty, and there is no warrant for modifying
this- definition except so far as necessarily arises from the specific
language of Article VI. :

It is believed that these inconsistencies exist because Article VI
was inserted after the draft of the other articles had been agreed upon.

For fear of misunderstanding, attention is called to. Artiele VIII
which contains a reference to a requirement for equal division which
may be suspended in certain cases. This provision evidently refers
enly to Articles 3 and 4.of the treaty because these articles are
expressly named in the beginning of Article VIII and moreover the
conditions regarding the equal division in Article VI are fully set
forth in that article and would be interfered with in vital features,
if there could be such a suspension of the equal division or other
modifications as contemplated in Article ‘(}III. In fact, other
provisions of Article VIIT show clearly that it was not intended to
apply to Article VI, because the former article contains provisions
in regard to the decisions of the commission, whereas Article X,
which is not confined in its terms to any particular article and is
manifestly intended to be general in application, also contains
provisions on this subject. ‘

That Article VI should be confined to waters which would cross
the boundary is further shown by one of its essential provisions,
namely, that which protects prior appropriations of 500 cubic feet
per second of the waters of Milk River and of St. Mary River.

The prior appropriations along Milk River and its tributaries at
the time of the conclusion of the treaty, except a few small appro-
priations aggregating Il)erb&bly less than 50 cubic feet per second
were all in use above where Dodson Dam was afterwards constructed
by the United States.

" 'If the main tributaries of Milk River in Montana which do not
cross the boundary, referred to as the southern tributaries, enter the
river below Dodson Dam, and if the waters of these tributaries are
to be counted as part of the water supply to be allotted to the United
States under this article, it might frequently happen that the water
equal to 500 second-feet would be in Milk River below Dodson Dam
on account of water flowing from the southern tributaries, and that
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only a small part of such amount would be available for the canals
which were entitled to this prior appropriation. In such case, the
object of the article would be defeated, because under an inter-
pretation which includes the southern tributaries, Canada could take

all the waters of Mitk River at the boundary which would otherwise
pass to the inlets of those canals and be available to satisfy their
prior rights and would leave no water for their prior rights, which
the treaty definitely recognized up to 500 second-feet as the legal
right of those canals, thus depriving them wholly of their legal
water sufpply.

It is of course recognized that the waters of the southern tributaries
below Dodson Dam are so located that it weuld be out of the question
as a business ({)roposition to make them available for the lands which
were irrigated under these prior appropriations, because they are
very much lower in altitude than the lands to be irrigated, namely,
about 130 feet at the mouth of Peoples Creek and about 280 feet
at the mouth of Beaver Creek.

Article VI intended to preserve rights which existed and to
make available for the lands which had %een previously irrigated and
which depended upon these prior rights whatever waters there may
be in the stream up to the amount of such prior appropriation,
subject to the one-fourth deduction specified in the article. It must
be remembered that these prior appropriators in Milk River Valley
have no relation to the United States Government, as they con-
structed, operated, and maintained their canals by private funds
lon%( prior to the time when the United States Government under-
took such irrigation enterprises. Therefore, the treaty must be con-
strued in such a manner as to protect these prior appropriators and to
secure for their lands whatever water may be flowing in Milk River
at their headworks subject to the specific limitations of Article VI.
Stated briefly, the waters which enter Milk River below the head-
works of the old private canals can not be used to satisfy their prior
appropriations and nearly all the waters of the southern tributaries
enter the river below their headworks.

In the laws of the United States regarding the International Joint
Commission the treaty is described as the treaty between the United
States and Great Britain concerning boundary waters between the
United States and Canada. '

In the legislation of the Dominion of Canada establishing the Inter-
national Joint Commission (ch. 28, 1-2 George V) assented to
M:}ly 19, 1911, the treaty is similarly described.

he third section of that act provides for enforcing the rules laid
down by the treaty in regard to interference with waters in Canada
to the injury of the rights in the United States. This section defines
the waters affected in the following manner:

Waters in Canada which in their natural channels would flow across the boundary
between Canada and the United States or into boundary waters (as defined in the
said treaty).

This shows clearly the view of the Parliament of the Dominion
regarding the boundary waters affected by the treaty, as being
those along the boundary or those which in their natural channels
would flow across the boundary.
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SUMMARY.

It thus appears that the contention of the United States that the
waters to be considered by the International Joint Commission are
those in streams or bodies of water that lie along the boundary or

—._._the waters which in their_natural channels would flow across the

boundary is sustained by the three branches of this discussion:

(@) The definition of boundary waters in the preamble and the
preliminary article as necessarily modified by reason of the terms of
Article VI.

(b) The provisions of Article VI regarding prior appropriated waters
which can not be supplied from any tributaries of &ilk River which
do not cross the houndary.

(¢)- The contemporaneous interpretation of the term boundary
waters by the legislation of the Parliament of Canada.

ARGUMENT IN REPLY BY MR. TURNER, COUNSEL FOR THE
UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT.

Mr. Tur~Ner. Mr. Chairman, this is the third argument of this
matter before the Commission, and I venture to express the hope that
the Commission will be able to take it up at an early date and dispose
of it, because of the importance to both sections of the international
boundary of having their rights under this treaty determined, so
that the enterprises there may not be longer held up.

I also venture to express the hope that in the determination of the
questions which are presented here, the members of the Commission
will be able to disassociate from the consideration of the questions
any feeling of national bias. This is really the first attempt, so far
as I know, in the history of nations, in which two nations have es-
tablished a tribunal, composed. equally of their own nationals, for
the purpose of determining questions between them, and it would be
unfortunate if the Commission were to be divided on questions like
this or any other questions involving interests of the two countries
on national lines. So far as I am concerned, I would like the Amer-
ican commissioners, if they believe the contention of the United
States not to be well founded, to join in a decision to that effect,
and from what I know of the character of the gentlemen on the com-
mission representing the Dominion of Canada, I have every confi-
dence that they in turn, in considering the matter, will be able to
disassociate themselves from any feeling of national bias.

I read the arguments of Col. MacInnes at St. Paul and at Detroit
with a great deal of admiration, and I conceived that he was not
only a Ver{ able man but a very ingenious and resourceful man, and
he certainly proved that in his argument here to-day. To para-
ﬁhrase the language of Col. Roosevelt, I felt that his spear had no

rother; but after hearing my friend Tilley, I think he is a pretty
good second to Col. MacInnes. Both of them made very strong and
masterful arguments, and I have no doubt that they have pressed
them in the sincere belief that they are valid arguments, and that
they ought to be conclusive of the questions in this case. Yet I feel
that there are very great infirmities in those arguments, and when
call attention to them—and [ can only do so in a very few words
because my time is limited—1 feel that this tribunal will at once’
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recognize those infirmities and decide this case upon the solid founda-
tion Fresented in the arguments of the United States.

Col. MacInnes first called attention to the fact that in my argu-
ment I had not noticed that provision in Article VI which provides
that the two rivers shall be treated as one river. I did not notice
that because I did not feel that it threw any light at all upon the true
construction of the treaty. .

The expression, of course, is metaphorical. The rivers are to be
considered as one river for the purposes of division just as if the
waters of the two rivers could be turned into one channel. That
is all that it means. 1t°does not carry any implication that these
waters are to be considered from the standpoint of the watersheds
or systems of the two rivers; it is merely an expression used, and a
very apé)ropriate expression indeed, to show that the waters were
intended to be thrown into hodgepodge and to be divided equally
between the two countries except as to the special priorities given
to the two countries during the irrigation season.

It is as if the arbitrators had been dealing with only one river; the
same question as to tributaries which were appurtenant to that river
within the meaning of this treaty would rise just as if no expression
had been used about considering the two rivers as one river. I am
utterly unable to appreciate anything in the idea advanced, that there
is any meaning to Ee given to the fact that these two rivers are to be
treated as one river in fixing what particular tributaries they intended
should be included among the trill))utaries to be divided.

Col. MacInnes also said that I had not noticed in my argument
the question of beneficial use. I failed to note that because I could
not see that it had any application to the questions we were arguing
here. There is only one place in Article VI where beneficial use is
mentioned, and that is in this connection:
but in making such equal apportionment more than half may be taken from one river
and less than half from the other by either country so as to afford a more beneficial
use to each.

If there is to be daily, or weekly, or monthly division or appor-
tionment, it is provided for in the last clause of the article:

The measurement and apportionment of the water to be used by each country shall
from time to time be made jointly by the properly constituted reclamation officers
of the United States and the properly constituted irrigation officers of His Majesty
under the direction of the International Joint Commission.

If at any time the reclamation officers see that a beneficial use can
be made of the waters in one country without detriment to the other
country, they may then apportion for the time being a larger part
of the waters to that particular country. It does not mean that we
are going to take into consideration the question of the ultimate
needs of the two countries for irrigation, it does not mean that we
are to look at the amount of irrigable lands on either side of these
rivers, and base our judgment as to the construction of this treaty
upon that fact. It is merely providing for a contingency which the
treaty makers saw might arise, namely, when there might for the
tirne being be a sufficiency of water on the one side, so that it did
not need its full quota of water, which would permit a larger quantity
to be allotted by these measuring officers to the other Siie. That 1s
the only connection in which the words ““beneficial use’” are applied



184 ST. MARY AND MILK RIVERS,

in this treaty. I am therefore utterly unable to see why I should
have made any exposition of that expression in my argument con-
cerning the construction of this treaty. :

Mr. PoweLL. That is, the expression ‘ beneficial use’’ is equivalent
to the best advantage ! ] 7

Mr. TurNER. Yes; to apportion from time to time to the best ad-
vantage, as it may be more beneficially used in one country than in
the other, leaving, of course, the inequality to be made up later by
a larger apportionment to the other country when it can de done
without detriment to any particular interest.

I}dr.dPOWELL. It might apply the water to power wheels as well as
to land ?

Mr. TurNER. Yes, sir, it might.

Now, it is undoubtedly true that the use of the Milk River for the
conduct of the stored waters of the St. Mary River to the lower Milk
River Valley is of considerable value to the United States; but it is
not to the detriment of Canada when you consider the fact that the
channel of that river is there all the time and that it is empty most
of the time; so it is not a very great concession on the part of Canada
that the United States shall be permitted to use the channel for the
conveyance of stored waters. From Mr. Root’s first proposal you
will see that in return for the comity which the United States was
indulging Canada in in agreeing to a division of these common waters,
Cana(%a was asked to permit the passage of the stored waters down
the Milk River channel to the lower Milk River Valley. While
‘Canada dilated in a number of its memoranda on the great value of
that concession to the United States, it was never denied to the
United States, and it was a concession made to the United States
out of comity by Canada—just as the concession that these common
waters which the United States might have absorbed if she had been
tegardless of the duties of comity to a neighboring country, might
be divided, was a return by the United States for that concession.
It is a fact that these waters had no international status, and that
the country in which they rise and flow, so far as international law
is concerned, might monopolize their entire use. The other country
would have a right to complain, as a matter of comity, but would
have no right to complain that any prineiple of international law was
being violated to its detriment. Therefore, it was a matter of comity
on both sides—comity on the part of the United States in agreeing
to a division of the waters, comity on the part of Canada in agreeing
that this gash in the earth—which she could not close up if she
wanted to—be used for the transmission of these waters to the lower
Milk River Valley.

And so far from that imposing any great obligation upon the
Dominion of Canada, I think that the banks and channels would be
preserved in a better condition by a stream flowing down there con-
stantly than to permit them to become friable under the influence of
the sun for three or four months, and then to be filled by a tremen-
dous flood stream and scoured out. The constant flow of water in
the channel of the Milk River is beneficial rather than the contrary
to the Dominion. The bed of the river would suffer less than if the
flood waters were permitted to go down there and scour it out and
erode the banks every spring.
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Now, both Col. MacInnes and my friend Mr. Tilley have under-
taken to show by a reference to the Kistorical records here that these
Montana tributaries were necessarily and impliedly considered by
both parties as within the waters to be divided. I think the idea
that they were to adopt the plan of considering all the waters flow-
ing from all the watersheds on either side of the boundary into these
rivers is a new idea. I do not remember that it was broached either
at St. Paul or at Detroit. It is a new argument, but an untenable
argument, because the documents referred to by them do not bear
out that contention. Almost every document referred to by either
one of the gentlemen in support of that bears upon its face irre-
fragible evidence that the parties were considering only these waters
that flowed aéross the boundary and were common therefore to the
two countries.

My learned friend tried to make something out of Secretary Hay’s
letter found on page 61. In order to understand what Secretary
"Hay is talking about, we must understand what he is addressing
himself to, and he was addressing himself here to a complaint by the-
Privy Council ‘that the United States was considering a project to
divert the waters from the St. Mary River to the detriment of the
settlers on the other side of the line, and a part of his letter quoted
by my friend had reference to that matter. The Secretary said:

In the present case the intention is clearly expressed to avoid all interference with
the amount of water to which the Canadian canal on the Milk River may be entitled.
The engineer in charge of the work in Montana made a careful investigation of the
river with a view to determining the amount of water to which claim might properly
be advanced in Canada, and it is the intention of the Reclamation Service, in itg
recommendation to the Interior Department concerning this proiect, to make ag full
provision for the protection of any prior vested rights to water along the Milk River
in Canada ag it would make if the river were wholly within the boundaries of the
I{l}ited States and the rights of the citizens of this country only were under consider-
ation.

Now, counsel deduces from this language of Secretary Hay that
they were to throw all these waters into a common pot and consider
all of these prior rights on either side of the boundary. All Secretary
Hay is referring to here is that in the diversion of the St. Mary River
made by the Reclamation Service under its project they would serupu-
lously respect the rights that had grown up on the other side by not
taking all the water, but by leaving enough water to flow across the
boundary to meet the engagements of Canada with respect to those
private rights. It takes a very ingenious mind indeed, one that is
exceedingly resourceful, to find in this language of Secretary Hay
any indication that the United States inten%ied to join with Canada
in considering all of these water systems, as common waters, to be
applied to the appropriations in the two countries according to their
resFFective priorities. ’ ‘

hen counsel referred to a further letter from Secretary Hay on
page 63. Secretary Hay in this is the objecting party; he is now
objecting to the canal which Canada had made for the diversion of
the waters of the Milk River, and speaking about that he says:

The enfmeers of the Reclamation Service of the Interior Department of the United
States believe it possible for the two Governments to make an arrangement whereby

i
the rights of the settlers within the domain of the United States will be preserved
and at the same time the water necessary to supply the canal built by the Canadian
Northwest Irrigation Co. will be provided. .
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The engineers report that the waters of the St. Mary River which flow northward
into Canadian territory are now being utilized to only a small exteht, and they state
that it is practicable to store these waters in the United States, conduct them i){ a
canal on the southern side of the international boundary line to the head of the Milk
River, and there turn them into the Milk River, so ag to increase the ordinary flow
of that river and furnish a supply of water for lands in the Milk River Valley in the
United States. Under this arrangement the prior rights of the Canadian settlers on
the St. Marys River would be protected by permitting its ordinary flow to continue
to pass into Canadian territory, and at the same time the great volume of flood water
which passes down that river destroying property along its banks would be restrained
within the United States and diverted to the head waters of the Milk River, and be-
put to beneficial use in the lower Milk River Valley in the United States.

Now, I do gather from this language that Secretary Hay at this
time had & much more generous view with respect to the sharing of
the waters of the St. Mgary River than was later entertained by the
officers of the United States, because he says that outside of the
flood waters, which the United States are to store, the ordinary flow
of the St. Mary River is to be permitted to cross over into Canada
for the benefit of the settlers. But where can there be found any
indication on the face of this letter of Secretary Hay of an intention
to treat these entire two rivers and their systems from the source to-
the mouth as one system to be divided for the benefit of both countries,
equally between the two countries? It is utterly impossible for me
to see any such implication, and I think when the commissioners
come to read this letter for themselves, they will find there is not any
implication of the kind.

he next document dealt with is Secretary Root’s proposal for a
treaty, and my friends find all sorts of inferences in that of a purpose
to throw both these rivers, and all their tributaries, from the source
to the mouth into one common pot. If there is any document in
this case that evidences directly the contrary, it is this letter of
Secretary Root’s. The letter starts out with a statement which
qualifies every proposal made by Secretary Root. In the first
paragraph he states:

With a view to bringing to a determination the questions so long discussed relating
to the use of the waters of the St. Mary River and the Milk River which flow across

the forty-ninth parallel boundary between thie United States and Canada, I beg to

offer the following suggestions for a basis of a treaty for the equitable apportionment
of those waters.

Now, everything that Secretary Root is talking about later
refers to those waters that cross the forty-ninth parallel boundary
between the two countries. Yet our friends have gone throug
this draft and picked up a stray allusion to the river here, and a
stray allusion to the river system there, and, because the Secretary
did not again qualify those allusions by saying, that his reference
was to waters that cross the boundary, they stretch those allusions
into an implication that he considered the flow of all of the waters
of the two river systems and proposed the division of them between
the two countries. They find that particularly in the ninth clause,
in which Senator Root says:

The share of the United States shall in any event include so much of the available
natural flow of the Milk River as shall be judicially determined as having been applied
to beneficial use on or before November 1, 1905, by the canal systems taking water:
from the lower Milk River in Montana, the same to be measured at the intakes of

said canal systems; and whenever one-half of the natural flow of Milk shall be less:
than such amount, gneasured as aforesaid, the share of Canada shall be diminished so-
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that said country shall receive of the natural flow of the entire Milk River system
only the excess, if any, beyond such amount of decreed beneficial use.

Great stress is laid upon the use here by Secretary Root of the
‘“ Milk River system,”’ as if this were an alternative situation in which,

—first referring to-the -waters that cross -the boundary, he had then
thrown down all the bars, and in this particular situation had pro-
posed that they divide up all the waters between the two countries,
common as well as those belonging wholly to the United States.
But fortunately we have that same expression used by Secretary
Root in the second paragraph here. After having offered this plan
for a treaty for the equitable apportionment of those waters—that
is, the waters that cross the boundary—-the next clause says:

It is hereby agreed between the Governments of the United States and Great
Britain that the waters of the Milk River and the St. Mary River and their tributaries
shall be a}pportioned in perpetuity for use in the two countries according to the follow-
ing stipulations and agreements:

1. That for the purposes of this agreement the St. Mary River and the Milk River
and their tributaries, which are now separate and independent river systems, shall
be treated as though they were the waterways of a single drainage system.

Certainly, that is as large an expression as the expression used
in section 9 where he speaks of the Milk River system. He speaks
there of the Milk River system, and in the second paragraph he speaks
of the waterways as a single drainage system. Now, manifestly,
where he uses the expression he uses 1t with reference to the waters
that cross the boundary, because he had just before spoken about
his plan as being one for the division of the waters crossing the
boundary between the two countries.

Lawyers and statesmen drawing legal documents and statutes
and treaties would never get through with the wording of a statute,
or a contract, or a treaty, if they were to undertake to qualify the
same expression every time they used it—their work would be
interminable. Having expressed in the first paragraph here that
his plan was for the division of these waters that crossed the forty-
ninth parallel boundary between the two countries, Secretary Root
naturally had a right to assume that everybody would see that in
what he said later about these rivers and river systems he referred
t? the waters described by him in the first paragraph of his draft

an. .

- But, gentlemen, when you come to look at the apportionment of
these waters, made by Secretary Root in paragraph 5, you will see
that he expressly mentions every character of water to be divided,
including the rivers and tributaries, in the United States before the
rivers cross the boundary, the tributaries in Canada, the Milk River
before it crosses the boundary, the tributaries in Canada that them-
selves cross the boundary before they join the Milk River; but
nowhere does he provide for the division of these intrastate Montana
waters. There could not be a.clearer and more explicit statement
of his purpose than is found in the method in which he proposes to
divide these waters. He proposes that the United States shall take:

(&) All water of the St. Mary River and its tributaries diverted in the United
States for use in its territory and not delivered into Milk River or its tributaries.

(b) All water of Milk River and its tributaries diverted in the United States for
use 1n its territory above the crossing of such streams into Canada.
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{¢) All water of Milk River (including stores water of the St. Mary River turned
into it), not in excess of 2,000 cubic feet per second, flowing into the United States
at the eastern Milk River crossing of the international boundary.

These are all the waters that the United States is to get under this
proposed division by Secretary Root, and he describes all-of -the
waters which the United States now say are within this treaty,
and these do not include the tributaries of the Milk River rising and
flowing in the State of Montana. Nor are they mentioned in the
portion of the waters given to Canada:

The share to which Canada is entitled shall be the total of the following items:

(d) All waters of St. Mary River crossing the international boundary into Canada,
not in excess of 2,000 cubic feet per second.

(¢) All water of Milk River and its tributaries diverted in Capada for use in its ter-
ritory, excluding any waters of St. Mary River turned into Milk River by Canada and
which has been measured under item (d).”’

These are all the waters that Canada is to get. By no possible
implication can it be said to include these intrastate Montana trib-
utaries. We have here all the waters that Secretary Root proposes
to divide, and he proposes to divide all the waters except these intra-
state Montana tributaries. How in the world is it possible to take
this letter to Secretary Root and read it, forward or backward or
crosswise or in any other way, and find any kind of an implication
from it that Secretary Root intended to turn all of the waters of the
entire drainage system of these two rivers into a common pot to be
divided between the two countries? ‘

The eagerness with which our friends just jump onto a little ex-
pression like ““the drainage systems of the two rivers” or “ the entire
water system of the two rivers’’ and oppose it to every positive state-
ment made in the letter concerning the character of the waters
intended to be divided, and the particular description of the waters,
is a little remarkable to me, and shows the extremities to which the,
have been compelled to resort to to maintain the contention whic
Canada has made here, that it is entitled for the purposes of the divi-
sion of these waters to have these tributaries included in the waters
to be apportioned and divided. It made me think of the famous case
of Bardell ». Pickwick. Mr. Pickwick, intending to come here late
at night, telegra}i}md his landlady, “Home to-night. Chops and
tomato sauce.” Mrs. Bardell afterwards sued Pickwick for breach
of promise of marriage, and this telegram is the principal evidence
in the case, and Sergt. Buzfuz at the trial addressed the jury in this
way, ‘“Gentlemen of the jury, look at this telegram, ‘Chops and to-
mato sauce.” Gracious Heavens, are the affections of a lone and un-
protected female to be trifled with in this manner ¥’ Here our friends
say ‘‘river systems, river drainage systems”’—“My God, is Canada to
be done out of water that it is entitled to by this declaration of Root's,
that the waters to be divided are those that cross the boundary?
Can it be that he meant to include only the specific waters that he
named when he used the expression ‘““ the drainage systems of the two
rivers” ¢ It is impossible for anybody to read this letter of Secretary
Root’s with an honest mind and reach the conclusion that he meant
an;lr‘thing else.

hen my learned friend, Col. MacInnes, found something in Mr.
Walcott’s letter on page 75, which satisfied him of the purpose to
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include all the waters of these rivers and their tributaries from the
mouth to the source. Mr. Walcott said in this letter:

I have the honor to acknowledge by reference from the department dated March 3,

for report in duplicate and return of papers, a letter from the Acting Commissioner of
~the-Of

-of-Indian-Affairs;-dated February 29, transmitting a.communication from
W. R. Logan, United States Indian Agent, dated February 19, and a letter from Mr,
W. B. Sands, dated February 7.

This correspondence calls attention to the fact that the Canadian canal is heing con-
structed to divert water from Milk River, and this will injure the property of the Gov-
ernment, particularly the irigation system upon Fort Belknap Reservation. The mat-
ter is one of great importance to the Government, as well as to the people of Montana,
and I respectfully recommend that, as suggested in other letters, the matter be taken
up through the Department of State.

This is simply one of the stock letters which are written upon both
sides by Government officials when complaint is made to them by
settlers on contemplated diversions which may operate to their det-
riment. How it carries any implication for the purpose for which it is
read passes my comprehension.

Mr. MacInngs. I do not want to interrupt my learned friend, but
he will remember that I stated to Mr. Commissioner Powell, who was
asking me in regard to this letter, that I was reading that particular
letter more as a matter of interest and in connection with those points
of intake in southern Montana than in connection with the argument
as to the inclusion of all the rivers and tributaries.

Mr. TurnEeR. All it relates to is the receipt of letters from private
parties fearing they will be injured by the diversions which Canada
contemplated taking out of the Milk River. It says nothing about
Montana tributaries, but shows a lively interest in the waters
flowing down from Canada, which Canada might very well have
said she would take, if she could, and which she was prepared to
take by her diversion of the canal. :

Then he passes on to Mr. King’s first communication on page 81,
after he hag been appointed.

Mr. PowerL. Before you go there, Senator, I would like to ask
you a question. Taking the Root proposal, in paragraph 1 of page

65, Mr. Root propsed:

That for the purposes of this agreement the St. Mary River and the Milk River and
their tributaries, which are now separate and independent river systems, shall be
treated as though they were the waterways of a single drainage system.

Do you treat “river systems’’ there as equivalent to the term
“Milk and St. Mary Rivers and their tributaries which cross the
boundary’’ % '

Mr. Turner. That is what Secretary Root said in the paragraph
immediately preceding the paragraph you quote.

Mr. PoweLL. You carry that back?

Mr. TurNer. It is impossible that Secretary Root could have
written that paragraph in any other sense, because it follows the one
in which he says:

I make this proposal for the purpose of settling the division of the waters which
cross the 49th parallel boundary between the two countries. :

Then he goes on to say that they shall constitute one drainage
system.
yMr. PoweLL. And your idea is that whenever the term “river
system” is used it has as its antecedents ‘“the waters of the rivers
crossing the boundary” ?
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_ Mr. TurNER. Manifestly that must be so, unless you expect Mr.
Root to qualify that expression every time he used it, and that is
unreasonable; nobody does that.

With a view to bringing to a determination the questions so long discussed relating

__to the use of the waters of the 8t. Mary River and the Milk River which flow across

the forty-ninth parailel boundary between the United States and Canada, I beg to
offer the following suggestions for a basis of a treaty for the equitable apportionment
of those waters. .

Everything he offers later on is for the equitable apportionment
of those waters, and those are the waters that cross the forty-ninth
parallel boundary. I fortify that by showing that he then proceeds
to describe the particular waters which he has in mind, and he de-
scribes all of the waters here except these intrastate waters flowing
in the State of Montana.

Now, in this letter of Mr. King’s.of April 27, 1908, after speaking
of the necessity of some agreement, he says:

Such agreement, it is believed, to secure acceptance by the people of both coun-
tries, and to fulfill its purpose of obviating all possible future contentions, can best
be based upon the principle of equal sharing of benefits to be derived from these
international rivers, due regard being had to existing righte.

Was Mr. King here speaking about throwing these two rivers and
their tributaries into a common system from their mouth to their
source to be divided between the two countries? What does: he
mean by “these international rivers” unless he means the rivers
that cross the boundary? But our friends did not read that. They
read other portions of his letter from which it was thought-that a
deduction might be made that he understood that these Montana
tributaries were included. But I find another evidence that Mr.
Kin%qdid not have any such idea in his mind in the third paragraph
on the top of page 82. Speaking about the proposal of Secretary
Root to give each an equal amount of water, one of them from the
Milk River and the other from the St. Mary River, he said that that
would not be an equal division because:

The average five years’ flow during the storage period of the proposal (Oct. 1 to
Mar. 1) of the St. Mary River at the international boundary was 132.629 acre-feet, -
while the average of nine years’ flow of Milk River at Havre was 47,789 acre-feet.
(The amount at the intake of the Canadian canal would be much less than this.)

He refers there to the measurement at Havre, because evidently
that was the only measurement then of which they could get any
idea of the flow. To show he was only referring to the amount of
water that could be taken out while the Milk River was in Canada;
he says, “The amount at the intake of the Canadian canal would be

.much less than this.” If he had in mind this 422,000 acre-feet,
that 1s the flow of the intra-State tributaries of Montana, he would
not have found this inequality between the St. Mary River and the
Milk River, and he objects to this apportionment of quantity of
water from the two rivers because he says that the 2,000 feet given
to Canada in the Milk River is not there, that there is not over a
quarter .as much there as flows in the St. Mary River. But that
inequality would be wholly made up if, when he was talking here
about the division of these waters, he had in his mind the 422,000
acre-feet flowing entirely in the State of Montana.

Mr. PoweLr. How much was it that year?
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Mr. TurNER. 47,789 as against 132,629 feet flowing in the St.
Mary River.

This, I believe, is the part of Mr. King’s letter to which particular
implication is attached:

As is pet forth in the minute of council previously referred to, the operations of the
. Rai -& Irrigation-Co.-have been in pursuance.of a consistent plan:dating.
back many years. Their project contemplates the application to.a certain tract of the
water which they have been authorized under the irrigation act to take.

This authorization was not an improvident one, nor given without previous careful
congideration. Before it was given, the fact had been ascertained by surveys made
by the Government and the company that the authorized quantity of water could be
applied beneficially and without waste. The company have prosecuted their works
under their authorization with due diligence.

In these circumstances it is believed that under the laws as to reclamation of arid
lands in force in Canada, as well as in many States of the Union, including Montana,
the beneficial use by the company would begin at the initiation of the project, and
that the amount of water beneficially used would be determined by tge courts as
equal to the amount authorized, and thereby recorded against the stream.

Again, I am unable to see anything in this language indicating that
Mr %(ing intended to take in these%\dontana tributaries. It is true
he refers to the prior rights of those appropriating waters in Canada
and believes they would be recognized by the courts of the United
States as well as the courts of (%anada if they were in the United
States; but it is the greatest stretch of imagination to say that these
letters bear at all upon the question which we are now discussing.
So far as it bears on it at all; it shows that Mr. King was talking
about what he calls international waters, and proposing a division
of those waters on a basis that would not include the Montana
tributaries. :

Then by some dexterity which I am unable to follow in reading this
letter of Mr. Newell’s—his first reply to Mr. King—they find some
implication in that letter that Mr. Newell had an idea that all these
waters were to be thrown into a common system and divided without
reference to where they rise or where they flow.

Mr. Newell is discussing the proposition made by Mr. King. Mr.
King’s first proposition was: v .

That the excess flow of St. Mary River during the last-mentioned period above
1,400 second-feet shall be divided equally between the two countries.

And Mr. Newell said:

This can not be accepted, as it practically amounts to saying that after Canada
has taken the best part of the stream—in all, four or five times the amount now being
used—then what is left, if any, may be divided. The only Yrogosition that seems
fair isf t}lllat }tlhclai flow shall be divided and then Canada mey fill the vested priorities
out of her hali.

The fourth proposition of Mr. King was—

That the United States shall be entitled to all the water in Milk River during the
monthg of January, February, March, August, S8eptember, October, November, and
December of each year.

Mr. Newell says:

These are the months when the river is frozen in whole or part or is nearly, dry
following the spring flood, and is the period when irrigation is practically impossible.
. This concession is therefore of little practical value. ’ .

Mr. King’s fifth proposal was—

That Canada shall be entitled to divert from the natural flow of Milk River to the
present capacity of the Canadian Milk River Canal, agreed upon as being 330 second-
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feet, during the months of April, May, June, and July in each year, subject to the
rights of appropriation from the Milk River within the territory of the United States
as existing at the date of the Canadian company’s appropriation on Milk River
(23d Oct., 1902) and now being judicially determined in the courts of Montana.

That shows very conclusively what Mr. King is referring to, and
that he referred to nothing but the waters that cross the boundary.
Canada is to be permitted to divert at its canal in Canada 340
second-feet, subject to the vested rights of prior locators in the
State of Montana. Now, if this 420,000 acre-feet was in his mind,
it would furnish ample water for these local proprietors in Montana
without making this right of Canada to divert 340 second-feet from
the Milk River in Canada dependent upon the prior rights of the
American appropriators. And Mr. Newell very properly says in
reference to that:

This proposal, as understood, gives the United Stateg, during April to July, inclu-
sive, 360 second-feet, then Canada 330 second-feet. This seems to be fair and in-line
with the principles which it is desired to follow. :

That is, this 330 second-feet which Canada is to have is to be
after the waters of the river coming down from the boundary have
supplied the prior rights in the Milk River Valley, because it is sub-
ject to the prior rlfhts of the settlers in the Milk River Valley.

Now, Mr. Newell makes his new proposal:

Referring back to proposal No. 2, it is assumed that the Canadian St. Mary Canal
has now a capacity of, say, 385 second-feet of water which it is putting to beneficial
tse. Calling this 400 second-feet, this may be considered a prior appropriation which
is now earned. Let this amount be conceded, and after this is assured let the United
States have an equal amount. Then Canada take, say, 200 or 400 second-feet more
and the United States an equal amount, and so on, until the available flow is absorbed;,
by recognizing the rights first of Canada and then of the United States to an equal
amount. This will protect the prior rights in Canada in the same way that proposal
5 protects those on Milk River in the United States.

Then my friend comes to Mr. Campbell’s draft. And how it is
gosslble to read that draft and make out any implication that Mr.
ampbell had any waters in his mind except those erossing the
boundary, it is impossible for any one to see. In all of the five
aragraphs he speaks about waters crossing the international
Eoundary, in every one of them, and in all of the paragraphs wherein
e speaks of the division, he speaks of the division of those waters
being equal between the two countries. And Mr. Newell in his
precedin ﬁpl‘p]ept, dated on the same day as Mr. Campbell’s, is
equally definite in that matter. He states: , ‘
That the waters of each stream flowing across the international boundary shall be
divided equally in quantity as nearlg as practicable between the two countries;
that is to say, the waters of St. Mary River and its tributaries crossing the interna-
tional boundary shall be measured as they cross the boundary and an equal amount
agportioned to each country, due allowance being made for the quantity stored
above the point of measurement in reservoir or reservoirs constructed by the United
States; also the waters of the north and south branches of Milk River shall be meas-
ured where they cross from the United States into Canada, and the main Milk River
and its tributaries measured where they cross from Canada into the United States,
allowance being made for any water diverted or stored in either country before
reaching the points of measurement.
Mr. PoweLL. What date is that?
Mr. TurNER. December 29, 1908. )
That brings us up to the two drafts, one by Mr. Gibbons and the
other by Mr. Anderson, the draft of Mr. Gibbons being general and
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not qualifying the use of the word ‘‘tributaries” as is done in all-of
these otBer drafts and communications, and that of Mr. Anderson
practically qualifying it in identically the same way.

After having read these particular communications to which I
have referred, Mr. MacInnes addresses himself to the question of
the right of the Commission to consider the evidence of the negotia-
tions which is here found in the record, and he takes issue with the
proposition that the result of the Canadian contention is absurd,
extraordinary, and inadmissible, I showed the Commission by
references to the testimony that this contention would lead to ﬁiv'
Canada three-quarters of these international waters, and the Uni
States one-quarter, and consideringaghe idiosyncracies of the Milk
River that it would lead to giving Canada four-fifths of the depend-
able waters of these strcams and the United States one-fifth.

If that .is not a most remarkable, and extravagant, and absurd
result to be brought about out of a convention intended to secure
to the two countries an equal division of these waters, then I do
not know what is extravagant, extraordinary, and absurd. And
what I say is based on what the evidence shows as to the waters
actually flowing into-the Milk River from these Montana tributaries.
When you take the testimony of Mr. Sands and Mr. Bien and find
that a great volume of waters originate on the watersheds of these
mountains and is absorbed by the settlers in the valleys of those
mountains, not one drop of which ever enters into the Milk River,
and that those waters, added to the waters that do actually enter
into the Milk River, would amount to more than the entire flow of
the St. Mary and the Milk River without them, we have a still more
extraordinary and absurd result reached by their contention, because
if their contenition is good, it must take in all of the tributaries
of the Milk River in tge State of Montana, and all these tributaries
in the upper reaches which are diverted and used by settlers must
be computed as a part of the flow of the Milk River to be divided
between the two countries. Mr. Sands presented that very graphi-
cally when he said that if that contention were sustained it would
be necessary for the United States, if it carried out this idea of an
equal division of the waters of these two rivers, to get some of this
water back uphill into Canada in order to make the position éven.
That is an actual fact. ‘

Now, I want to say a word on Mr. MacInnes’s proposition that
these prior appr?ipriations to be given to each of the two countries
are exclusive and to be read in the sense of a prior appropriation
made by settlers upon one of these rivers or the tributaries, who is
entitled to that water and not required to make compensation to
anybody else for the water thus appropriated by him.

e provision is, of course, that each country shall have a prior
appropriation of water during the irrigation season for a certain
amount. Manifestly, the gentlemen who wrote the treaty did not
have in'mind any question about priority of rights by reason of
location. They used the term ‘‘appropriation” as in the sense of a
&lgor right of so much to this Government and so much to the other

vernment, and that was an exceptional provision which neces-
sarily did not displace the prior prrovision providing for an equality
in the division of these waters. The very first command in Article

57206—21—18 u
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VI is: ‘“And the waters thereof shall be apportioned equally be-
tween the two countries.”” Then they go on to make provision for
this prior right of water in each country in the two streams during
the irrigating period. Manifestly, that does not displace the com-
mand that the waters shall be equally divided; and after that pri-
ority has been provided for, then necessarily the other country is
entitled to an equal amount of water in order to restore the equalitﬁ
of division. What was this priority given for? It was given with
the idea that there might be a shortage of water at some time, par-
ticularly during the irrigation season, and that therefore the country
should have a right to the first use of so much of the water. That
is the sense in W%lich appropriation is mentioned, a right to the use
of so much of that water during the irrigating season, a right, how-
ever, which did not displace the command of equality. ’%herefore,
after that prior right had been filled, the equality required by the
treaty must be restored by giving to the other country enough
water to equal this prior use provided for during the irrigating
season.

In this connection I want to advert again to the question of the
qkllmntity of water which this priority gave. The treaty says that
they shall have this— ‘
prior appropriation of 500 cubic feet per second of the waters of the Milk River, or
80 much of such amount as constitutes three-fourths of its natural flow.

What meaning is to be attached to the word “or”’? They shall
have ‘“a prior right to 500 second-feet of the waters of the Milk
River, or so much of such amount as comstitutes three-fourths of its
natural flow.” The natural meaning of “or” is that it is an alter-
native particle, and the first thought in connection with its use here
is that 1t is used in the alternative, that they shall each of them have
this 500 second-feet in the respective rivers, or, if there is not that
much, then they shall have three-quarters of whatever there is.
~ But that leads to a manifest absurdity. If there is 499 second-
feet, under that reading of the word ‘“or’’ the water is to be divided,
three-quarters. to one and one-quarter to the other; whereas, if there
is 501 second-feet, Canada would get the entire 500 second-feet and
the United States 1 second-foot. So I say that to comsider the word
as an alternative would be to make it result in an absurdity.
~ There is another meaning which the courts give to the word “or,”
as meaning, ““to wit,” ““that is to say,” in explanation of the part ef
the sentence that has preceded it, and a sense which brings that
which has preceded it into consonance with that which followed it.
I insist that we must read it in that way here: “Shall be entitled to
500 second-feet; that is to say, to three-quarters of 500 second-feet.”

If that be true, then Canada’s priority is 325 second-feet, or three-
quarters of 500 second-feet; the 8n-ited States is entitled to the other
125 second-feet. Then if the equality is to be restored by giving the
United States as much water as Canada has got, as the result of this
priority, you must give the United States 250 second-feet more;
which gives her 375 second-feet, thus equalizing the 375 second-feet
given to Canada. It seeins to me that that is the logical application
of the words used by the. treaty makers. S

. It is rather an absurd situation altogether for these great men who
write such splendid English to put an involved and obscure clause
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like this in the treaty. “Five hundred second-feet or three-quarters
of 500 second-feet.” What would any ordinary man think that
meant? He would think that that meant an alternative. But the
alternative leads to the absurdity, as I say, that if there is 500 second-
feet Canada gets it all, whereas, if there is only 499 second-feet Canada
gets three-quarters and the United States one-quarter. :

Mr. PowgLL. You are overlooking, I think, Senator, some words
that are there. ]

Mr. Tur~NER. No; I donot think so. -I am eliminating some words
that I think are unnecessary.

Mr. PoweLL. “Shall be entitled to a prior appropriation of 500
second-feet, or so much of that quantity as shall equal three-quarters
of the natural flow of the stream.”

Mr. TurNER. Or so much of the understood amount——

Mr. PoweLL. Yes.

Mr. TURNER. As constitutes three-fourths of the natural flow.
That can not mean anything else than three-fourths of the natural
flow if it is less than 500 feet, can it ?

Mr. PoweLL. It is what the man is entitled to. That means that
the country is entitled to three-quarters of that flow up until the
preference reaches 500 feet, and then it ceases.

Mr. TurNER. I do not know where you get that, because that
means that Canada shall be entitled to three-quarters of 667 feet.

Mr. PoweLL. That is it, exactly.

Mr. TurNER. Whereas the treaty says that Canada shall be
entitled to three-quarters of 500 feet, which is 375 feet.

Mr. PoweLL. It does not say three-quarters of 500 feet.

Mr. TurNER. 1 can not read it in any other way. “The United
States shall be entitled to a prior appropriation of 500 cubic feet per
second of the waters of the Milk River; or so much of such amount” —
?10 m’l;lch of 500 feet—'‘as constitutes three-fourths of its natural

ow. .

Mr. PowgLL. That is, that portion of the 500 which equals three-
quarters of the flow.

Mr. TurNER. I want to find out where anybody takes 667 as the
starting point for the computation. You have 500 feet as the starting

point for dividing the waters. In that case one gets 375 and the other
- 125. But where you get 667 as your starting point it is impossible
for me to say, except you get it as an arbitrary figure.

Sir WiLLiam HEArsT. Read it the other way, Senator Turner, that
the prior appropriation is three-quarters of the natural flow, buf
limited to 500 feet—that is the maximum.

Mr. TURNER. Suppose we strike out the 500 feet and say, three-
quarters of its natural flow up to 500 feet ! v

Mr. PowgLL. Not a flow of 500 feet, but the apportionment of
500 feet.

Mr. TurNER. They shall be entitled to a prior appropriation of
three-quarters of the natural flow up to 500 feet.

MI'.%OWELL. Such appropriation not to exceed 500 feet.

Sir WiLiam Hearst. Such appropriation in no event to be more
than 500 feet.

Mr. TURNER. It does not say that. It says that it shall be three-
quarters of the natural flow, 500 feet. They do use the term ‘500
second-feet” in the first part of this sentence, but it is qualified, as
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I say, by the use of the word ““ or,” which must be read as a qualifying
particle rather than as an alternative particle, and means that u
to 500 feet each of the two countries is to have its share, the Unite
States one-quarter and Canada three-quarters.

Mr. CLARK. Take this construction, that they are entitled to a
prior alpgropriation of 500 cubic feet, provided three-quarters of the
natural fow amounts to 500 cubic feet.

Mr. TurNER. [t is possible to give it that construction, although
it is a very strained construction. But I pass on. -

Now, my friend Mr. Tilley spent a great deal of his time in reading
the correspondence concerning the private irrigating enterprises ini-
tiated in the Dominion of Canada, and showing the authorization
for those enterprises and the amount of water apportioned to fhem.
That undoubtedly would have been a very moving argument on the
fart of Canada for a larger portion of these waters than she got, but

can not see that it bears at all upon the question of the construc-
tion of the treaty as to how much water she actually did get. We
find that from the wording of the treaty. No doubt Ambassador
Bryce and Secretary Root, if these matters had been brought to
their attention, might have considered them in the division of the
waters, but evidently they were not brought to their attention be-
cause they provided for an equal division of the waters.

How can it be said that at the time these papers came into the
}éossession of Mr. Root and Mr. Bryce and Mr. Anderson and Mr.

ibbons, that there was any idea of Canada getting more than one-
half of these waters, and that the waters were other than those cross-
ing the boundary from one country to the other? It is impossible
for me to see how that can be contended, when we observe the prac-
tical agreement between Mr. Newell and Mr. King, reached on the
23d of Decernber, 1908. :

Mr. Newell in his communication said to Mr. King, “It is impos-
sible for the United States to consent that Canada shall have more
than one-half of these waters;’’ and he referred to the waters and
described them as the waters crossing the boundary. Mr. King
comes back with his communication of December 23, and says that
inasmuch as there has been difficulty in the basis of the division,
although the equality of division had been understood all along,
that he will propose, as a general principle, an equal division of the
waters of these boundary streams. Mr. Newell had said that that
equal division was all that could be accorded to Canada, and Mr.
King comes back and says that he accedes to the principle of an equal
division of the boundary streams.

I said that there had been entire concurrence between them at
that time, and I maintain still that there was entire concurrence
between these two gentlemen who had been appointed by their
two governments to agree upon a scheme for the division of these
waters. This letter, however, of Mr. King is commented on.
Mr. King says, before accepting the principle before referred to:

The principle of equal sharing of benefits, with compensation by quantity of water,
suggested by the undersigned, doubtless has a disadvantage in depending for its
application upon agreement as to details. ‘

.. What Mr. King was referring to there was that while this proposi-
tion had provided fer an equal division of waters, his proposition
also provided for an arbitrary giving of certain waters to one country
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and certain waters to the other country, and he says that that had
the disadvantage in depending wholly for its application upon agree-
ment as to details, Then he says:

A principle which is free from this objection and is, moreover, a simple one is that

of equal division of water on the boundary streams (each country providing for its
-existing interests out of its share of water).

Now, was not that concurrence between Mr. Newell and Mr. King
?on an equal division of these boundary waters, referred to by Mr.
ing? Did not Mr. Campbell, when he came upon the scene, make
identically the same proposition? Was not his proposition for equal
division of the waters crossing the boundary, repeated time after
time in five different paragraphs? Was not there an entire under-
standing and agreement between these negotiators, at the time the
fapers came into the hands of Mr. Anderson and Mr. Gibbons, that
he waters to be divided were the boundary streams, and that the
waters were to be divided equally between the two countries ?

Mr. PoweLL. Accepting what you state to be correct, Senator,
could not this view be taken of it, that they both regarded prior
appropriations not as a matter of division or settlement at all; that
had already been accepted and the fight was over the balance.
Might we not say that the proposition was: We will divide waters
»cr(l)\siiin%the boundary after the prior appropriations are provided for ?

URNER. That is utterly impossible. Mr. King says that his

proposals for that and the several proposals—Root’s proposal—for
getting certain quantities of water out of one river and out of another
river, and certain quantities during certain seasons, had produced
difficulties. Therefore, he proposed the principle of an equal division
of these boundary waters, each country taking care of its commit-
ments to its own prior private appropriators. Mr. Newell did not
dissent from that. He proposed the same thing, only he proposed,
instead of recognizing the prior private appropriations, to give each
country priority, one country in one river and the other country
in the other river, out of which each country, if it chose, might regard
rights of the prior appropriators within its boundaries.

I-say again, it is reasonable to suppose that when the papers
-came into the hands of the gentlemen who were to put this treaty
into shape, that they intended to write a treaty which would carry
out and effectuate the practical agreement reached by the technical
negotiators, and which was undoubtedly before them at the time
they wrote the treaty. ‘

Sir George Gibbons wrote a very broad tentative draft, which did
not evidence that he understood that the treaty was about the waters
that crossed the boundary; but it did not evidence the contrary; and
I say that the natural conclusion to be reached is that he either did
not understand the importance of the qualifying word “ tributaries,”
-or if he did that he concluded it was not necessary to qualify the word
because the history of the negotiations showed conclusively that the
{mrties never from first to last had in contemplation anything except
these waters that ¢rossed the boundary.

I shall not follow Mr. Tilley in his discussion as to the effect of the
prior appropriations in Canada. My recollection is that this canal
which was built for taking out the St. Mary waters accommodates
about 400 second-feet, while the purpose of the builders of that canal
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was to take out ultimately the full quantity of water granted to
them, 500 feet at the low flow and 1,000 feet at the high flow, and
that may be binding on Canada.

Mr. MacInnes. Two thousand. .

Mr. TurNeR. Two thousand, I should say. Manifestly, it was
not binding on the United States, and in making a decision based on
the principle of equality the United States had a right to say, and
did say, ““We are willing to recognize the prior appropriation to the
extent that it had been put to beneficial use, but no further.” And
it is upon that basis that Mr. Newell proposed this prior right to
Canada of 400 second-feet, of the waters of the Milk River, com-
pensating for it by a like quantity to the United States from the
waters of the Milk River. But I should doubt exceedingly, whether,
as I understand the laws of Canada, as explained, the right to this
water by this canal company had ever developed into a vested right
prior to the building of a canal sufficient to divert the entire water

ranted to them. It would not in the United States. From what

-understand, they are to make their beneficial use within 10 years,
and if they never make it they never get the waters. Up to the
time the treaty had been made, they provided for taking 400 second-
feet. The treaty recognizes that and gives Canada that 400 second-
feet for the purpose of meeting this commitment to this canal
company.

My friend Mr. Tilley’s argument is confined tv endeavoring to
persuade the Commission that it was the purpose of both countries
to combine all of the waters of the entire drainage system of these two
rivers, and _to divide the amount thus reached equally between the
two countries. I submit that he offers nothing, either in the treaty
or the history of the negotiations, which can bear out any such con-
tention. He claims to find that in the history of the negotiations.
I ask the Commission to read those negotiations again, when not
under the influence of his very persuasive eloquence, and to see if they
can find any understanding of that kind. If they can do so, they can .
do more than I have been able to do. ‘

Indeed, this argument of Col. MacInnes and Mr. Tilley, if I may be

ermitted to say so without offense, is wholly an afterthought. Col.
ﬁ[acInnes did not make it at St. Paul. He did not make it at Detroit,.
On the contrary, he impliedly admitted at Detroit that the historical
evidence pointed conelusively in favor of the United States, when he
said that the negotiations had come to a block in Washington, and
therefore that Senator Root and Mr. Bryce were compelled to dis-
regard what had gone before, and to make a treaty based on entirely
diéerent lines. I§ut it hardly is necessary to say all this. The his-
torical evidences are all in favor of the United States, when read
according to their plain and obvious meaning. In the effort to read
them otherwise, my friends have been compelled to drop out controll-
ing words and expressions, to wrench words from their context, and
to give to words and phrases strained and hypercritical meanings that
they will not reasonably bear. They have done this with great
adroitness and skill, and I confess that I was lost in admiration of
their effort as an intellectual exercise. But it will not stand the
test of cold examination and analysis. It is strained and unnatural
and can not carry conviction.
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I thank you, gentlemen, for the courtesy of permitting me to con-
clude ml}; argument to-night to enable me to get away to-morrow.

I wish to present to the Chairman the findings which I read the
other day and which I asked permission to file., I want to call the
attention of the Commission to the necessity of making one change in
the findings. I provide for measurements at the international
boundary only. That should be extended to measurements at the
boundary, at the points of storage, and at the points of diversion, in
order to make the measurements complete. .

Mr. MagraTH. The argument is concluded, gentlemen.

The Commission then adjourned.
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